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Our vision is to be
a leading innovator
in electronics,
internationally.

 Over the past 11 years, we have transformed from a European distribution business to
~ an electronic engineering, design and manufacturing group with our own product
 development and a global manufacturing footprint.

~ We aim to go further, to become the world's leading innovator in customised
- electronics by continuing te build capabilities and strengthen our presence
- beyond Europe.

Our strategy
of focusing on
sustainable

We target We're
markets that committed
are exhibiting to making a

The change of
business model
enables us to

move up the structural positive impact growth markets,
value chain and growth and through our bolstered
improve our are driven by operations and by earnings
margins technology our products enhancing

acquisitions,
has enabled
us to achieve
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HIGHLIGHTS

REVENUE!

£379.2m

(FY21: £302.8m)

+25%

UNDERLYING
OPERATING PROFIT! 2

£41.4m

(FY21: £30.8m)

+34%

UNDERLYING EPS! 2

29.4p

(FY21: 22.4p)

+31%

REPORTED OPERATING
PROFIT!

£20.9m

(FY21: £171m)

+22%

REPORTED FULLY
DILUTED EPS

26.3p

(FY21:13p)

+102%

FULL YEAR DIVIDEND
PER SHARE

10.8p

(FY21:10.15p)

+6%

Record growth in orders & sales

driven by focus on structurally

growing target markets

n  7G6% of sales into UNSDG aligned
sectors of renewables, medical,
transport, industrial & connecctivity

« Crganic? orders. -36% (v FY 2020/2)
and +32% (v pre Covid period FY
2019/20})

= Organic sales +18% (v FY 2020/21}
and -14% (v FY 2012/20)

= Tota'sales +25% {v FY 2020/21) and
125% (v FY 2019/20)

Delivering strong financial

performance

s Underlying operating profit from
continuing operations’ - 34%

= Undertying EPS from continuing
operations. ~31%

Excellent progress towards key

strategic targets

= Underlying operating margin
increased by O7pnpts to 109% (target
13.5%)

s Liko-far-like corpon om 55 ons®
reduced by 33% since CY 2019 (v 50%
target by 2025)

»  Free cash conversion” over two years
of 102% of net profit (v 85% target)

Three international acquisitions

completed for £85m, well supported

equity placing for net £53m

= Beacon, Antencva and CPI, now fully
integratea

Sale of Acal BFi completes exit from
the business of distribution
Cortnu rg operations- a‘ra~ged
into two new divisions: Magnetics
& Controls {"M&C") and Sensing &
Connectivity ("S&C")

Group well positioned for

further growth

»  Record order book of £224m (crganic:
“62% v Mar 2027, +71% v Mar 2020)

s Pipeline of acquisition opportunities
In development

« Gearing® of 06x, well below our
target of 1.5x to 2.0x; significant
funding headroom available

® New financial year started well
-cont:inued strong organic
revenue growth

' “This has been a year

of record growth,
with excellent
progress towards
our key strategic
targets.”

Nick Jefferies
Group Chief Executive

Notes

K
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Strategic Report

INVESTMENT CASE

Sustainable growth markets Differentiated product offering

Increasing clectranic content and clectrification Customsed clectronic solutions based on
of praducts and processes drives daomnand for comprercialy proven tecnnclogies, dosignea
clectrical and eloctronic compononts, Wo pricntse Pto meet custornars’ unigue requirements. We
four Markets with structural. susta‘nable growth. Pomanufacture and supnly the components

; throughout tae life of the end procucts.

Target markets

OuUr TArger mar 515

Proven strategy . Strong . Consistent
for growth . financials . shareholder return

Grow woll ahead of GCDP through : Sustainable, crofitable growth i Discipiined capita! aliocation with
the cconomic cycle by focusing on | and excel:ent cash generation. a track record of value enhancing
target markets and an expanding i The strong bhalance shect with a acquisitions drive capital

product offering, bolstercd by i gearing of well below our 1.5x - 2x appreciation and Rrogressive
earnings cnhancing acquisitions. | target allows ampic headroom for | dividends.

Proven track record of delivering | further acquisitions. 5

strategic and financial targots.

Rovenue : Undierlving operating Frec cash flow Cividend Total sharenoder
growth’ of i profit growth of corversion® of Eogrowth of return of

CAGR from ! CACR from on average over | CAGR
FY 2014-Fy 2022 P 2018 FY 2022 four years to PRV 2012 FY 2077 FY 2012-E% 2022
Fv 2022

= Read mare in Our Business Model on pages 1410 15

Annual Report and Accounts for o posr ¢ adad 23




GROUP AT A GLANCE

- discoverlE is an international group of businesses designing and manufacturing
- innovative electronic components for industrial applications. We offer customers
differentiated products in key growth markets on a global scale.

To create innevative cicctronics
that help to improve the world
and people's lives

Our strategy

To grow our business in customised electronics
by focusing on Mmarkets with sustained

growth prospects, complemented by value
enhancing acquisitions

Qur strategy has four pillars:

@ g

Grow sales well
ahead of CDP

Move up the
value chain

ooa / \‘)
8]
oo
oop St
Acquire high Further

quality businesses internationalise

0 Read more in Qur Strategy on pages 18 to 23

To be a leading innovator in
clectronics, internationally

To design and supply innovative
electronics that help our
custcmers create ever better
technical solutions

Our approach to sustainability |

Guided by our Purpose, sustainability is integrated into
our business modecl, strategy and risk management.
Targets and performance are linked to the
rermunerations of the Group Exccutive Commitiee
("GEC"} and the management of each business unit.
Our sustainability programme has three pillars:

Our Planet

Creating a positive impact on our environment
Our People

Keeping cur people safe and happy

Our Products

Ensuring product reliability and sustainability

¥ Our values

s Woe have high cthical standards and integrity
u We strive for the best

» We are Green

= We care for our colleaguces

s We are innovative

= We are a trusted business partner

The culture we aim to build

= Honest, reliable and trusting

= Decentralised decision-making close to tne
customer

» Cpen, constructive communication and
willingness to listen

= Treat everybody equally and value the
impaortance of diversity

» Performance driven



Strategic Report

' We have transformed the Group over the past 11 years, from a European distribution
- business into an electronic engineering group, with our own product development
- and a global manufacturing footprint.

We have broadencd our

¢ product rangeg, customer

basc and geographica!
| presence over the last

1 years

Number of acguisitions
i with design and

' manufacturing

. capabilities

19

¢ Average return on
. capital employed in last
¢ five years

c15%

Disposal of
Custom Supply

tn March 2022, the Group
completed the sale of the
Custom Supply business,
which included Acal BFi,
to H2 Equity Partners

for a total consideration
of £50m on a debt free
cash free basis. The sale
concluded the Group’s
exit from the distribution
business, leaving the
Croup focused wholly on
design and manufacture,
the principal driver of
the Group’s financial
performance in the last
five years.

Our journey

discoverlE {formerly Acal) was established in 1986 as an electronic component
and IT distributor, capitalising on the rise of digitalisation. As demands rose,
the distribution market became highly competitive.

Since 2011, the Group has shifted its focus from distribution to design and
manufacturing (“D&M"). The D&M business model allows the Group to move
up the value chain and provide more value-added preducts 1o customaers. It
divested several businesses deemed to be non-core and redirected capital
into building its own D&M capabilities, through both organic growth and
acguisitions.

The sale of the Custom Supply business marked the Group’s exit from the
distribution business. discoverlE is now a pure design and manufacturing
company that focuses on sustainable industrial markets.

Specialised components

and systems }

2022
Design and
manufacture

Standardised
components

2017
Transitioning
to design and
manufacture

sole focus

2010

Custom supply rmodel

distribution
model

Characteristics
- Decsign,
custemisation

Characteristics

Characteristics

- Highly
competitive
market

- Scale matters

. Custom Supply
. Design and Manufacture

- Dwersify from
distribution
and bulding
desgr and
manufacture
capabilities

Lovwwer volatiity

and
manufacturing
know how
ascorg
compeiency

- Long lasting
custamer
relationsnips
and recurnng

revenuo

o Read more on our business
model on pages 14 to15

Annual Report and Accounts for tno yoar orded $1 Warcn 2007



Strategic Report

GROUP AT A GLANCE

- Qur divisions

discoverlE aoperates two segments:
Magnetics & Controls (M&C) and
Sensing & Connectivity {S&C).

Following the disposal of the distribution business,
the Croup divided the 20 business units within the
~ongoing D&M division inte twe cperating segments:
M&C and S&C Tha now structure enables greater
- collaboration between business units and improves

visibility for the Group's growth initiatives.

" The new divisions align business units by product and
technology area.

Magnetics & Controls

Underlying

operating
profit

Revenue

@ M:EC £234.7m @ MaC £29.8m

@ S&C £144.5m @ sS&C£233m

Sensing & Conhnectivity

Bk NORATEL ' Cursor Controls

o

FLUX

fiiva

bea«on.

EmbeddedWorks

€ HECTRONIC

HOBART

ELECTRONICS

Vertec

4 Varighm HHilp— santon

suparior swilch solubons

mtc

T Tioey 13 TR

.. rtech

Limitor sto

e Sens Tec 9 1OSS
antenova’

F W R %S

&

@ Positek

Innovative Electronics

discoverlE Group ple




Strategic Report

SENSING & CONNECTIVITY

' MAGNETICS & CONTROLS

¢ Comarises the magnalic components and tac embodded Comuarizas a claser of fivo sons ng compoaent
i computing and intertace cortrols busing: Dyusnessos Ard Sovenn Camimumication and
cangiars of cight husimes ACTOES M0 SO TS W CUMNMETiviY Bosirnesne s A0 ;s B canunbrios
rmanutactunng sics TANUFACLULinG sitos

£192.5m £115.5m

£190.4m £N2.4m

£2347m £l445m

FY19/20 FY19/20

Fy20/21 FY2e/21

Fy21/22 Fy21/22

Liouid-cooled power reaciors and transformers for wina cncocdars 1h aslar trackors to obtan reianlo

CorEl Systams positioning of tilt and acrmath angles
¥ ray dotectors for bone donsiny measuremant

ard X ray scans

Trackballs for ultrasound systom conire: pane:
Rugaedied contral board wath antr vipration ochnoloony

and waterproof sealing for marnine apphcations 2 antennas for rebhotic control

How our customised products work

Motion sensing and control
Application: Wind scanner

How our customised products work

Embedded microsystem
Application: Implantable vision restoration

An embedded solution for a ground breaking implantable
medical device that delivers artificial vision for patients
with retinitis pigrmentosa, & medical condition that can
cause sevare vision impairment. The device uses an

ocular implant that receives wireless signais from a pair of
cyeglasses and subsequently stimulates remaining retinal
celis to restore visua! function.

Customer benefits:

We developed an embedded system that is less than ong
sguare inch, that can be fitted into the glasses without
compromising their compact design. It has reliable
processing power and a long product life, alse meeting
stringent US and Eurapean regulatory requirements. We
provide support througheut the entire product life cycle.

Afull scate multiple LIDAR-based laser scanner system
1o measure wind turbulence in three dimensions around
wind turbines to further understand wind turbutence
ceffects on existing turbines on wind farm sites and
complex terrains woridwide. The captured data is then
shared with wind systems designers and scientists to
develop turbings with higher cfficiencies and improved
safety and fife span.

Customer benefits:

We design, prototype and manufacture the positioning
systers with associated motian controls and all
interfacing cabling, as well as on-site assembly and
functional testing.

Annual Report and Accounts v 1y o




Strategic Report

GROUP AT A GLANCE

Our global reach

discoverlE is an internationat
electronics engineering group,
designing and manufacturing
customised electronic components
for industrial applications.

30

Manufacturing
sites

20

Countries in which
we operate

Countries in which our
products are sold

4,886

Employees
globally

diseoverlE CGroup ple  Innovative Electronics

North America
We have expanded our
operations and customer portfolio
in North America in the past three
years through several acquisitions.
Wae have manufacturing faclitesin the
UsaA and Mexico.

16%

Croup revenue

442

Employees




Europe
Europe urre verlE's

langesLridrkel Ve have

manufac Iities inthe UK, the
ards, Poland, Hungary, Slovakia
d the Nordic regicn, producing
trical and electronic components,
HMI devices and microsystems.

60%

Croup revenue

1,462

Employees

Asia
Asia I1s our fa
market, driven
for electric:
renewable ene
manufacturing fa
India, Sri Lanka and |
dornestic mar

24%

Croup revenue

2,982

Employees




CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

This year saw discoverlE recover very
strongly from the effects of Covid the
previous year, to deliver record organic
growth in orders, sales and order book
compared with both last year and

the pre-Covid period two years ago,
resulting in record Group profitability
for its continuing operations.

GROUP REVENUE

£379.2m

UNDERLYING
OPERATING PROFIT

£41.4m

| The exit from the business of

, distribution has enabled the
" Group to be fully focussed on

its core strategy of designing

- and manufacturing custemised

. electronics for industrial
applications through two new

| divisions, with disposal proceeds

| available for re-investment into
further high quality, higher margin
acquisitions.

Cash generation has again been
strong, reflecting both the guality
~of earnings generated and the

“The Board is excited
by the opportunity
to continue building
a global business
and contribute
to a sustainable
environment.”

Malcolm Diamond MBE
Chairman

i The Group is committed to

! reducing the impact of its business
operations on the environment
Along with its focus on selling into

| markets that are aligned with a

" sustainabie future, the Group has
made oxcellent progress towards

its target of reducing its carbon
emissions by 50% by 2025 and

ts currently developing its net
¢ zero plan.

! Strategy

discoverlE Is a customised
electronics business operating

i internaticonally, focusing on

i structurally growing, sustainabie
markets driven by increasing
efectronic content and where

i there is an osscntial need for its

: products. The Group's product

range is highly differentiated,

i being customised for specific
. applications.

With the Group's target

| markets being worldwice and
. major custormers operating

! internationally, the business
is expanding both within and

" officient, capital-light nature of the | ©eyond Europe, building an

* Croup's operating model. Gearing
. is now at its lowest level in eight
years, with significant funding

i headroom for further acquisitions.

" internationai electronics group
! supplying complex, value-added
i solutions for customers,



Alongside organic growth,

. acquisitions are another key

factor in building discoverlE. Since

201, the Group has acquired 19

specialist, high margin design

- and manufacturing businesses

which have been integrated

successtully and have helped to

" accelerate its growth. discoverlE

has a disciplined approach to

. acguisitions and continues

to see significant scope for
further expansion with several

" opportunities in dovelopment.

- The Croup's capital-light model
delivers strong cash flows which
management looks to reinvest

" into accelerating the strategy and

" delivering further value creation for
© shareholders.

" Sustainability and

* Positive Impact

" This is the first year that the UK

¢ reguirement of TCEFD reporting
[Task Force on Climate-Related
Financial Disclosures) comes into
- force. The Group has undertaken
" a preliminary assessmant of the

* resilience of its business mode|

" and strategy, and potential

i impact of climate change over

i the short and medijum term. It

¢ has concluded that, while the

| Group may be exposed to certain
| risks during the transition to

| alow carbon cconamy, such

' risks are considered to be low

- and more than outweighed by

i the opportunities presented to

i the Crouc.

' The Grouo’s busincss model of

" designing and mamnufacturing
customised clectranics for
industrial applications is well

- established. Aligning its purpose
with the UN Sustainable
Developrnent Goals "UN SDGs",
© the Group creates g positive

! impact an the world around us

i ana people's tives through both

i our products and aur operations.

. By creating innovative electrenics
' and focusing on our four target
markets, we play an essential role
©inachieving a cleancr, healthier,

. and more sustainable world.

" The Croup alsc aims to be a

socially responsible employer,
adhering to the highest ethicat

i standards both internally and
externally through its supply chain, !
i with excellent employee relations
" and a commitment 1o increasing
i diversity in the warkplace.

© Emphasising its importance to

' the business, a Sustainability

© Committee of the Board has been
© established with responsibility for
. setting the sustainability strategy,
. overseeing its implementation
and ensuring progress. Reporting
. to the Board, the Group

£xecutive Committee also has
responsibility for Environmental,

! Social and Governanee ("ESC")

i implementation and each member
i has the achievernent of ESG '
objectives included in their annual
i incentive plans.

Recognising the Group's
;. achievernents and strong strategic
: focus on sustainable development, |
i MSC| awarded the Croup an "A”

" rating in its 2022 ESG Rating

. assessment. It acknowledged

" the Group's strong performance
* against global industry peers

" in various areas, including

- opportunities in clean tech and

. corporate governance

. Acquisitions and disposals

i The Group made three

! acquisitions during the year for a
| total consideration of £85rm on a
! cash free, debt frec basis. Control
! Products Inc ("CPI"), & US bascd
designer and manufacturer of

¢ custom, rugged sensors and
switches was acguired in May

i 2021 and Antenova Limited, a UK
i and Taiwan based designer and

! manufacturer of antennas and

! radio frequency (RF) modules

was acquired in August 2021.

¢ Both busincsses now cperate

i within the Sensing & Connectivity

i division Beacon EmbeddedWorks
. {"Beacon”), a US basca designer

. and manufacturer of custom

! embedded computing boards, was
! acquired in September 2021 and

i now operates within the Magnetics
& Controls division.

All three businesses retain their

. distinct identity and high-quaiity

| ranagement teams, and have

i now been fully integrated into

| the Group. Their complernentary
product ranges and wider access

. 1O cUStomMers is expected 10 create
cross-selling opportunities in the

| Group's target markets and drive

! further growth.

. We are delighted to welcome the
i employees of all three businesses
intc the Croup.

; Additionally during the year, the
! Group completed the disposals
. of the Acal BFi and Vertec SA

" distripution businesses, which

has enab/ed the Group to be fully
focussed on its core strategy of

i designing and manufacturing
© custom electronics for industrial
i applcations.

We wish all employees of Acal BF
and Vertec SA well for the future

i and thank them for their excellent
! and long-standing contrioutions to
i the Group.

{ Group Results Summary

i Continuing Group sales for tne year
i increased by 25% to £3792m (+28%
i CER), with underlying operating

" profit, which excludes acqguisition

related costs, increasing by 34% to

- E414m. Underlying profit before

" tax increased by 38% to £37.6m,
Cwith underlying earnings per sharc
- for the year increasing by 31% to

' 29.4p (FY 2020/21: 22 4p).



CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

After underlying adjustmaents for
acquisition costs, together with
taxation costs and the inclusion
of net profits from discontinued
operations, net profit for the year
on a reported basis increased by

with fully diluted earnings per
share increasing by 102% to 26.3p
(FY 2020/21:13.0p).

Strong free cash flow over the
last two years represents 102% of
underlying net profits, well anead
of the Group's 85% target despite
strong organic sales growth
requiring investment in working
capital. Net debt at 31 March 2022

and a gearing ratio of 0.6x, well
below our target range of 1.5x 1o

2.0x, leaves considerable headroom
i and a higher level of investment
. inacquisitions from internally

© generated resourcoes.

for further accretive acauisitions.

Alongside the acguisitions of
Antenova in August 2021 and
Beacon in September 2027,

the balance shect was further
strengthened by way of a well-
supported equity placing that
raised net proceeds of £53.4m.
Together with strong organic cash
flows, these acquisitions provide
the Croup with an excellent
platform from which toc continue
to execule its growth strategy. On
bchalf of the Beard, | would like
to thank shareholders for their
support.

! Increased Dividend

! The Board is recommending a
6% (045 pence] increase in the

. final dividend per share to 745

! pence per share, giving a full year
dividend per share of 10.8 pence,
0% to £25.2m (FY 2020/21: £12.0m) |
i underlying earnings of 2.7 times (FY
| 2020/21: 2.4 times). Since 2010, the
annual dividend per share has maore |
than doubled.

and representing g cover against

- The Board believes that, as an
| acquisitive growth company,

i maintaining a progressive dividend !
. policy is appropriate along with a
i long-term dividend cover of over
i three times on an underlying
was £302m {31 March 2021 £472m) |
i the continued growth of the

! Group should enable funding of

basis. This approach along with

both sustainable dividend growth

| The final dividend is payablc on
i 2 August 2022 to shareholiders
registered on 24 Juneo 2022.

i Employees and Culture
. On behalf of the Board, | would like :
to thank everybody at discoverlE

| for their commitment and hard

i work through the unprecedentad
circumstances of the last two

| years when their flexibility,

| resilience, initiative and support

i have demonstrated, beyond

all expectations, their guality,
capability and dedication.

- The Group comprises

| approximately 4,900 employees in
- 20 countries around the world and
by adopting an entrepreneurial

i and decentralised operating

L environment, together with

! rigorons planaing, review, support,
- investment and controls, the
Group has created an ambitious

and successful culture, with

i acommitment te increasing
diversity across the organisaticn.

We aim to achieve a cuiture across

the Group that:

" m isentrepreneurial
. w treats cverybody equally and

recognises the importanca of
diversity

= is honest, reliable, trusting and

non-political

+ » cnables decisicn making close

to the custemer through a
decentralised structure

. = enables open, constructive

communication with a
willingness to listen

© m is performance driven

Board and Group Executive

. Committee Strengthened;

' Chairman-elect announced.

| Two additional senior level
©appointments were made during
the year.

| = Rosalind Kainyah MBE joined

the Board in January 2022

as a Non-Executive Director,
Rosalind brings many years of
senior management, executive



and board cxperience in
international environments.
She has extensive experience

in sustainability matters and
currently runs Kina Advisory,

a consultancy advising on

ESC matters for businesscs.
Previously, Rosalind held senior
axecutive roles at Tullow Oil, as
Vice President, External Affairs &
Corporate Social Responsibility,
and at De Beers SA in various
roles, latterly as President

of its US business. On 1 April
2022, Rosalind was appointed
chair of the newly established
Sustainability Committee of the
Board with responsibility for the
Croup's sustainability strategy,
policies and performance of
discover|E and driving further
Drogress.

Paul Hill joined the Group
Executive Committee ("GECT

in December 2021 and since
February 2022, has been leading
tne newly established Sensing &
Connectivity division. Paul brings
extensive cxperience in the

electronics and technology sector
i Craham, a member of the Board

: since Novermnber 2015 and Chair

i of the Remuneration Committec,
will succeed Bruce as Senior

i Independent Director.

having held senicr operational
roles in both hardwarc and
software companies,

Having started h:s career

In electronics engincering,

Paul has worked in electronic
components, smart card
systems and electronic design
and manufacturing businesses.

More recently Paul led private
equity held businesses and
joined from Antenova, our
recent acguisition, where he
was Chief Executive Officer.
Paul alsc has Group-wide
responsibility for evolving our
approach to developing design
opportunities.

" After seven enjoyable years with

discoverlE during which time

i the Group has ascended Into the
. FTSEZ50, | am today announcing
my intention to step down as

i Chairman of the Group from 1

i Novemler 2022. | am pleascd to

i announce that my colleague Bruce |
Thompson will become Chairman
| from that date.

Bruce has been a Non-Executive

i Director of the Group since
February 2018, and the Group's
Senior Independent Director

i since March 2012 8rucc is also

¢ Chairmman of Avon Protection plc
and prior to joining the Group, was
i Chief Executive Officer of Diptoma
! plc for over 20 years. | am also

pleased to announce that Tracey

Summary

The Croup is bullding a high-
quality business that is delivering
strong results with excellent
prospacts. The customised
eiectronics market remains highly
fragmented, providing scope to

¢ further build capability and cxtend
i geographic caverage through
i disciplined acquisitions.

. The Board is excited by the

i opportunities ahecad to continue

: puilding a globat business that
attracts and retains high guality
employees, delivers exceptional

! value to our customers, grows long

term returns for cur shareholders,

© contributes to the creation of a
' sustainable environment and
! adheres to the highest standards.

: Throughout the year, the Group
" has again demonstrated the
- quality and resilience of its

businesses and, with good levels of

. operational and funding capacity,
" is wel! positioned for continued
" growth inthe year ahcad.

| Malcolm Diamond
;. Chairman

14 June 2022



OUR BUSINESS MODEL

Our business model of designing and manufacturing customised products has
proven to be resilient and flexible, evident in our performance track record, even
during the most challenging times of the pandemic.

Our inputs

Our colleagues

We have 4,886 colleagues worldwide and the number
is still growing. Many of them are long-serving and have
a high level of technical knowledge and experience

in their fields. We encourage local employment and
talent development so that our colleagues understand
the market where they operate

Expertise and know-how

We have been active in the electronics market for over three
decades and have accumulated a vast amount of expertise
and knowledge. This allows us to develop new products in
response to changing technologies.

intellectual property

We have unique technology patents, which are used in
many of our customised products. In most instances, we
also retain the intellectual property rights of the products
designed for customers’ specific requirements.

Manufacturing capability

We have 30 manufacturing facilities in 20 countries,
including China, (ndia, Mexico, Poland, Sri Lanka,
the Netherlands, the UK, and the USA, producing
high-quality products consistently and refiably in
locations close to our customers.

Financials

wWe have a strong balance sheet, supported by high cash
generation, which allows us to continue to invest in our
people and capabilities and expand geographically.

Sustainability approach

Our purpose and values provide a clear framework for
decision making. We strive for the highest performance
and ethical standards, while making a positive difference
to the world and people’s lives.

Value creation for our stakeholders




Our main activities

We design and manufacture electrical and electronic components for original cquipment manufacturers ["OEMS").

Core to our value proposition is the understanding of our customers’ design challenges and the design
and manufacture of engineered products to meet their needs. These arc then supplied over the life of the
custoemer’s praduction, typical.y five to seven years.

Raw materials
& components

Qur products contain
copper, aluminium
and plastics Some

of our products aiso
use components

such as printea circuit
hoaras {"PCB") and
MICTOBrocessing chips

Long-lasting customer

Design and

customise
preducts

| We work closely with

| our customerns, wno

are primartly QEMs, o

| oeveiop appropriate

i splutians to solve their

. techrical challenges,
which often reaurre

| aoaptations of stancard
. products or completely
| nevw ones.

Manufacture
customised
products

COWATh know-how and

©1n house manufacturing
i capabilities, we have

. control of the progucticn
1 process, ensuring

both high standaras

and rehability Quality
i s assured thradgh
our agvanced testing
" procedures

Long product cycles

Collaboration

Deliver
customised
solutions

We supply customers

©owith custormised
' products consistently

i throughout the project’s

IIfetime and proviae
! support thereafter

Original
equipment
manufacturers

Distributors

We work with ana sell
directly to OEMs who arc
often makers of larger
systems, such aswina
systems, solar equipment,
and MRl scanners In
s0Me countries, we also
sell through distrbutors.

Low capital requirements

relationships

We have been supplying many

of our customers for decades.

Our long-lasting customer
relationships are built upon

our product knowledge and
expertise, manufacturing know-
how, product quality and reliability
and reliable delivery. OQur highly
skilled engincers work ciosely with
custormers, developing a deep
understanding of their industry
and sharing knowlcdge and
insights.

and repeat revenues

Qur products are a smal! but
essential part of larger systcms
which have a life cycle of typically
seven years. Once designed into
the systern, they stay throughout

the lifetime of the system design.

This means repeat revenues for
the Grougp.

and carbon emissions

Most customised products arc
created for specific projects.
which tend to be long-lasting

and require a low volume and

high mix, manual or semi-manual
production model. The investmoent
requirements and carbon footprint
for such are relatively low.



MARKET REVIEW

Sustainable
growth market

We focus on four target markets,
which account for 76% of

Groun revenuae! renewable
cnergy, transportation, medica!
and industrial automation &
connectivity. These are expected to
drive the Group's crganic revenue
wcell ahead of GDP over the
economic cycle.

Growth in these markets is driven

by global macro trends, such as

the need for renewabie sources

of energy, electrification of

transportation systems, an ageing
~affluent population and expanding

infrastructure.

- Revenue from target markets’
(% of total revenue)

Other

Industial &
Connactivity

Trarsport

Renewahble
energy

Medcal

1 Sased on Croap FY 202122 roveonue of £5/9 2

7 UNSNGs Ur ted Natigns Sasta naole
Dovcloprcrt Coais

nterratora Tnergy Agency (e A)
Rescarch and mar<ots

Rescarcr and Tarels

R R N

Stat stics

Target
markets

Growth rate p.a.

Mega trend

Renewable
Energy

s Decarbonisation

= Energy source diversification

Market drivers

s Changing regulations &
now standards

» Covernment initiatives

Technology
integration

s Increasing scale of wind turbines
n Smart gnd and energy efficient technology

discoverlE's
solutions

Power & Magnetics
= Liquid coofed power reactors and transformers

for wind power systems

Sensing & Detection

» Encodersin solar trackers to obtain reliable
positioning of tilt and azimuth angles

s Encoders for harsh environments in
wind energy

Connectors & Communications

» DCisalators and DC/AC power inverters for
solar power

UN SDGs®
Alignment

B
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Transportation

Vehicle electrification
Smart ransportation

Medical

Sensing, analytics and artificial
inteiligence

Industrial and
Connectivity

Industrial automation
Conrectivity
Internet of Things

Tightening cmissions regulations
Mass-transit and route vehicles
Growing public awarcness

‘Safety-centric’ agenda

Rising life expectancy and growing
rmiddle class population

Crowing geriatric population

Increasing use of radiation therapy
in dragnosis and treatmaent

Proiiferation of smart devices

Next generation wireless
technology

‘Big data’

Sensing technology
Smart charging
High speed rail

Electrification of mass transit

Artificial iIntelligence & machine
learning

Sensing and analytics

Automatior and robotics

Automation and robetics
Smart factorics
Artificial intelligence

5C technology

Power & Magnetics

Traction transformers for raiiway
roiling stock applications
E-Maobility charging
infrastructure (EV, eBus, Maring,
& heavy duty vehicles)

Control Systems & Displays

Ruggedised CPU modules and
carricr board s for automatic
guided vehicles

Ruggedised Hm! devices with
antivibration technology and
waterproof sealing for marine
applications

Master controllers for trains

Sensing & Detections

Torque, load and force sensors for
arcraft braking systems, actuation
systerms ang in flight contrals

Power & Magnetics

Built-in transformers and inductors
for MRI scanners

Control Systems & Displays

Trackbalis for ultrasound systems
Panel PCs for biood pgressure
diagnostcs

Single beard computers for electro
cardiographs

Optical implants for restering vision
to the visually impaired

Sensing & Detections

Prossure sensors in oxygen tanks
and thermal compression units

Cable extension transducers for
use in oncology machines and MRI
machines

X ray detectors for bone density
measuring and X-ray scans

Power & Magnetics

Transformers for process
machines and robotics

Control Systems & Displays

Control systems for industrial
robotic applications

Srart control panels for indoor
climatg control

Sensing & Detections

Light detectors for harmful gas
2MmIssIons

Linear & rotary potentiometers
for steering systems and throttle
position In engines of agricuitural
vehicles

Connectors & Communications

Wircless antennas for robotic
control

Fibre optics connectars

Connectors & Communications
» Battery isolation switches for trains

Connectors & Communications = Circuit breakers for ships

«  Anti microbial ana sterilisable

« CCTV for public transportation cables for medical equipment

R 1 oo 3 omua,

e




OUR STRATEGY

Qur strategic aim

Qur mission is to grow our business in custcmised
electronics by focusing on markets with sustained
growth prospects, driven by increasing electronic

ceontent and where there is an essential need for our

products.

We aim to achieve this through a motivated,
entrepreneurial and empowered workforce that

adheres to the highest ethical and guality standards.

Our strategic ptiorities
Over the years, we have pursued a clear strategy,
investing ininitiatives that enhance design

opportunities for customised products and targeting
structural growth markets. Following the sale of the
Custom Supply distribution business, we now focus

purcly on design and manufacture opportunities.

Qur strategy has four strategic priorities:

al

Grow sales well
ahead of GCDp

Move up the
value chain

ooo
o S
Acquire high guality Further

businesses internationalise

“We have pursued
a clear strategy
that focuses on
structural growth
markets.”

Nick Jefferies
Group Chief Exccutive

Impact of climate change

Our initial assessments of various COz emission
concentration pathway scenarios have shown
that we are exposed to certain risks in the
transition to a fow carbon economy, such as:

» Higher prices of raw materials, such as copper
and aluminium, driven by policy changes

» Production disruptions as a resuit of power
and labour shortages

However, the commercial opportunities
presented outweigh such risks, and our business
model and strategic focus on cur target markets
are well suited to capture these opportunities,
such as:

s Increasing demand for renewable energy,
especially wind and solar, in which we aiready
have an established position

» Increasing demand for electric vehicles and
related infrastructure drives higher demand
for electrical and electronic components

See pages 46 to 50 for 2 summary of our climate-
related risks and opportunities and our TCFD
Report on pages 67 to 62 for more detail.

Further analysis is ongoing to guantify such
potential impacts and we will report our findings
in due course.



Strategic priorities

Progress to date

Link to key
strategic
indicators

Link
to risks

Grow sales well ahead of GDP
over the economic cycle by
focusing on structural growth
markets, namely renewable cnergy,
transportation, medical and
industrial & connectivity. Each of
these markets is predicted to grow
faster than global GODP, at 7-12% pa.

i

The Group has delivered on
average 7% annual organic
growth since FY 2014. Target
markets have grown weli ahcad
of wider markets, even during the
pandemic. Sales into the target
markets as a proportion of the
Croup sates have increased from
56% in FY 2017 to 76% in FY 2022.
We aim to achieve 85% sales from
target markets by FY 2025.

00 00
00

6]

Move up the value chain

where operating margins are
higher. We aim 1o achieve this by
icveraging synergies amongst our
business units, Improving cfficiency
and through acguisitions.

-

The Croup's underlying operating
margin has tripled since FY 2014
10 10.9% in FY 2022. This was
achieved primarily by disposing
of the lower margin Custom
Supply distributicn business, as
well as operaticnal leverage.

00
00

ECLE Acquire high quality businesses
‘j%:;ﬂ with attractive growth prospects

and strong, sustainable margins. tn
a fragmented market, opportunities
exist to consolidate certain
manufacturers of customised
products for the Group's common
custormer base. We have a clear
approach to acquisitions and the
target businesses must have the
discoverlE DNA.

The Group has acquired 19 design
and manufacturing busincsscs

in the pastten years, investing a
total of £350m. The busincsses
that joined the Group more than
two years ago have delivered a
return on investrment of 14% on
average.

00

@;} Further internationalise

the business by expanding in North
Armerica and Asia. Having started
as a British business, the Group

has established a strong footprint
in Europe over the years. We are
expanding ocur opérations in North
America and Asia where demands
for our products are growing fast.

We have grown sales for cur
design and manufacture
business outside Furope from
5% of total Group sales in FY
2014 to 40% in FY 2022 through
a combination of organic
oxpansion and acguisitions.

Key strategic indicators

A

Risks
Instability in the

o CCGeOUTTIS €Ny ranment

o Technological
changes

Increase underlying
aperat.ng murg N

o

Europe
2]
7

disruption

Buila sales beyond

Husiness acguisitons
underperformance

Major business

Incregse target
mMar«ot sales

Loss of major
customers

Cyber
SeCurity

4]
18]

Reauce carbon
emissions

Loss of major
suppliers



Strategic

OUR STRATEGY

IN ACTION

Noratel Group

Investing in growth

O Renewable energy
O Transportation
O Medical

@ Industrial & Connectivity

Q Other

Impact from operations:

Having jeined discoverlE Group in July 2014, Noratel is a
global designer and manufacturer of electromagnetic
components, specifically medium and high power

transformers and chokes.

N the 2ignt years since acquisition,
wo have oroviced Norate! with
strateqic guidance, focusing on
arganic growth in our four targae
rmackets. We have also invested
Lo support the business’ growth
nianin Asiz and North America,
neciuding:

Uoscaiea product.on faciities,
ncluding a now manufacturing
faciity in india

Rationaliscd manufacturing
facilities in North Amernica
Strengthanod its finance team
Added two bolt-on acqu sitions
Plitron and Hopart - to strengthen
its position in North America

Oetimised working capital

impact from products:

JSTET ML 1 R
AN WERAS TR TR ALTOM

& @

discoverlE Group pic  Innovative Electronics

As a result, the ousiness achievea
revenue growth of 9% pa hetween
Y 201455 and =Y 203322, now
with 75% of its rovonue from targaet
markets, compared with 82% in

Fy 2075, Sales outsidoe Eurcpe
acroasea From 28% to 47%, ana
anerating margin mprovea by

4% over the eight vears,

Teday, Norate: with 2 600
oIMDIoYess, Nas grow Nio

a eading electromagnotic
componants supplior to all maier
producers of wind systoms
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Go CGreen

MTC Micro Tech Components was one of the Croup's
early acguisitions. MTC manufactures and supplies

electromagnetic shielding products, serving primarily

the European and Asian industrial electronic market.

Having bocome a member of
the discoveris Group in 2010 MTC
nas always been at the forefront
of cnvironmaenta Mmatagemaent
amongst tho Grou's oporating
Dusinesses. For instance, 1was
the first to achicve 1SC14001
Environmoental Management
Systorn accreditation. Over

the years, it has implomentod
CRCrgy Saving Measuros, such as
introducing srmart moetoers, st its
fac:ities in Cermany anc South
Korea, as well as oncouraging
behavioural changes amongst its
workforce,

Impact from operations:

rMoroover, it has doeveioped now
products that are maore eco-
fricnaly such as naiogen-irec EMI
shielding gaskets. 'n 2019, MTC
lzuncihed tho "MTC GO GREENT
initiative, repiacing ali packaging,
sucty as oubbic wrap and plastic
fillings. with recyclanlo matenals,
wihich were converted from ald
cardboard packaging.

. -

Che gl
e,

MERETEN

Impact from products:

13 &

<>

Strategic Report

(> Renewable energy
O Transportation
O Medical

® Industrial & Connectivity

O Other

Annual Report and Accounts oty




Strategic Report

OUR STRATEGY
IN ACTION

Acquisition of

Antenova

Headguartered in the UK with an R&D
centre in Taiwan, Antenova designs and
manufactures a range of antennas for
the internet of things (ioT"), particularly
industrial connectivity applicaticns.
Typical applications are vehicle telematics
trackers, medical monitoring systems,
EV charging systems and smart grids.
Antennas play an essential part in
industrial automation and smart City
infrastructure.

discoverlE acquirad Antenova 10 August 2021 for a
cash cons.doration of 78 7m on a debt froe, casn freo
basis Antenova was expocted Lo generate ¢ L8.0m
sales and £2.2m underiying opcrating orofitin 2021 1t
is now part of the Sensing & Connactivity division.

Impact from products:

9 SUSTES ANVANDN
WO IRRRSTHEH

&

discoverlE Group ple  Innovative Electronics




Strategic Report

Acquisition of

Beacon EmbeddedWorks

Beacon EmbeddegWorks is a Minneapolis, US-basec designer, manufacturer

and supplier of custom Systerm-on-Maodule {'SOM") embedded computing boards
and related software, supplying the medical, industrial and aerospace & defence
markets in the US. SOMs are miniature circuit boards that integrate system
functions into a single, compact module, offering the functionality of a computer
in a package that is highly versatile.

Beacon FbeddedWo:ws award-winning SOMs are inthe year ended 31 Decamboer 2020, Beacon
o

dosigned tor long product ifecycies and oxtienc EmpeddedWorks detverad sales of $281m and an

conditions, cnao’ing customers to have complete underiving oporetsng orofit of $359m. The acauisition
custarvisation and accelorate thor product nas expanded the Croup's internationa. foctpring
dovelopment. significanty in North Americe.

discoveriE acquired Beacon  mboddedWorks in
September 2021 far a cash consigoration of $380.5m
on a gebt free, cash froe basis. It is now sart of the
Magnetics & Caontrols division

A SOM solution
» o ! developed for
f .ﬁ“ s g a groundbreaking

! implantable medicat
device that delivers
useful artificial vision for
patients with retinitis
pigmentosa.

Impact from products:

oM AEALTH ABESIF! NNTEIION
ML A0 RASTIOET 436

&
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Strategic

KEY STRATEGIC INDICATORS

: @ Increase underlying operating margin

=Y25 Targot
' Limnclerhyinng Litdereyinug opor G Wrefor tho frst tinre
FY14 SoE -
rating profte ‘ [t atolads ; 7T 21500 bhusin
FYis 5 percentage ; seneftod oath fram the
FYi6 . 3 3 Pl elala s n: uringg thes yaar andd the car
from th 1ol inoss WAIth this ot thie

7

Fy SER emaron T incrensed during the vear 003

FY17

Fvig Garesously 1A

F¥25 Target

s heviondd Enrame in 1
FY14 .
513 andc s from 2

FY15 : 3 Exe - FacTors, FIirstly, tha oxit from distril
el e U ane ? sy

Fy7
Evig g1, Strorges!
FY13

27

© Increase target market sales?

FY25 Target
Thz preportion Target mirket sales i the year incroased by 8 5 Lo 76 of Croun
aof Crouprovonue  reverue frorm G875 Daas voars ago {and 70% last year) of which Sppts
that s derved reflects the axit from the distribution businessos, A further 54
from sales into our iImprovement fios b
rargoet markets growth baing more waosghe
L3 2pEis redurtion from the
last 12 months which, while well aligned i rYIaIeE, are
Currerniy e P averago rate The FY 202428 targat romams a
B5uw of sales frarm Larget markets

: @ Reduce carbon emissions

FY25 Target
The Rroportenste Ancw 3 ¢ JOZ0 for the roduction of
F¥20 ceLCTon in cark issians Fom the Croup's existing busmicsses by 0% avat five
Fv22! carkon omissions oars A A ACUIsItian Arc Lot that witlhsin
Ty from the »
Cperaticns s goner:
from the 2009 base ormissions roduc ol § ; ’ oar 2020
& like-for-tike recluctiont During this year, Cap
N proects o rec sarlan emissions by seatching Lo Clesn enargy,
rovenrie asis), inclucing sclar canalinstailatons 0 e Lanka b Jrea heat
purmg 1N Poland, two of the Croup's ma or rmanuface

Contin.ing of nons EY 2000522 she ! vl the pro Covia petos Py 2 a5 thie s the
! oy 70l arer For e g re casposals as raparted at the Lrme
Ag m pereentage of Groupre 5

The roported Ty e was 1925 reduction in 20 0 1 redieeed to &5 aflter aujust nigiorn e o octs of Covid to provids snanserivit, nies

discoverlE Group plc  Innovative Electronics




KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

F¥' 4 7%
Fv'§ 36%
Vg 1438
F¥17 &%
FY18 N
(] 4
FyzC 8%
Fy22 2%

Target Well Ahead of GDP

=14 20%

F¥!15 3%
FY16 10%
FY¥? 13%
FY:8 6%
Fy13 22%

Fy20 Nk

i

Y22 20%

Target >10%

=Y¥14 15.2%
F¥5 12.0%
F¥16 Ne%
F¥i7 13.0%
Fv 8 13.7%
FYie 15 4%
FY20 6.0%
Ey22! T4 T%

Target »15%

I

FY18 94%
FYZ0 104%
=v22! 102%

Target *85% of underlying
net profit

Continuing COrganic

FY'4 5%
FYis 9%
FYie 3%
S [
Fyia T
) 10%
FY20 S%
FYa2 144

Comrentary

Underlying £PS increased

by 20% compared with the
pre-Covid year FY 2019/20
[comprnising 31% growth this
vear offsetting an 8% reduction
during FY 2019/20)

Commentary

RCOCE for the year for
continuing operations was
14.7% compared with 16.0%
two years ago, and 0.2ppts
htugher than last year (FY
2020/21: 14 5%). The reduction
compared to two years ago

is mainly a result of recent
larger acguisitions and the
discontinuation of Custom
Supply. Acquisitions will often
be dilutive to the Group ROCE
Inthe near term.

Commentary

Free cash conversion has

also bren very strong a3t 102%
of undertying net profit, on
average over the {ast 2 years
comprising 77% corversion this
year and 136% conversion In the
prior 12 month (Covid) period
Again, this s significantly ahcad
of the 85% target

Commentary

Organic sales increased by 14% compared with the pre-
Covid year FY 2019/20 (comprising 18% orgaric growth this
year offsetting a 4% organic reduction during the Covid
period) This follows average annual organic growth of 9%
for the preceding three years and illustrates the strong
through-cycle organic growth of the business.

V14 0%
F¥15 %
FY1&e G
FY17 a%
FY 8 &%
FYig &%
FY20 6%’
Arrs &%

Target Progressive

F¥14 100%
[k 1045
FYg '00%
7 136%
Fyg 85%
FY13 EEL)
Fy20 “oe%s
Fy22 1ot

Target »85% of underlying
operating profit

Commentary

The dividend 1s beimg

increased by 6%, continuing

our progressive policy

whilst providing for a higher
praportion of Investrnent in
acquisiticns from internally
generated resources. THis
prograssive policy has sgern a
daubling of the dividend per
share since 2010, whilst dividend
cover on an underlying kasis has
Increased to 2.7%,

Commentary

Operating profit conversion
into cash was very strong again
at 101% of underlying operating
profit on average over the last
2 years (comprising 80% this
year during a pericd of very
strong arganic growth and the
resulting need for additional
working capital along with
further inventory additions
[£4m) to ease supply chain
Issues, and 128% in the prior
[Cavid] year during which
working capital was released).
Tnis is significantiy ahead of
the 85% target and reflects the
tight management of working
canital and expenditure
through the economic

cycie. Over the last ten years,
operating cash conversion has
been consistently strong.

Continaing operauons FY 202122 shown as growth over the pre Covia penod FY 2019/20 as this reflects the actual ongoing grawth
of the business. FY 2013/14 to FY 2019/20 are for total operations before disposals as reporteo at the time.

6% Increase in the H 2079720 intenm dmdena; a final anvidend was not proposca for FY 2019/20 due to Covia.
Defined in note 2 of the Group financial statements.



STRATEGIC AND
OPERATIONAL REVIEW

Overview

The Group had a streng year
delivering record organic growth
building on the progress made in
the Covid-impacted prior year, and
the pre-Covid period two years ago.
Since FY 2017718 as the customised
design and manufacturing strategy
gathered momentum, ongeing
Group organic sales have grown

by 10% CAGR while underlying EPS
has grown by 26% CAGR.

With the exit this year from
the lower margin business of

electronic distribution, discoveriE is |

now solely focused on the design
and manufacture of customised
and niche, innovative electronics.
Five higher margin acquisitions
have been made over the last 18
rmonths (three during the year),

further progressing us towards our |
- scen customers continue to place

medium-term goals of becoming
a higher margin Group, focused
on international and sustainabiy-
aligned target markets, generating
strong cash flows. Our low gearing
eaves us with considerable
headroom far further acguisitions.

Continuing Group sales for the
year increased by 28% at CER,
being 18% higher organicaily
than last year and 14% higher

crganically than the gre-Covid

period two years ago. Performance
i delayed sales in the second half of
. the year in two of our 20 businesses,

in our target markets, which now
account for 76% of Croup sales,
continues to be strong, helping to
deliver an underlying operating
margin of 10.9%, up 3.2ppts since
last year and up 0.7pptson a
continuing basis.

Orders grew by 36% organically
compared with iast year and by
32% compared with two years
ago following the build-up of a
strong pipeline of design wins
over several years This resulted
in a record order book of £224m,
respoctively 62% and 71% higher
organically than last year and

WO years previously. Whilst over

80% of the order book is for
delivery within twelve months
from the time of order, we have

longer term arders. Over the
course of the new financial year,

we expect the order book level to

normalise as it converts into sales.

The agility of the Group's model
and the capabilities of our
employees have cnabled cur
businesses to respona effectively
ta the operational challenges
causcd by Covid and ongoing

“The Group has
performed
strongly and is
well positioned in
a rapidly changing
environment,
proving both
resilient and
flexible”

Nick Jefferies
Group Chief Executive

| supply cnain headwinds, including

sermiconductor shortages which

| Positioned well in a

. changing world

| The Group is well positicned in an
cnvironment of rapidly changing

i global cvents and conditions,
proving bath resilient and flexible.

- With 30 manufacturing sites and
operations around the world

! supplying international and
multinational custcmers, tho

! Group is responding quickly to

! the growing trend of customers
localising production, both for risk
mitigation and environmentat
rcasons. Additionally, with our

i manufacturing using only a

low proportion of bought-in
components, the majority being

i manufactured in-house from raw
materiais, our cxposure to external
! supply chain restrictions is reduced
! {out not climinated}.

~ Cross margins have been robust

. despite supply chain headwinds

. and inflationary pressures. The
Croup's products arc essential

. components, amounting to a small
proportion of a customer's system

| cost, and sustain resilient margins.



The Group operates a capital-
light business model focused

on organic growth, overating
efficiencies and high quality,
accretive acguisitions, Selling into
high quality markets with leng
term growth prospects, the Croup
oxpects to continue to grow ahead
of the wider industry, converting
revenue growth into profits and
earnings into cash. Since 201718,
organic sales from continuing
operations have grown by 10%
CAGR, approximately double that
of global industrial preduction
growth, with underlying cperating
profit growing by 34% CAGR and
underlying earnings per share by
26% CACR. Over the same period,
conversion of operating profits
inta opcrating cash flow exceeded
100% p.a. on average.

Creating a sustainable business is
one of the Croup's top priorities.
As detailed further below, actions
to halve our like-for-like carbon
emissions are underway and
making good progress. More
widely, our Group ESC prioritics
have been established with
detailed plans and targets sct.

Group Strategy

The Group designs and
manufactures customised and
niche electronic componcnts,
operating internationally and
focusing on structurally growing
markets that are driven by
increasing electronic content and
where there is an essential necd
for our products. With our target
markets and global customer
base, the business is expanding
both in Eurepe and bayond, with
40% of continuing Group sales
being cutside Europe, as we
build a geographically diverse
electronics group.

The continuing Group has

* been built through crganic
- growth, operational efficiency
- and 19 carefully selected and
. integrated acguisitions over
the past 1l yearstocreate a
" specialist, high margin design
. and manufacturing business. We
! have a well-developed approach
| to acguisitions and the use of
. capital, and see significant scopc
. for further expansion of the Group
© with 2 number of opportunitics in
| developrent.

. The Group's stratcgy comprises
four elements:

. 1. Grow sales well ahead of GDP

over the economic cycie by
focussing on the structural
growth markets that form our
sustainable target markets;

L2 Move upE the value chain into

higher margin proeducts,

i 3. Acquire businesses with

attractive growth prospects and
strong operating margins,

4, Further internationalise

the business by developing
operations in North America
and Asia.

These elements are underpinned

. by core objectives of generating

i strong cash flows from a capital-
light business modei, and
deiivering long-term sustainable

! returns while reducing our impact
on the environment.

! sustainability and our

. positive impact

i The Group's purpose aligns with

i the United Nations' Sustainaoility

! Development Goals (*UN SDCs").
Woe create a positive Impact on

the word araund us ang peoplc’s

. lives through both our products

i and our operations. By creating
innovative electronics and focusing
. on four target markets, we play an
essential role in contributing to the
i following UN SDGUs:

. = SDG3 - Ensure hea'thy lives and

promote well-being for all ages

. m SDG7 Ensurc accessto

affordabie, reliable, sustainable
and modern energy for all

= SDGY- Build resilient

infrastructure, promaote inclusive
and sustainable industrialisation
and foster innovation

= SDGI11 - Make citics and human

settlements inclusive, safc,
resilient and sustainable

. = SDGI3- Take urgent action 1o

combat climate change and i1ts
impact

© Please see pages 60 to 74
; for our Sustainability Report,
. which outlines the progress we

have madece.
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Target Markets - Aligned with
structurally growing, sustainable
markets

With globai GDP expected to
grow by around 4% CACR 2020-
26 (Source. Statista) and global
industrial production forecast to
alsc grow by around 4% in 2022,
discoveriE continues to focus on
its four target markets which are
cxpected to grow at higher rates
than other industrial markets:
renewable energy, medical,
clectrification of transportation,
and industrial automation &
connectivity. Together they
account for 76% of continuing
Group sales.

For the Group, thesc markets
continue to show above average
revenue growth. Over the iast five
years, continuing Group organic
sales have grown by 10% CAGR
with target market sales growing
by 12% CAGR while non-target
markets have grown by 6% CAGR.

Growth in these target markets
is driven by increasing electronic
content and by glokal mega
trends such as the accelerating
need for renewable sources

of energy, an ageing affluent
poepulation, vehicle electrification
and industrial autornation.

i} Renewable Energy

Mega trend - decarbonisation
and diversification of energy
sources

The world's drive towards net zero
will require a global shift towards
electricity as a main source of
power and the majority of now
electricity capacity is expected

to come from solar and wind.
The International Energy Agency
("IEA") estimates that demand

for global electricity will nced to
double to achieve net zero by
2050 and expects that the share of

rencwables in electricity generation |

will increase from 29% in 2020 to

| 60% in 2030 and as high as 90% by
. 2050, Shorter-term, the IEA predicts
! that renowables will account for
©up to 95% of the global increase in
i power capacity between 2020 and
. 2026 with solar alone accounting

. for half the growth The growth in
¢ solar and wind energy is partially

L driven by the fall in costs: research
| by the World Resources Institute

. has shown that the cost of solar

. photovoitaic electricity has fallen

" by 85% since 2010; the cost of

! both onshore and offshore wind

¢ electricity has haived during the

| same period.

;i) Medical

" Mega trend - sensing, analytics

* and artificial intelligence

i Growth in the global medical

and healthcare markets is driven

. by the rise in chronic diseases,

! agrowing geriatric pepulation,
rising disposable income and

i improved access to healthcare

. facilities. Moreover, the use of

. electronic content is increasing

! as a result of the proliferation of

i digital technologies and the rising
i adoption of electronic devices for
rapid and enhanced patient care
" diagnostics as well as the rise in

{ minimal-invasive surgeries and

: non-invasive diagnostic devices.

© The medical clectronics market is
- expected to maintain its above-

. average growth, with Precedence
. Research predicting a global

" market growth of 11.8% CAGR for

| 2021-2030.

. iii) Transportation

. Mega trend - smart transportation, |
. vehicle electrification '
| Safety, efficiency and

C environmentai impact are key

| trends driving the rise in electronic
- content in the global transport

! market with improving technology
! and falting costs leading the

growing demand for clectronics.

loT market during 2021

' The Group continues to focus on

niche applications, especially in rail,

. bus and delivery vehicles, together

with the growing demand for

" interconnectivity of the transport
Cinfrastructure ana the emergence
o of emart citics.

' Data Bridge Research estimates

; that the smart transportation

© market will grow at 11.1% CAGR

" from 202'-2029, whilst Rescarch
and Markets predicts CAGR

i growth of nearty 20% in the global
clectronic connectivity in the
transportation market between

© 2021 and 2030.

iv} Industrial Automation &

- Connectivity

! Mega trend — growth in robotics,

| industrial automation and

! connectivity

! The market for autanomous mobile
robots is expanding rapidly across
multiple sectors of industry such

. aswarehousing, aviation, medicine
- and healthcare, and farming

Furthermore, the increasing

- adoption of the internet of things
© ("loT") and artificial inteliigence
{"Al"}, the rising awareness of

i safety and security as well as the

i increasing demand for predictive
| maintenance and efficient supply
! chain management is driving

- the underlying growth of global

- industrial loT markets. Fortune

- Business Insights predicts an

. average growth of 3.8% from 2021
. 10 2029 in the global industrial
automation market, and Statista
cxpects growth of as much as

22.8% CACR in the global mdustrial
2028,

With a focus on sustainable

| markets, the Group continucs

! to concentrate on improving

© officiency in industrial market

¢ applications that arc aligned

! with a sustainabie growth

© agenda, including fibre cptic and
wireless connectivity applications.



Examples of new and emerging
applications include areas in smart
agriculture such as pollination and
crop management.

Engineering-led Sales Model
Our business model has three core
capabilitics:

« Engineering - our primary
and leading differentiator. By
understanding our customers'
design challenges we design
and create products that
address their specific needs.

= Manufacturing - we
manufacture individually
designed productsto a
repeatedly and consistently
nigh standard at one or moere
of our production facititics
internationally.

» Logistics —we supply our
products internaticnally to
customers’ various production
locations over the life of their
demand, typically far five to
scven years.

i We apply these capabilities to

' develop long term, ecmbedded

© relationships with cur customers
© as follows:

Recurring revenues

Our designs are specified into
our customers’ system designs,
leading to multiple years of
repcated monthly demand

« Understanding customer needs !

By listening tc and
understanding customers’
needs, we help sclve their
technical challenges to create
more effective, efficient,
productive and sustainable
cguipment and comply

with increasingly stringent

environmentai, health, safety and .

performance requirerments.

Enduring customer
relationships

Qur sales model creates a
unique understanding of
customers’ needs and builds
long term relationships that 'ast
for many years.

Engineering-led solutions
By applying cur extensive
technical knowledge of
applications and design, our
engincers create unigue
products for customers’
specific needs.

and creating stable, recurring
rovenuc strcams,

= Regional manufacturing

Manufacturing locations in
Furope, Asia and North America
provide regionzal supply for
customers, reducing transit
times, costs and environmoental
impact as well as providing
flexibiiity and reducing risk of
disruption.

. Additionally, we acquire businesses
© with similar characteristics,
building our product capakility

t and international presence,
©With many customers operating
internationally, it is necessary for

| us to have a presence in multipte
! regions of the world and with the
| market being highly fragmented,
numerous opportunities exist for

| usto acguire cornplemcntary

; businesses.



STRATEGIC AND
OPERATIONAL REVIEW

Key Strategic and Performance Indicators
Since 2014, the Group's progress with its strategic ebjectives and its financial performance has been measured
through key strategic indicators ["KSIs") and key performance indicators ("KPIs™). The KSI targets have been
raised as they are achioved, and in November 2021 the targets were raised again following the announced exit
frorm the distribution businesses. For tracking purposes, the KSis and KPIs in the table below remain as reported
at the time rather than adjusted for disposals. Given the one-off impact of Covid in FY 2020/21, we have snown

in the tables below this year's growth for both KSIs and KPIs relative to the pre-Covid period two years ago (FY
2019/20) to illustrate the development of the Group. This year's growth relative to both FY2019/20 and EY 2020/21

15 discussed below,

Key Strategic Indicators

FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18

FY23
FY19 FY20 FY22' Targets

1. Increasc underlying 24% 49% 57%  592%  63%  T0% 80% 109% 135%
cperating margin
2. Build sales beyondg Europe? 5% 12% 17% 19% 19% 21% 27%  40% 45%

56% 62%

3. Increase target market sales?

66% 68% 70% 85%

4. Carbon emissions reduction

&%* 33% 50%

ContinJing operations. FY 2021/22 shown as growth over the pre-Covia perioa FY 201920 as this reflect the actual ongeing growth of the business.
Fy 2013/14 10 FY 2019/20 are for total operations before oisposals, as reported at the tme

. Asa percentage of Group revenue.
s First test was CY20 compared to CY19.

The Group made further
significant progress with its KSis

during this year. Alongside strong

organic growth, the exit from
distribution has resulted in a
positive step change in the KSls,
which is explaincd as follows:

= Underlying operating margin
oxceeded 10% for the first time
and follows 8.0% reported
in FY 2019/20 and 77% in FY
2020/21 when the business
‘necluded Customn Supply. The

Group benefited both from the

strong organic sales growth
delivered during the year and
the exit from the lower margin

distribution business. With this

exit, the FY 2024/25 margin

target was increased during the

year 1o 13.5% (proviously 12.5%).

» Sales beyond Europe in the year

increased by 13ppts to 40% of
Group revenue from 27% two
years ago {and 28% last year)

driven py three factors. Firstly,

the exit from distribution which

was 2 UK/European focused

business {c.7ppts increase),
secondly, the five acquisitions in
the last 18 months in particular
Beacon, Phoenix and CP| which

are all US based (c.3ppts); thirdly,

organic growth during the year
was strongest in Asia and North
America (c.3ppts). Accordingly
the target for FY 2024/25 was
increased during the year to 45%
(previousty 40%).

Target market sates in the year
increased by 8ppts to 76% of
Group roevenue from 68% two
years ago {and 70% last year)

of which 5ppts reflects the exit

from the distribution businesses.

Afurther Sppts improvement
has been delivered through @
combination of organic growth
being more weighted to these
long-term structural growth
markets with a 2ppts reduction
from the five acquisitions in the
'ast 18 months which, while well
aligned with these markets, arc
currently below our average
rate The FY 2024/25 target

remains as 85% of sa‘es from
target marxets.

A new target was introauced

in Novernber 2620 for the
reduction of carbon emissions
intensity from the Group's
existing businesses by 50%
over five years. Additionatly,

for new acquisitions, we are
targeting that within the first
five years of ownership, at least
50% of their encrgy demand

is generated from renewable
sources, For calendar year 2027,
carbon emissions reduced

by 33% on a like-for-like basis
(calendar year 2020: 6% like-
for-like reduction). During this
year, capital has been invested
in projects to reduce carbon
emissions by switching tc clean
energy, including solar panel
installations in Sri Lanka, and
an air source heat pump In
Poiand, twe of the Croup's major
manufacturing facilities.



Key Performance Indicators

FY25
FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20  FY22' Targets
' Sales growth
CER 7% 3% 14% 6% % 14% 8%  27% We”ggi)ad of
Continuing organic 3% 9% 3% (196} N% 102% 5% 149
2. Underlying EPS growth  20% 3% 10% 13% 16% 22% 1% 20% >10%
3. Dividend growth 10% 1% 6% 6% 6% 6% 69%? 6% Progressive
4. ROCE? 152% 120% 1N6% 130% 137% 154% 160% 147% >15%
5. Operating profit 100% 104%  100%  136% 85% 93% 106% 1019 =85% of undcerlying
conversion® operating profit
6. Free cash conversion® 24%  104%  102% =85% of underlying

net profit

Continuing operations FY 2021/22 shown as growth over the pre-Covid perioa FY 2019/20 as this reflects the actual ongoing growth of the business
FY 201314 to FY 2019/20 are for total operations befare oisposals a5 reporteq at the time.
7 &% increase in the H1 2019/20 interm div-dena, a final avigeno was not proposea for FY 201%/20 due to Covid

+ Defined in note 2 of the Grodp financial statements

The Croup also made further
significant progress with its KPIs
during the year. Given the one-

off impact of Covid last year, this
year's growth is shown relative 1o
the pre-Covid period FY 2019/20
illustrating the development of the
Group. This year's growth relative
to both FY 2019/20 and FY 2020/21
is discussed beiow.

The performance of cach of our

Croup KPlIs for this year are as

follows:

= Crganic saics increased by 14%
compared with the pre-Covid
year FY 2019/20 (comprising
18% organic growth this year

offsetting a 4% organic reduction

during the Covid period). This
follows average annual crganic
growth of 9% for the preceding
three years and illustrates the
strong through-cycle organic
growth of the business.

s Underlying EPS increased by 20%
cormpared with the pre-Covid
year FY 2019/20 ([comprising 31%
growth this year offsetting an 8%
reduction during FY 2019/20).

| s Thedividend is being

increased by 6%, continuing

our progressive policy

whilst providing for a higher
proportion of investment in
acquisitions from internaily
generated resources. This
progressive policy has scen a
doubting of the dividend per
share since 2010, whilst dividend

caver on an underlying basis has

increased to 2.7x.

n ROCE for the year for continuing |

operations was 14.7% compared
with 16.0% two years ago,

and 0.2ppts higher than last
year (FY 2020/21:14.5%). The
reduction compared to two
years ago is mainly a resuit of
recent larger acquisitions and
the discontinuation of Custom
Supply. Acguisitions will often

be dilutive to the Group ROCE in

the near term.

" = Operating profit conversion into

cash was very strong again at
101% of underlying operating
profit on average cver the last

2 years ([comprising 8C% this
year during a period of very
strong organic growth and the
resulting need for additional
working capital along with
further inventory additions
{E4m) to casc supply chamn
issues, and 128% in the pricr
(Covid) year during which
working capital was released).
This is significantly ahead of
the 85% target and reflects the
tight management of working
capital and expenditure through
the economic cycle. Over

the last ten years, cperating
cash conversion has been
consistently strong.

Free cash conversion has

also been very stroeng at 102%

of underlying net profit, on
average over the last 2 years
comprising 77% conversion this
year and i36% conversion in the
prior 12 meonth (Covid) period.
Again, this is significantly aheaa
of the 85% target.
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Divisional Results

Following the Group's exit from distribution, the Custom Supply division has been treated as discontinued
operations, with the Design & Manufacturing ["D&M”) division housing all of the Group's ongoing operzting
businesses. Reflecting this development and in tine with certain growth initiatives, during the final quarter,
the Group arrangea tre D&M div-sion into lwo operaling segments, tne Magnet ¢s & Cortrols division ("vV&C";
and the Sensing & Connectivity division ["S&C").

This riow struclure, which aligns business units by technology area, wiil enable greater collaboration
boetweoen business ynis, improve visinllity for the Grouoe's growth initiatives and increases management
bandwiath for further growth. Both divisions have similar exposure to the Groug's target markets and
geographies The management and structure of each business unit is unchanged.

The divisional results for the continuing Group for the year ended 31 March 2022 arc sct out and reviewed below,

© FY 2021122 FY2020/21
Underlying Underlying
" operating operating Reported Organic Organic
Revenue profit? Revenue profit: revenue revenue crder
£m -£m Margin £m £m Margin growth growth growth
ME&C 12.7% 190.4 23.4 12.3% 23% 22% 36%
S&C 16.1% Nnz.4 155 13.8 29% N% 36%
Unallocated - an
Tota! 3792 GG 10.9% 3028 308 10.2% 25% 18% 36%

Lnderlying operauing prof it excludes acquisiticn related costs and results of giscontinuce operations

Magnetics & Controls Division
{(“M&C")

The M&C division designs,
manufactures and supplies highly
differentiated magnetic and
power components, embedded
computing and interface controls
for industnal applications
operating across 16 countries. The
great majority of the products are
manufactured in-house at one of
the division's 20 manufacturing
facilities, with its principal ones
being in China, India, Mexico,
Pcland, Sri Lanka, Thailand, the US
and the UK. Geographically, 6% of
sales are in the UK, 49% in rest of
Europc, 17% in North America and
28% in Asia,

During the year, the Group's

nermal ways of operating after the
disruption of Covid and the Group's
production capacity has returned
tc output capacity lovels capable of
satisfying strong sales growth rates.

| To meet future growth, capacity is

! being expanded in the US and india,
. and production began as scheduled
| atthe Group's new larger facilityin
! Nogales, Mexico.

i Orders were very strong in the

i year, increasing by 36% organically
| to £280.0m with a book to bill

. ratio of 1191 (FY 2020/21: LO&1).

" The strong order performance led
* to sales increasing orgarically by

© 22% with strong organic growth

across all regions: Asia growing

" organically by 30% driven by very
" strong organic grewth in India,

| North America 28% and Europe &
. UK by 17%.

Combined with a 5% sales increase
from acqguisitions, overall sales
production facilities cstablished new \mcreased oy Z7% CER_‘ Incluging

. the impact of translation from
a stronger Sterling on average,
' reported divisional revenuc

. Increased by 23% to [234.7m

(FY 2020/21: £190.4m). This was

" achieved despite ongoing supply

chain headwinds, in particular

i semiconductor shortages
i which have delayed sales in two
businesses within the division.

Underlying operating profit of

| £29.8m was £6.8m {+29%) higher
| than last year at CER and £6.4m
(+27%) higher on a reported basis
L [FY 2020/21: £23.4m) with an

- underlying operating margin of

1 12.7%, 04ppts higher than last year
L {FY 2020/21:12.3%) reflecting the

. positive effect of organic growth,
- Gross margin reduced slightly as
" delays to semiconductor supplies
. temporarily reduced volume

. throughput.

Sensing & Connectivity Division
(us&cu)

i The S&C division designs,
manufactures and supplics

i highly differentiated sensing and
| connectivity components for

i industrial applications through 12
. businesses operating across nine
. countries. The vast majerity of

" the products are manufactured

- in-house at one of the divisions 10



manufacturing facilities, with its
principal ones being in Hungary,
the Netherlands, Norway, Slovakia,
the US and the UK. Geographically,
20% of sales are in the UK, 49% in
Europe, 14% in North America and
17% in Asia.

As with the M&C division orders

were very strong, increasing by 36% |

organically to £773.0m with a book
to bill ratio of 1.20:1 (FY2020/21: 1.0}
The strong order performance

led to sales increasing organically
by 1%, with 13% organic growth
across Europe and 6% growth

in Asia. Saies in Nerth America
were flat year-on-year due to the

infrastructure projects and
semiconductor supply delays.

Combined with a 20% salcs
increase from acquisitions, overall
sales increased by 31% CER.
Including the impact of translation
from a stronger Sterling on
average, reported divisional
revenue increased by 29% to
E144.5m (FY 2020/21: £112.4m). This
was achieved despite a slower post
Covid recovery in some of our UK
based busincsses.

Underlying operating profit of
£233m was £7.9m (+51%) higher
than last year at CER and £7.8m
{+50%) higher on a reported
basis (FY 2020/21: £15.5m) with an
underlying operating margin of
16.1%, 2.3ppts higher than last year
(FY 2020/21:13.8%) reflecting tne
positive effect of organic growth
coupled with higher margin
acquisitions.

Design Wins

Project design wins are a
measurement of new business
creation. By working with

customers at an early stage in their

project design cycle, opportunities
are identified for our products to
be specified into their designs,

. which in turn lead to future
! recurring revenue streams.

The Group has a strong bank of

! design wins built up over severa!

| years that creates the basis for the
i growth in orders and sales now
being experienced. During the
year, design wins in the continuing
business increased by 52% over the
. prior year and by 12% over the pre-
Covid period two years ago. 86%

i of design wins were in the Group's
P target markets.

i Additionally, during the year, new

! project design activity increased

! strongly, being broad based across

. i all markets The total pipeline of

slower recovery of certain transport | . . i
L ongoing projects continues at a

very high level.

i Acquisitions

The businesses we acquire are
i typically led by entreprenelirs

! who wish to rermain following

" acguisition. We encourage this
as it helps retain a decentralised,
entrepreneurial and dynamic

! culture The market is highly
fragmented with many
opportunities to acquire and
consolidate.

| We acquire businesses that

i are successful and profitable

| with good growth prospects

! and where we invest for growth
. and operaticnzl performance
development. Accerding to

! the circumstances, we add
s value in some of ar all of the
! following arcas:

! Strategy, sales and products
i » Developing the longer term

strategy of the businecss;

- w Internationalising sales channcls

and ocxpanding the customer
base, including via cross-selling
initiatives and focusing sales
development onto target
market areas,

" » Developing and expanding the

proguct range;

" a Developing and implermenting

sustainability initiatives.

" Talent management

w [nvesting in manageament
capability ('scaling up’} and
succession planning;

= Peer networking and
collaberation.

Investment

» Capital investment in
manufacturing and
infrastructure;

_w Improving manufacturing

efficiency;

" w Infrastructure efficiencies, such

as warehcusing and freight;

: w Expansion through further

acquisitions.
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Contrels and support
s Implementing robust financial
controls;

e Finance and related support,
such as treasury, banking, legal,
tax, insurance, conso!idat:on.

During the year, the Group
compicted three acquisitions:

1 In May 2021, Control Products
inc ["CPRI"), a US designer and
manufacturer of custom,
rugged sensors and switches,

cash free basis.

2. 'n August 2021, Antenova, a UK
designer and manufacturer of
antennas and radio freguency
(RF} modules for industrial
connectivity applications, for
£18.2m on a debt freg, cash free
basis.

3. In September 2021, Beacon
EmbeddedWorks (“Beacon”),
a US designer, manufacturer
and supplier of custom System-
on-Module (SOM) embedded
computing boards and related
software, principally supplying
the medical and industrial
markets in the US. Beacon was
acquired for $80.5m (£58 8m) on
a debt freg, cash free basis.

All three have retained their
distinct brand identities and
high-guality management. Their
complementary product ranges
and wider access to custemers will
create cross-selling oppoertunities
in our target markets which are
expected to drive further growth.

The Croup has completed

19 acquisitions since 2013,
contributing to growth in
continuing Croup revenues from
£15m in FY 2012/13 to £379m

this year The Croup's operating
model is well established and has
facilitated the smooth integration
of acguired businesses. Through
a combination of investrment in

' efficiency and leveraging of the

. broader Group's commercial

i infrastructure, the 14 businesses
- acquired since 2011 and owned

¢ for at least two years delivered a

i return on investment this year of
i 18.8%, an increase of 1.5ppts over
! last year (FY2020/21:17.3% based

. on 13 acquisitions greater than 2
! years old).

! Summary and Outlook

i These results refiect the strength
i of the discoverlE business model
for $1.4m (£81m) on a debt free, which is performing well in
i good dermand conditions and

an inflationary environment and
follows a resilient performance

! through the weaker Covid

i conditions of the year before.

i With record growth in orders,

. sales, order book and underlying

i carnings per share, which

¢ increased by 31%, continuing

| revenues and carnings are now

- well shead of the pre-Covid period.
 Fwould like to thank ali of our
employees around the Group

, for their tremendous effort and

© flexibility over the last two years
that has led to these results.

| We are also making good progress
' on our sustainability initiatives. By
. switching our sites to renewable

sources of energy where possible,

- the Group's like-for-like carbon

_ emissions were 33% lower in

. caiendar year 2021 than 2012 and

© we are on track to acnieve our goal
. of 2 50% reduction by 2025.

| Following the Group's exit auring
i the year from the business of

. distribution, discoverlE is now
solely focused on the design

" and manufacture of customised

| electronics for industrial
applications; our continuing focus
' is on achieving organic growth and -
| new gesign wins in sustainable

target markets, together with

accretive acquisitions. The Group is |

well-funded, with a strong balance

sheet and cash flow, and has

© significant funding headroom for

further acquisitions.

The new financial year has started

- well, witn continued strong growth
. inorganic sales, and the crder

" book at record high levels. While
supply chain headwinds and

inflationary pressures remain, they
are expected to be manageable.

" With a clear strategy focused on

long-term, high guality, structural

" and sustainable growth markets
. across Europe, North America

. and Asia, a diversified customer
. base, a record order book and

“ astrong pipeline of acquisition

. opportunities, the Group is well

- positioned to make further good
i pregress in the year ahead.

Nick Jefferies
: Group Chief Executive

14 June 2022
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

“Continuing Group
underlying profit
for the year was
£41.4m, delivering
an underlying
operating margin
of 10.9%."”

Simon Cibbins
Croup Finance Director

Continuing Group sales of £379.2m were 18% higher organically than last year (FY 2020/21: £302.8m), and with
acqguired businesses (Phoenix and Limitor acquired last year, and CPI, Antenova and Beacon added this year)
adding 10%, continuing sales increased by 28% CER. A stronger Sterling during tne year, particularly compared
with the US Dollar and Euro, reduced sales by 3% on translation for a net growth in reported continuing

Group sales of 25%. Compared with two years ago, sales increased by 27% CER with 14% organic growth and
13% through acquisitions (the five acquisitions above together with Sens-Tech which was acquired in the last

twe years) e effecls on the Group of the conflictin Ukra ne are negligible,

FY FY FY FY
Continuing Revenue £m 2021/22 2020/ % 2021/22 2019/20 %
Reported 3792 302.8 25% 3792 3033 25%
FX translation impact (6.9) (5.5)
Underlying (CER) 3792 2959 28% 3792 2978 27%
Acquisitions: last 12mths {31.3)
Acquisitions: last 24mths (40.9)
Organic 3479 2959 18% 3283 2978 14%

Orders and Order Book

Continuing Group orders increased by 48% CER to
£453.0m, and by 36% organically compared with tne
Covid-impacted prior year and importantly, by 48%
CER and 32% organically compared with the pre-
Covid year two years ago.

The book to bill ratio for the year was 1191 (H):

12611, H2:112:) building on the momentum of the
second halfiast year [book to bill: 1181 as the Group
recovered from the sharp impact of Covid in the first
halif last year (book to bill: 0.9071). Twe years ago the
comparable book to bl ratio was 1.03:1.

i While this year's second half ratio was lower than the
¢ first half, this was due to the stronger comparators
Ewith organic orders still being 1% higher than in the
©first half

" During the year, the Group order book for continuing
" operations also grew very strongly and finished the
- year at a record level of £224m, being 86% (CER)

higher than a year ago. Organically the order book
increased by 62% in the year and by 71% compared

- with the pre-Covid period two years ago. Sequentially,
" the crder book increased by 13% (CER) during the
. second half.



Group Operating Profit and Margin

Continuing Croup underlying operating profit for the
year was £41.4m, a 34% increase on last year (FY 2020/21:
£30.8m), delivering an underlying operating margin of
109%, 0.7ppts higher than last year (FY 2020/2%:10.2%).

Underiying operating profit growth has been achieved -

through a combingtion of crganic growth, cllicient
operational execution and acquisitions. Operationally,
incremental profits on organic sales growth of

£73m nave been delivered across the two divisions,
being a drop-through ratio of 14% During the year
there has been progressive investment in operating
expenditure across both divisions to support organic
growth this year and in the future, with an average
investrment of 5.5% p.a. over the last two years. Gross
margins have been robust despite supply chain

headwinds, although semiconductor shortages, which
i annualisation of profits from Phoenix and Limitor
.~ acquired last year.

have delayed sales in two of our 20 businesses, have
impacted their manufacturing recovery rates with
Croup organic margin reducing 0. 7ppts overall.

" £m Underlying Operating Profit
| FY 2020/21 30.8
' Gross profit on arganic sales growth 19.4
Organic gross margin {2.3}
U lnvestment in opex (9.8
- Qrganic profit growth - operalions )
Profit from acquired companies 6.5
©Investment in central capabilitics (C.8)
' Additional LTIF charge (1.9)
Foreign exchange impact (0.5)
| FY 2021/22 414

Acguired companies contriouted £6.5m of underlying
© operating profit since acquisition being CPI, Antenova

and Beacon acquired this year, together with an

Centrally, the Croup has invested £0 8m in additional resources to support grewth plans, including ESG, risk &
internal audit and iT to support operating company systern upgrades. Further investment is anticipated in the

next 12 months in particular in M&A and IT.

The EPS growth impact on share based payment accruals, the accrued cost of national insurance
contributions ("NIC") on LTIPs and the increased rate of NIC since Aprii 2022 have added an additional cost of

£19m relative te last year.

Reported Group continuing opcrating profit for the year (after accounting for the underlying adjustments
discussed below) was £209m, £3.8m (+22%) higher than last year.

FY2021/22 FY2020/21

Qperating Finance Profit Cperating Finance Profit
Continuing operations £m Profit Cost  bhefore tax profit CO5t before tax
Underlying 414 (3.8 376 308 (3.6) 272
Underlying adjustments
Acquisition expenses (6.5) - (6.5) (1.2) (1.2}
Amortisation of acquired intangibles (14.0) - {(14.0) {10 - mnm
|AS 12 pension cost - - (1.4) - {(1.4)
Reported 2092 (3.8) 171 171 {3.6) 135

Underiying Adjustments

Undarlying adjustments for the year comprisc acquisition & integration expenses of £65m (FY 2020/21: £1.2m),
and the amortisation of acquired intangibles of £14.0m (FY 2020/21: £111m). From this year, the 1AS 19 pension
administration cost has been taken as a continuing cost of the business. Last year's pension cost comprised
the administration cost of £F0.4m and a one off adjustrment of £1.0m relating to historic cormmutation terms for

legacy schemec members.

Acguisition expenses of £6.5m are the costs associated with acquisition activity during the year of £3.0m,
principally of CPI, Antenova and Beacon, accrued contingent consideration costs of £31m and the £0.4m for
the integration of Hobart into Noratel The £2.9m increase in the amortisaticn charge since ‘ast year to £14.0m
relates to the amortisation of intangibles relating to the five acguisitions since the first half of last year. The
annualiscd amortisation charge for next year is approximately £16.5m.



FINANCIAL REVIEW

Financing Costs

Net finance costs for the year were £3.8m (FY 2020/21: £3.6m) and include a £6.6m charge for Icased assets
under IFRS 16 (FY 2020/21: £G.6m). Finance costs related to banking facilities of £3.2m (FY 2020/21: £3.0m) were
slightly higher than last year reflecting marginally higher average net debt during the year.

Underlying Tax Rate
The underlying effective tax rate for continuing operations for the year was 25%, 1ppt ahead of last year's rate
(M 2020/27: 24%) reflecting increasced profits accruing in higher tax territories.

The overall effective tax rate for continuing operations was 43% (FY 2020/21: 30%). This was higher than the
underlying effective tax rate duc to there being no tax relicf on certain acquisition-related expenses and a
lower rate of tax relicf on the amortisation of acquired intangibles {(both within underlying adjustments above).
The effective tax rate (“ETR"} on intangibles was further impacted this year by the enactment of the increase in
the UK corporate tax rate from 1 Aprii 2023, resulting in a one-off increase in the deferred tax liability (a non-
cash item).

FY 202122 FY 2020/21
£m PBT ETR PBT ETR
Continuing operat:ons 376 25% 272 24%
Acguisition expenses (6.5) 12% (1.2} 10%
Amortisation of acguired intangibles (14.0) 2% (11.0) 19%
IAS 19 pension cost - (1.4) 19%
Total reported 171 43% 13.5 30%

Group Profit Before Tax and EPS

Continuing Group underlying profit before tax for the year of £37.6m was £10.4m higher {+38%) than last

year (FY 2020/21: £272m), with underlying EPS for the year increasing by 31% to 29.4p (FY 2020/21: 22.4p). The
increase in underlying EPS was lower than that for underlying profit before tax due to the higher effective tax
rate {(+1ppt) and the issuance of new equity in September 2021 increasing fully diluted shares by 4% te 95.8m
shares (FY 2020/21: 92 2m shares). The annualised fully diluted shares for the full year is expected to be

C 98m shares.

After the underlying adjustments above, reported profit before tax on continuing operations was £17.1m, an
increase of £3.6m (+27%) compared with last year (FY 2020/21: £13.5m). With the reparted effective tax rate for
the year of 43% being higher than last year's rate of 30% (as mentioned above), the resulting reported fully
diluted ea nings per share on continuing operations was 10.1p, 0.2p lower than last year (FY 2020/21:10.3p).

FY 2021/22 FY 2020/21
Continuing operations £m PBT EPS PBT EPS
Underlying 376 294p 272 22.4p
Underlying adjustments
Acquisition & integration expenses (6.5) {12)
Armortisation of acquired intangibles (14.0) (.
IAS 19 pension cost - 1.4}

Reported 17. 101p 135 10.3p




Discontinued Operations

During the year, the Group completed the disposals of the Acal BFi and Vertec SA distribution businesses
which have been treated for accounting purposes as discontinued operations. In accordance with IFRS 5,
net profits (profit after tax or "PAT") of discontinued operations, which includes the profit on disposal of the
businesses, have been shown separately to the results of the continuing operations.

FY 2021/22 FY 2020/21
Total operations £m PBT EPS PBT EPS
Continuing operations 97 0o 95 12.3p
Discontinued cperations 15.5 e2p 25 2°7p
Total operations 252 263p 12.0 1320p

Working Capital

Working capital at 31 March 2022 was £57.2m, equivalent to 13.9% of annualised second half sales at CER and
was £4.4m (7%) lower than the prior year-cnd (31 March 2021: £61.6m). This reduction is due to the disposal of
the Custorm Supply division in the year which had £15.6m of the Group's working capital last year end.

For continuing operations, working capital increased by £11.2m to support the significant increase in sales
{(+28% growth CER} and at 13.9% was 0 4ppts better as a percentage of annualised second half sales at CER
(MY 2020/21:14.3%) reflecting cont nuing Ught management across the Group Dobtor days were 47 days,
creditor days were 80 days and stock turns were 3.4 turns. Stock turns reduced by 0.3 turns on a continuing
bas's (£4m) reflecting the increase in inventories given current supply chain pressures. Working capital
performance was similar in both divisions.

Cash Flow for Continuing Operations
Net debt at 31 March 2022 was £30.2m compared with
F472m at 3 March 2021

FY FY
£m 2021/22 2020/21
Opening net debt at 1 April (47.2) (61.3)
Free cash flow 21.8 281
(see table below)
Discontinued operations 384 85
Acquisition-related costs {876) (21.8)
Equity issuance (net of taxcs) 526 01
Dividends paid (9.4) (2.8)
Forecign exchange impact 12 1.0
Net debt at 31 March (30.2) (47.2)

1 Net acquisition-related costs of £87.6m in the year

. comprised £58.8m for the acquisition of Beacon in

. September 2021, £18.2m for Antenova in August 2021
~and £8.1m for CPI in May 2021 (all on debt free, cash

free bases). Additionally there were £2.5m of expenses
associated with acquisitions during the year. Together

~with the acquisitions of Phoenix and Limitor during
" the six month period ended 31 March 2021, a totai of

£109.4m has been spent on acguisitions during the
last 18 months.

Group acquisitions were partly funded from a
6% placing of shares in September 2021 which

raised net equity proceeds of £53.4m; {0.8m of

i naticnal insurance contributions paid in respect

i of executive share options which were exercised
during the year. Net cash of £38.4m was raised

¢ from discontinued operations with a furtner £5m

of deferred consideration due to the Group in three

i years' time. Dividends of £9.4m were paid during the
i year, compared to only £2.8m last year when no final
i FY 2019/20 dividend was declared as management

: sought to preserve cash at the outset of Covid,



FINANCIAL REVIEW

Operating cash flow and free cash flow for continuing
aperations [see definitions in note 2 to the Group
financial staterments) for the year compared with last
year are shown below.

FY FY
£m 2021/22 2020/21
Underying profit befure Lax RYAS 272
Net finance costs 38 36
Non-cash items 125 1G4
Total EBITDA 539 41.2
IFRS 16 (50 (4.2)
EBITDA (pre IFRSI16) 48.8 37.0
Working capital (10.2) 56
Capital expenditure (5.5) (33)
Operating cash flow 331 395
Finance costs (32) 30
Taxation 6.2) (6.5)
Legacy pensichs (1.9) (3.8)
Free cash flow 21.8 32.0
Operating cash 433 281
{ex working capital)
Frec cash flow 320 225

(ex working capital)

EBIiTDA of £53.9m was 31% higher than the Covid-
impacted last year [FY 2020/2T. £412m) and the
pre-Covid period two years ago (FY 2019/2C: £41.2m)
reflecting strong organic sales growth combined with
contributions from the five acquisitions madc in the
last 18 months.

During the year, the Group invested £10.2m in working
capital to support organic sales growth centrasting
with last year's £5.6m inflow resulting from the
reduction in sales following the onsct of Covid. In
combination, over the last two years only £0.7m has
been invested in working capital despite organic sales
growth of 14% across that period, reflecting further

Capita! expenditure of £5.5m was invested during
the year including capacity expansions in Mexico and
on ESG initiatives including solar panels in Sri Lanka,
the Group's fargest facility. This saw a return to more
narmal levels following a reduction during the
Covid-impacted last year to maintenance levels only

(FY 2020/21: £31m). Capital expenditure levels are

| expected to increase next year to around £8.5m for the
- full year as we continue to invest in additional capacity,
' systern upgrades and the roll out of our ESG initiatives.

| £331m of operating cash was generated in the year.

| While this was beiow last year's £39.5m), this was due
! to working capital inflows last year of £56m resulting
i from the reduction in sales due to Covid. Excluding
working capital, operating cash was up 28% on [ast

i year. £2331m of operating cash flow represents 80%
of underiying operating profit (FY 2020/21:128%).

" While this was below our 85% target due to the
strong organic sates growth, the two year conversion
. rate of 101% is well ahcad. Over the last ten years, the
i Group has consistently achieved high lovels of cash
conversion, averaging in excess of 100%

' Finance cash costs of £32m were marginally ahead
! of last year while corporate income tax payments
of £6.2m werc £0.3m lower than last year reflecting
i refunds of R&D tax credits.

Frec cash flow (being cash flow before dividends,

! acquisitions, disposals and eguity issuance) for the
year was £21.8m. While this was 22% lower than

the prior year, it was 42% higher excluding working

i capital. Qur free cash flow conversion rate this year

i was 77% of underlying net profit (FY 2020/27: 136%).
While this was below our 85% target due to the strong
i organic sales growth, the two year conversion rate

i of 102% is well ahead iltustrating the strength of the
Group's cash generation.

; Banking Facilities

! During May 2022, the Group increased its syndicated
banking facility from £180m to £240m and extended
the remaining term of the facility by two years out

: to four years ending in June 2026, with an option
excrcisable by the Group to extend the facility by a

- further year to June 2027 In addition, the Group nas

an £80m accordion facitity which it can use to extend

~ the total facility up to £320m. The syndicated facility is
" available both for acquisitions and for working capital

A ) . purposes, and now comprises seven lending banks.
significant improverments in working capital efficiency. |
© With net debt at 31 March 2022 of £30.2m, the Group's

i gearing ratio at the end of the year (being net debt

| divided by underlying EBITDA as annualised for

! acguisitions) was 0.6x, the 'owest Group gearing

i ratio since 2015, With our target gearing range being
between 1.5x and 2.0x, there 1s plenty of funding
capacity for future acquisitions.



Balance Sheet

Net assets of £290.4m at 31 March 2022 were £82.0m
higher than at the end of the last financial year (31
March 2021 {208 4m). The increase primarily relates
to the net issuance of equity of £53.5m (nearly all
being the eguity placing in September 2021) and net
profit after tax for the year of £252m {which includes
Lhe profit en disposal of discontinued operations).
This has been partly offset by divictend payments
this year of £9.4m. The movement in net assets is
summarised beolow:

FY
£m 2021/22
Net assets at 31 March 2021 2084
Net profit after tax 252
Dividend paid (9.4)
Net equity issuance 535
Currency net assets - translation impact 76
Gain on defined benefit scheme 17
Share based payments {inc tax) 34
Net assets at 31 March 2022 2920.4

Defined Benefit Pension Scheme

The Group's |AS19 pension position associated with
its legacy defined benefit pension scheme improved
cduring the year by £3.7m, from a £1.0m deficit at

31 March 2021 to a £2.7m surplus at 31 March 2022,
This partly results from contributions of £1.9m made
by the Croug; and also from increased corporate
bond yields increasing discount rates over the year.
These are partly offset by increases in future inflation

during the year.

Risks and Uncertainties

The principal risks faced by the Group are covered in
more detail an pages 54 to 59. These risks comprise:
the economic environment, particularly linked to
the geo-political issues arising from the ongoing

Ukraine conflict and also from Covid; the performance

of acquired companies; climate-related risks; ioss of

| major customers or suppliers, technological changes;
' major business disruption; cyber security; loss of key

f personnel inventory obsolescence; product lability;
©liguidity and delst covenants; exposure to adverse

. foreign currency movements, and non-compliance

- with legal and regulatory requirerments.

. The Board reviewed the GCroup's existing and

! emerging risks and the mitigating actions and
processes in place during the financial year,

! giving specific consideration to the impact of the
Ukraine conflict, supply chain headwinds and
Covid. The Board view that risks associated with the
! macroeconomic cnvironment and supply chain

for existing and acquired businesses has increased
during the financial year with no material change to
the relative importance or quantum of the Group's
i other principal risks.

The risk asscssment and review are an ongoing

i process, and the Board will continue tc monitor risks
. and the mitgating actions in place. The Croup’s risk
! managerment processes cover identification, impact
assessment, likely occurrence and mitigation actions
where practicable. Some level of risk, however, will
always be present. The Croup is well positioned to

i manage such risks and uncecrtainties, if they arisc,

| given its strong balance sheet, committed banking

- facility of £240m and the adaptability we have as an
. organisation.

' Simon Gibbins
' Group Finance Director

- . ) " 14 June 2022
expectations and updated demographic assumptions |



RISK MANAGEMENT

! The Beard of Directors has ovorall responsitility for tho Grous's ris< apootite and risk management strategy.
P Rares and rospansica litios for rranaginig riske across thae discaver £ Graup have boon cleadly dofined as shown

Linthe diagram below.

Group Executive Committee

- Management of the Group and delivery of the strat

- Manitoring
Regular reviews of the G

Divisional Management
Qversight and review of

rational risks

Operating Companies

finternal and external risks
for the implementation

k mitigation : > and

rmal controls an Tpliance
with policies
Respensible
relevant laws

camplan th

| The Company's risk management
framowork follows a three lines

i of defence model The first

i line of defence is cperatianal

| managcment in our businesses,

i Day-to-day risk management
controig, policics and procedures
i are implemented and monitored
! by the iocal management teams
Pwith oversight and roviow by

! Divisional Managoment. This

i is conducted within a serics

i of delogated authority levels,
Ratevant internal control systems
i are in place to identify, cvaiuate

! and manage the Group's

! business risks

Audit and Risk Committee

Group Functions
These include Finance,
Risk and IT, and

The second linc of defence
comprises Grous funct:cns such
as risk, finance, IT, treasury and
tax. This focuses on monitoring
and compliance with risk and
control systems, and processes
implemented by the Group.

The Group intornal Audit
function provides indepenaent
assurance of the opcration of

risk management processes,
internal controls and governance,
and serves as the third Ine of

defence Asweil as carrying cut full

audits on individual entitios, the
team conducts thematic audiits,
focusing on specific areas across

discoveriE Group plc  Innovative Electronics

wwoondent reporting ne

I

Group Internal Audit

Monitors comphance with

the Group's internal controls

and policies

Conducts or commiss
uclits

the Group. The tearm conducted
the majority of its audit activities
remotedy during FY 202322 due
to the cngoing Covid travel
restrictions Hut is oxpecting this
to chango as rostrictions ease
globaily. Other activitics carried out |
by the function include reviowing |
anct updating Croup policies

and improving processes and
proceduras where onportunitios
for improvement nave been
«dentified during previous audits.
During FY 202122, the Greup Risk
and Internal Audit function bogan
preparations for complying with
the proposals outlined in the UK's




Department for Business, Energy and Industrial ' » The Groug manufactures and sells multipie
Strategy ("BEIS") reform of UK corporate governance product tines, across multiple geocgraphies and

and audit oversight. market sectors, removing reliance on any single
revenue stream. This is further reinforced by the
innovative, bespoke nature of the Group's products,
which continue to evolve as circumstances change.

The Group operates a decentralised managerment
model that is target and results driven, with a strong
cu'lture of open, constructive communication and
awillingness to listen. The Group Internal Auart
function applics this culture in how it operates and
reviews control environments across the Group.

-« The Croup operates in structural growth markets,
which reflect long-term needis and arc less cyclical
in nature.

. The Croup's performance and adaptability
. throughout the Covid pandemic demonstrates the
. rasilience of the Group's model.

In pursuing the Group strategy, 8 number of key
objectives are agreed annually for the Group and
for cach business unit. Progress against these

is reported on a regular basis to Divisional and " Risk Appetite

Head Office functional management, the Group " One of the Group's core principies is to deliver its
Executive Committce and the Board. Having a clear - strategic pricrities in a sustainable and responsible
understanding of our strategy and objectives assists manner. This requires that the Board gives careful
with the effective identification and management of consideration to the nature and level of risks that the
existing or ecmerging risks that have the potential to . Group should accept.

prevent or hinder these objectives from being achieved. o
The Croup draws a clear distinction between those

Risk Profile . o - risks that it is more willing to take (typically relating to
The Group's overall risk profile s mitigated by 2 . advancing business prospects) and those that it is less
number of overriding factors, including: " willing to accept (eg. safety, reputational, regulatory
» Our businoss units operate largely independently | ©F comptiance risks). The following table provides a

of one ancther and so if an issue arose in any | summary.

cne business, it would be unlikely to affect other

businesses in the Group. Bl Risk Tolerant Risk Neutral Risk Averse
= We opcrate in 20 countries and no single country | EGUITGIRGRELE] (Taking a {Taking as little
represents more than 22% of Group turnover or greater risk} balanced risk as possible)
profit. approach to risk)
» Most of the Group's businesses operate on separate Product Investment in Product safety
IT systems, which assists in minimising the risks i Innovation facilities
of a major cyber security incident affecting the Operating in new  Business Health & safety
wider Group. During FY 2021/22, a Group-wide i markets doveloprment
project was completed to further enhance cyber : nitiatives
sec_ur\ty contrqls acros; the Group's busmesse; Acquisitions Cyber risks
by implementing consistent web and end-point
security as well as introducing a Security Operations New customers  Regulatory/
and supplicrsin covenant

Centre ["5OC" to manitor and respond to T security
threats 24/7.

a The Group operates from over 50 separate sitas
so that, if an incident were 1o occur at one site,

existing markets  compliance

Foreign exchange  Foreign exchange
translational risk transactionai risk

it would not directly affect the other businesses : Markets with
within the Group. Further, there exists the ability to - greater business
switch production between certain sites if needed. cyclicality
An independent review conducted during FY : Environmental
2021/22 found that the level of risk posed by climate risks
change to each of the Group's sites was low,

» The Group has very limited reliance on anysingle | Regardless of the appetite in respect of a particular
customear or Suppﬁer' with the ‘argest custaomer risk, all risks arc identified ana managed inthe

regroscenting approximately 8% of revenue. ! appropriate manner,



RISK MANAGEMENT

Enterprise Risk Management

discoverlE applies the Enterprise Risk Management framework to identify potential events or circumstances
that may affect the CGroup and to manage the associated cxisting and emerging risks. The risk management
framework is made up of a number of discrete steps to identify, assess, mitigate and monitor risks.

Step 1 Two processes are conducted in parallei:

A lop-down review of the Group Risk Register to: s A bottom-up review by the

. . . management of each business to:
identify new or emerging risks

- assess changes to existing risks - identify new or emerging risks

- consider the potential impact and likelihood of - assess changes 10 CxIStiNg risks

risks, linking each risk ta the Group's corporate - consider the potential impact
strategy of risks

- evaluate existing mitigating actions and controls - evaluate existing mitigating
consider the residual risks remaining after actions and controls
the applications of the Croup's Internal - consider residual risks [and if
control grocesses (and if appropriate the appropriate the implementation of
implementation of further mitigating actions) further mitigating actions)

The top-down review of the Croup Risk Register is conducted by the Group Risk team,
Divisional Management and the internzl Croup Sustainability Team. The bottom-up revicw 1S
conducted by the management tearm within cach business with support from the Risk team.

Step 2 s Comparison of the results of the Top-down and bottom-up identification processes above
The benefits of conducting both top-down and bottom-up revicws are:
increased assurance that all risks have been identified, with input from multiple
perspectives
ensuring alignment between local management and Head Office

- ensuring that businesscs take ownership of the risks maost relevant to their individual
operating urit

- ensuring that controls In place to mitigate risks at the operating unit level are appropriate

s An asscssment of any differences identified and update of the Group Risk Register as
appropriate

Step 3 s Review of the Group Risk Register by the Group Executive Committee. This review
focuses on:

- the materiality of each of the risks identified
prioritisation of the allocation of the Croup's resources to the most important areas
- clarity of ownership for each of the risks identified

This review takes into account the Group's risk appetite in respect of the various types of risk
identifled.

The Group Risk Register is then updated as appropriate following the review.

This is then summarised in a taole of principal risks and uncertainties, the final version of which
(for FY 2021/22) is set cut on pages 54 to 59,

Step 4 = Review by the Audit and Risk Committee - this includces:
consideration of the Croup's sk management framework
- review of the Croup Risk Register
idertification of any other areas of potential risk
- review of the table of principal risks and uncertainties
challenging actual or potential control weaknesses
- review of the effectiveness of the Croup's internal controls and risk management systems




These processes are conducted twice each financial year:

= aninterim review, typically completed shortly ahead of announcement of the Croup's interim results,
focuses predominantly on changes during the period.

» 3 comprehensive review of all risks within the Group Risk Register is comploted shortly prior to the Group's
full-year prefiminary results announcement.

The Gronn Risk function is continually looking to irmprove Lhe Group's Enterprise Kisk Management framewaork
and is currently looking to increase the frequency with which reviews of the Group Risk Register take place

to further improve the Group’s agility in responding to emerging risks. Further information on the Group's
principal risks and uncertainties (“PRUs") is detailed on pages 54 to 52

A key element in assessing the Group's principal risks is considering likelihocod and potential magnitude of
impact, over g range of time harizons, as well as whether the risks are new or emerging, or have changed in
importance during the year. The below diagram provides 3 summary of the PRUs on that basis.

Risk heat map

fnstabiiity in the economic
environment

Business acquisitions
underperformance

Climate-related risks

Loss of key customers

Loss of key suppliers /
supply
Technological changes

Major business disrupticn

Cyber security

Loss of key persennel
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Inventory obsolescence

Liguidity and debt
covenants

o 0o ceoese o oo

Foreign currency

Non-ccmpliance with
legal and regulatory
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RISK MANAGEMENT

Ongoing monitoring, mitigation and improvement
In addition to the processes outlined above, key

risks, and the internal control processes adopted to
address these risks, are monitored on an ongoing
pasis. Amaong other controls, this includes a review by
tne Group Exccutive Committee in all of its regularly
scheduled meetings (typically soven per year) and
escalation to the Board of any material developments
as and when they arise.

discoverlE continually pursucs improverments in

its Enterprise Risk Management Framowaork. A
summary of this continual cycle of risk identification,
establishment of systems and processes to mitigate,
communication and angoing monitoring, is outfined
in the below diagram,

Climate-related risks and opportunities

To ensure that the Group continues to thrive under
a changing climate, we have undertaken an initial
analysis of the resilience of our business model and
strategy in two climate scenarios - world surface

temperatures to rise Sy less than 2°C and by more than

40C compared with pre-industrial lovels
the best and worst case scenarios.

representing

© Tne assumptions used in our analysis are from the

Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (‘iPCC")
Representative Concentration Pathway ("RCP"), the
International Energy Agency ("IEA") and other publicly

- available information.

! We assess a number of parameters, such as policy
i changes and market trends, under each scenario
i over the short, mediurm and long term. The analysis

shows that the risks the Group faces during the

" transition to a low carbon economy are low and more
than outweighed by the opportunitics in the shart 1o

medium terms; and that the physical risks over the
long term in the worst case scenaric can be mitigated.

Further analysis will be carried out in the next 12
months to quantify the potential financial impact,

which will be reported in the next year's Annual Report.

\dentif}/ and agsec,
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Below 2°C {RCP 2.6 Scenario) Exceed 4°C {RCP 8.5 Scenario)

Surface The "best case” scenario that is in (ine The "worst case” scenario that projects world

remperature with the Paris Agreement’s stated surface termperatures to rise by maore than
2°C limit /1.5°C aim. £°C compared with the pre-industrial period.

Emissions? Aggressive mitigation and ambitious carbon  No mitigation, "Business as Usual” and
reductions, Carbon emissions to peak ermissions continue rising at the current rate
around 2020 then decline on a linear path until 2100.

and becorme net negative befere 2100.

Carbon price Prices in OQCCD markets reach $224/tonne Prices remain at $30/tonne*
by 2030 and $120/tonne by 2050 based on a
scenario of limited supply of carbon credits?.

Energy mix® Increasing proportion of energy from Fossil fuels remain the main energy source.
renewable sources, primarily solar and wind.

IPCC ARS Synthesis Report, pl1
» IPCC ARS Synthesis Report, p9
s Bloomberg Long Term Carbon Offset Outlook 2022
4+ QECD Effective Carbon Rates 2021
= |EA Net Zero by 2050 a rcadmap for the global energy sectar, pe3
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RISK MANAGEMENT

Potential

Description impact Our response

Transition risks

Policy &
regulation

Aggressive policies
to mitigate carbon
cmissions drive

increascs in carbon

pricing

Low

Over 80% of the Croup's Scope 1 and 2 carbon
emissicns are trom the electricity it consumes. We
are switching our operaticns to renewable tariffs
where available and have also started investing in
onsite generation, such as the installation of solar
panelsin Sri Lanka and heat pumps in Norway and
Poland. Wc also have piansin place to reduce our
energy consumption and cther carbon emission
factors, such as cars and gas heating, which will
reduce our reliance on carbon offsot. This risk is
therefore considered to be immaterial.

Technology

Short term

New and emerging
technologies
substitute existing
products and
services and/or
disrupt the existing
business modecl

Low

The Group's preducts and services are all based

on technologics that are ubiguitous (eg.,
electromagnetic] and essential for the functioning

of electrical and electronic systems. The Croup's

cere competencics are design and customisation,
and manufacturing know-how. Our manufacturing
processes are often manual or semi-manual value-
added assemblies suited for the low volume high mix
production mode required for custom-made products. :
Such a production model is less susceptible to
technology changes and does not require substantial
capital investment. Further, where technologies do
change, our approach of designing-in our products to
our end customers' products means that we are well
positioned to benefit from such changes, both as a
result of being part of the technical innovation and,
once designed-in, long life spans of use. Therefore, the
risk of technology disrupticon is considered negligible.

Market

Increased cost of raw Medium

materials

Our products primarily consist of basic materials such
as copper, aluminium and plastics. An increased cost
of such raw materials will increase our production
costs Qur products are designed and customised
for specific applications and are priced according to
project specifications. The Group hedges the costs
of raw materials two to three months ahead, which
helps to reduce any negative financial impact.

The Group's supply chain is resilient, which has
been proven through the course of the pandemic.
There is ongoing continuous mitigation to identify
sustainable multiple sources where possible.

. ®@Shortterm  2-Zyears
. @ Medium term - 4-7 years
Long term  up to 2050



Potential

Description impact Our response
@l Transition risks
Market Unexpected and Low Fnergy is a relatively small part of the Group's ;
Ahruptincrease in operational costs. The impact from any rise in energy
energy costs costs is unlikely to be material.
Shifts in customer Low The nature of our products (magnetics, components,
behaviour boards and sensors) arce highly adaptable to a varicty

of end products, and the exposure of the Group to
consumer electronics is negligible,

Cur business model is gesigning and manufacturing
customised electronics for specific applications.

Cur engincers work closety wilh our customers on
soluticns that are designed to sclve their technical
issues This approach allows us to gain insights of
amerging trends. We have positioned oursclves in
structural growth markets and expect to bencfit
from shifts in behaviour over the long-term.

£
P
2
£
2
°
¢
S
[+]
far
-
|
c
£
wn

Reputation increased Low The electronic components and equipment industry
stakeholder concern is considered a relatively low carban emitter and the
on climate change Group's exposure to carben-heavy industries such as

oil and gas is immaterial.

Since 2020 we have had plans in place to actively
reduce carbon emissions in our cperations and

aim to achieve a 50% reduct'on in intensity on 2019
emission levels by 2025. In 2021, we reduced our
carbon emissions intensity by 33% on a like-for-like
basis compared to 2012 leveis. The Croup expects to
invest ¢ [3m by 2025 on carbon reduction initiatives.
Hence, the climate-related reputational risk to the
Group is relatively low.

Medium term

® Short term - 2-3years
. @ Medium term - 4-7 years
P Longterm  up to 2050



RISK MANAGEMENT

Potential

Description impact

Qur response

Physical risks

Production Low
disrupticons and

highaor costs from

impacts on the

workforce as a result

of increased severity

of extreme weather

avents such as

cyclones and flocds

Acute

The Group’'s manufacturing facilities are in 30
locations across Asia, Furope and North America.

If necessary, some production activities can be
transferred to other locations to ensure business
continuity. The Group has experience of transferring
manufacturing between sites where circumstances
have required us to do so.

Increased Medium
operaticnal, capital

and insurance Costs

due to changes in

extreme variability

in weather patterns,

rising temperatures,

and sea lovels

Chronic

Long term

The Group has a number of manufacturing facilities
in coastal areas. The IPCC RCP 8.5 scenario (the worst
case) projects globa! temperatures to rise by 3.2-5.4°C
oy 2100 vs pre-industrial levels and sea levels rise to
peak at 0.8 metres Based on this scenario, our initial
assessment conducted through the coastal risks
screening tocl indicated that the physical risks to

our manufacturing facilities are considered low. Only
oneg of the Croup's 30 manufacturing facilities could
pe affected and the Group would mitigate this by
relocating the facility if necessary.

Potential

Description impact

Qur response

Opportunities

The Croug's strategy focuses on markets with
sustainable growth, such as renewable encrgy,
electrification of transportation, industrial autormation
and connectivity. Over 50% of the Group's sales were
from thase markets in FY 2021/22. Demand in these
markets is expected to accelerate during the transiticon
to a low carbon economy. With the knowledge and
know-how, and strong position that we have in these
markets, the Group is well placed to capitalise on
these trends,

Markets High

£

@

o]

E

3

a3

@

E

o

ot

‘g Energy Medium
4l source

Switching to renewable encrgy supplies and active
reductions of carbon emissions means that the Group:

s i5less oxposed to future fossil fuel price increases
= 15 less sensitive to changes in cost of carbon

» increascs capital availability as more investors
prefer low-emissions producers

@ Shortterm 2-3 years
@ Medium tarm - 4-7 years
Long term - up to 2050

Pleasc sce pages 67 to 69 for cur other Task Force on
Climate-related Financial Disclosures ("TCFD").
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VIABILITY STATEMENT

In accordance with section 4.31 of the 2018 UK
Corporate Governance Code, the Directors have
assessed the viability of the Group over a 3-year
period to 31 March 2025. In making this assessment,
the Directors have considerad the Group's current
financial positicn, recent and histeric financial
performance and forccasts, its strateqy and business
modcl and the principal risks and uncertainties.

Viability assessment period

The Dircctors have concluded that the most
appropriate time period over which to assess the
Group's prospects for this purpose shoula be the
three-year period ending 3i March 2025. The selection
of this peried is consistent with the Group's strategic
planning process, its review of external credit facilities;
and its assessment of the Group's principal risks and
uncertainties.

Viability Base Case

The financial projections for this three-year period are
based upon the Group's budget for the year ending
31 March 2023 and forecast progression thereon. The
budget is a consolidation of sales, profits, working
capital and cash flow forecasts made by cach
opéerating company and head office, incorporating
associated key risk factors including acgquired
company forecasts and associated contingent
consideration payments, latest views on supplier and
customer payments impacting working capital and
applicabie forecast foreign exchange rates.

The budget for the financial year ending 31 March
2023 assumes a steady organic growth supported by

growth for the financial years 2023/24 and 2024/25
assumc steady sales growth for those years {in total
“The Viability Basc Case”).

Banking facilities and headroom
The Group has & syndicated banking facility of £240m
which is committed up to the end of June 2026,

oxercisable by the Group to extend the facility by a
further year to June 2027. In addition, the Group has
an £80m accordion facility which it can use to extend
the total facility up to £320m. The syndicated facility is
available both for acquisitions and for working capital
DUrposes.

The Group's financial covenants for its banking
i facility are:

1. Gearing: net debt to Adjusted EBITDA (being

Underlying EBITDA plus the annualisation of
acquisitions), excluding IFRSI6, of less than 3.0x and

2. Interest cover: Adjusted FRITNA tointarest

(excluding IFRS1B) greater than 4.0x.

| At 31 March 2022, the Group had net debt of £30.2m
i and was significantly inside these covenants with
gearing of 0.6x and interest cover of 20x.

The Viability Base Case model shows increasing
 headroom with annually reducing levels of net debt
and gearing, and increasing interest cover compared
. with the position at 31 March 2022,

' Downside sensitivities

' The Viability Base Casc has been subjected to

- downside sensitivity analysis involving flexing a

. number of the underlying main assumptions, poth

¢ individually and in conjunction. The sensitivities take
into account the principal risks and uncertainties

¢ sct out on pages 54 to 59, notably instability in

* the cconomic envirenment, underperformance of
acquired businesses, climate related risks, loss of key
custcmers and suppliers, major business disruption,
. liguidity restriction, liquidity and delbt covenants and
i adverse foreign currency moverments,

The most severe but plausible downside scenario

. assumes a warsening of the econamic environment
i caused by a prolonged Ukraine conflict, significant

reduction in consumer demand due to inflationary
a very strong backlog of orders at the year end. Future |

pressures and resurgence of Covid-12. This downside

scenario results in a significant decling in second

i half sales of FY 2022/23, negative sales growth in FY
| 2023/24 and modest grawth thereon in FY 2024/25.
Additionally, gross margin was reduced, working

! capital materially increased, significant one-off
expenditures included (product liabitity, major
beyond the viability assessment period with an option customer insclvency or litigation, climate change),

i interest rates increased significantly and an increase
in the Group cffective tax rate.



After factoring in the significant additional downsigdes
to the Viability Base Case, there remains good
headroom both in terms of liquidity and our banking
covenants. This is supported by the fact that the
Group seils a wide portfolio of different products
across a diverse set of industries and geographies, has
low custcmer/supplier concentrafion, a glohal supply
chain network, diverse manufacturing capacity, and
has well-established relationships with its customers.
These factors are considered important in mitigating
many of the risks that could affect the long-term
viability of the Croup.

Reverse testing has also been applied to the most
plausible downside scenario to determine the lovel of
downside that would be reguired before the Group
would be at risk of breaching its existing financial
covenants or current liguidity headroom during

the assessment period. The reverse stress test was
conducted on the basis that certain mitigating
acticns would be undertaken to reduce overheads
and capital expenditure during the period as sales
declined and, on that basis, a fall in underiying
operating margin o below 2% would be reguired
before such a breach occurred. The Board considers
the possibility of such a scenario to be remote and
further mitigation, such as hiring freczes, pay and
bonus reductions, headcount reductions, reduction in
planned capital expenditure, suspension of dividend
payments and eguity raise, would be available if
future trading canditions indicated that such an
cutcome were possible.

| The Strategic Report on pages 02 1o 81 sets out the

| key details of the Group's financial performance,
capital management, business environment and

i principal risks and uncertainties. Based on the

' Directors assessmcent, the Board has a reasonable

- expectation that, taking into account the Group's

" current position, having regard Lo Lhe comritted

i borrowing facilit'es available to the Company, and

i subject to the principal risks and uncertainties faced
by the business as docurmentaed on pages 54 to 59

of the Strategic Report, the Group witl be able to
continue in operation and te meet its labilities as they
fall due for the three-year period of their assessment.

| Going Concern

i Rased on the assessmcent outlined above, the
Directors also believe that itis appropriate to continue
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the
Group financial statements.



PRINCIPAL RISKS AND

UNCERTAINTIES

Focus on principal risks

This secticn of the Strategic Report provides an overview of the Group's approach to managing risk, focusing
on the major risk factors to implemanting the Group's strategy and business model. i1 is not an exhaustive list
of all possible risks. Additional uncertainties exist, some of which may not be known to the Group and could
have a negative effect on the Group’s financial position and performance. The principal risks and uncertainties
detailed below were considered 'n assessing the long-term viability of the Group. The viabitity staterment can

be found on pages 52 and 53.

The categories of risk are similar to last yea+, save that retirement benefit obligations has been de-classified as
a principal risk following the Group's legacy defined benefit pension scheme moving into surplus,

Risk description Potentiat impact

Mitigating actions

Change in the year

Strategic risk

1. Instability in the economic environment

s Risk of decline = Reduction In salcs "
in financial = Lower margins
performance

= Closure of factories
and suppliers
stopping production

due to recession,
pandemics or
geopolitical
changes .

Difficulty raising
equity and debt,
impacting growth
ability

Market position as a speciafist
supplier focused on core
target markets with diversified
locations and product offerings

Executive team actively
managing ongoing impact of
COVID-19

Allong term credit facility s in
place with significant headroom

Careful monitoring of stock
levels and customersin relevant
geographies to identify any
Issues early

Flexible production and
warehouse facilities to enable
movement of producticn and
supply to other countries if
required

Vigilance entering markets

that are politically or financially
unstable

increase

Increased global pressure on
prices and supply chan, causing
shortages of some raw materials
and components

Rising interest rates and inflation
increase the cost of borrowing

COVID 19 impact on global
markets generally reduced
during the year, as economies
start to rebound, partly offset by
lockdowns in China

Economic crisis in SriLanka

Linkto KSIs: A B C
LinktoKPIs: 1234567

2. Business acquisitions underperformance

Increase

s Adegree of s Financial .
uncertainty impact due to
ex|istsin valuing underperformance
acquisitions of acquisitions -
and evaluating _ . Loss of key
potential synergies employees and their
s Post-acquisition expertise

risks arise due o .
change of control

and integration
challenges

Expected synergies
are not realiscd

Operational, financial and
legal duc diligence on target
businesscs

Appropriate warrantes and
indemnitics from vendors

Use of carn out structures to
incentivise key management

Monitoring of the acguired
business performance against
budget and forecast

Hiring of experienced finance
and management personnel

Specific risk management
programme for first 12 months
post-acguisition before becoming
part of the Group ongoing
internai audit programme

A more volatile external
aconomiIc environment
increases the risk of making
acquisitions

CPI acquired in May 2021 and
Anterova acguired In August
2021, have performed weil since
acquisition

Beacon, acguired In September
2021 has been impacted

by a global shortage of
semiconductors

Link to KSIs: A B C
Linkto KPIs: 123456




Risk description

3. Climate-related risks

Potential impact

Mitigating actions

Change in the year

=« Clobalwarming

leads to greater
extremes of
weather events
and other

local 1ssues

Qur products or
other activities

or decisions
inrelation to
chmate related
risks may be
judged negatively
by external
stakeholders

= The operations of

GCroup facilities are
affected by the
impact of climate
charge (ey.,
through weather
related cvents)

Supply chains are
affected due to the
impact of climate
change on their
operations
Customer revenues
arc impacted by
climate related
effects on their
businesses

Reputational impact

and deterioration
of relationships
with external
stakeholders

and staff

Aninitial assessment of the
physical risks of climate change
to the Group's facilities has been
conducted using the Munich
He database; the preliminary
analysis indicates that such risks
are considercd to be low. Please
see pages 46 to 50 for our TCFD
scenario analysis and our TCFD
Report on pages 67 to 69

The Croup has diverse supply
chains and the ability 1o switch
from individual suppliers that
encounter issues

Civen the CGroup's target

markets, customer revenues are

expected to Increase as a result

of climate related matters which

could offset the risk impact in
other areas

ESG matters are discussed

at all mectings of the Board,
Sustainability Committee and
Croup Executive Committee, to
ensure that the right activities
are being prioritised and
implemented

No change

& Ananalysis of the resilience of
our business maodel and strategy
to temperature rises of below
2°C and more than 4°C was
completed in the year

Link to KSis: D
LinktoKPIs: 1234567

Operational risk

4. Loss of key customers

s A Kkeycustomer

meves to a
competitor,
significantly
reduces operations
Of goes INtQ
insclvency

1 0ss of market share
increased risk of
bad debt

Reduced
profitability ana
cash flow

5. Loss of key suppliers/supply

Low dependence on any single
customer (the iargest customer
represents c. 8% of CGroup
revertues)

Culture of high-gquality service
and long-term customer
relationships

Robust guality management
systerms {(Including 1S0O9001)

No change

Link to KSIs: A B
Link to KPIs: 1256

A key supplier
undergoes
change of
ownership, suffers
major business
disruption or
quality issues

Negative impact on
production
Damaged
relationships with
key customers
Reduced sales

Low dependency on any singic
supplier

Dual source suppliers in place
where passible

Long-term supplier

relationships, enhanced by
strong customer relationships

Monitoring of market and
technologica!l developrnents,

including input from custormers

Increase

« Changes in thec external
envirenment have caused
shortages in the supply of some
materizls and components

Link to KSIs: A
Link to KPIs: 12




PRINCIPAL RISKS AND

UNCERTAINTIES

Risk description Potential impact

6. Technological changes

= Thedevelopment = Reduced sales n

of new
technologres

that gives rise to ® Inventory write offs .
signifwcant new

competition

Of renders our

products obsolete

a Loss of market share

Mitigating actions

Change in the year

No change

m ACQuUISITICNS IN The year increase
the diversity of the product
portfolio

The Group is diversified into

a number of differentiated

technology units

Focus on established

technologies with low capital

reguirements .
Link to KSIs: A C

Link to KPIs:12

7. Major business disruption

= Sustained = |Insufficient .
disruption to production to deliver
production arising goods on order "

from a major
incident at one or
maore Sites

» Damaged
relationships with
kay customers

» Reduced saies

¢ Reputational
damage

Insufficient production to deliver No change
goods on order v Acquisition of CPl end Beacon,
with facilities in the US

Acquisition of Antenova, with
facilities in Tamvan

Damaged relationships with key
customers =

Reduced sales

Link to KSis: A B
Linkto KPIs: 1234567

8. Cyber security

= System downtime =
or loss of data due -
to inadequate
systems or
external attack

Business disruption =

Reduced serviceto =
cusromers

= Financial loss

« Theft of and/ *
or access to
confidential data =

» Reputationat .
damage

Central IT security policy No change

External environment has led
to increased number of cyber
attacks on businesses globalty

Croup wide investment in
enhanced end-point security
solutions, with central
monitoring capability, now
rolled out.

Robust anti-virus and anti-spam =
software and specialised target
threat protection services

Robust backup procedures .
in place
Secure private networking

Recommendations from third-
party Cyper security assessments
completed in the prior year have
been mplemented

Different operating units
operating on scparate 1T
systems minimiscs risk of a
rmajor incident iImpacting the
wider Group

* |ncreased investment and
headcount within Group IT
team, including new Group
Head of IT

Link to KSis: A
LinktoKPIs: 1256




Risk description Potential impact

9. Loss of key personnel

» Keyemployees .
leave, and cffective
replacements

Loss of oxpertise

s Potential business
disruption

cannot be

recruited on g » Reduced growth

timely basis = |nsufficiert
resources

s Reputational
darmage

Mitigating actions

Change in the year

Staff development, training No change
programmes and succession

farnmnin .
P E Link to KSis: A

Remuneration based on

personal and business success Link to KPIs:12

Regular remuneration
benchmarking

Use of carn out structures to
Incentivise key management of
acguired companies

The number of separatc
business units, each with their
own maragcment teams,
minimises the risk that the
underperformance of any one
business impacts the Croup as
awhole

10. Product liability

s Afalureinone » MNon-compliance
of our products with quality
results In serous standards

injury, death,
damage to
property or
nocn-complignce
with product
regulations

= Financial loss

» Reputztional
damage

Quality inspection controls
before products are shipped to
customers

No change

Terms and conditions limit Link to KPls:12 356

companies' lablilitics

As a number of the Group's
products are customised for
individual customers, this
recuces the risk relating to any
one product and/or custemer

1. Inventory obhsolescence

Stock s held that .
has reduced or nif
rcalisable value

Financial loss

QOrders built wo specific customer
reguirements; many are non
cancellable, and non-returnable

No change

Link to KSIs: A

Purchasing to reliable sales
Link to KPIs: 2 4

forecasts

Provisioning and write off
policies to cover potential
cobsolescence




PRINCIPAL RISKS AND

UNCERTAINTIES

Risk description Potential impact

Mitigating actions

Change in the year

Financial risk

12. Liquidity and debt covenants

= There s a breach s nsufficient cash
of funding terms/ rosSOUrces to support
covenants the Croup's activifies

13. Foreign currency

The Croup has an existing
revolving credit facility of
£240m which runs to Junc 2027
with c £190m undrawn at the
year end

Central treasury function oversces
the Group's cash resources and
financing requirements

Regular review of headroom
against committed facilities and
financial covenants

Working capital controls and
monitoring of key working
capital metrics

Issuance of equity frocm time
to time to support acquisitions
programme

Acquiring high margin, high
cash gencrative businesses

No change

& Cearing reduced in the year
from 10x to 0.6x

®  Revolving credit facility
increased from £180m to
£240m, with term extended
from June 2024 to Junc 2026,
with a Group option to extend to
June 2027

Linkto KPIs: 3456

= With only 10% of .
sales in Sterling,
the Group deals in
many currencles
for both its
purchases and
sales, whicn differ
to Its reperting
currency, and
so the Group
has translational
and opcrational
oxposurcs to
foreign currency
fluctuations

Reduction of the
Group's reported
results

" ower gross and
operating margins

Use of forward currency
contracts to hedge committed

and forecast sales and purchases

in foreign currency

Currency borrowings as a
natural hedge against same
currency assets

Central review of foreign
currency exposures

No change

LinktoKPIs: 256




Risk description Potential impact

Mitigating actions

Change in the year

Regulatory/compliance risk

14. Non-compliance with legal and regulatory requirements

w  Unintentional "
fallure to comply "
with international
and loca! legal
and regulatory
requirernents

Fines or penaltics ]

Reputational
ddrnage

The Group hires employces with
relevant skills and uses external
advisc s Lu keep up LO date wih
changes in reguiations and legal
requirements in order to remain
ncompliance

Internal control frarmework
including CGroup policies,
procedures and training in risk
areas such as export controls
and supplier and customer
credit risk Annualinternal
controls sclf assessments used
to identify and address gaps in
control within Group businesses
Supplier code of conduct 1ssued
during the year and annual
suppl-er audits undertaken
across the Group

Ongoing internal audit reviews
assess compliance with Croup
policics

Awhistleblowing hotling i1sin
place and available for use by all
cmployees

Insurance covers all standard
categories of insurable risk

No change

= TCFD regulations came inta
force this financial year

Link to KPIs: 56

Key strategic indicators

A Increase underlying operating margin
B Bulla sales beyono Europe
C Increase target market sales

D Reguce carbon emissions

Key performance indicatoers

Sales growth

Lnderlying EPS growth
Dividend growth

Return on capital employed

Operating profit conversion

NN

Free cash conversien



SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

Dear Shareholder,
I am delighted to have joined the discoverlE Board

and to have been asked to chair the newly established |
| of the pandemic. The Group's focus on target markets
that have iong-term structural growth characteristics

i has proven to be the right strategic choice, cvident

in the Croup's outperformance in these markets

| relative to other markets. Additionalty, these target

! markets, namely renewable energy, electrification of
transportation, medical, and industrial automation &

! conncctivity, are in the areas where the Croup can fulfil
i jts purpose  that is te create innovative electronics
that help improve the world and people's lives. They

i are also aligned with the UN Sustainable Development
Goals ("UN SDGs"). Sec pages 61 and 62 for the positive
. impacts frorm our products and operations.

Sustainability Committee.

The Committee has now been formed and will have a
pivotal role in shaping how the Group eveives going
forward. Please see www.discoverlEplc.com for the
Committee's Terms of Reference.

During my induction, onc of the most thorough I've
cxperienced, | met with senior management and
visited several of the Croup’s operating businesses.

The experience confirmed what | had heard

about a well-run organisation full of energy and
entrepreneurial spirit, and with the concept of
sustainability driving and integrated into core
business. The Group's strategy and way of operating
is focused on meeting our present needs without
compromising the ability of future generations to
meet their own.

In this report, | will report on discoverlE's sustainability
achievements to date and plans for the future. This is
also the first year that the UK mandatory reguirement
of TCFD (Task Force for Climate-related Financiai
Disclosures) reporting comes into force. The Group has
conducted an initial assessment of the resilicnce of its
business model and strategy, and potential impacts
of climate change under several transition pathway
scenarics in the short, medium, and long terms. It

has concluded that the Group may be exposed to
certain risks during the transition to a low carbon
economy, however such risks are outweighed by the
opportunities presented to the Group. Sce the TCFD
section starting on page 67 for more details.

“The Group’s
strategy and way
of operating is
focused on meeting
our goals without
compromising the
ability of future
generations to
meet their own.”

Rosalind Kainyah
Chair of the Sustainability Committec

| discoveriE's business model of designing and
i manufacturing customised products has stood the

test of time, even during the most challenging period

_ This Report comprises:

. = Part1-The positive impacts we create through our

products and operations

= Part 2 - A summary of our “three pillars” on which

our sustainability programme is based (Our Planet,
Our Preducts, Our People)

. a Part3 -Governance arrangements
' = Part 4 - Cur Priorities & TCFD Report
« Part5 Key metrics

: The Group had already undertaken a materiality

assessment to help identify those topics that are mast
significant for its operations and is keen to prioritise
its efforts accordingly (see pages 60 and 61 of last

- year's Annual Report for a summary).



Part | - Our positive impacts

UN

sDGC What is this

How our products create
positive impacts

How our operations create
positive impacts

LF— M Cnsure nealthy lives

WA ond promote wel-
being for a'l ages

We design and make preducts that
go into medical devices and systems,
such as ulrrascund machines and
defibrillaters, contributing directly to
the health and wellbeing of people.

The Group's sensing products

arc used in environmental
managemaent systems, such as
indoor temperature monitoring and
water treatment plants.

Applicable markets:

D,

The Group has 30 manufacturing
sites. It's our responsibility to cnsure
that our employees operate in a safe
and clean environment. Our health &
safety representatives to employees
ratic at the end of 2021 was 1:38,

well ahead of guidance, and our
accidents and near misses records
were better than the encnmark.
Sce page 74 for health & safety
performance.

Several of our operating businesses
have implemented flexible and
hybrid working at the end of the
pandemic to enable employees to
achicve a better work-life balance.
A number of them have also
completed mental health first
aider training, which is increasingly
important given the wider impact
that the pandemic and associated
lockdowns have had on mental
health.

- Ensurc access to
 affordable, reliabie,
sustainable and
modern cnergy

for all

Renewable encrgy is the target
market for both our electromagnetic
and sensing products. We provide
transformers, switches, and

sensors for wind and solar systerms,
supporting the expansion and
adoption of renewable and clean
energy.

Applicable markets:

We support the growth of renewable
energy generation by switching to
clean energy tariffs where possible.
Higher demand leads to more
investment.

Where possible, we invest in
renewable energy self-generation,
such as building roof top solar
panels in our Sri Lankan plant,
contributing to overall renewable
energy capacity.

Applicable Markets Key:

—T
Renewable Encrgy Transportation

@ Medical

Industrial and Connectivity
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UN
SDG

What is this

How our products create
positive impacts

How our operations create
positive impacts

e Build resilient

&

infrastructure,
promote inctusive
and sustainable
industrialisation and
foster innovation

We supply connectivity solutions
that underpin the “internet of
Things" ("IoT") that brings people and
communities togcether and enables
automation and efficiency.

Appiicable markets:

We are an electronic engineering
company and we design and create
innovative electronics that help to
improve the warld and people's lives.

Qur engineers work with cur
suppliers and customers to create
innovative solutions that solve
technical challenges.

Make cities and
Fuman scttlements
inclusive, safe,
resilient and
sustainable

Qur products piay a crucial rote In
the electrification of transportation
and energy efficicncy. We provide
charging solutions for electric
vehicles and power solutions for
rmass transport such-as trains and
e-buses, helping to reduce the use of
fossil fuels.

Apglicable markets:

3

—

We arc a global company but a local
operator. Qur operating busincsses
and employees have a strong
connection to the communities in
which they operate. Through our
operating businesses, we create
jobs and contribute to the social
and economic well-being of the
communities through tax revenues,
loca! employment, donations and
volunteering.

<=

Take urgent action
to combat climate
change and its
impacts

Our focus on products that reduce
or replace carbon cmissions, and
aiding electrification, automation
and improving efficicncies, assists in
combating climate change.

Applicable markets:

We play our part in tackling climate
change by reducing resource
consumption, such as energy and
water, recycling where possible in
our operations.

We also design preducts that are
more energy efficient and less
harrmful to the environment than
the ones they replace.

Applicable Markets Key:

—T—
Renewable Energy Transportation

@ Medical

[T
Industrnat and Connectivity



Part 2 - Qur “Three Pillars”

The diagram below surmmarises the core pillars of our sustainability strategy (Our Planet, Qur Products and
Our Pecple}, how they come together to meet Our Purpose, and how they are underpinned by our internal

governance arrangemaents.

Qur Purpose

To create innovative electronics that help to improve

orlat and

i,

Our Planet

Improving our impact on the
environment

Complementing the benefits
that our products bring to our
customoers, our own internal
initiatives will reduce our
carbon focotprint and improve
other environmental impacts.

Qur Products

Ensuring product safety and
reliability

Qur products provide
considerable benefits to
customers.

Our processes cnsure the
consistency of how we make
our products, increasing safety
and reliability.

Our People

Keeping our people safe
and happy

Cur people are critical to
our success and keeping
them safe and happy s a
key priority.

Our products require a
high degree of technicat
expertise.

Underpinned by our Governance and Risk Management

Our strategy wili be achieved through ongoing proc

s to ensure its delivary is manac

offectively.
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Part 3 — Governance
The following diagram summariscs the Group's overall governance arrangements far its sustainability programme.

The Board

Ultimate responsibiiity for all Group aperations, inciuding sustainability

Group . . o . .
Executive Remune'ratlon & - > Sustalne_lbmty ¢ ~ > Audit &' Risk
. Committee Committee Committee
Committee
Divisional Group. . Risk & Internal
- - #{ Sustainability [®-=----- - == -
Management Audit Dept
Team
A A
i
i
1
Operating :
Company - - - KEY
Management — Reporting line
- — # Collaboration

While the Board has ultimate responsibility for sustainability matters (including climate-rclated risks), it relies
on the input and guidance of its various Committees, as well as the Group Executive Committee ("CEC").

The Rermuneration Committee ensures that pay is aligned with the Group's ESG objectives, the Audit & Risk
Committee considers governance and risks relating to sustainability matters and climate-related risks in
particular, and the Sustainability Commmittee helps set the Group's overall £5GC strategy and ensures the Board
has access 1o the knowledge and skills required in this area.

The GEC is responsible for overseeing implermentation of strategy throughout the Group, with cach member of
the GEC having ESG-specific targets within their personal objectives and bonus plans. However, it is opcrating
companies that run the Group’s operations and ultimately have to put the Group's sustainability plans into
action. The decision-making process involves ali stakeholders working together. The Group Sustainability

Team drives initiatives throughout the Group, liaising with gperating companies to consider what is practical
and feasible, and reporting into the GEC and Sustainability Committee, who provide challenge and direction.
This is a constant and evolving process as a result of which strategy, priorities, plans and actions arc aligned.
During the year, the Group adopted new and updated Policies, held ESG workshops and implemented various
initiatives, as noted clscwhere in this Annual Report. All of these actions were as a direct result of the processes
outlined above.

While we have made good progress already, further work is reguired in this evelving area. This will involve atl
of the above stakeholders working closely together, alongside external advisors to provide further insights,
challenge and guidance. The Group has carefully considerad its governance arrangements in this context and
will keep those under review as we continue 1o make progress in this key area.



As well as the general governance structures in place as set out above, discover|E has a range of Policies that it
expects all of its businesses to adhere to. These inciude the following (all available at www.discoverlEplc.com):

Policy

Comment

= Anti-Bribery & Corruption Policy

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group undertook a
risk assessment specifically focused on anti-bribery & corruption
matters, updated its Policy (which is in the process of being
translated inte all of the Group's predominant fanguagces) and
comrmenced additional training.

« Board Diversity Policy

The Board adapted its first Diversity Paolicy in May 2021 and updated
it in May 2022, with revised targets in line with latest guidance.

= Conflict Mincrals Palicy

This Policy sceks to ensure that nonc of the Group's operations are
exposed to sourcing conflict minerals anywhere in its operations,

= Environmental Policy

This Policy summarises the Group's overall environmental cbjectives
and focus.

= Human Rights Policy

Respect for the well-being of all people, steff, customers, supgliers
and cther stakeholders alike is at the core of who we are and how
we work. Treating people fairly, with dignity and respect is essential
to our long-term success.

s Modern Slavery Statement

discoverlE is committed to ensuring that no forms of modern
stavery exist in its business operations or supply chains.

= Supplier Code of Conduct

This Code defines the Group's basic requirermnents of supplicrs and
in particular their responsibilities to their stakeholders and the
environment.

s Group Tax Strategy

Woe seek to minimise exposure to material tax risk, ensure that
tax affairs are managed cfficiently, comply with tax laws in ail
jurisdictions and avoid aggressive tax planning.

» Whistleblowing Policy

The Croup encourages a “speak up” culture at all levels, if any kind
of risk exists or wrongdoing has cccurred. A secure and confidential
notline to an independent third party is provided and has been
made available and advertised to all staff at all of the Croup'’s
locations.

D Pages 42 Lo 46 set out our general approach to risk management.

In addition to those general processes, and in addition te ongoing supplier checks conducted by our
businesses in the normal course of trading, the Croup conducted a centralised audit of the Group's largest
suppliers during the year. That audit was focused primarily on compliance with our Supplier Code of Conduct
and our Modern Slavery Statement. The audit covered suppliers representing 62% of Group procurement
spend. No major concerns were identified but potential irprovements were identified with a small number of
suppliers. This programme of Group-wide supplior audits will continue on an annual basis.
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Part 4 - Our Priorities & TCFD Report

Our Planet

Greenhouse gas emissions
Addressing carbon emissions is a global chalicnge
that discoverlE stands to benefit from due to its

target markets, The rechnnlogical requirements of the |
- Although the majority of cur products are non-

transition to a low carbon economy and the related

market response te that challenge present significant
i environmental risks are minimised by use of
appropriate fabelling and technical information,
L in conjunction with training and procedures for
. handling, storage and disposal.

opportunitics for Us as we continue to grow.

We are also committed to playing our part in directly
reducing our carban ermissions and sg, as announcad
pravicusly, have set ourselves an initial target to reduce
cur ermissions by 50% from 2019 levels within five years.
This will be achieved through a combination of buying
etectricity from renewable sources, implementing
energy reduction measures (including those identified
through our pregramme of energy audits) and
installing renewable energy clectricity sources on

site, as appropriate. A number of sites already use
onsite rencwable energy sources to reduce emissions,
including heat pumps in Poland and Norway, and an
consite solar array in New Jarsey.

During the year ended 31 March 2022

= We continued 1o reduce our carbon emissions.
As at the ond of CY2027, our emissions were 33%
fower than CY2019 |evels, demonstrating the good
progress made towards our 50% reduction target

= We completed the first phase of installation of
solar panels at our site in Sri Lanka. This is now
cperational and we will move onto the second and
third phases shortly

= Third party energy audits were conducted at a

number of sites, identifying further opportunities to

increase energy efficiency

= The proportion of our car fleet that is now hykrid or
fully electric increased fram 19% of vehicles to 26%
The figure reportea last year (9%) Included Acal BF1, the above
figure of 19% excludes Acal BF from prior year figures
Our programme of energy audits will continue in the
coming year and we will continue to switch company
vehicles to electric or hybrid as leases exprire and
suitabic options are available. Once each cnergy audit
is completed, a schedule of recommended actions
is agreed. The decision as to whether to implement
the recommended actions is made on a return
on investment ("ROI") basis, focused on both the
reduction in emissions achicved and cost savings that
will accrue to the business over the life of the relevant
investment. As an cxample, the upfront investment on
the solar panels being installed in Sri Larka is expected

to be repaid in full four to five years after being
commissioned and thereafter reduce ongoing costs.

Waste
All Group companies take measures to minimise

_waste in the manufacture of products, use recycling

options where available and reduce packaging.

hazardous, where such items are involved,

i The Group has implemented procedures tc comply

i with the Restriction of the Use of Hazardous

" Substances in Electrical and Electronic Equipment
Regulations 2004 ("RoHS"), the Waste Electrical and

! Electronic Equipment Regu'ations 2006 ["WEEE"),
the Producer Responsibility Obiigations {(Packaging
Waste) Regulations 2005 and the Waste Batteries and
i Accumulators Regulations 2008,

Water

We have undertaken a preliminary asscssment of the

! Group’s use of water and determined that the risk of

! water scarcity 1S not a material concern. The Group does
not use water within its production processcs, with the
exception of a single, minor process within one business
unit. The only water used is for sanitary and drinking

| pUrposes.

| 1SO14001 accreditations

. 1SC 14001 is an internationally agreed standard that
" sets out the reguirements for an environmental

management system. [t helps organisations improve
their environmental performance through mare

- efficient use of resources and reduction of waste,

gaining a competitive advantage and the trust of

- stakcholders. importantly, it provides an objective

and independently assessed view of an organisation's

environmental credentials.

i Last year, the Group set itself a target to ensure that
at least 80% of its aperations (measurad by revenue)

; wouild be covered by an I1SO14001 accreditation by

. 2025. As at the end of CY202), that figure stood at 63%
i and thc accreditation process has already started at a
i nurmber of our other businesses, with mere scheduled
! next year and the year after. From feedback received,
it is clear that both customers and suppiiers value our
businesses having this in place.

i There were no fines relating © cnvironmental non-
i compliance during the year or the previous 3 years.



TCFD Report

The following report is prepared in accordance with the UK Listing Rule 28.6(8) and is consistent with
the recommended disclosures of the 2017 final report of the Taskforce for Climate-Related Financial
Disclesures " 1CHIDY

To identify climate-related r'sks and opportunitics {"CRO"), :n 2021 the Group conducted an inirial assessmoent of
tie resilience of its business maodel and strategy in the best and worst case scenarios of ciimate change. Details
can be found in the Risk Management section on pages 46 to 50. Further analysis will pe carried out in the next
12 months to quantify the potential financial impact, which will be reported in the next year's Annual Report.

The Group’s current strategy for climate change is set based on the Group's Scope 1and Scope 2 emissions,
where data is available. The Group operates a decentralised madel, which increases the scale and complexity
of capturing Scope 3 emissions from its supply chain, which are not currently disclosed. The Group plans to
identify and quantify these Scope 3 emissions within the next two years and to start reporting in FY2024. The
Group's climate change strategy may change accordingly to take into account all Scope 3 emissicons if they are
deemed material. Scope 3 emissions from the Group's own operations are disclosed on page 73.

Covernance Disclosures

Recormmended disclosure The Board cxercises oversight of climate-related risks and

a} Describe the board's oversight opeertunities through:

of climate-related risks and
opportunities.

» the Sustainability Committee, which comprises the whole Board.
The Chair of the Committee has 30 years of combined operational,
management and board level experience in ESG. The Committee
sets the Group’s sustainability strategy and monitors the
implementation cf the strategy

s the Risk and Audit Committee, which asscsses and reviews
climate-related risks and opportunities as part of the risk
rmanagement process

s the Remuneration Committee, which sets the Group’s
remuneration policy and ensures that sustainability objectives and
performance arc linked to management's remuneration.

See the Group's sustainability governance framework on page 64.

Recommended disclosure Climate-related risks are reviewed as part of our six-monthly Risk

) . Register review, along with all other risks.
b} Describe management’s role in 9 ' 9

assessing and managing climate- » Group Exccutive Committee ("GEC") is responsible for the
development and implementation of the Croup's sustainability
strategy, and sctting specific objectives and targets for all Group
companies. It reports to the Sustainability Committee on ali
sustainability-related matters, including climate action

» Group Sustainabllity Team, formed by members with sustainability,
finance, legal and operations experience, is responsible for
monitoring, reviewing, consolidating and reporting Croup
companies’ progress on sustainability implementation. It works
with the operating business units to deliver sustainability geals
and reports to the GEC

= Operating company management is responsible for the
implementation of sustainability strategy within their indiv dual
business units.

related risks and opportunities.

See the Group's sustainability governance framework on page 64.
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Strategy

Disclosures

Recommended disclosure

a) Describe the climate-reiated risks
and opportunities the organisation
has identified over the short,
medium, and long term.

Recommended disclosure

b) Describe the impact of climate-
re‘ated risks and opportunities

on the crganisation's businesses,
strategy, and financial planning.

See Risk Management section on pages 46 to 50 for the disclosures
aland k).

Recommended disclosure

c) Describe the resilience of the
crganisation’s strategy, taking into
consideration differant climate
related scenarios, including a 2°C or
lower scenario.

The Group's business model is designing and manufacturing
customised electronics for industrial applications. Qur engineers
work closely with our customers on creating innovative solutions to
solve their technical challenges, which enabies us ta gain insights
and knowledge of emerging technolegy and trends.

The Group's products [magnetics, sensors, control interface and
systems, and connectivity components) are essential components
and enable the functioning of any electrical and electronic systems.
The Group's strategy of focusing on the markets that play a critical
role in decarbonisation, such as renewable energy and industrial
automeation, ensures that our products and services remain relevant
over the long term and that the Group can capitalise on the growth
opprortunitics during the transition to a low carbon economy.

The Group's TCFD scenario analysis can be found on pages 46 to 50
and a summary of our climate related risks and cpportunities is in
the Principal Risks and Opportunities section on page 55.




Disclosures

Risk Management

Recommended disclosure

a) Describe the organisation’s
process for identifying and
assessing climate-related risks.

The Group, with the help of external consultants, conducted

a materiality assessment in 2020 as part of its overall risk and
sustainability assessmeant. The process included identifying the areas
that were relevant to the Croup and its stakcholders (i.c, customers,
empluyees, suppliers and shareholders) and roundtable discussions of
CEC and divisional managemeaent who represented the views from the
operating busincsses. A broad range of economig, environmental, social
and governance risks were considered and each risk was pricritised
according to its importance to the Group and to its stakeholders

The materiality assessment and matrix can be found on page 60 of
the 2021 Annual Report.

Recommended disclosure

p) Describe the organisation's
processes for managing climate-
related risks.

Climate-related risks are managed within the Croup's risk
management processes, which are outlined in the Enterprise Risk
Management framework on pages 42 to 46.

Recommended disclosure

c) Describe how processes

for identifying, assessing, and
managing climate-related risks are
integrated into the organisation’s
averall risk management.

The process of identifying and assessing climate-related risks can
be found in Recommended disclosure a) and b) above. Once the
risks are identified and assessed, they are managed through the
processes defined by the Group’s Enterprise Risk Management
framework on an ongoeing basis.

Metrics and Targets

Disclosures

Recommended disclosure

a) Disclose the metrics used by
the organisation 1o assess climate-
related risks and opportunities

N line with its strategy and risk
Mmanagemaent process.

Energy efficiency and climate change, including carbon emissions,
are measured and reported on an annual basis in the form of energy
consumption, total carbon emissions in Scope 1 and 2, and carbon
intensity. See page 73 for details.

Recommended disclosure

b) Disclosc Scope 1, Scope 2,
and, if appropriate, Scope 3 GHC
emissions, and the related risks.

Sce page 73 for Scope 1, Scope 2 and Scope 3 emissions related to
the Group's operations {excluding Scope 3 emissions incurred in the
supply chain).

Recommended disclosure

¢) Describe the targets usced by the
corganisation to manzage climate-
related risks and opportunitics and
performance against targets.

The Group's carbon emissicn reduction target, set in November 2020,
is to reduce the Group's like-for-like emission intensity by 50% by 2025
from the 2019 levels. Like-for-like is defined as continuing operations
only, excluding the disposed businesses and acguisitions completed
since 1January 2020. For the calendar year 2021, the Group has
reduced its carbon emission intensity by 33% compared with 2019
ievels. Further deta’ls can be found cn page 73 The Group targets

to increasc sales inta the four target markets to 85% by FY 2024/25.
Further details can be found on page 24.
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Our People

Keeping our pecople safe and happy

Health, safety and wellbeing

The Group aims to provide clean, healthy and safe working conditions. in addition to compliance with local
regulations, discoveriE promotes working practices that protect the health, safety and welibcing of its
grriployees and other persons who enter its premises. (n line with that aim, the Group introduced a new Group
Health & Safety Policy in 2020, to reinforce responsibilities and minimum standards. A summary is as follows:

Responsibility  The Group operates a decentralised management structure. The management of each of
& Ownership our businesses is best placed to identify and manage the health and safety risks relovant
to their business. They must ensure that thase risks are properly identified and managed.

Minimum The Policy sets out certain minimum expectations, which are for indwidual management
Requirements  teams to detormine how best to achieve within their businesses. The minimum
expectations include the following:
= Each business to have its own local Health & Safety Policy and communicate to all
concerned
» Appropriate resources must be in place
= Responsible individuals te be identified within each business and those individuals to
have suitable tra.ning
= Appropriate docurmentation to be maintained

s Aspeak up” culturc is to be encouraged, with employees positively asked to identify
potential risks or hazards and bring them to the attention of those responsible for
health and safety

s« Appropriate risk assessments to be performed and recommendations actioned

s Training to be provided

Reporting Opcrating companies report each month in respeact of health and safety issues, including
the number of on-site accidents, near misses and mitigation. Please see the table on
page 74 for a summary of the Group's lost time incidents.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had over 120 health & safety representatives across our workforce of ¢ 5,000
employees, a ratio of 1:38, which is well ahead of guidance and a further improverment on our ratio of 1147 at
the end of the prior year. The Group conducted over 5500 hours of health & safety training in the year to 31
December 2020,

Recognising the importance of a structured and objectively verifiable approach to Health & Safety, the Group
has set an armbitious target to ensure that at least 80% of its global workforce is working in operations covered
by an 1SO45001 health and safety management system. The bulk of this programme is scheduled for CY2023
and CY2024, with preparation currently underway.

A number of our businesses also have employee assistance and mental heaith support programmes in place
for staff.



Equality and Diversity

Armong its duties, the Sustainability Committee is
responisibie for oversight of the Group's diversity

and discrimination policies and progress has been
~nade during the year, with \ncreascd diversity within
the Board, Senior Management (being the Group
Executive Committee and its direct reports), and in
the Uroup's operational management (see page 74
for details}.

The Group is committed to @nsuring our peopic

are treated with respect, are emnpowered and
appropriately rewarded Our employmrent policies
are based on equai opportunities for all, and on
there being no discriminatian on grounds of gender,
race/ethnicity, social background, religion, sexuat
orientation, family responsibilities (pregnancy),
disabllities, political opinicon, age, sensitive medical
condition or trade union mMembership.

The policies are fair, equitable and consistent with the
skills and abilities of employees and the needs of the

accorded equal oppoertunity for recruitment, training
and promotion. The Group does not tolerate any
sexual, physical or mental harassment.

Qur Board Diversity Policy can be found on the
Company website: wwwdiscoverl Eplc.com. See page
74 for details of our gender diversity as a group.

Development and training

Our businesses are proactive in anticipating both
short and long term employment needs and skil's
requirements. All employees arc encouraged to
actively engage in their career development and
extensive training cpportunities are available across
the Croup. We provide technica! training to staff, as
relevant for their role. This is scheduled and tracked.

Some of the Group's operating companies have
structured apprenticeship schemes for technical staff.
Employecs arc actively encouraged tc undertake
further learning, such as National Vocational
Qualifications or similar level courses, as well as
continual professional development to maintain any
relevant professional accreditations.

The vast majority of empicyees receive annual
pcrformance appraisals.

. Recruitment and retention

i Clear and fair terms of employment and a
competitive remuneration policy are in place. it

' is Group policy to communicate with employees

on major matters to encourage them to take an

. interest in the affairs of their employing company

i and the Group. In addition to the Wourklorce Advisory
. Panelthat has been established in accordance with

: Provision 5 of the UK Corporate Governance Code,

each operating company is encouraged to maintain

. effective emnployee engagement arrangements,
Cincluding keeping employees aware of the financial

and econemic factors affecting their employing

. company's perfermance. Please see pages 75 and 20
. for further details of our engagement.

" The Group remains supportive of the emplayment

and advancement of disabled perscns, Fuil
consideration is given to applications for employment

' from disabled persons, where the candidate’s
- particular aptitudes and abilities are consistent with
Group's businesses and aim to ensure that everyone is | rmeeting a.d.oquato\y t_he requms"ments of the job.

! Opportunities are available to disabled ecmployees for
training, carcer development and promotion. Where
! existing employecs become disabled, itis the Group's
policy to provide continuing employment, wherever
practicable, in the same or an alternative position
i and to provide appropriate training and support to
achieve this aim.

' Community Engagement
" Qur businesses operate within their local
. communities and discoverlE cncourages active

cngagement. Many of our businesses employ iocal

- people from the community in which they operate.

i Support for local good causes includes charitable
donations and, in certain businesses, opportunities for
staff to volunteer. Examples of this inciude the Group's
+ continued support of the Community Foundation for

. Surrey and, in Minnesota, staff volunteering to pack

! donation bags for pcople in Haitl.

As well as supporting these causes directly, initiatives
such as these motivate staff and increase their sense

" of purpose in working for an organisation that is keen
| to play a positive role in society.
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Our Products

s customers and the environment alike.

{ Raw mateorials are procured from

i rosponsible scurce

naccerdance

Wwith The princ’plos inour Supplior
i Code of Conduct, Modorn Slavery
statement and Confact Minerals
Policy (all availalic at wwawy.,

i ciscover: Epccorml Those are

i vorifica through boeth loca

otatelal ¢

and the Group-wide suppler

audit programme surmmarsod

| on page 65, 1n the event of non-
cormpiance wo would chgage with
U the supplior to seek moasuros to

D rectify the non-compliance.

discoverlE Group plc

wWherove: possiblo, recycied raw
materials are used in production
procosses (such as for coppor and
aiyminium, as aporopriate)

Cur products tyoically have iong
life soans, At thoe ond of their
Ives, oroducts are disposed of 'n
accordance with the apolicable
standards.

The quality and safety of our
products s onsured and monitoraed
through the widespread adogction
of 1ISCOC0 systoms. As at 5l
Deocoember 2021, 95% of the Group's

Innovative Electronics

The Group produces high-quality, reliable products that bring considerable benefits to

products imeasured by rovenuc)
wore manufactured undar an
SO900 accrodited system, The
Group raceives vory fow customaer
cormplaints ana fawst / return rates
Aro vary low

Sor a summary of somoe of the
bhenefits that our products bring
to the world, incluaing now thoy
ho'o tha global fight agoinst
climate changa, and hels peoopo
paerseonally, please seo our Mmpact
Raport 2027 (avallakble at wwawy
discaverlplc.comi.




Part 5 - Key Metrics
Carbon Emissions

The Group's carbon intensity, measurcd on a like-for-like basis, decreased by 3312% from the CY2019 base year

to CY2021.

Total Emissions {tonnes) Like-for-like Emissions {tonnes)
Location-based 2019 2020 2021 2019 2020 2021
Scope 1 274201 164470 2,106.43 1,86273 113358 133135
Scope 2 729855 660054 762840 703000 ©,38030C 720217
Total Scopc 18 23 10,04056 824524 973483 8,892.79 7513.88 8,533.52
Scope 3* 590.38 6504.08 74197 572.80 58828 711.38
Total cmissicns 1063094 884932 1047680 9,46559 810216 924490
Intensity - tCO,e / Em revenue (Scope 2176 18.25 17.67 2290 2526 25.85
18&2)

Total Emissions {tonnes) Like-for-like Emissions {tonnes)
Market-based 2019 2020 2021 2019 2020 2021
Scope ] 274201 1,644.7C 210643 1,862.73 1133.58 1,331.35
Scope 2 7,895 54 6,732.61 6,087.65 7572746 645074 564012
Total Scope 1& 2* 10,637.55 8,377.31 B8,194.08 9,320.19 7,584.32 6,971.47
Scope 3° 58834 59017 601.65 570776 57538 57834
Total emissicns 11,225.89 8,967.48 8,795.73 9,960.95 8,159.70 7,549.81
UK based emissions % 936 446 6.84 nia n/z n/a
‘ntensity - tCO,e / £m revenue 23.05 18.54 14.87 31.57 2550 2112
(Scope1&2)
Scope 1 & 2 intensity reduction
vs 2019 (%) nfa 19.57% 35.48% n/a 19.239%? 33.12%

Total Energy Consumption Like-for-like Energy Consumption

2019 2020 2021 2019 2020 2021
Encrgy consumpption (kWh) 26423158 226087513 27012262 21609107 19465803 21,791,630
Energy intensity
{(KWh/Em revenue) 57,252 50,210 49,029 72,653 65,444 66,005
UK based energy consumption not 1270 qg2 n/a n/a n/a

disclosed

Notes:

The “Total Emissions” colurns inciuae all companies owned by the Group as at the ena of each calencar year The “Like-for-like Emissions”
columns represent continuing operations only, 1e. axcluming Acal BF ano Vertec SA which are treated as oiscontinuea operations The
like for-like figures also excluoe acquisitions completed since 1 Jaruary 2020

. The reporteo figure of 19 23% reduction in 2020 was reducea to 6% after adjusting for the effects of Covid to provide an underlying measure.

+ Scope land Scope 2 emissions are generated directly from the Group's operations (Scope 1] and indirectly through the energy consumed by
the Group (Scope 2} Scope 3 ermissions are related to the Group's eperations only ano exclude emissions from the Croup's supply chain

+ Ernissions gata 1s reporteo 1in accordance with the UK Covernment's 'Enviranmental Reporting CGuioelines' Incuding Streamhinea Energy
and Carbon Reporting Guidance’ and the GHGC Protocal Corperate Reporting Standard, using the 2020 ermission conversion factors
published by the Department for Environrment, Food and Rural Affairs (Def-a) and the Department for Business, Encrgy & Induystrial
Strategy (BEIS) The assessment follows the dual reporting approach for assessing Scope 2 emissians from electricity Jsage The operational

contrel approach nas been used.

: Allof the data in the above table has neen ngepenagently assessea by Carbon Footprint Lte, a leacing carbon & energy management

company
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Health & Safety

Lost-time incident freguency rate (LTIFR) information

FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22
Lost time incidents (LTIs) 0 18 15 2
Average head count 4281 4394 4269 4522
LTIFR Q13 022 (RIS 023
Notes:

LTrer lost time inciaent s defined as a work-relatea inciaent resulting 11 the loss of five or more waork Gays 1n the reported perioa

. LTIFR s the Number of LTI diided by the total wark hours in the reported period, multiplying by 100,000 hours (representing the estimateo
number of workung hours 1IN an employee’s waork Ifetime),

4 Reported head count includes all full ume and part time employees and contractors

4 There were no fatahties among the Graup's emplayees or contractors danng any of the four years statea above

Diversity
Senior Management! Operational Management? All employees
FY22 (No.) FY22 (%) Fv21 (%]  FY22(NoJ  FY22 (%) FY21 (%)  FY22 [Noj FY22 (%) FY21 (%
Total 30 66 4,886
Male 24 80 85 42 64 82 2,604 53 50
Female 6 20 15 24 36 18 2,282 &7 50
Serior Management 1s the Group Executive Commitiee ana Direct Reparts
» Operatonal Management 1s gefined as divisional management at Group level and the most senior managers in the Croap's
operating busimesscs.
Other ESG KPIs
2025
2021 2022 Target
Qur Planet
1SO 14001 accreditations? €1% 63% 80%
Energy audits? 13% 23% 80%
Company cars (EV/hybrid) 19% 26% 50%
Our People
ISO45001 accreditations® 6% 5% B80%
H&S Representatives® 1.52 138 150
Staff Turnover 10% 13% <15%
Qur Products
1SO2001 accreditations’ 88% 95% 80%

Al of the 2021 figures are restated so as 1o exclude Acal BF and Vertec SA [now solal

2 Measdrea as a 3% of Group rovenaes generatea by operations with a 15014007 accreditation.

s MeasJdred as a % of the number of the Group's sites that have haa an energy audit since 2017

+ Measdrea as the % of the Group's company cars that are electric or hybrig

Measureo asthe % of the Group's employecs that work in operations covered by an 1SO45001 occupational health & safety management
systerm. Whuie no new accreditations were completed in the year, a number are underway and expect to be completed dunng 2023

» Measurad as the proportion of health & safety representatives ta the overall number of employees

« Measured as a % of Group revenues generated by operations with a ISO9001 accreaitation

Rosalind Kainyah
Chair of Sustainability Committee

14 June 2022



STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Stakeholder engagement

The Group considers it important to engage with our various stakeholder groups in a proactive and
constructive manner and the below provides a summary of the ways in which we do so.

Why it is important to engage

Our people

Ermployee engagement is critical
to our success. We work to create
a diverse and inclusive workplace
whaore employees can reach their
full potential Engaging with our

employees ensures we can retain
and develop the best talent.

Stakeholder key interests

Heaith and safety

Roward

Carcer opportunities
Employee engagement
Training and development
Wellbeing

Reputation

Ways we engage

Annual performance evaluzations
Employee surveys

Employee meetings

Workforce advisory panel
Nowsletters

Employee events
Apprenticeship programme

Recognition and reward

Our companies

We operate in a decentralised
model where our companies

are empowered to innovate and
grow, and decision-making takes
place in the frontline and close to
customars. Qur companies are key
stakeholders of the Group and are
vital for cur growth strategy.

Operational and financial
performance

International expansicn
Capital investmant
Collaboration

Quarterly business reviews
Regular site visits
Company management forums

Support in specialist areas, such as
tax, legal and commercial

Sustainability workshops

Customers

Understanaing the needs of our
customers allows us to provide
application-specific products
which both add value and
differentiate our customers from
their competitors. We engage with
our custamers to build trusting
relationships frorn which we can
mutually benefit.

Safety, quality and reliability
Competitivenegss

Our availability and
responsiveness

Relationship
Compliance
Convenience

Range of products

Customer visits, telephone calls,
engineering visits

Participation in industry forums
and events

Social media and commercial
websites

Contract negotiation,
implementation and
management of ongoing
relationships

Customer audits of our
manufacturing facilities
Customer-specific cvents
Geographical footprint allows us tc
meet customers in their locations

Satisfaction surveys




STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Why it is important to engage Stakeholder key interests Ways we engage
Suppliers s Quality management s Joint customer visits
Our external supply chain and s Cost-efficiency « Supplier audits
cur suppliers are critical to our s« Long-term relaticnships = Employee training
performance. We engage with s Responsibic procurement, » Quartery business reviews

g lors il tr i ; ) .
OI’:r:.quhlp ’;O ou ldht_l ::ng trust and ethics = Geographical footprint allows
relationships r(?m which we can Technological advances, smalier suppliers to operate
mutually benefit and to ensure : : . o

including digital soiutions glcbally

that they are performing to

our standards and conducting ¢ Logistics efficiencies

business to our expectations. = Supptier conferences
Shareholders s Grow:n = Regular market updates

To understand their requirements s fFirancial performance and = [nvestor presentations

and generate returns and valuc. We econemicimpact « Individual meetings

ensure that we provide fair, balanced s Governunce and transparency o |mvestor roadshows

and understandable information = Operating and f nancial = Corporate website, including

to sharcholders and investment imforrmation
analysts and work to ensure that . .

. Conf'dence in the Croup's ;
thoy have a strong understanding leadershio F = Shareholder consultations
of our strategy, performance, cuiture AR = Annual reports
and ambition. * Dwvigend growth s Annual Genaral Meetings

dedicated investor section

» Capital Markets Days

Global communities » Local operational impact = Charitable donations and

» Health and safety and velunteering
environmental performance s Corporate and cperating
company websites

We support communities and
groups local and relevant to our
operations and consider the
environmental and social impacts s Local cnvircnmental initiatives
of our operations.




The Group promotes policies and procedures across
the Group which consider the interests of the Group's
employees, the need to foster reascnable business
relationships with suppliers, custorners and others,
the impact of the Group's operations on its workforce,
the community and the environment, and the
maintenance of high standards of business eonduct.
Our policies and procedures include the following:

= Anti-bribery and corruption

= Business ethics

» Health and safety

s Whistleblowing

» Board Diversity Policy

s Supplier Code of Conduct

= Conflict Minerals Policy

s Environmental Policy

« Human Rights Policy

s Group Tax Strategy

Day-to-day responsibility for implementation of
these policics {other than the Board Diversity Policy)
is delegated to the managerment of discoverlE's
operating companies, under the supervision of the
Group Executive Committee. Where appropriate,
the Group paolicies and procedures are supported
by the local operating companies’ policies, all within
a framework established by the Board and Group

Exccutive Committee, intended to ensure that we
operate as a Group to the highest standards.

© The Group also has due difigence processes in

" place to support the ongoing assgssment and
management of risks associated with both existing

~ and newly acquired companics and the deveiopment
of relationships with new suppliers.

" These include site visits by both executive and nan-
executive management, meetings with customers
and suppliers and, where relevant, asking our
suppliers to confirm complance with Group policies.

. Management arc committed 1o environmental, social
i and governance affairs in its actions, and endeavours
to show due respect for human rights and works to
high standards of integrity and ethical propricty.

i As an international organisation, discover|E takes

| account of cultural differences between the various
territories in which it operates. discoverl|E's values
arc cssential to how it operates and to the long-term
success and growth of the Group.

discoverlE belicves that who we are and how we
behave matters not only to our employees but the
! many other stakeholders who have an interest in
our business. None of the Croup's staff have been

i disciplined or dismissed for any matter in relation
tc anti-bribery, corruption or whistleblowing in the
current year or any of the last three fiscal years

Stakeholder engagement remains vital to building

| asustainable business and we interact with many

| stakehciders at different levels of the Group.
Engagement is carried out by those most relevant to
| the stakeholder group or issue. The table on pages 75
and 76 identifies some of our stakeholders and how
discoverlE engages with them




NON-FINANCIAL
INFORMATION STATEMENT

In accordance with sections 414CA and 414CB of the Companies Act 2006, we have
set out below where the relevant non-financial information we need to report against
can be found in this Annual Report:

Environmental
matters

Please see our Sustainahility Renort on pages 60 to 74 and pages 66 (0 69 in particular
(Our Planet, including our TCFD Report).

Please see climate-related risks and opportunitics on pages 46 to 50 (which includes
TCFD scenario analysis) and on page 55.

Please see pages 42 1o 46 for our general approach 1o risk management and page

64 for a summary of our governance frarmewacrk reiating to sustainability matters

and climate-related risks in particular. These governance arrangements fit within

our broader governance framework, for which please see our Corporate Covernance
Report on pages 86 to 96.

Employee matters

Please sec pages 70 and 71 (Qur People), 75 (Stakeholder engagement  Qur people},
80 (Section 172 statement) and 20 (Employee engagement).

Social matters

Please see pages 76 and 77.

Human Rights

Please see pages 65,77 and 121

Anti-bribery and
carruption matters

Plcase see page 65 [Anti-Bribery & Corruption Policy and Whistleblowing Policy).
Please also see pages 77, 91,98 and 100.

Business Modoel

Please see pages 14 and 15 for Our Business Model,

Please see pages 16 and 17 for our target markets, pages 18 to 23 for a summary
of our strategy ard pages 4 to 7 for a surmmary o the Group

Poiicies

The following codes, policies and standards can be found at our Group website

fwww.discoverieplc.comy):
Whistleblowing Policy

- Anti-bribery Policy

- Meodern Slavery Staternent

- Group Tax Strategy
Board Diversity Policy
Supplier Code of Conduct

- Conflict Minerals Policy

- Environmental Policy
Human Rights Policy

Qutcome
of Policies

The above policies contribute to the overall governance framoework cf the Group,
providing common standards that operating companies and suppliers must obsecrve.
The Group has a praven, flexible and resilient business model, as demonstrated by its
strong financial performance over several years. These are underpinned by the Group's
governance arrangements in general, inciuding the Policies summarised above.

The Group has good relations with its various stakeholders, including staff, customers
and suppliers. The above Policies heip support those relations.

Brincipal risks

Where principal risks have been identified in relation to any of the matters listed
above, these can be found cn pages 54 to 59.

Non-Financial KPls

Our non-financia! key performance indicators are set out on pages 73 and 74.




SECTION 172 STATEMENT

The Board of discoverlE Group plc takes
seriously its duties to act in accordance
with legal requirements and appropriate
business and ethical standards. This
includes fulfilling the duties described in
Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006
{the “Act’}.

Section 172

Duty to promote the success of the company
Adirector of a company must act in the way they
consider, in good faith, would be most likely to
promote the success of the company for the benefit

| = The interests of the company’s employecs;
s The need to foster the company's business

relationships with supplicrs, customers and others;

. & The impact of the company's operations on the

community and environment,

= [he drsirability of the company mantaming

a reputation for nigh standards of business
conduct; and

a The need to act fairly as between members of the

carmpany.

The information below describes how the Dircctors
i have had regarcd to the matters referred to in
i Section 172 of the Act in performing thelr duties and

of its members as a whole, and in doing so have

regard (amongst othar matters) to:

v The likely conscquences of any decision in the

long term;

Section 172 of the Companies
Act 2006 (the “Act"™)

constitutes the Board's Section 172 Statement for the
year ended 31 March 2022 This section is iIncorporated
i by reference into the Strategic Report.

The discoverlE Board’s response

Long-term decision-making
(s.172(a})

The Board delegates day-to-day
management gnd decision-
making to its senicr management
tecam, but it Maintains oversight
of the Company's performance,
and reserves o jtself specific
matters for approval, including the
strategic direction of the Group,
acquisitions and dispesals and
entering into material contracts
above set thresholas.

The Board monitors performance
against strategy and that decision-
making is appropriate by receiving
regular updates, both in Board and
Committee mactings and at other
intervals as appropriate.

Processes arc in place teo ensure
that the Board receives all relevant
information to enable it to make
well-judged decisions for the long-
term success of the Company and
its various stakoholders.

In FY 2021/22, the Board:

Established a now Sustainability Committee {with effect from

1 Aprit 2022). This new Committee will have dedicated responsibility for
considering the Group's response to ESGC matters and to sustainability in
general,

Considered a number of acquisition proposals. The Board only approves
such a transaction if itis satisfied, after full consideration, that it meets
the Section 172{1} requirement that it is most like'y to promote the
success of the Company for the benefit of its members as a whole,

and it considers the value forecasted to be added to the Croup by an
acqguisition, over a defined future period. This judgement is recorded.

The Board also considered the disposals of Acal BF and Vertec SA, each
of which were approved and completed during the vear.

Received presentations on specific business areas and, through
ongoing discussion with the business ieaders, determined strategic
pricrities for a threc-year peried, and the development of robust
supporting cperating plans.

Agreed the Group's principal risks, considered emerging risks and
received regular risk management and internal control reviews
throughout the year, including specific consideration of risks arising
from the Covid outbreak and Russia/Ukraine conflict.

Set annual budgets and capital aliocation and oversaw business
performance against targets, enabling the Board to confirm the
Company's outlook for the year ahcad, the going concern statement
and its longer-term viability.




SECTION 172 STATEMENT

Section 172 of the Companies
Act 2006 (the “Act"™)

The discoverlE Board's response

Employee Interests
(s. 172(b}}

The success of the Group
depends upon a highly-skilied
and motivated workforce, an
cntrepreneurial and innovative
culture, set within structures that
provide fairness for aii.

In FY 2021/22, the Board:

Received updates on how Covid was affecting staff and the measures
being implemented within hiisinesses to minimise the risk of the
pandemic spreading across the workforce, including working from
home where possible.

Continued to operate a Workforce Advisory Panel, to ensure that the
communications between the Beard, Group Executive Committee,
individual operating companies and Group staff were optimised.

Reviewed Board and Senicr Managament diversity and succession,
remuneration and employment relations and arrangements across
the Group.

Relations with external parties
(s. 172{c)}

The Group works with a huge
number and variety of customers
suppliers and other third parties.
It is of great importance that
relations with those parties are
appropriate.

In FY 2021/22:

Noting the continuing pressure that businesses have been under
during the Covid pandemic, the Board ensured that suppliers
continued to be paid on time and that the Croup continued to serve
our customers effectively.

The Board regularly considered the marketplaces within which

the Croup's customoers operate and the challenges they face, and
opportunitics available. This helped shape the way in which resources
were allocated in order to ensure that the Group was well positioned to
meet customer needs.

Community & Environment
(s.172(d}}

Wherever tne Group operates, it
forms a part of its local community
and more broadly, seeks to

cnsure that it provides a positive
contribution te the environment.

During the year:

The Board continued its focus on environmental, social and governance
matters and, in particular, established a new Sustainability Committee,
further details of which can be found in the Sustainability Report on
pages 60 to 74.

The Board also continued its support for the Cormmunity Foundation
for Surrey.

Reputation for high standards
of business conduct (s.172{e))

The Board is responsible for
devecloping a corparate culture
across the Croup that promotes
integrity and transparency. It

has established comprehensive
systems of corporate governance
which promote corporate
responsibility and ethical
behaviour.

In FY 2021/22:

The Board received regular reports from the Group Risk Manager
designed to strengthen governance and compliance, integration of
now and recent acguisitions into the Group, and the identification and
management of existing and emerging risks.

The Board had updates and training on key arcas of law and regulation.

The Board approved the Company's Modern Slavery ACt Statement.




Section 172 of the Companies
Act 2006 {the “Act”}

The discoverlE Board's response

Acting fairly as between members
of the Company (s.172(f))

The Board aims to understand the
views ul shareholders and always
tc act in their best interests.

In order to do this the Board:

Maintains close relations with its main shareholders through regular
dialogue, both after the publication of fulll-year and half ycar results.

Approved value-enhancing acquisitions, CPI in May 2021, Antenova in
August 2021 and Beacon in September 2021,

Receives Investor Relations updates at every Board meeting and direct
feedback from investors during specific consultation exercises and ¢n
publication of trading results and updates.

Other key activities

s The Board mct regulariy throughout the year and, in the year ended 31 March 2022, held nine meetings.
The Board's agenda considers all relovant matters at scheduled meetings.

= As part of its regular programme of Board activities, the Board also receives reports from the Group Chief
Executive, the Group Finance Director and the Group General Counsel & Company Secretary, keeping them
informed as to financiai and commercia! performance and regulatory and legal affairs.

The Strategic Report, as set cut on pages 02 to 81, has been approved by the Board.

On behalf of the Board

Nick Jefferies Simon Gibbins
Group Chief Executive Croup Finance Director
14 June 2022 14 June 2022




THE BOARD

Malcolm Piamond MBE
i Non-Executive Chairman

POG

Appointment to

i the Board

! Chairman since Aprit 2017,
i Non-Executive Director
since Novernber 2015

i Tenure
i bycars

Independent
i Yes

i Previous experience

! Malcolm brings

i considerable commercial

" and international

. business experience

. to the Board, as well as

¢ City investor knowiledge
and expertise, Prior to

" joining the Board, he was

_ Executive Chairman and

- Chief Executive of Trifast
plc and, among other

. previous appointments,

. was Senior Non-Executive
Director of Dechra

i Pharmaceuticals Plc and

. a Non-Executive Director

of Unicorn AIM VCT plc.

i External appointments
" None.

Nick Jefferies
Group Chief Executive

OME

Appointment to
the Board
January 2009

Tenure
13 years

Independent
No

Previous experience
Nick joined discoverlE as
Croup Chief Executive
in 2009. He started his
career as an electronics
engincer for Racal
Cefence (now part

of Thales plc), before
joining Toshiba and
then Hitachi's European
electronic component
businesses. Pricr to
discoveriE, he was
General Manager for
electronics globally at
Electrocomponents plc.

External appointments
None.

Simon Gibbins
Group Finance Director

©®

Appointment to
the Board

July 2010

Tenure
Nvears

Independent
No

Previous experience
Simon brings significant
financial expertise and
experience gained at an
nternational level. Pricr
to joining the Croup, he
was at Shire plc for nine
years, latterly as Global
Head of Finance and
Deputy CFO, and at IC!
pic for six years in various
senior finance roles, noth
in the UK and overscas.
His earlior carcer was
spent with Coopers

& Lybrand where he
qualified as a chartered
accountant.

External appeointments
None.

Tracey Graham
Non-Executive Director

SIOIR IO,

Appointment to
the Board
November 2015

Tenure
bt years

Independent
Yes

Previous experience
Tracey brings significant
operaticnal expertise to
the Board. During her
executive career, Tracey
was Chief Executive

of Tataris Limited and
Managing Director of

De | a Ruc Cash Systems
Prior to that she was
President of Sequoia
Voting Systems, Customer
Services Dircctor at AXA
Insurance and held senior
pos tiorns at HSBC.

External appointments
Non-Executive Dirccter

of Link Scheme Limited,
Senior independent
Director of Ibstock plc, and
Non-Executive Director of
Close Brothers Group plc.



Committee membership

(A) Audit and Risk Committee (G) Group Executive Committee (N} Nomination Comrmittee

@ Remuneration Cormmittee @ Sustainability Committee

. Chairman of the Committee

Bruce Thompson
Senior Independent
Director

@WORE

Appointment to

the Board

Senior Independent
Director since March 2019,
Non-Executive Director
since February 2018

Tenure
4 years

Independent
Yes

Previous experience
Bruce brings a wide
range of strategic and
leadership expertise te
the Board with proven
experience of growing
international industrial
businesses. During his
executive carcer, Bruce
was Chief Executive
Officer of Diploma ple.
Prior to joining Diploma,
Bruce was a director
with the technology and
managcement consulting
firm Arthur D. Little Inc,,
both in the UK and the
USA.

External appcintments
Non-Executive Director
and Chair of Avon
Protect'on plc.

Clive Watson
Non-Executive Director

A JOINO)

Appointment to
the Board
September 2019

Tenure
2 years

Independent
Yes

Previous experience
Clive is a Chartered
Accountant and brings
wide-ranging experience
in senior financial

roles to the Board.

Prior to retirement
from executive roles,

he spent almost 13
years as Group Finance
Director of Spectris ple,
having previously held a
number of other senior
finance positions both
inthe UK and overseas.
He also served as Senior
Independent Direclor
and Audit Committeo
Chairman of Spirax-
Sarco Fngmeenng plc.

External appointments
Non-Executive Director
of Breedon Group plc,
Non-Exccutive Director
of Kier Group plc and
Non-Executive Director
of Irifast plc.

Rosalind Kainyah
Non-Executive Director

BORO

Appointment to the
Board
January 2022

Tenure
6 maonths

independent
Yes

Previous experience
Rosalind has extensive
cxperience in
sustainability matters
and currently runs

Kina Advisory, an ESG
consultancy. Previously,
she was VP, External
Affairs & Corporate Sccial
Responsibility at Tullow
Oiland held various roles
at De Beers SA, latterly
as President of De Beors
Inc. in the USA.

External appointments
Non-Executive Director
of GEM Diamonds Ltd
and Non-Exccutive
Director of CalBank plc.

Greg Davidson
Group General Counsel
& Company Secretary

©

Appointment
November 2019

Tenure
N/A

Independent
No

Previous experience
Creg joined discoverlE

in November 2012

and is respensibic for
legal and company
secretarial affairs. He is

a qualified lawyer with
oxtensive experience of
technology, corporate
and commercial matters.
His experience includes
five years at Wiggin & Co
LLP, with clients focuscd
predominantly in the
technology sector and,
prior to joining discoverlE,
16 years at RM plc, with
seven years as Cenerat
Counsel! & Company
Secretary.

External appointments
Nohe.



THE GROUP
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Nick Jefferies Simon Gibbins Greg Davidson
Group Chief Executive Group Finance Director  Group General Counsel
& Company Secretary
0 For biography see 0 For biegraphy see O For biography see
page 82 page 82 pagc 83

Jeremy Morcom Martin Pangels Paul Hill
Group Head of Corporate Group Commercial Group Commercial
Development Director - Magnetics & Director - Sensing &
Controls Division Connectivity Division
Jerermy was appointed Martin joined discoverlk in Paul joined the Group
Group Head of Corporate July 2010 after working as  Executive Committee
Develppment in March an advisor to the business.  in December 2021. Paul
2017, A physicist by Prior to joining discoverlE, joined from Antenova,
background, he has over he spent nine years at one of the Group's latest
25 years' experience in Electrocomponents plc, acquisitions, where he was
industrial mergers and where he was Regional Chief Executive Officer.
acquisitions, initially in General Manager for Hawving started his career
investment banking and Europe, and six years with  in electronics engineering,
then in industry, leading Bain & Company as a Paul has worked in
the corporate development strategy consultant. electronic components
programmes at Spectris and smart card systems,
pic and Invensys plc. and held senior operat:onai

and beard roles in both
hardware and software
companies.
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“The Group's
governance
structures aim to
meet the societal
and environmental
challenges of today
whilst positioning
us for continued
growth.”

Malcolm Diamond MBE
Chairman

Chairman’'s Governance
Overview

discoverlk is a strong business,
with a clear purpose and set of
values. This is underpinned by a
governance structure that enables
the Group's long-term objectives
tQ be met.

The Group's perfarmance over the
last year was underpinned by our
governance arrangements.

These structures help ensure wo
are well positionad for continued
growth and to meet the social and
environmental challenges facing
the world today.

Malcolm Diamond MBE
14 June 2022




Compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code 2018

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Cempany complied with the UK Corporate Governance Code 2018
{the "Code’), with the exception of provision 38 (alignment of pensions) which, in accordance with guidance,
the Company will comply with fram Y January 2023,

Section Progress made Further Information

Board Leadership The Board leads from the front in setting the tone for the 0 Read more on

:"d Company business and has established a clear purpose, set of values pages 88 to 91
urpose

and strategy, taking into account the interests of our various
stakcholders. The right resources, structures and processes are
in place to ensure that these are then implemented properly
throughout the Group.

Division of The respective roles and responsibilitios of the Executive and O Read more on
Responsibilities Non-Executive Dircctors are clear and consistently applied, pages 92 and 93
providing for constructive and effective dialogue and clear
accountability.

Composition, The Board has a healthy balance of skilis, knowlcdge and O Read more ¢on
Succession and experience and the appointment process is rigorous and pages 94 and 95
Evaluation

carefutly applied. Annual evaluations keep the cffectiveness of
the Board and its Committees under regular review to cnsure
this remains the case. During the year ended 31 March 2022, an
externally facilitated evaluation of the Board and its Commiittees
was completed.

Audit, Risk and The Board has established clear processes and orocedures o Read more on
Internal control to ensure that risks are carefully identified, monitored and page 96
mitigated against and then reported externally in an cpen and
transparent manner. This helps ensure that the Company's
financial statements are fair, balanced and understanaable.
Effective risk management is critical to achieving our strategy.

Remuneration Remuneration supports the Company’s strategy and is O Read more on
appropriate to the nature and size of the business. The page 96
Board has clear processes in place and aims to reportin a
straightforward and easy to understand way, with a view to
providing external stakeholders with reassurance that pay,
performance and wider intcrests are aligned.
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Board Leadership and Company Purpose
Current composition and changes to the

Board in the year

Details of the current membpers of the Board arc set
out on pages 82 and 83.

In the prior year, it was identified that the Board would
benefit from additional FSO experience. As such,
Rosalind Kainyah was appeinted to the Beard during
the year ended 31 March 2022 Bruce Thompsen is
Senior Independent Director, Tracey Graham is Chair
of the Remuneration Committee and Clive Watson is
Chair of the Audit and Risk Committee.

All of the Non-Executive Directors have considerable
expertise in their respective roles.

. Section 172 Statement
* The Board takes seriously all of its duties, including

those set out in section 172 of the Companics Act
2006, The statement required by scection 172{1)
explaining how it has taken those duties into account
can be found on pages 79 to 81

~ Stakeholder engagement
- We engage proactively with our stakeholder groups.

o Read more on pages 75 to 77

| Sustainability

© Provision 1 of the Code deals with the Company

. generating value over the long term in the context
of future risks and opporiun ties Tris s addressed
in the Sustainability Report and in the Risk

| Management section.

0 Read more on pages 60 to 74

0 Read more on pages 4210 59




Good governance
Following the introduction of the new Cade in 2018, the Board reviewed the Group's governance frameoworks
and its purpose, culture and values.

Our Purpose:

To create innovative clectrenics that he!p to improve the world and poople’s lives.

Values and Culture
Values

® 10 Opcrate with the highest ethical standards
and integrity

= To strive for the highest performance
standards, nat accepting of mediocrity

= To support the protection of the environment
through our products and solutions while
minimising our direct environmental impact

v To be aresponsible employer, with a safe
working environment

» To respect, cmpower, engage and develop our
employees in an entrepreneurial environment

» To add value and be a trusted partner to
customers, suppliers and shareholders

Culture
» Honcest, reliable and trusting

a Decentralised decision-making close to the
customer

» Open, constructive communication and
willingness to listen

= Non-political, non-pureaucratic

= Performance, target and results driven

Vision:
To be a leading innovator in electronics
intarnationaily.

Mission;

To design and supply innovative customised
etectronics that help our customers create ever
better technical solutions around the world.
We aim to achieve this through a motivated,
entrepreneurial and ecmpowered workforce
that adheres to the highest ethical and quality
standards.

[n doing so we expect to create value for
shareholders, while being seen as an attractive
ana responsible emmployer and a trusted partrer
for customers and suppliers.

Strategy:

To grow our business in customised electronics
by focusing on markets with sustained growth
prospects, driven by an increcas’ng electronic
content and where there is an essential need
for our prod.icts.

Strategic Priorities:

This strategy comprises the following priorities:

w Crow sales weil ahead of CDP over the
economic cycle by focusing on structural
growth markets

» Move up the value chain into higher margin
products

» Acqguire businesses with attractive growth
markets and strong cperating margins

x Furthor internationalise the business by
developing sales in North America and Asia

r Generate strong cash flows and sustainable
returns while reducing impact on the
environment

Progress against our objectives is measured
through our key strategic inaicators (KSIs) and
key performance indicators [KPIs) . Details are set
out on pages 24 and 25,
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Employee Engagement

A high-guality workforce is vital to the success of the
Croup. There arc a range of employee engagement
initiatives in place across the Group and thesc include
the following:

= Warks Councils and staff representative meetngs
= EFmployse meetings

= Quarterly performance updates

= Staff surveys

s Social and team-building events

» Health & wellbeing reviews

n Workforce Advisory Panei

Since 2009, s part of its annuai calendar the

Board visits the Group's operating sites, meeting
management and employees directly.

: The Board aims to visit as much of the Group as
. possible, visiting facilities in a variety of locations
" internationally. The Board gains a2 decper

understanding of the business, local complexities,

working conditions, the level of skills and cxpertise

' in ecach facility, the concerns and aspirations of staff,
and any issucs that the lgadership or staff may wish to
: discuss with the Board.

! The purpose of the Workforce Advisary Panel is to
. ensure that the "employee voice” is heard, that the
" Board is aware of any issues or concerns that staff

may have and to ensure that their views are taken

" into account and influence the Board's decision-
© making, where appropriate. This helps the Board to
' monitor and assess the culture of the organisation.

. A number of operational changes have already

. been implemented as a result of the interaction. In

in 2017, the Board visited Flux (Copenhageny), in

2018 the Board visited Myrra and Noratel {both in
China) and, in 2019, the Board visited Cursor Controls
(Newark, UK}, Lockdown restrictions meant that
Board visits were not possible during 2020 and 2021
but now that they have eased the Board will be
visiting Variochm (in the UK) later this year and will
schedule similar visits for future years.

© the coming year, it is intended that this will include
" increased collaboration between different businesses
. within the Group.

Time Allocation, Board and Committee Meetings and Attendance
During the year, attendance by Directors at Board and Cormmittee meetings was as foliows:

Committees

Director Board Audit and Risk Remuneration Nomination Qverall Attendance %
Malcolm Diamend 9/9 3/3 5/5 2/2 10C%
Simon Gibbins 9/9 - - 100%
Tracey Graham 9/9 3/3 5/5 2/2 100%
Nick Jefferies 9/9 - 2/2 100%
Rosalinc Kainyah- 2/2 1/1 2/7 100%
Bruce Thornpson 9/9 3/3 5/5 2/2 100%
Clive Watson 9/9 3/3 5/5 2/2 100%

Appointed T January 2022

Time is provided at the start and the end of each meeting for the Chairman to meet privately with the Senior
independeaent Director and Non-Executive Directors. The Board's commitments arc taken into account in
the preparation and planning of meetings to cnsure that ail Birectors are able to allocate sufficient time to

discharge their responsibilities.

Board approval is required pricr te any Director accepting any cxternal appointments.



Board activities

Topic

Key activities and discussions in 2021/22

Key priorities in 2022/23

Strategy

Oversaw the Group's continuing response to Covid
Reviewed and approved the acguisitions of CP|,
Antencva and Beacon

Reviewed and approved the dispusdls of Acal BH
and Vertec SA

Reviewed key strategic indicators ["KSIs") and key
performance indicators ("KPIs")

= Consider acguisitions as identified
and determine the appropriate
course of action

= Keep KSIs and KRIs under review
« Keep the Group's dividend policy
under review

=« Continue to focus on international
growth in key markets, including
expansion into North America

Risk and risk
management

Carried out robust assessment of principal and
emerging risks (see pages 54 to 59)

Considered the Group's oxposure to climate related
and other ESG risks

Conducted a fresh risk assessment of anti-bribery
and corruption risks and updated the Croup’s Anti-
Bribery Policy

Reviewed internal audit reports and actions taken
to address findings igdentified

» Revicw key risks and ensure
that the Group's internal control
process remains appropriate

Governance

Established a new Sustainability Committee
{formally taking effect from 1 April 2022)
Centinued focus on the composition, balance and
effectiveness of the Board

Considered and approved a range cf supplier-
focused Group Policies

Signed off and puolished the Group’s modern
slavery statement

Evaluated supply chain risks, cspecially in the
context of global supply chain challenges and the
conflict in Ukraine

Engagad with institutiona! shareholaers, investors
and other stakeholders throughout the year
Reviewed and approved the FY 2020/21

Annual Report

» Build further understanding and
plan actions in relation to new
regulations over the period

Organisational
capacity

Monitored health and safety performance across
the Group. Regular Board updates received on
actions improving health and safoty

Received presentations by senior management
including on M&A strategy

» Continue to monitor health
and safety perforrnance across
the Group

» Consideration of the Group’s
capacily as it continues to grow

Board
development

Continued focus on the composition, balance and
cffcctiveness of the Board

Reviewed Board and Committec composition and
discussed and acted on the recommendations of
the Nomination Committee

Undertook an externally facilitated evaluation of
the Beard, its Committees and individual Directors

= Focus on increasing diversity
both far the Board and across
the Group more generally
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Division of Responsibilities

discoverlE is led by a strong and experienced
Board with a broad range of skills, experience and
knowledge.

Throughout the year under review, the Board
consisted of Malcolm Diamond as Non-Executive
Chairman, Iracey Graham, Rosalind Kainyah
(appointed 1Jdanuary 2022}, Bruce Thompson and
Clive Watson as Non-Executive Directors, with Nick
Jefferies as Group Chief Executive and Simon Gibbins
as Group Finance Director.

The compesition of the Board is kept under review
by the Nomination Cornmittee on an annual basis.
Following the Group's ontry to the FTSE250 during
the year, it was decided that an additional Non-
Executive Director should be added to the Board,
with the relevant appointee bringing specific ESG
expertise to the Board. Accordingly, Rosalind Kainyah

was recruited and joined the Board on 1 January 2022

The Nominaticn Committee considers the size and
composition of the Board to be appropriate to the
Group's business and strategy but would continue to
penefit from increased diversity.

The Non-Executive Directors constructively challenge
management proposals where appropriate and
carefully monitor management perfoermance and
reporting on an ongoing basis. The Company has
both a Chairman and a Group Chief Executive.

There is a clear division of responsitilities, which has
becn agreed py the Board, and a summary of their
respective roles is described below,

Role of the Chairman
s Responsible for leading the Board, which includes
tne operation of the Beard's overall procedures.

« Providing a forum for constructive discussion and
ansuring rcceipt of clear and timely information.

= Overseeing Corporate Governance matters.
= | cading the performance evaluations of the Group

Chief Executive, the Non-Executive Directors and
the Beard.

The Chairman, in conjunction with the Group
Company Secretary, ensures that Directors receive a
full, formal and tailored induction to the Group and
ongoing training as relevant.

. Role of the Group Chief Executive
# Leading the development and implementation of

the Group's strategy.

« Communicating with shareholders and ather

stakeholders.

» Respons.ble for the day-to-day management of the

Group's businesses and reporting on their progress
to the Board.

.« Leading the Group Exccutive Committee.

The Group Chief Executive is assisted in mecting his
i responsibilities by the Group Executive Commitiec.

| Role of the Board
. & Sctting the long-term objectives and commercial

strategy.

s Oversight of the management of discoverlE.

| Review of the KS!s and KPIs.

= Roview of acquisitions and corporate transactions.
s Recommending or declaring dividends.

" a Approval of financial statements, business plans,

financing and treasury matters.

s Approval of major capital expenditure and

commitments.

" w Maintaining sound internal controls and risk

management systems.

" w Review of the Group's overall corporate governance.

" w Any litigation of a material nature.

. As set out on the following page, certain matters are
' delegated to the Group Executive Committee and to
© the Audit and Risk, Remuncration, Nomination and

| Sustainability Commitiees



Governance framework

The Board
Chaired by Malcolm Diamond

Meets a minimum of six times a year.

Accountable to shareholders for the long-term success of the Group This is achieved via a clear division
ot responsipilities between the Chairman and Group Chief Executive, the setting of strategic aims and

ensuring that the necessary resources are in place.

Nomination Committee

Chaired by Maicolm Diamond

The Nomination Committee regularly reviews
the structure, size and composition of the Board
and its Committees. It identifics and nominates
suitable candidates to be appointed to the
Board (subject to Board approval) and considers
diversity, culture, talent and succession generally.

O Further information on the Nomination
Committee is on pages 104 to 105

Audit and Risk Committee

Chaired by Clive Watson

The Audit and Risk Committee has responsikility
for overseeing and monitoring the Group's
financial staternents, accounting processes, audit
processes (internal and external), and contrals.

£ Further information on the Audit and Risk
Committee is on pages 97 to 103

Remuneration Committee

Chaired by Tracey Graham

The Remuneraticn Committee reviews and
recommends to the Board the framework and
policy for the remuneration of the Chairman,
the Executive Directors and the Croup Executive
Committee.

The Committee ensuras that the remuncration
policy of the Group reflects the Group's strategy.

O Further infermation on the Remuneration
Committee is on pages 109 to 132

Sustainability Committee

Chaired by Rosalind Kainyah

The Sustainability Committee reviews the
Group's ESG plans and arrangements, seeking
to align with best practice and underpinning
the long-term sustainability of the Group.

0 Further information on the Sustainability
Committee is on pages 60 to 74

Group Executive Committee

The Group Executive Committee comprises: Nick Jefferies, who is the Chairrman of the Committee, together
with Simon Gibbins, Greg Davidson, wha is also the Secretary, Jeromy Morcom, Paul Hill and Martin Pangels.

The Committee typically meets 6- 7 times a year and is responsible for the Croup's day-to-day cperations,
for delivering results, and for driving growth and ensuring this is done in a sustainable and ethical manner.
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Composition, succession and evaluation

Current Composition

The biographies of the current members of the Board
are set out on pages 82 and 83

Work of the Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committec Report, which can be
found on pages 104 t0 105, describes the work of the
Nomrination Committee in ensuring that the Board
continues ta have the right mix of skills, knowledge
and experience, and the process for ensuring that
there is an effective process in place for succession
planning. As noted in last year's Nemination
Committee Report, the Board considerad that steps
shou'd be taken to improve the diversity of the
Board and wider Group. During the year, Rosalind
Kainyah was appointed to the Board and the Board
has adopted a revised Board Diversity Policy which
includes targeting @ minimum 40% female board
representation (see www.discoverlEplc.com for maore
detatls).

Independence

The indepcndence of the Non-Executive Directors
is reviewed annually. The Board considers that the
Non-Executive Directors bring strong independent

oversight and continue to demonstrate independence.

The Board recognises the recommended term for
Non-Executive Directors as set out in the Code and is
mindful of the need for suitable succession.

Bruce Thompson is the Scenior independent Director
and is available to shareholders should they have
concerns that cannot be resolved through other
channels. Following Malcolm Diamond's retirement
later in the year on 1 Novermber 2022, Bruce
Thompson will beccome Chairman and Tracey Graham
will become Senicr Independent Director.

Induction

All new Directors receive induction training an joining
the Board and are expected to regularly update and
refresh their skills and knowledge, with the Company
providing the nocessary resources, as required.

The induction programmc includes mesting with
the Group's senior managernent and visits to key
locations, as well as a comprehensive briefing pack.

Board composition
Gender diversity

Female {2)

%
29%
Male (5)

71%

" Independence

Executive (2)

29%

' Non-executive {5)
7%
71%

Board tenure

. <1 year (1}

14%

. >1year (6)

86%

Ethnic diversity

Mixed/
i multiple ethnic group {1)

14%

White (6)

; 86%



Evaluation

In accordance with the Code, the Board and each
of its Commiittees undertakes an avaluation each
financial year. During the year ended 31 March 2022,
the Company engaged Independent Audit Lid, a
global lcader in Board evaluation processes, to lead
an externally-facilitated roviow of the Board and its
Cormmittees. The Company has no other reiationship
with Independent Audit. An externaliy facilitated
review will be conducted at least every three

years. A summary of the process and findings are
provided below.

- Summary of the 2022

Board evaluation

Step 1

An online guesticnnaire assessing the
performance of the Board and each of its
Committees was created by the external
facilitator. This was circulated to alt members of
the Board and the respective Committees, along
with regular internal and external attendees at
meetings of the Board and cach Committee.
Responses to those guestionnaires were
submitted online to the external facilitator.

Step 2
Two observers from the external facilitator attended
a mecting of the Beoard and each Committee.

Step 3

The external facilitator prepared a preliminary
report, summarising both the responses
received to the guestionnaires, as well as the
observations made by the attendees at the
Board and Committec moetings. A meeting was
then scheduled with the Chairman and Group
Company Secretary to discuss that report.

Board composition
The composition of the Board was positively
rated but diversity and succession planning
should be improved.

Board's expertise

The Board’s understanding of the views and
requirements of major investors and other
stakeholders was rated positively.

Board dynamics

The interaction among and between Board
members was rated highly, with there being a
positive atmosphere and strong relationships,
set in the context of proper and constructive
challenge.

Management of meetings

The management of meetings and the structure
of the Committees, togetner with Board support,
was generally appropriate, with improverments
possible in relation to the scheduling and
pr:oritisation of agenda items.

Risk management

The effectiveness with which the Board taxes
risk into account when making decisions

was positively rated. Further details on the
Croup's approach to risk are set out in the Risk
Management section of this Annual Report on
pages 42 to 59.

Step 4

The external report was then circulated to
all members of the Board and discussed at
the following Board meeting. Actions for
improvement were decided upon.

A summary of the 2021 Board evaluation is
deta’led in the box cpposite.

Re-election
| In accordance with the Code, all Directors stand for
| re-election annually at cach AGM.
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Audit, Risk and Internal Controj

© The Strategic Report notes that delivering the Group's |
the Remuneration Report {sce pages 102 to 132). In

. its approach to remuneration, during the year ended
© 31 March 2022, the Company complied fully with

* strategic priorities in a sustainable and responsible
manner requires careful consideration to be given
by the Board to the nature and level of risks that the
Group should accept.

The Boara's approach to risk generally, including the

identification, management and mitigation of risks
_(including internal controls), is described in further

detail in the following sections of this Annual Report
. and Accounts:

- a Qur approach to Risk Management is described on
pages 42 to 46.

» The Group's Principal Risks and Uncertainties are
set out On pages 54 to 59.

e Finally, the Audit & Risk Committee Report on
pages 27 to 103 provides further details as to now
the Committee provides oversight, and supports
the Board, in relation to matters relating to audit,
risk and internal controls generally.

" Greg Davidson
. Group Ceneral Counsel and Company Sccretary

. Remuneration

The Board's approach to remuneration is sct out in

the Code, with the exception of provision 38 of the

- Code (alignment of pensions). The Remuneration

Committee has decided that employer pension
contributions for any new'y appointed Executive
Directors shall be the sarme as those for the generat
UK warkforce and that the contributions for the
current Executive Directors will be aligned with the

. general workforce with effect frem 1 January 2023

. Approval

This Corporate Governance Report has been approved
by the Beoard and signed on its behalf by

14 June 2022

US60.pAH



AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE REPORT

i Member

“The Committee's role |
is central in bringing |
together the Group’s
risk management :
activities and control |
environment.” :

‘ Clive Watsch
3 Chairman of the Audit Committee

Member since

Clive Watson
Traccy Graham
Bruce Thompson
Rosalind Kainyah

2012
2017
2019
2022

| The Group Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the Committee,

Dear Shareholder,

I am pleased to report on the activities of the Audit and Risk Committee ("the Committee”) during the year

I under review.

Role of the Committee

- The Committee’s role is central in bringing together
- the Group's risk management activities and contral
©environment te enpsure adherence to policies, the

j integrity of fimancial reporting and the maintenance
of a streng risk-focused culture. Following recent
and upcoming regulatory changes, this includes
consideration and review of the Group's exposure to
. climate-related risks and opportunities. As Chair of

. the Audit and Risk Committee, | attend the annual

' general meeting and make myself available for

any sharehalder questions within the Committee's
remit. The Committee oversces and reviews the
managemacnt of risk, financial resuits, and the Group
U Internal Audit function.

; Key responsibilities of the Committee:

. = Consideration of the appropriatencss of the
accounting principles, policies and practices
adopted in the CGroup's accounts

- = Roview of external financiat reporting and
associated announcements to ensure tney arc fair,
balanced and understandable

. = Managing the appointment and remuneration

of the Group's external auditer, together with an
assessment of the effectiveness and independence
of the audit, including the policy on the award of
ncn-audit services

Initiating and supervising a competitive tender
process for the external audit, as and when required

Oversight of Group Internal Audit

Ensuring the effectiveness of the Group's risk
rmnanagement processes and internal controls

Oversight and update of the Croup Risk Register

Oversight of the Croup's whistleblowing
procedures in conjunction with the Beoard. If

any issues are reported that require further
investigation, this is typically conducted by the
Croup Internal Audit function, which reports back
to the Committee as to their findings and whether
any further action is necessary or desirablc. During
the year a small number of reperts were made,
with the majority proving to be routine HR matters.
None of the matters reported were found to be a
cause for concern.

Monitoring compliance with the UK Corporate
Covernance Codc
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Meetings

During the year, the Committee met three times

and also met privately with the external auditor. The
Committee comprised the people shown in the table
on page 97, all of whom are Non-Executive Directors.

In addition to the Committee members, the Group
Finance Dircctor, reproeschilalives from the external
auditor, the Head of Risk and internal Audit, the
Group Risk and Internal Audit Manager and the
Group Financial Controller attended these meetings
by invitation. As Chair of the Committee, | maintain
direct communication with the external guditor and
the Head of Risk and Intermal Audit, independently of
the management of the Company.

Meetings of the Committee are scheduled so as

1o ensure the Committee is informed fully, and

on a timely basis, on areas of significant risks and
judgement. The Committee also received sufficient,

reliable and timely information from management on -
significant changes to financial accounting standards

and reporting reguirements, regulatory and
governance changes and developments concerning
risk management, fraud prevention and detection,
and cyber security. As Chair of the Committee, | report
to the Board on ary s gnificant matters ar:sing from
the activities of the Committee.

The Board is satisfied that the members of the
Committee have both recent and relevant experience
{as set out on pages 82 and 83) and that, thercfore,
the Committee as a whole has competence in the
sector in which the Group operates. The Committee
is satisfied that the Group's executive compensation
arrangements do not prejudice robust controls and
good stewardship.

Committee activities during FY 2021/22 and FY
2022/23 to date

May 2021
» Reviewed the results of the external audit of the FY
2020/21 Annual Report and Accounts

s« Reviewed the going concern and viability statcments

= Reviewed the FY 2020/21 Annual Report and
Accounts including assessing and confirming that
the Report was fair, balanced and understandable

cxternal auditor

» Discussed the overall adegquacy and effectiveness
of the Croup's internal controls including reviewing
the Group Internal Audit function’s annual opinion
on the Group's control framework

» Reviewed and approved the internal audit charter
s Half yearly review of the Croup Risk Reqgister,

including agreeing key risks for inclusion in the FY
2020/27 Annual Report and Accounts

November 2021
i » Reviewed half year resuilts and judgemental

accounting areas

. = Reviewed regulatory updates
© = Reviewed a high level approach to address the

requirements for @ UK Sarbanes-Oxley style regime,
to strengthen the internal controls over financial
reporting, included within the Department for
Business, Energy & Industrial Strategy’'s proposals
Restoring trust in audit and corporate governance

. = Half yearly review of the Group Risk Register

including, in particular, subsidiary risk reparting

= Reviewed proposed enhancements to the Group's
Anti-Bribery Prograrmme, including a policy review
and the selection of a lcarning management
systerm to facilitate Group-wide online training

. Reviewed and approved the internal audit charter

Ja nuary 2022
- = Reviewed the external audit planning report for

FY 2021/22 Annual Report and Accounts (including
review and approval of audit scope and fees)

= Agreed arisk management and internal audit
programme and resource requircments in detail
for FY 2022/23, and at a high level for the following
three years

© May 2022
. = Reviewed the results of the external audit of the FY

2021/22 Annus! Report and Accounts

» Reviewed the going concern and viability

statements

. » Reviewed the FY 2021/22 Annual Report and

Accounts including assessing and confirming

the changes in presentation of the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss (see Note 2 to the
Financiaf Statements) and that the Report was fair
balanced and undecrstandable

" a Assessed & agreed the independent status of the

external auditor

" » Discussed the overall sdequacy and effectivencss
» Assessed and agreed the independent status of the auscy

of the Group's internal controls, including reviewing
the Group Internal Audit Functien's annual opinion
on the Group's control framewaork



= Half yearly review of the Group Risk Register,
including agrecing key risks for inclusion in the FY
2021/22 Annual Report and Accounts

Standing items

» Update on internal audits conducted and progress
with management's implementation of actions

« Update on aligrment of newly acquired busincsses
to group poicies and procedures

» Update on risk management projects
» Update on Whistleblowing reports

Committec reports to the Board, to enable the Board
to discharge its responsibiiities.

Fair, balanced and understandable

The Committer has, at the request of the Board,
reviewed this year's Annual Report and Accounts

to assess whether it presents a fair, balanced and
understandable view of the Company’s position and
prospects. The Committea's review took account

i of the process by which the Annuai Report and

© Accounts is prepared, which includes analysis of

© changes to applicable reporting requirements and
- standards, and a robust schedule of revicw and

- verification by senior management and axternal

~ advisers toc ensure disclosures are accurate. The

. Committee is satisficd Lhat, taken as a whole, the

C Annual Report and Accounts is fair, baianced and

understandabic and provides the information

- necessary for shareholders to assess the Group's
: position and performance, business model and

) ) ) - strategy and has advised the Board accordingly.
After each meeting of the Cormmittee, the Chair of the .
. Significant matters considered and

! decisions taken

As part of the monitoring of the integrity of the

finarceal stalements, the Commitiee assesses

" whether suitable accounting policies have been
f adopted and whether management has made

appropriate estimates and judgements. The

viewpoint of the external auditor is sought when
undertaking these assessments.

During the year, the Committee’s review of other significant accounting and financial reporting issues

incluaed a focus on the key areas outlined as follows:

impairment of
goodwill

A consideration of the carrying value of goodwill and the assumptions underlying the
imparment review. The judgements in relation to goodwill impairment largely relate to
the assumptions underlying the calculations of the recoverable amount of the business
unit being tested for impairment, primarily the achievability of iong-term business plans
and macroeconomic assumptions underlying the valuation process. The assumptions
are sensitised to ensure that there is adeguate headroom between the recoverable
amacunt and the carrying value of the business being tested for impairment.

Specifically, this included a review of any businesses not perferming in line with
expectations, to assess any potentia! impact on the carrying value of goodwill.

Accounting for
acquisitions and
disposals

A review of the accounting for the acquisitions of CPI, Antenova and Beacon, and the
disposals of Acal BFi and Vertec SA, during the year, including the appropriateness of
the assumptions used in assessing the fair vaiug of assets and liakilities acquired and
disposed.

Presentation of
discontinued
operations

A review of the appropriateness of presenting the resutts of the disposed businesses
during the year as discontinued oporations.

Change in
cperating
segments

Review the appropriateness of the revised reportable operating segments. Following
the exit from its distributicn business the Group has been divided into two cperating
segments, the Magnetics & Controls division ("M&C") and the Sensing & Connectivity
division ("S&C").

Valuation of the
legacy defined
benefit pension
scheme

A review of the appropriateness of the assumptions used in the valuation of the legacy
defined benefit pension scharne under IAS 9 - Lmployee Berefis
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The recognition
and valuation
of judgemental
provisions

A determination of the appropriateness of the assumptions used in the recognition and
valuation of judgemental provisions which relate mainly to onerous contracts, inventory,
severance indemnities, acguisition earn-out arrangements, long-term incentive plans,
restructuring and integration.

Presentation of
underlying profit
adjustments

A review of the appropriateness of items disclosed as exceptional items and acquisition-
related costs {including amortisation of acquired intangibles and acguisition expenses)
in the Supploemertary Inceme statermert informat on ana rotes to the Creuo inarcial

statements, in linc with the Group's stated po'icy.

Climate related
financial
disclosures

An evaluation of impact of climate changce on the Croup financial staterments in
accordance with the TCFD framework. The process has involved a review of all balance
sheet line iterns and future cash flows, to identify if any of these items are expected to

be materially impacted in a negative or positive way by weather, legisiative, societal or

revenuc/cost changes.

Going Concern and
Viability

A review of the paper prepared by management on the Group's going concern and
viability assessment. This included a review of underlying forecast and cash flow

assumptions and downside scenarios.

Tre Commitlee weas satisfiec that each of the
matters set out above had been fully and adequately
addressed by the Executive Directors, appropriately
tested first by the Committee and then reviewed by
the external auditor, and that the disclosures made in
this Annual Repert and Accounts were appropriate.

In respect of each significant matter reviewed

by the Committee, the Committee considered

the assumptions made, the reasonablencss of
judgements in their context, and how such matters
have boen presented. The Committee evaluated and
challenged each of these to ensure that the Annual
Report and Accounts is complete and accurate in all
rmaterial respoects.

Tax and Treasury

The Committee meets annually with the Head
of Tax and the Group Treasurer to review the key
tax and financing matters affecting the Group
and to understand the areas of focus in the
forthcoming year.

Risk management and internal controls

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s
risk appetite and risk management. This includes
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is
willing to take In achieving the Group's strategy and
objectives. The Board is ultimately responsible for the
effectiveness of the risk management strategy and
framowork, and internal controls systems.

Oversight of risk management is undertaken by

- the Committee, in accordance with its terms of

reference. In order to ensure the effectiveness of the

. risk management and internal control systems, the
- Committee undertock a number of key activitics

during the year, including:

- = Consideration of the risk management activities

during the year (including particular focus on
specific arcas of cyber security anti-bribery,
conformance of suppliers with the Group's code of
conduct and financial controls)

« Review of risk management and reporting to

ensure effectivencss and that the balance between
risk and opportunity was in keeping with the
Group's risk appetite

» Regular meetings with members of senior

management and the Group Internal Audit
function

| = Review of reports on contrel matters and challenge

of management's response to any matters raised

i w Evaiuation and challenge of the results and

reccrmmendations of audits undertaken by the Group
Imternal Audit function and the externai auditor

" » Review of the resource reguircments of the Group

Internal Audit function

Revew of the annual Audit and Risk Committee
agenda.



Review of internal Controls

The Group's finance department includes a separate
Group Internal Audit function. This is led by the

Head of Risk and Internal Audit who is part of the
Group management team and reports to the Group
Financial Director and, independently, to me, as Chair
of the Committee,

Internal Audit

The CGroup Internal Audit function's primary purpose
is to provide risk-pased and independent assurance,
advice and insight to help improve all aspects of the
organisation’s gavernance and systemn of internal
control, including management of risk. The remit of
the interne: audit function covers discover|E Group
plc and all of its subsidiaries. Resource in the function
increased from two to three staff during FY 2021/22,
plus support from the Group Projects Manager,
external consultants and cutsourced providers as
decemed necessary. Further details on the operation of
the Croup Internal Audit function can be found in the
Risk Managemant section on pages 42 1o 46.

The Audit and Risk Committee has overall
responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control framework and the Group
Internal Audit function. As part of this, we ensure that
the Group Internal Audit function has unrestricted
scope, the necessary resources, and appropriate
access to information, to enable it to perform its
function effectively. The suitability of resources
available to the Group Internal Audit function was
censidered in the year. The Committee also reviews
regular updates on internal audit waork carried cut
and the actions taken by management to implement
the recommendations of internal audit reviews.

A programme of internal audit activities has been
completed during the year. The scope of work carried
cut by the Group Internat Audit function generally

- focuses on the internal financial and cperational

controls within cach business, particularly in recently

© acguired businesses. Further internal audit work is

outsourced Lo external providers, where appropriate.

. While no system of contrals can provide absolute

assurance against material misstaterment or lass,

the Croup's systems are designed to manage, rather
than climinate, the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives and provide reasonable, and not absolute,
assurance against material misstaternent or ioss. As
part of the annual review of the cffectiveneass of the
Croup's internal controls, the Committee, on behaif
of the Board, has regard to the design of the risk
management framework including the three lines of
defence model, the sgnificance cf the nisks involved,
the likelihood and severity of an event occurring and
the costs asscciated with any relevant controls. The
farmal Annual Opinion for FY 2021/22 issued by the
Croup Internal Audit function was reviewed by the

- Committee, concluding that there were no material

failings or weaknesscs identified in the Group’s
interna! control systems.
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: Tne principal components of the Croup’s systems of
_control are;

. # awell defired organisational structure with short
and clear reporting lines

= rocruitment of high-quaiity staff

review and managerrent of the principal risks and
issues affecting the pusiness, both at Group and
operating levels

= in-house and outsourced internal audit activities
« an ongoing review of regulatory compliance

» aregular review of the principal suppliers and
customers of the Group, and how cach impacts
upon the Group's business

» 2 comprehensive planning process, which starts
with a strategic plan and culminates in an annual
budget and a long-term plan

. » regular rolling forecasting throughout the year of
orders, sales, prafiahility, cash flow, working captal
and balance shoets

s aregular review of actual performance against
budget and forecasts

~w clearly definec procegures for the authorsation of
major new investments and commitments

" a arequirement for cach operating company to
mainta.n a system of internal controls appropriate
to its owhn local business environment.

The Finance tcam is responsible for producing
financial inforrmation that s orrely, accurale and in
accordance with applicable laws and regulations. In

addilion, 1t 1s respomsible for the distribution of financial -

information, both internally and externally. Key
finarcial and operational cerformance 1s reported on
a timely basis and measured against both the Board-

- approved budget, management'’s rolling forccasts
and comparable information from prior periods. A
~review of the financial statements 1s compieied by
managemeant to ensure that the financial position
and results of tne Group are appropr awcly reflected. All
finarcial i~formator published externally oy the Grouo |
is approved by the Beard. '

The above procedures apply to discoverlE Group plc
and all of its subsidiary companies,

i External audit

i The Committec is responsible for manzging the

relationship with the Group's external auditor on
| behalf of the Board including their appointment,
remuneration, independence and performance.

= anongoing process for the .dentification, regular , During the year the Commitiee’s activitios in respaect

i of external audit were as follows:

| w considering the re-appointment of the external

auditor

= considering and approving the audit

approach and scope of tne audit undertaxen
by PricewaterhouscCoopers ("PwC”) and the
related fees

| = agreeing reporting materiality thresholds
. reviewing reports on audit findings

n considering and approving letters of representation

issued to the external auditor

| » considering the independence of the external

auditor.

- Audit performance and effectiveness

The performance and cffectiveness of the external

i auditor and related audit is reviewed annually by the
Committee. This covers the robustness of the audit at
! both a Head Office and entity lovel.

| The review covers the following:

v Robustness of the audit plan and, in particular, the

identification of significant risks

= Exccution of the above plan, including the external

auditor’s ability to challenge management on key
accounting judgements and assumptions adopted

Ensuring the external auditer demonsirates a deep
and thorough knowledge of the ousiness to enable
them to reach appropriate cenclusions on key
accounting judgements

D Quality of reports provided to the Committee
» Communication between the external auditer and

the Committee

» Feedback from managerment on the guality of the

audit team

» Professional scepticism of the external auditor.



The Committee concluded that the audit team
had the necessary professionalism, experience
and understanding of the business to carry out

a thorough and robust audit. As a result, the
performance of PwC was considered satisfactory.

The Group has complied with the provisions of the
Competition and Markel Authority (CMA) Order,
issucd by the CMA in September 2014, for “The
Statutory Audit Services for Large Companies Market
Investigation (Mandatory Use of Competitive Tender
Processes and Audit Committee Responsibilitics)”.

External Auditor independence

The Committee believes that the provision of non-
audit services to the Company is closely related to
external auditor independence and objectivity. The
Committee recognises that the independence of the
external auditor may risk becoming compromised if it
also acts as the Company's consultant and adviser to
any material extent.

The Committee accepts that certain work of a non-
audit nature is best undertaken by the external
auditor. The Committee reviewed its policy on the
provision of non-audit services during the year to
ensure that there is noikelihood of any impairment
of external auditor independence or objectivity.

The non-audit services that were provided by the
external auditor during the financial year, the fee

for which totalled £4,139 (0.25% of the audit fee}

{FY Z020/21 £8,000 0.6%), were not considered o
adversely impact the independence of the oxternal
auditor, were in fine with Group's policy on non-audit
services and were permissible under Ethical Standards.

| The Company last undertook a tender for external

" audit services in 2017 which led to the appointment
of PwC which conducted its first audit of the Group
. for the year ended 31 March 2018. There are no
 contractual obligations restricting the Committee's
- choice of external auditors. The external auditors are
: reauircd to rotate Lhe audil partner at least every

five years and the current lead audit partner, Chris

- Hibbs, was assigned to the discoverlE audit in 2021,

" The Committee recommended to the Board that it
' proposes to sharcholders that PwC be re-appointed
~ at the annual general meceting.

| Additional key areas of focus in 2022/23
= Continue to assess progress against additional

measures being rolled out foilowing cyber
risk review

* &« Further asscssment of exoosure 1o ESG-related

risks including to climate-related risks and
opportunities

© m Review the accounting for new acquisitions

"= Monitor the development and assess the impact

of the UK's audit and governance reform proposals
as set out in the BEIS consultation published on 18
March 2021

' Terms of reference

" The Committee's terms of reference are available
~ upocnh regucst and are on the Company's website:
. www.discoverlEplc.com.

Clive Watson
i Chairman of the Audit and Risk Committce

{14 Junc 2022
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“The Committee
helps ensure that
the Group has strong
and responsible
leadership, aligned
to our purpose
and culture.”

Malcolm Diamond MBE

Chairman of the Nomination
Committee

Member Member since
Malcolm Diamond 2017

Tracey Graham 2018

Nick Jefferies 2009

Rosalind Kainyah 2022

Bruce Thempson 2019

Clive Watson 2021

The Group Company Secrotary acts as Secretary to the Committee.

2021/22 key achievements

« Recommended to the Board
the appointment of Rosalind
Kainyah, which was duly
approved

» Identification of priorities for
re coming year

Key areas of focus in 2022/23
= Increasing diversity across
the Group

= Appointmoent of a new
Non-Executive Director given
my planncd retirement in
November 2022

 Continued evaluation of
knowlcdge and skills




Dear Shareholder,

During the year, the Committee met twice, with all
Coemmittee members attending and participating
in a separate evaluation process which identified
areas for imgrovement, especially in relation to
succession planning and diversity. The Committee's
recommendations were made afrer careful
coensideration of the independence, performance and
ability to continue ta contribute to the Board of the
relevant people, in the light of the knowledge, skills,
commitment and experience required.

Composition

The majority of the Committec members are
‘ndependent Non-Executive Directors. During the
year under review, the Committee was chaired by me,
with Tracey Graham, Bruce Thompson, Clive Watsan,
Rosalind Kainyah (with effect frorm January 2022) and
Nick Jefferies as Commirtee members.

Key responsibilities
The Committee's key duties are:

» To review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowladge and experience)
of the Board and to recommend changes where
appropriate.

» Toconsidar succession planning for the Directors
and the right balance of skills, knowledge,
experience and diversity on the Board.

= Toidentify and nominate candidates to fill Board
vacancies, having previousily prepared a description
of the role and capabilities required for a particular
appcintment.

» Toreview the leadership necds of the organisation,
both executive and non-executive

= To make recommendations to the Board on the
recappointment of any Non-Executive Director at
the conclusion of their specified term of office
and on appointments to the Audit and Risk and
Remuneration Committees.

a Toreview, as part of the annual assessment
exercise, the timme commitmeant of the Naon-
Executive Directors to the role and to their external
appointments.

Appointment of Directors

The Committee's principal role is to make
recommendations to the Board on suitable
candidates to fill Beard vacancies, s and when
they arise, or when other changes or appointments
may be desirable. Im managing this process, the
Committee takes into account the Board's existing

balance of skills, knowledge and experience and has

" due regard for diversity. Unless the appointment is as

an Executive Dircctor, for which a suitable candidate
is available from within the Group, tne Committee
will create a short-list of suitaple candidates for

final selection by the Committee. References from
appropriate third pdrlies wilt then be taken on the
prospective director. Candidates meet all members of

. the Committee, which then makes recommendations
i to the Board Adopted practice is for all members of
the Board to meet with the relevant candidate before
i an appointrnent is made.

i As noted earlier in this Annual Report and Accounts,
Bruce Thompson will succced me as Chairman of the
! Beard fellowing my retirement on 1 Novermber 2022,
Bruce's appointrmant as Chairman followed a rigorous
! and detailed process conducted by the Committee
and assisted by Russell Reynolds, a leading advisory
firm that specialises in the appointment of Board

! members for fisted companies. Russell Reynolds has
no connaction to the Company, or to any individual

| director, other than assisting with recruitment. Tracey
Craham chaired the Nomination Committee when it
 was dealing with the appointment of a successor 1o

L the chairmanship. Bruce Thompson absented himself
- from these discussions.

Diversity and Succession planning

. The Board is cormmitted to a culture which attracts

and retains talented people and to ensurc that a
proper process exists for succession pianning for the
Board and senior management.

. The Company’s Board Diversity Policy can be found

- on the Company's website www.discover|Eplc.com.
Please see page 74 of the Sustainability Repert for a

" summary of the Group's current gender diversity and
page 94 of the Corporate Governance Report for the

! current Board composition.

. Terms of reference

! The Committee’s terms of reference are available
upon request and are on the Company's website:
" www.discoverlEplc.com

: Malcolm Diamond MBE
Chairman of the Nomination Commuittee

- 14 June 2022
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The Directors’ report for the financial year ended 31 March 2022 is set out below.
Certain matters required to be included in the Directors’ report are included in the
Strategic report, as the Board considers them to be of strategic importance, as follows:

Disclosure Location

Future business developments
Risk management

Employee engagement
Greenhouse gas emissions
Stakeholder engagement

Throughout the Strategic Repoert {page 02 to 81

Risk management and principal risks and uncertaintics {pages 42 to 52)
Please see pages 75 and Q0.

Sustainability Report (pages 60 to 74)

Pleasc sec pages 7510 76

The Group's policies and processes for managing
its capital, 1ts financ al sk maragoment objeoctives,
its “inancial nstroments and edg ng activities and
exposure to credit and liguidity risk are disclosed in
note 27 to the Group financial staternents on pages
195 to 197.

Both the Dircctors’ report and the Strategic Report
have been drawn up in accordance with English
company law. The liabilities of the Directors in
connection with that report shall be subject to the
limitations and restrictions provided by such law.

Financial results and dividends

The audited consolidated financial statements sct
out the results of the Group for the financial year to
31 March 2022 and are shown on pages 146 to 212,
The key strategic and performance indscators of the
business arc set out in the Strategic report on pages
02 to 8L

Tre Directors recommend a final dividend of 7.45p
per share {2020/21: 7.0p) which, together with the
inter:m dividend of 3.3%5p per share (2020/21: 315p),
makes a total dividend for the year of 10.8p per
ordinary share (2020/21:10.15p). Subject to approval
by shareholders of the recommended final dividend,
the dividend award ta shareholders for 2021/22

will total £10.3m (202G/21: £9.0m). If approved, the
Company will pay the final dividend on 2 August 2022
to sharehoiders on the register of members at 24
June 2022.

The Board believes that, as an acquisitive growth
company, maintaining a progressive dividend policy,
with the long term dividend coverad over three times
by underlying earnings, is appropriate to enable both
dividend growth and a higher level of investment
from internally generated resources.

. Directors

. Board membership and biographical details of
" the Directors are on pages 82 and 83 and are

* incorporated by reference.

: Copies of Executive Directors' service contracts
. are available to sharehaolders for inspection at the

Company's registered office and at the annual general

" meeting. Details of the Directors’ remuneration and

service contracts and their interests in the shares of the
Company arc included in the Directors’ rermuneration

" report which is set cut on pages 109 to 132,

Powers of the Directors
The Board of Directors is responsible for the
management of the business of the Cormnpany

- and may exercisc all the powers of the Company,

! subject to the Company's Articles of Association (the

. “Articles"), the Companies Act 2006 and any directions
. given by the sharcholders by special resolution. The
Articles may be amended by a special resolution of

i the Company's shareholders,

! Appointment and replacement of Directors

i The Board can appoint a Director but anycne so
appointed must be elected by an ordinary resolution
| at the next general meeting. All Directors offer

. themselves for re-ciection at each annual general
meeting.

. Directors' conflicts of interest

The Company has procedures in place for managing
conflicts of interest. Should a Director becomce aware
that they, or any of their connected parties, have any
| interest in an existing or proposed transaction with
discoverik, they should notify the Board in writing or
. at the next Board meeting. Internal controls are in

place to ensure that any related party transactions
involving Directors, or their connected parties, arc
conducted on an arm's length basis. Directors have
a continuing duty to update any changes to these

" conflicts,



Directors’ indemnity

The Articles of the Company contain an indemnity
in favour of the Directors, which is a Qualifying Third
Party indemmity within the meaning of s 234 cf the
Companics Act 2006. This was in force throughout
the year ended 31 March 2022 and at the time of

the approval of this Annual Report and Accounts
Lirectors of subsidiary undertakings are also sulbject
to this Qualifying Third Party Indemnity.

In addition, cach Director of the Company has
entered into a Deed of Indemnity with the Company,
which operates only in excess of any right o
indemnity that a Director may enjoy undcer any

such other indemnity or contract of insurance. The
Company has also arranged appropriate insurance
cover in respect of legal action against its Directors
and officers.

Share capital

As at 31 March 2022, the Company’s issued share
capital consisted of 95,456,102 ordinary shares of 5p
each (mo shares are held in treasury).

Details of movernents in the Carmnpany's issucd share
capital can be found on page 192 in note 3C to the
Group financial staterments.

Restrictions on transfer of securities in

the Company

There are no restrictions on the transfer of securities
in the Company, except that certain restrictions
may from time to time be imposad by laws and
regulations {for example, insider trading laws such
as the Market Abuse Regulation) and pursuant to
the Listing Rules of the Financiai Conduct Authority,
whereby certain employees of the Company
require the approval of the Company to deal in

the Company's ordinary shares. The Company is

not aware of any agreements between holders

of securities that may result in restrictions on the
transfer of securitics.

Rights and obligations attaching to shares

Subject to the Articles, the Companies Act 2006 and
other shareholders' rights, shares in the Company
rmay be issucd with such rights and restrictions as the
shareholders may by ordinary resolution decide, or, if
there is no such resolution, as the Board may decide,
provided it does not conflict with any resolution
passed by shareholders.

The rights attached to any class of shares can be
amended if approved, either by 75% of sharehoiders
holding the issued shares in the class by amount, or

- Swedbank Robur

| by special resolution passed at a separate meeting of
. the hoiders of the relevant class of shares.

: Every member and every duly appointed proxy
prescnt at a general meeting or class meeting has,
© upon a show of hands, one vote and every memuber
present in person or by proxy has, upen a poll, one

- vote for every share held.

" No perscn holds securities in the Company carrying
" special rights with regard tc control of the Company.

' Substantial shareholdings
" As at 31 March 2022, the Company had been notified
- of, or was aware of, the following major sharehoidings

equal to, or greater than, 3% of the issued share
capital of the Company:

" abrdn 11,893,552 12 46%
Blackrock 6,715,225 7.03%
Kempen Capital

- Management NV 5,040,000 528%

Impax Asset Management 4,318,765 4.52%

" Montanarc Asset Mgt 3,945,000 413%
Legal & Gencral

: Investmen: Mgt 3407972 357%

- Wasatch Global Investors 3149817 3.30%

~ Swodbank Robur 3073873 322%

As at 10 June 2022, the Company had pbeen notified

" of or was aware of the following shareholders

holding 2% or more of the issued share capital of

- the Company.

Holdings
) of ordinary % of issued
. Shareholider shares [Sp) share capital
abrdn 12,082,475 12.66%
. Blackrock 6,715,225 7.03%
: Kempen Capital
. Management NV 5,070,000 5.31%
Impax Asset Management 4,367,430 4.58%
i Montanara Asset Mgt 3,795,000 398%
© Legal & General
L lnvestment Mgs 3412037 357%
' Wasaten Clobal Investors 3,402 293 256%
3073873 322%
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Authority to purchase own shares

At the annual general meeting held on 29 July 2021,
shareholders authorised the Company to purchase
in the market up to 10% of its issucd share capitai
(8,9455391 crdinary shares) and, as at 31 March 2022,
all of this authority remained in force and unused.
This authority is renewable annually, and a special
resolution will be proposed at the 2022 annual
general meeting to renew it. The Directors will only
purchase the Company's shares in the market if
they believe it 'sin the best interest of shaceholders
generatlly.

Change of control

Details of the Group's borrowing facilities are previded
in the Finance review scction of the Strategic report
on page 40. These agreements contain a change

of contrel provision, which may resuit in the facility
being withdrawn or amended upon a change

of control of the Group. The Group is party to a
number of commercial agreements which, in line
with industry practice, may be affected by a change
of control following a takeover bid. There arc no
agreements between the Company and its Directors
or employees providing for compensation for loss

of office or employment which cocurs because of a
takeover bid.

Political donations
There were no political donations during the year (FY
2020/21: nil).

Auditor and disclosure of information to auditor
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP have indicated their
willingness to continue in office and a resolution to
appoint them will be proposed at the annual general
mecting. In the case of each Director in office as at
the date of this report:

= so far as the Director is awarg, there is no relevant
audit information of which the Group and
Company's auditors are unaware; and

= they have taken all the steps that they ought
to have taken as a Director in order to make
themselves aware of any relevant audit information
and to establish that the Group and Company’s
auditors are awarc of that infarmation.

. Annual General Meeting

The Notice of the annual gencral meeting to be
held at 11.30am on Thursday 28 July 2022 will be

- sent to shareholders separately from this report,
- The venue for the meeting is 2 Chancellor Court,
- Occam Rd, Guildford, Surrey, GUZ2 7AH. Details of the

arrangemeaents for that meeling will be as set out in

* the Notice for that meeting.

© Going concern

For the reasons explained in the Viability Statement
| on pages 52 and 53, the Directors continue to adopt
! the going concern basis in preparing this Annual
Report and Accounts.

! By order of the Board

Greg Davidson
. Group General Counsel & Company Secretary
| 14 June 2022

2 Chancellor Court,

! Ocearmn Road,

Surrey Research Park,
. Guildford,

C Surrey GUZ 7AH

! Registered number: 02008246
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Member

“This has been an
excellent year for
performance and
strategic progress.”

Tracey Graham
Chair of the Remuneration
Committee

Member since

Tracey Graham {Chair)
Malcolm Diamond

Bruce Thompson

Clive Watson
. Rosalind Kainyah

2016
2017
2018
2020
2022

- The Committee consults with the Group Chief Executive who may attend meetings by invitation of the

Committee Chair, although he is not involved in deciding his own remuneration. The Group Company
. Secretary acts as Secrctary to the Committee,

FY 2021/22 key achievements

Received strong sharcnolder approval for aur
Directors’ Remuneration Policy at the 2021 annual
general meeting following consultation with the
Company's largest sharcholders

Cranting of LTIP awards under the new Remuneration

Poiicy with the revised performance conditions
Approval of banus outcomes for 2020/21
performance, including management’s proposcd
reductions te formulaic outcomes

Considered the impiications of the dispesal of the
distribution business for incentives

Setting of appropriate incantive measures

and targets for Executive Directors and semior

Key areas of focus in FY 2022/23

management, including the introduction of a specific

ESG component in the annual bonus for 2022/23

A review of other remuneration-reiated iterms within |

the UK Corporate Governance Code and the latest
views from investors and proxy voting agencies

Oversight of wider workferce remuneration, including

an increase to UK pansion contribution rates

Consideration of gender pay gap data

Review the competitiveness of remuneration for
Executive Directors and senior management and
its alignment with strategy

Review of pay acrass the discover E workforce

Set incentive targets and determine incentive
cutcomes for Executive Directors and senior
management

Keeping abreast of corpeorate governance and
regulatory developments

Monitoring of performance against all persona! :
objectives, including in particular the sustainability/
ESG measures included in the objectives for i
the Executive Dircctors and Group Executive
Committee
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ANNUAL STATEMENT
Information not subject to audit

Dear Shareholder,

On behalf of the Board, it is my pleasure to present
our Directors’ Remuneration Report for the year
ended 31 March 2022, This report comprises

of the Remuneration Committee {the ‘Committee’)
in FY 2021/22.

» The Dircctors' Remuneration Policy (the 'Policy’)
which sets the paramcters for how our Directors
are remunerated and which took effect from
79 July 2071, the aate of its aoproval at our 2071
annual genera' meeting.

» The Annual Repert on Remuneration which provides
(i) details of the remuneration earned by Directors
and the link between Company performance and
pay in the year ended 31 March 2022 and (i} how we
intend to implerment the new Policy in FY 2022/23.

At the 2021 AGM, we received clear support for our
Directors’ Remuncration Policy and | am grateful for
the feedback received as part of the revicw process.
During the last ycar, the focus shifted to implementing
the policy and ensuring there is appropriate alignment
between pay outcomes and performance.

Business performance and resulting remuneration
outcomes for the year ending 31 March 2022
The Group has performed exceptionaliy well this year,

the Group’s long-tarm strategy to exit the distribution
business through the disposals of both Acal BFiand
Vertec SA, and good progress against ESG initiatives,
including a 33% reduction in like-for-like carbon
emissions intensity and completion of the first phase

of solar panel installaticns in Sri Lanka. The CGroup also -

completed three acguisitions, further expanding its
footprint outside Europe.

This has been a significant year of strategic progress
and | would like to thank all of our staff globally for
their tremendcus &fforts in what has been a very
successful year for the Group.

Annual bonus for FY 2021/22

The annual bonus for both Executive Directors for 7Y
2021/22 was based un operating profit targets (60%),
simplified working capital (24%) and non-financial
objectives (16%).

Based on the strong performance as set out above,

" actual underlying operating profit of £41.4m was

i above the maximum target, performance against

| the Simplified Working Capital target exceeded

© maximum and non-financial objectives were

. determined to have been met in full. This results in an
¢ overall bonus payout ol 100% of maximum for both

» This Annual Statement which summarises the work | directors.

The Rermuneration Committee has considered

. carefully whether any adjustrment is required to the
formulaic outcomes to reflect the underlying financial
and non-financial performance of the business. By way
of context, the Executive Directors voluntarily reduced
! their bonus outcomes for performance in FY 2020/21
1o reflect the impact of the pandemic on the business.
| However, this year, the Committee believes that the

" bonus outcome s a fair reflection of the very strong
perfarmance of the business during the year and its
strategic progress.

L In line with the remuneration policy, 20% of the bonus
{ wilt be delivered in deferred share awards. Further
details of the bonus for FY 2021/22 are set out in the
Annual Report on Remuneration,

| 2019 long term incentives vesting

The Group Chief Executive and Group Finance
Director received awards under the LTIP on 30 April
. 2019 that were based on absolute TSR, relative TSR

" and EPS performance criteria.

" = Relative TSR - discoverlE delivered a TSR of 104.5%
with very strong financial performance, completion of .

over the three-year period to 31 March 2022 which
ranked in the top 10% of the TSR peer group (for
the sccond censecutive threc-year cyclel, thereby
achieving this clement in full,

n Absolute TSR - discoverlE's TSR of 104 5% over the

period was above CPI + 30%, thereby achieving this
element in full.

" ® ERPS- EPS grew by 44%, which was in excess of the

maximum target. Acal BFiwas included in both
the pase year and in the final year to the date of
disposal (11 months).

This performance has resulted in all of the LTIP awards
granted in April 2012 vesting in fuli. The Committee

| believes this vesting outcome is warranted given the
exceptional share price and earnings growth over

© the three-year period, Therefore, no discretion has

" been applied to adjust the formulaic outcomes. These

shares will be subject 1o a two-year holding period

- before they become oxcrcisable,



Application of peolicy in 2023

| = Base salary: The Remuneration Committee has

‘ reviewed basc salary fevels across the business
in the context of the current high inflationary
cnvircnment. The Group Chief Executive's base
salary will be increased by 4% in line with increases
of ¢.4%-5% acrcss the UK employee group. The
Croup Finance Director's base salary will be
increased by 2.5% and his pension will increase
by 15% in line with the genearal UK workforce
contribution rate. Base salary increases in the
rast of the business will be higher, with up to 15%
increases in some territories.

» Pension: As cutlined in last year’s report, the Group
Chief Executive's pension contribution will reduce
frorm 15% of salary to the UK workforce rate from?
January 2023

. = Bonus The bonus cpportunity will be 150% of salary

' for the Group Chief Exccutive and 125% of salary

for the Group Finance Directer, in line with policy.

The bonus measures and weightings fer financial

measures will remain unchanged for FY 2022/23

with 60% based on operating profit targets, and 24%

on Simplified Working Capital. The non-financial
objectives (16%) elerment will be split into two eqgual
parts with 8% based on strategic objectives and the
cther 8% on ESG-related objectives.

w LTIP in line with our policy, the award 1o the
Group Chief Executive will be 175% of salary and
160% of salary for the Group Finance Director.

The LTIP measures witl continue to be split equally
between relative TSR and EPS growth. The EPS
growth targoets have been increased for the
second consecutive year so that the threshold

and maximum targets are 5%p.a. and 13%p.a.
respectively. Vesting of the EPS element shall

also be subject to an underpin reguiring the
Committee to be satisfied with the Group's annual
rate of return on capital employed ("ROCE") aver
the measurement period. Further actails of the
approach for 2022 can be found in the Annual
Report an Rermuneration.

- The Remuneration Committee considered the

| appropriate LTIP grant level for FY 2022/23 and

! believes granting at 175% of salary and 160% of salary

. for the Group Chief Executive and Group Finance
Director is appropriate, hav' ng taken into account the
- foltowing factors:

I. The EPS targets have beeon made tougher
compared with previous grants and full vesting will
only occur if EPS grows by more than 44% over the
three-year period. Furthermore, as set out in our
March 2022 investor presentation, our mid-range
targets attached to the delivery of cur Key Strategic
Indicators have increased, supporting our ambition
of significantly growing cperating margin and
earnings.

Yl The grant level is in ling with and, in the case

of the Group Finance Director, below the limit
approved by sharcholders at the 2021 annual
general meeting. In the first year of the new Policy,
the Committee granted at below the approved
policy levels, demonstrating a prudent approach to
adopting the higher shareholder appreved limit.

. The propased grant levels for FY 2022/23 reflect the
strong performance of the business and cxecutives
over the last year as set out in the business
performance section above and are in line with
those in businesses of a similar size to discoverlE.

. The Remuneration Committee will consider the share
- price at the time of grant when finalising award levels,
- expected to be in June 2022, Whilst the Committee

" recognises that the prevailing share price at the time

of writing is lower than the sharc price at the time
of last year's award, when considered over a longer
period, the prevailing price is significantly higher than
the prices used to determine LTIP levels in the four

prior years, 2017 10 2020.

- There will be a single adviscry vote at the AGM on
) July 2022 to approve this directors’ rermuncration
" report. | hope you find the information in the report
. clear and are ablc to support this resolution. If you
have any guestions on our policy or on this report

then please contact me via the Company Sccretary.

Tracey Graham

Chair of the Rermmuneration Commitice

14 Jure 2022
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Remuneration at a glance

When determining the Remuneration Policy,

the Committee has ensured that the Directors’
Remuneration Policy and practices are consistent
with the six factors set out in Provision 40 of the
Corporate Governance Code:

CLARITY

Qur Directors’ Remuneration Policy is well understood
by our senior executive team and the Company

invited its principal shareholders and shareholder
representative groups to consulit on the updated
Remuneration Policy and received good feedback. This
report sets out the remuneration arrangements for the
Executive Directors in a clear and transparent way.

SIMPLICITY

The Committee is mindful of the need to avoid overly
complex remuncration structures which can be
rmisunderstood and deliver unintendead outcomes
Therefore, a8 key abjective of the Committee Is to
ensure that our Directors’ Remuneration Policy and
practices are straightforward to communicate and
operate. The Committec's approach to performance
measures has always been that they must be
undecrstandable for participants in the schemes in
order to ensure they are effective

RISK

Our Directors’ Remuneration Policy has been designed
to ensure that inrappropriate risk-taking is discouraged,
including the use of a blend of financial, non-financial
and sharcholder return targets. Shares play a significant
role in our incentive arrangements; this includes the
deferral under the annual bonus, malus/clawback
provisions operate within our incentive plans.

" Executive Directors
- In thus section, we show the link between corporate
" performance for the year under review and the

remuneration cutcemes for the Executive Directors.
The key features of the Executive Directors’
remungration for the year ended 31 March 2022 are
also shown.

Corporate performance for the year

Revenue

£379.2m
Underlying Operating Profit

£41.4m

Underlying EPS

29.4p

' Remuneration outcomes for the Executive
. Directors for the year ended 31 March 2022

PREDICTABILITY

Our incentive plans are subject to iIndividual caps, with our
share plans also subject to standard dilution imits, The
notential value and compaosition of the Executive Directors'
rermuneration packages at below threshold, target and
maximum scenaros are provided in the relevant policy

PROPORTIONALITY

There is a clear link between individual awards, delivery
of strategy and our long-term performance. The
Committes has discretion to override formulaic results
to ensure that they are appropriate and reflective of
overall performance.

ALIGNMENT TO CULTURE

The variahle incentive schemes and performance
measureas are designed to be consistent with the
Croun's purpose, values and strategy

Nick Simon
Jefferies Gibbins
£000 £000
Salary FY 2021/22 490 326
Bonus {fk and as
. % of salary) 735 150% 407 125%
I Taxacle benofits 1 12
Pension benefits/
i allowance 74 27
Value of LTIP
: vesting 1,270 703
. Single figure
. of total

. remuneration 2,580 1,469




The annual honus for the year ending 31 March 2822
was based on the achievement agzainst financial

and non-financial measures. The bonus cutcomes
for the year were 150% of salary for the Group Chicf
Executive and 125% for the Group Finance Director. in
accordance with the Remuneration Policy, 20% of the
bonus will be in the form of deferred shares.

LTIP awards were granted to both executive directors
on 29 April 209, These awards were based on absolute
and relative TSR conditions, and ERPS perfarmance,
measured for the three-year period ending 31 March
2022 The Company's TSR performance, being in the
top 15% of the TSR peer group, and with an Absolute
TSR growth of 104.5%, cach over that three-year period,
has resulted in full vesting of these elements of award.
Total EPS grawtn for the period FY 2018/19 to FY 2021/22
was 12.9% CAGR, which resulted in full vesting of that
element (see page 125 for further details). As a resu't, all
of the 2012 LTIP award vested. The performance of the
Acal BFi business was included for both the base year
{in full) and far the finat year (for the 11 months until
disposal).

Tne values of thesc awards at the time of vesting are
shown in the above table. Awards are subject to a
two-year holding period.

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION POLICY

This part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report sets
out the remuyuneration palicy which was approved

at the annual general meeting on 29 July 2021 and
which took formal effect from that date. It has been
prepared in accordance with the Companies Act
2006 (the "Act”) and the Large and Medium-sized
Companies and Groups [Accounts and Reports)
Regulations 2008 (as amendead).

The Committec reviewed the Executive Directors’
remuneration packages tc cnsure that they reflect
the Company's own particular circumstances and are
aligned with the Company's key strategic objectives,
as sot out in the Strategic Report, and with the long-
term interests of its sharenolders.

. Key objectives of our reward policy

The Remuneration Committee undertook a
comprehensive review of the Executive Directors’
remuneration arrangements and engaged with the
Company's largest sharcholders on the proposed
changes. The primary aims of the policy are to deliver
a rermuneration package that is.
= Aligned with discoverlE 's strategy at this stage
of its developrment and supports the business's
medium and long-term plans

. » Consistent with practice internally and externa'ly

. w Competitive and fair compared against companies

of our size and geographical complexity

Focused on delivering long-term sustainable returns
s Compliant with sharcholders’ latest views on

exccutive pay and the requircments of the 2018 UK

Corporate Covernance Code

= Able to attract and retain high calibrc Executive
Directors and senior managers in a challenging
and competitive business cnvircnment

= Reduces complexity, delivering an appropriate
balance between fixed and variable pay.

" When implementing the policy, the Committee:

s Takes account of pay and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group

" w Ensures that incentive arrangamcents encourage

responsible behaviour in all aspects of the
Company's business, including financial, social,
environmeaental and governance aspects; do

not encourage excessive risk-taking; and arc
compatible with the Company's risk policies and
procedures. The Committee has the discretion to
take these factors into account when adjudicating
bonus and LTIF outcomes,

i = Enters into open dialogue and consults with key

sharehoiders, when locoking to make material
changes to the remuneration policy.

| = Considers market practice in terms of The structure

and levels of executive remuneration.
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Remuneration policy table

Element, purpose Operation

and link to strategy

Performance
targets

Maximum
opportunity

Base salary Salaries are normally reviewed There is no prescribed Although there are no formal
To attract and retain annually with increases typically maximum or maximum performance conditions, any
quality staff. effective from 1 April. increase. increase 1N baso salary is anly
o implemented after carcful
In delernmining executive However, any percentage consideration of individual
Directors’ salaries, the ncreases will ordinarly be in contribution and performance
Remuncratwon Commitiee takes line with those across the wider and having due regard to the
inta account. workforce. factors set out in the 'Operation’
= Each Director's role, Salary increases may be higher  column of this table.
competence, experience and |n exceptional circurnstances,
performance; such as the need to retain @
= Average change in broader critical executive, or an increase
warkforce pay; and in the scope of the executive's
= Total organisational salary roie {including promotion 1o g
budgets. more senior role) and/for 1In the
size of the Group.
Salaries are also benchmarked
against cormpanies of a comparable
size and complexity and against
companics which cperate
internaticnally, in similar sectors.
Benefits Directors, along with other senior  There 1S no prescribed Not applicable

UK executives, may receive certain
benefits such as a car allowance,
life assurance and critical Iliness
caver, and farmily medical
insurance.

To help retain
employees and
remain competitive
in the marketplace.

Any reasonable business-related
expense {and any tax thercon) can
be reimbursed if determined to
be a taxable benefit

Exccutive Directors will be eligible
to participate in any all-empioyce
share plan operated by the
Company, on the same terms as
other eligible employces.

For external and internal
appointmeants or relocations,
the Company may pay certain
relocation and/or incidental
expenscs as appropriate.

Mmaximum as insurance cover
can vary based on market
rates.

The maximum level of
participation in all employee
share plans is subject to the
lirmits imposed by the relevant
tax authority from time to time




Element, purpose
and link to strategy

Operation

Maximum
opportunity

Performance
targets

Pension

To facilitate long-
term savings
provisions.

The Company operates a defined
contribution pension scherme

Executive Directors may take a
cash allowance in lieu of pension
contributions

The Group Chicf Executive
currently receives a Company
contribution of 15% of base
salary which will reduce to the
contribution rate applying to

the majority of the UK workforce

rate In place at the timec (8% of
salary) from 1January 2023,

Far the Group Firance Director,
znd any new Executive
Directors appointed to the
Board, the pension contribution
will be ir line with the majority
of the UK workforce,

Not applicable

Annual bonus

To reward the
achieverment of
annual financial ang
strategic business
targets.

Benus is based on performance
targets determined and reviewed
by the Committee and are
selected to be relevant for the year
in guastion,

Any payment is discretionary and
the bonus payable is determined
by the Committee after the
finarcalycer-crd, based on
performance against these targets.

Financial objectives are updated
torotoct acquis L.ons, asposals
and currency movemaents auring
the year.

20% of any bonus earned Is
deferred into discoverlE sharcs
for a period of three years. Where
applicable, dividends may accrue
on deferred bonus shares.

Malus and clawback provisions
apply to cash ana deferred
elements of the bonus, applying in
the event of material misstatement
of the Company's financial results,
anerror of calculation or in the
event of serious misconduct,
material reputational damagc or
corporate fajure,

The maximum bonus
opportunity is 150% of salary
for the Croup Chicf Executive
and 125% of salary for ather
Executive Directors, Maximum
bonus is payabie for significant
over achievement of financial
and non financial benus
objectives.

Typically, no more than 50%

of the maximum bonus
opportunity will be payable for
achleving target performance.

The Committee sets
performance mcasures and
targets that arc appropriately
stretching each year, taking
INto account key strategic and
fimancial priorities and ensuring
therc is an appropriate

palance between incentivising
Executive Cirectars to meet
targets, whilc cnsuring they do
ot drive unacceptable lovels of
rsk or inappropriate behaviours,

Financiai measures may
inctude (but are not imited to)
underlying operating profit
and Simplified Working Capital,
Non-financial measures

may Include strategic
rneasures directly finked to

the Cormpdary's pnontios

A graduated scale of targets

15 normally set for each
measure, with no payout

for performance below a
threshold level of perfermance

The Cormnmittee has discretion
to amend the pay-cut should
any formulaic outcome not
refloct the Committee’s
assessment of overall business
or individual performance
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Element, purpose
and link to strategy

Operation

Maximum
opportunity

Performance
targets

Long Term
Incentive Plan

To motivate
Executives to deliver
Shareholder value
over the longer
erm.

Awards of conditional shares

or n'l-cost options are typrcally
granted annually, which vest
after three years dependent on
the achioverment of performance

conditions and continued service.

Vested awards arc subject to a
wo-year post vesting holding
period {net of tax, if applicable) in
respect of the'r vested awards.

Dividend equivalents may bc paid
in respect of awards to the extent

they vest by reference to dividends

declared during the award's

vesting pericd and holding period.

Malus and clawback may apply to

vested and unvested LTIR awards in
the event of material misstatement

of the Company's financial results,
an error of calculation or in the
event of scrious misconduct,
material reputational damage or
corporate fallure.

The Company's share schemes are

funded through a combination
of shares purchased in the
market and newly issued shares,
as appropriate. The Company
monitors the number of shares
issued under the schemes and
their impact on dilution limits.

The maximum award in respect

of any one financial year is an
award over sharcs of market
value at grant of 175% of salary.

The Lommities may increasc
the grantsize of an LTIP
award on grant (subject to
the maximum award limith if
the award terms inclucie that

participants bear the cost of the
Company's iability to employer's

Nationai Insurance arising on
the settlement of their awards.
The increased award size
ensures that the participants
arein a neutral position on an
after-tax basis, assuming no
change in tax rates.

The Company Is committed
o remaining within the
Investrment Association's 10%
dilution limit,

Performance metrics reflect
the Group's strategic goals and
milestoncs.

The performance conditions
rmay include, and are not
limited to, relative or absolute
TSR, carnings per share growth,
return based measures,
strategic measures and ESG-
related cbjectives.

The Committee retains

_ discretion to set alternative

weightings or performance
measures for awards granted
over the lifc of the policy

Threshold performance will
norrmally result in no mare than
25% of the award vesting.

The Committec retains
discretion to adjust vesting
levels taking into account
such factors as It considers
relevant, including, but

not limited to, the overall
performance of the Company
or the relevant Participant
who holds the Award

Shareholding
guidelines

To further aiign
the interests
of Executives
with those of
Shareholders.

Exocutive Directors are expected
to accumulate the required
shareholding requirement

Shares held which are no
longer subject to performance
conditions count towards the
reguirement {on a net of tax
basis, if applicable)

Executive Dircctors are reguired
to retain at least 50% of therr net
of tax vested share awards until
the in-employment sharcholding
guideline is met

The current Executive Directors  Not applicable.

arc required to builld up and
hold shareholdings to the value
of 250% of salary.

Any new Executive Directors
appointed will be required
to build up and hold
shareholdings to the value of
200% of salary

Post cessation: Executive
Directors are normally reguired
to hold shares at a level

equal to the lower of their
shareholding at cessation and
200% of salary, for two years
past-employment, from share
awards granted after the date
of approval by shareholders

of this policy This excludes

any shares vesting from share
pran awards made before such
approval and shares purchased
with own funds.




Notes to the remuneration policy table
Performance conditions and target setting

Each year, the Committee will determine the
weightings, measures and targets as well as timing of
grants and payments for the annual bonus and LTIP
clans within the approved remuneration policy and
relevant plan rules (or documents). The Committee
considers a numbper of factors which assist in forming
aview. These include, but are not iimited tg, the
strategic priorities for the Company over the shart to
long term, shareholder fecdback, tne risk profile of
the business and the macroeconomic climate.

The current Annual Bonus Scheme is measured
against a balance of profitability, cash managemaent
and the delivery of key strategic areas of importance
for the business, The profitability metric used for FY
2022/23 s adjusted underlying operating orofit and
the cash management metric is Simplified Werking
Capital

The LTIP measurcs currently used are EPS growth
targets and relative TSR Those measures were
identified as those maost relevant to driving
sustainable bottom-line business performance, as
well as providing value for shareholders,

Targets arc set against the annual and long-term
plans, taking into account analysts' forecasts, the
Company's strategic plans, prior year perfermance,
estimated vesting levels and the affordability of

pay arrangements. Targets are set to provide an
appropriate balance of risk and reward to ensure that,
while being motivational for participants, maximum

payments are only made for exceptional performance.

Discretions and judgements

The Committee will operate the annual bonus plan
and long-term incentive plan according to their
respective rules and ancillary documents. Consistent
witn market practice, the Committee has discretion
in a number of respects in relation to the operation of
each plan. Discretions include:

= Who participates in the plan;

= determining the timing of grants of awards and/or
paymaents;

s determining the quantum of an award and/or
payment;

a determining the extent of vesting;

- = how to deal with a change of control or

restructuring of the Group;

" = whether an Executive Director or a senior manager

is a good/bad leaver for incentive plan purposcs and
whether the proportion of awards that vest do so at
the time of leaving or at the normal vesting date(s);

s« how and whether an award may be adjusted in
certain circumstances (eg, for a rights issue, a
corporate restructuring or for special dividends);

= what the weighting, measures and targets should

be for the annual bonus plan and LTIP plans from
year tc year, and

i m the Committee also retains the ability within the

policy to vary and/or adjust targets and/for set
different measures or weightings for the annual
ponus plan and LTIP plans, if events occur that
cause it to consider it appropriate to do so, and, in
the case of the LTIP, any amended performance
conditions are not materially less challenging than
the criginal conditions would have been but for the
events in guestion.

Any discretion exercised by the Committee inthe

! adjustrment of performance conditions will be fully

i explained to sharehclders in the relevant report. If the
i discretion is material and upwards, the Committee

- will consult with major shareholders in advance.

" All historical awards that have been granted before
the date this policy carme into effect and still rernain

outstanding {including those detailed on page 127
of the Annual Report on Remuneration) and remain
eligible to vest based on their original award terms,

Recruitment (and appointment) policy

© The remuneration package for a new Executive

. Director would be set in accordance with the terms of
the Company's approved remuneration policy in force
! atthe time of appointment. Similar considerations
may also apply where a Director is promoted 1o the

i Board from within the Group.
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Element Recruitment policy

Base salary New Executive Director appointments will be offered a salary in line with the existing remuncration
policy. The Committee will take into account a number of factors, incluaing the current pay
for other Executive Directors, cxternai market forces, the expertise, skil.s and cxperience of the
ndividual and current level of pay.
Where the Committee has set the salary aof a new appointment at a discount 1o the market leve!
initially until proven, they may rece've an upiift o1 @ senes of planned increascs to bring the salary to
the appropriate market positicn over time,

Benefits Benefits provision would be in line with normal policy.
The Committee may agree that the Company will meet appropriate relocation costs and/for
incidental expenses as appropriate.

Pension Persion contribution {or a cash allowance in lieu of contribution) provision will be no more than the

general workforce contribution rate In place at the tme.

Annual bonus

Eligible to take part in the anrual bonus, with a maximum bonus opportunity not in excess of the
limits set out In the policy.

Depending on the timing of the appointment, the Committes may deem it appropriate to sct
different annual bonus performance conditions for the first performance year of appointment,

Long Term
Incentive Plan

An LTIP award may be granted upon appointment but not in excess of the lImits sct out in the policy.

An LTIP award may be made shortly following an appointment {assuming the Company is legally
permitted to do so).

Compensation
for forfeited
remuneration

The approach in respect of compensation for forfeited remuneration in respect of a previous
employer wili be considered on a case-by-case basis taking into account all relevant factors, such as
performance achieved or likely to be achieved, the proportion of the performance pericd remaining
and the form of the award.

The Committee retains the ability to make usc of the relevant Listing Rule to facilitate the "buy-out”
Any "buy out” awards would have a fair value no higher than the remuneration forfeited.

In the case of an internal appointment, any variable pay element awarded in respect of the prior role would
be aliowed to pay out according to its terms, adjusted as relevant 1o take INto account the appointment.

Chairman and non-
executive directors

For the appeintment af a new Chairman or Non Exccutive Director, the fee arrangement would
be set In accordance with the approved Remuneration Policy.




Notice period and payment for loss of office

It is the Company's policy that Executive Directors should have service contracts incorporating a maximum notice
pericd of one year. However, it may be necessary occasionally to offer longer initial notice periods to new Directors.
Under the terms of their service contracts, any termination payments are not predeterminad but are determined
in accordance with the Director's contractual nghts, taking account of the circurmnstances and the Director’s duty
to mitigate loss. The Company's objective is to manage its exposure to the risk of a potential termination payment.

Nuri-Executive Directors have letters of appointrment for a term of three years, subject to re-appointment
by sharenolders at each annual genera! meeting. In line with the UK Corporate Governance Code, they are
generally renewed for no maore than nine years in aggregate. Non-Executive Dircctors are not eligible for
payment on termination, other than payment to the end of their notice periods.

Date of original

Name Role

appointment

Expiry of current term

Malcolm Diamond Chairman

1 Novernber 2015

31 October 2024

Nick Jefferies Group Chief Executive

5January 2009

12 months by cither Director or Company

Simon Gibbins Craup Finance Directer

10 June 2810

12 months by cither Director or Company

Tracey Graham Nenh-Executive Director

1 Novermber 2015

31 October 2024

Rosalind Kainyah Noen-Executive Director

1January 2022

31 Decemboer 2024

Bruce Thompson Non-Executive Director

26 February 2018

25 February 2024

Clive Watson Non-Executive Director

2 September 2019

1 September 2022

Other than their service contracts, no contract of
significance, to which any member of the discoverlC
Croup is a party and in which a Director is or was
materially interested, subsisted at the end of, or
ouring, the year.

Termination payments for Executive Directors

On termination, the Company will normally make a
payment in lieu of notice {“PILON") which is equal to
the aggregate of the base salary and cash equivalent
of other benefits for the applicable notice period.

The Company may pay the PILON either as a lump
sum or in cgual monthly instalments, frorm the date
on which the employment terminates until the end
of the relevant period. If alternative employment is
commenced, for each month that instalments of the
PILON remain payable, the monthiy amount paid
may be reduced by the amount received from such
alternative empioyment.

IFidertified as a 'gooc legver’ for the purposes of the
bonus plan, the bonus pavout will be pro-rated based
on the Committee's reasonable assessment of the
achievement of the perfarmance measures in respect
of the relevant financial year.

The treatment of LTiP awards on termination will
be in accordance with the plan rules and, where
appropriate, at the discretion of the Committee.

" dentified as a 'goed leaver’ under the _TiPs and

' share option schemes' rules, {including those goad

" leavers identified as be:ng at the discretion of the
Committec), outstanding awards may be exercised,
normally pro rata for service up until the date of leaving
" and subject to the outcome cf the performance

i conditions, either on the normal release or on such

" carlier date as the Committee may determine.

i The Committee may alsc agree to make payments in
; respect of statutcry employment claims, reascnable

i legal fees, outplacerment and accrued hotiday or

D sick leave.

. Change of control or restructuring

1 On a change of control, all LTIP awards will be
released, subject to performance requirements and
will ordinarily be prorated according to completion of
. the vesting period. In line with market practice and

" the Plan rules, the final treatment of any awards is

subjoct to the discretion of the Committee.

Therg are no enhanced bonus provisions on a change
of control.
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Comparison with remuneration policy for
other employees

The Company's approach to salary reviews

is consistent throughout the Company with
consideration given Lo responsibility, experience,
performance, salary levels in comparable
organisations and the Company's ability to pay.

Differing bonus arrangements (which are normally
discretionary) operate elsewhcre in the organisation

and, subject to role, employees are entitled to benef 'ts .
“iirey refect ar individual's tire commmitment and
- responsibilities.

such as healthcare, car allowance (or Company-
funded vehicle), life assurance and critical iliness cover,

Fees for Non-Executive Directors

Fees for the Non-Executive Ditectors arc determined
on behalf of the Board by the Non-Executive
Directors’ Remuneration Committee. When
determining fees, due regard is given to fees paid to
Non-Executive Directors in other similarly-sized UK
guoted cormpanies, the time commitrment and the
responsibilities of the roles. Non-Executive Directors

cannot participate in any of the Company’s share

- incentive schemoes and no Directer is involved in
. any decision regarding their own remuneration.
. As disclosed on page 122 of this Annual Report and

Accounts, additional fees, over and above the base fee
payable to the Non-Executive Directors, are payable

for chairing the Audit & Risk, Remuneration and

Sustainability Committees and for acting as Senior
Independent Director.

Fees are normally reviewed annually to ensure that

External appointments

The Executive Directors are entitled to accept one
appointment outside the Group, provided that the

' Chairman's permission is obtained in advance of
accepting an appointmert and specific aporoval is

; given by the Board. Neither of the Executive Directors
" who served during the year held any non-executive

. appointments outside the Group.

Ilustrations of the application of the Executive Directors’ remuneration policy
The bar charts below illustrate some possible outcomes of the application of the policy (approved by
shareholders at the annual gencral meeting on 29 July 2021) for the year ending 31 March 2023

Group Chief Executive

Group Finance Director

£3000 4 £589 £1,194 £2,245 £2,691 £3,000 — £372 £N4 £1,323 £1,590
e2mo ! ! ! g0 1 ! ! !
£2,500 — £2,500
£2,250 £2,250
£2,000 o £2,000 -
£1750 0% 33% £1750
8 s1s00 8 1500
5 e
W £1250 W 1250
A0% 34%
£1.000 £1,000 —
£750 £750 -
£500 - £500
£250 £250
£0 £0 -
Minimum  On-target  Maximum  Max with Minimum  On-target  Maximum  Max with
growth growth
@®rixed @ Annual Bonus Long-term incentive ™ Sharc price growth
i rura nthe par cnars aoove s Dxec rarrure2uun only | eosalory pons on and ceretits 25 o sclased c e s ¢ gure tatle!

¢+ Target assumes that 25% of the LTIP awarg vests {based on an awaro with a face value of 175% and 160% of salary for the Greup Chief
Executive and Group Finance Directar respectively) and bonuses have been earnea at the target levels [75% of salary for the Group Chief
Executive and 62 5% of salary for the Group Finance Director).

5 Maximum assumes that the Long Term Incentive Pian [“LTIRP" awara vests in full {based on an awara with a face value of 175% and 160%
of salary for the Group Chief Executive ana Group Finance Director} and the maximam bonas [150% and 125% of salary for the Groap Chief
Executive and Group Finance Directar) have been carned.

« Maxrmum plus share price growth -this s basca an the maximum scenario set out above but with a 50% sha e price increase applied to the
valuc of LTI awaras



Projected values do not take into account dividend
accrual or additional awards granted as a result of
any agreement by an Exccutive Director to incur the
Company's liability to employers’ National Insurance.

Consideration of employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group

Tne remuneration policy, which has been implemented
for the current Executive Directors, is more weighted
towards performance-related pay than for other
employees. The reasen for this is to cstablish a clear
link between remuncration received by the Executive
Directors and the creation of shareholder value.

As mentioned on page 113 of this Annual Report and
Accounts, when setting the policy the Committee
takes account of pay and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group, but has not used any
remuneration comparison measures between the
Executive Directars and other employeces.

Employee Engagement

As outlined on pages 75 and 90, there are a range
of employee engagement initiatives in place
across the CGroup and, as part of this employee
engagement, the Company explains how its
strategy links to remunecration and provides the
opportunity for employees to ask guestions and

' provide feedback on that strategy. In addition 1o those

existing mechanisms, during the year the Group

" consulted specifically on UK pensions provision. That

consultation reflected on both the need to improve

- pensions for our staff, as well as wider inflationary

pressures (both in the UK and globally). The outcome
of that review was g increase in pensIch provision
across the UK workforce. Additionally, management
was consulted globalty in preparation for the

. publication of the Croup's Human Rights Policy
" lavaiiable at www.discoverieplc.com), in which the
Croup states that it is committed to paying wages

at rates that arc meaningfully ahcad of minirmum

¢ statutary rates.

: Consideration of Shareholder views

The Committee’s policy is to receive updates on

! the views of shareholders and their representative

- bodies on best practice, and take these into account.
"t secks the views of key shareholders on matters

of remuneration in which it belicves they may be

| interested. This includes & comprehensive sharehalder
! consultation excrcise undertaken with the Group's

i largest shareholders in determining the changes

: applied to this Directors’ Remuneration Policy.
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ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION

Information subject to audit

The table below shows the total remuneration carned by executive directors for the year ended 31 March 2022
and the prior year,

Single total figure of remuneration for each Executive Director {audited)

Salary Benefits' Pension? Total Fixed Bonus® LTip* Total Variable Total
£000 £000 £000 Remuneration £000 £000 Remuneration £000
Nick FY22 490 n 74 575 735 1,270 2,005 2,580
Jefferies Fyp 443 M 62 516 333 368 1,201 1,777
Simon FY22 326 12 2] 359 407 703 1,10 1,469
Gibbins v 295 12 18 324 178 442 620 944

Taxaole cemof ts cormpr.se 27 alfowance 128000 cach) and fa~ily medical irsurarce ~—e tatal vaiue of nerefits for 2022 were £'1,388 and
£11.85%6 for Nick Jefferies and Siman Cibbins respectively.

» Pension in the year unaer revicw for Nick Jefferies and Simon Gibbins was paid as cash in hed of pension and was egual to 15% anag 6.5% of
salary respectively.

s For performance in the year under review, a bonus of 150% and 125% of salary was earned by Nick Jefferies ana Simon Gibbins, respectively.
Further getails of performance against the targets can be found on pages 123 1o 124, In accoroance with the Remuneration Policy, 20% of
these bonuses will he i the farm of ceferrea shares The values n the above table Include the cash ana deferred elements in ne with the
reparting recdirements. No discretion was applied by the Remuneration Committee.

+ The LTIP award grantea to Nick Jeffernies ana Simon Cibbins on 30 April 2012 vested 1n full on 30 April 2022 Further detarls of parformance
againist the targets can be founa on page 125 Of the FY22 LTIP values shown in the table above [which are based on the share price at 30
April 2022 of £764), £570,189 of Nick Jefferies ana £315581 of Simon Gibbins, 1s attnbutcd 1o share price growth over the vesting perioa No
discretion was applied by the Remuneration Committee Dividenas will accrue on these awards between the date of vesting and oxercise.

Singie total figure of remuneration for Non-Executive Directors (audited)

Basic fee? Committee Chair fees 515 fee Total

Fy22 Fy21 FY22 Fy21 Fy22 FY21 FY22 F¥21

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

Malcolm Diamond 147,000 133,000 - - 147,000 133,000
Tracey Graham 48,300 43,700 8,400 7600 - - 56,700 51,300
Rosalind Kainyah' 12,075 - - - - 12,075 -
Bruce Thompson 48,300 43700 _ - 8,400 7600 56,700 51,300
Ciive Watson 48,300 43,700 8,400 7.600 - - 56,700 51,300

Jainca the Board on 1 January 2022
. Each of the Executive ana Non-Execative Directors agreed to a 20% reduction in their base fees for the three-rmonth peniod frem June 2020
tc August 2020.
Incentive outcomes for Executive Directors for the year ended 31 March 2022
Annual bonus in respect of performance for the year
The maximum bonus apportunity for the year under review was 150% and 125% of salary for the Group Chief
Executive and the Group Finarce Director respectively. Annual bonuses for the year under review were based
on a sliding scale of operating profit targets (60%), simplified working capital (24%) and the achicvernent of
non-financial objectives (16%).

Based on the strong performance during the year, both the profit performance and Simplified Working Capital
were above the maximum target and non-financial objectives were determined Lo have been met in full This
performance has resulted in bonuses of 100% of maximum.



Further details, including the targets sct and performance against each of the metrics, are provided in the

table below:

Target Maximum Bonus earned
Weighting Threshold' (50% payable] (100% payable) Actual (% of maximum)

Croup underlying cperating
orohit (Lr)? 60% [£2946m £33.7m £37.9m £41.4m 100%
SWC A 24% 231% 22.0% 209% 20.7% 100%
[~dividual objectves = 6% see below 100%
Qutcome (% of max) 100%

Threshold payout unger the underlying operating profit target is 10% of salary for both directors ana uncer the Simplified Working Capita:

measure Is nil

+ Auoited information

s Simplifiea Working Capitat (SWC} is calculatea based on the average of trace payables and receivaibles and inventories across the financaial
year, as a percentage of total Group revenue (for continding operations)

Each Executive Director was given a nurmber of individual non-financiat objectives, tailored to their role and to
business requirernents in the year under review. Nick Jefferies and Simon Gikbbins each achicved their non-

financial cbjectivas in full.

Nick Jefferies

Objective Performance Assessment
Develop growth drivers for achieving 5-year ptan  Record levels of organic growth and design wins Achieved
(organic growth and acquisitions) Three key acquisitions
Develop ESG initiatives, implementation and Target markets aligned to UN SDCs Achieved
reporting (including target markets, carbon Carbon reduction plan making good progress
initiatives, reporting analytics, annual report ) ) .
development for sustainability and sociat Energy audit and |SO accreditation plans 'n place
initiatives) Initial TCFD reporting included in the Annual Report
and publication of updated ESGC-aligned policies
Increased diversity at Head Office and 1in senior
Group management
Increase sales in target markets in line with Target market sales increase to 76% of Group Achieved
KS| objectives revende
Develop international investor base Non-UK investors increased by 5% Achieved
New Investor Relations and ESG executive appointed  Achieved

Develop organisation to support growth
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Simon Gibbins

Objective Performance Assessment
Ensure adequacy of group funding for growth Extension of the Group's revolving credit facility Achieved

secured (£240m, plus £80m accordion, to June 2027)
Develop ESG initiatives, implementation and Increased resocurce & investment in carbon reduction Achieved
reporting Initiatives

Updated Policies, including Supplier Code of

Conduct, Conflict Minerals Policy, Human Rights

Policy, revised Anti-Bribery & Corruption Pragramme,

extended schedule of supplier audits

New internal controls, including updated Group

Accounting Manual, detailed Senior Accounting

Officer review
Develop international investor and analyst base Non-UK investors increased by 5% Acheved
Further develop internai audit function and Additional resource recruited into Risk & internal Achieved
resource Audit team and tax teams
Manage increased tax scrutiny as a ‘large’ business Successful subsidiary rsk and anu-bribery and Achieved

corruption reviews completed

Planning and initial actvities undertaken in
preparation for the impact of the UK's audit and
governance reform proposals as set cut in the BEIS
consultation published on 18 March 2021 {'UK Sox')

The Committes assessed those achievernents against the pre-set persenal objectives and in the context of overall
pusiness performance and decided to award Nick Jefferies and Simon Gibbins a full payout for this clement of
their respective bonuses. This means that, in total for the year under review, Nick Jefferies earned a bonus of 150%
of his salary and Simon Gibbins carned a bonus of 125% of his salary. In accordance with the Rermuneration Policy,
20% of all bonuses are deferred into shares, as follows:

Bonus Bonus Deferred share

Bonus outcome opportunity outcome Cash element element

{% of maximum) {% of salary) (£) (£) BO% {£) 20%

Nick Jefferies 100% 150% F£735138 £588110 £147,028
Simon Gibbins 100% 125% £406,875 £325,500 £81375

The deferred shares will vest three years after grant. Other than the malus and ciawback terms referred to on
page 115, there are no conditions, whether performance or non-performance related, attached to these shares.



2019 LTIP vesting (audited)

LTIP Awards were granted on 30 April 2018 to Nick Jefferies and Simon Gibbins with vesting dependent on
relative TSR performance against a comparator group made up of constituents of the FTSE Small Cap index
(1/3), absolute TSR in excess of CPI (1/3) from 31 March 2019 to 31 March 2022 and the growtn in EPS between the
year ended 31 March 2019 and the year ended 31 March 2022 (1/3). The specific targets were as follows

Relative TSR ranking against the FTSE Small Cap (1/3 weighting)

Relative TSR ranking against peers % of award vesting Actual perfarmance
Upper quartile (or above) 100% discoverlE's TSR over the pericd
- - . : was 104.5% i nked the
Between median and upper Straight-line vesting between coam an .OV\;:‘Ch e ro Lartile of
quartiic 25% and 100% pany In the upper g
the peer group.
Beloew median performance 0%

100% vesting

Absolute TSR performance (1/3 weighting)

Absolute TSR performance % of award vesting Actual performance

Equal to or above CPI +30ppts 100% discoverlt's TSR over the period
Between CP| +10ppts and CPI Straight-linc vesting between g;i;?;pafs\ﬁ"hmh was in excess of
+30ppts 25% and 100% :

Below CPl «10ppts 0% 100% vesting

EPS Performance (1/3 weighting)
EPS growth from FY18 to FY21 % of award vesting Actual performance

Egual to or above 12ppts pa 100% 12.9ppts growth over the three-
year period

Between Sppts pa and 12ppts pa Straight-line vesting between
25% and 100% 100% vesting

Below Sppts pa 0%

The disposal of Acal BFi was announced on 9 Novermber 2021 and completed on 3 March 2022, shortly before
the year end. Given that Acal BFi was part of the Group for the majority of FY 2021/22, the EPS condition was
measured by including Acal BFi for the whole of the base year (as it was within the Group for the whole of
that year) and for 11 months of the final year (ie., up to the date of disposal). The growth over the period is
12.9%p.a. which is higher than the maximum hurdle. Therefore, this elerment of the award aiso vested in full.
No discretion was applied. This element of the award would also have vested in full if Acai BFi had been fully
removed from the calculations.

The three performance measures were met in full and therefore all of the 2019 LTIP award vested. The vested
awards are subject to a two-year holding period, during which period dividends will accrue on the vested
awards. No dividends accrued between the date of grant and vesting.
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Share awards made during the year {(audited)
The following LTIP awards were granted on 29 July 2021

Threshold Maximum
vesting vesting End of
Face value as % Number (24 of (% of performance
Director of salary Face value' of shares face value) face value) period
Nick Jefferies 150% 735137 74,482 Z1 March 2024
L 25% 100%
Simon Gibbins 135% £439.425 44 521 31 March 2024

The face valae of the awards 1s basca on a share price of £9 87, being the three day average share price directly prior to the grant of the award

In addition to the grants sct out above, 12 413 awards were granted te Nick Jefferies and 7441 awards were
granted to Simon Gibbins (with a face value of £122 516 and £73,443 respectively, based on a share price of
£987), in return for them bearing the Company's liability to employer’s National Insurance arising on the
exercise of such grants. The additional awards ensure they arc in a neutral position on an after-tax basis,
assurming unchanged tax rates. The awards were granted on the same date and undcer the same conditions as
those set out in the table above,

Vesting of these awards is subject to the following performance conditions:

Relative TSR ranking against the FTSE Small Cap excluding Investment Trusts {50% weighting)

Relative TSR ranking against peers % of award vesting

Upper guartile {or above) 100%

Between median and upper quartile Straight-line vesting between 25% and 100%
Below median performance 0%

EPS Growth (50% weighting)

EPS Growth % of award vesting

Equal to or above 12ppts péer annum 100%

Between 5ppts and 12ppts per annum Straight-line vesting between 25% and 100%
Below 5ppts per annum C%

Performance is measured over three years from 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2024 using, for the TSR measure, share
prices averaged over the previous month, prior to the start and end of the performance period. In the case of
EPS Growth, perfoarmance will be measured from FY 2020/21 to FY 2023/24 Vested shares will be subject to an
additional two-ycar holding pericd.

Deferred bonus share awards: As part of the terms of the bonus relating to FY2020/21, 20% of Nick Jefferies’
annual bonus was deferred into shares On 25 June 2021, 3,703 shares were acauired at a price of £9.44 per share
{representing 20% of the FY 2020/21 bonus nat of tax).

Pension arrangements {(audited)
The Company does rot operate a defired berefit pension scherme for Sxeculive Directors. Pension contribut-ons/
cash allowances for the Executive Directors are set out in the policy table on page 135 of this Report.



Directors’ interests under the Long-Term Incentive Plans
Movements in the Executive Directors holdings of mil-cost options under the LTIPs during the year are shown
below. The performance criteria for the LTIPs are set out on page 126.

Share

Movements during the year Number Vested value at

Number held held at but not 31.03.22
at 31.03.22 Granted Vested Exercised Lapsed 31.03.21 exercised £ When exercisable
Nick (4] - 245192 245192 0 o] N/A
Jefferies 0 - - 223567 - 223567 o o N/A
242,788(v)* - - - 242788 242788 1933169 Mar 2022 to Mar 2027
123,998(v}* - - 123998 123998 977104 Mar 2023 to Mar 2028
166,236(v)* - 166,236 - 166236 166236 1309940  Apr 2024 to Apr 2029
127,039(nv}® - - - 127039 - 1,001,067  Jul2025tc Jun 2C30
T4,482 (nv) 74,482 - - - - - 586918 Jul 2026 to Jul 2031
Simon os - 120092 120,192 0 o} N/A
Cibbins o - - 08437 - 98437 o o N/A
106,900(v)"° - - 06200 106900 842,372  Mar 2022 to Mar 2027
63,1900\ - - — 83190  B3190 497837 Mar 2023 to Mar 2028
92,006(v)7 ™+ - 92006 - - 92,006 92006 725007 Apr2024tc Apr2029
62,500(v)" - - 52,500 492500  Jul 2025 to Jun 2030
44,521 (nv)e 44,521 - - - - - 350,825 Jul 2026 to Jul 203)

(v}~ vesteda, (nv) = non vestea
The awaro, In the form of a ril cos: apTion over 245192 shares Ir the Corrpary was made 1o Nick Sefferies on 31 Marce 2015 The performanrce coraitions
attacheg 1o the award resulteo ir 100% vesting or 31 March 2018 These optiors were oxercised on 7 Decembear 2021
. The awaro, in the form of a nil-cost option over 223,567 skares ir the Cormpanry was madce 10 Nick Jefferies or 31 March 2016 The performance
corditiors attached to the award resultea in 100% vesting or 31 March 2019 These opliors weare exercised on 28 March 2027
The awaro. 10 tre form of a nil-cos: option over 242 788 shares ir the Corrpany was made 1o Nick Jefferies or 31 Marck 2017 The performance
corditiors attached to the award resultea 1in 100% vesting or 31 March 2020
The awarg. ir the form of a nil-cost option over 163,371 skares ir the Company was made 1o Nick Zefferies on 29 March 2018 The performance
corditions attached o the award resuitea in 75 9% vesting (123 398 options) on 29 March 2021
: The awara, in the form of a nib cost oplion over 186,236 shares Ir the Company was rmade to Nick Jefferies or 30 Apnl 2013 The performance cordiiions
atiached to the award resultea in 100% vesting or 20 April 2022
5 Ar adormional award of 13985 nil cost optiors was made on 30 Jure 2020 such that Nick Sefferies 1s 1n a net neutral position after tax, assuming
urchanged tax rates, as a result of his agrecrren: to take an a praportior of the Compary's lability 1o employer's Natioral insurarce on the Jure 2020
awara This s additior to the 127032 shares se” out above and 1s subjoct 1o the sarre vesting and exercise conaitions
Ar additioral awara of 12,413 ril-cost options was made or 29 Suly 2021 such that Nick Jeferies 1s1n a net neutral pos:tior after tax, assumirg
urcharged tax rates, as a result o° s agreerment 1o take on a proporuon of the Cormmpary's lability to errployer's hatoral Insurance or the July 201
awarg This s in agdition 1o the 74,482 shares set ou: above ard 1s subject 1o the same vesting ara exercise conatiors
¥ The award, 0 the form of a ril-cost optior over 12092 shares in the Cormpanry was rmade to Simor Cibbirs on 31 March 2015 The performance
conaitions attachea o the awaro resutted ir 100% vosting on 31 March 2020 Those options were exercised on 7 Decemrber 2021
1 The award, in the “arm of a nil cost oprior over 98437 shares In the Campary was maae 1o Simor Cibbirs on 31 March 2016 The performmarce
conalzions attaches to the awara resulted ir 100% vesting on 31 March 2020 Thesc options wera exercisea or 25 Marce 2022
Tre award, 1n the “orm of a nil-cost aptior over 106,300 shares in the Cormpany was made to Simaor Cibbins or 3t Marck 2017 The performarce
conaitions attacheqa o the awara resulied 10 100% vesting on 31 March 2020
The awara, in the “arm of a nil-cost optian over B3 255 shares ir the Company was madc 10 Simor Cibbirs or 29 March 2018, The perforrrarce
conditions atzached o the award rosulien ir 75 9% vestirg 163190 options) or 29 Marck 2071
Ar aoortional award Gf 13,216 ril-cost oplions was maac or 29 March 2018 such that Simon Cibbirs s 1n a ret neutral position ater tax, assumirg
unchangeo tax rates, as a result of bis agreement to take or the Company's ability to errployer's hational Irsurarce o the March 2018 awara 75 9%
of the 2018 award vosted or 23 March 2021, mearirg 63120 options “rom the 'base award' vesteg ard 20,065 options fram the ‘basc awara’ lapsed, ard
10,562 options from the Nl element vestes and 3353 options ‘rom the Nl element lapsco
The awara, in the form of a rit cost option over 92 006 shares in the Compary was made ta Simon Giboins or 30 Apnl 2019 The performance
corditiors attached o the award resultea 10 100% vesurg on 30 April 2072
Ar aadrioral award o° 15,379 fil ¢O8T OpTIONS was maac on 30 Aprit 2019 suck that Simor Gibbins 1s ir a net reutral position afier tax, assurring
urcrarged tax rates, as a result of his agreement to take or the Corrpary's lablty 1o oreployer's hatonal Insurance or the Aprl 2019 award Thssim
aoditonr to the 92,006 shares s¢3 cut above
w Ar aoditioral awarg of 10,446 nil-cost options was rmade on 30 Zune 2020 suck that Sirror Cibins 151 a et reutral positior after tax, assuming
urcharged tax rates, as a result of his agreement 10 take or the Corrpary's llability to ermployer's National Insurance or the jure 2070 award Thisisin
agaition to the 62,500 skharcs st out above arao 13 subject to the same vostirg ard exercise condiions
Ar agaitioral awaro of 7441 cil cost opLars was made on 29 July 2021 suchk that Sirmon Gibbirs 1s 10 a net neutral positior after tax, assurmirg
uncharged tax raies, as a result of his agreement to take or the Comrpary's llability to ermpioyer's Natonal Insurance or The July 2021 award Thisisir
aoaimion to thre 44521 shares set cut above ana s sub,ect 1o the same vesting ara exercise conaitiors

s

E
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Directors’ interests (audited)

fhe nteresis o Lthe [Drectors, who held offce as at 31 Marcen 2022 (including family interosts) in crdirary shares
{fully paid, 5p) of the Company, were as follows:
Shares held at 31 March 2022

Nil cost
options Nil cost options
vested but vested but Nil cost options
not exercised subject to subject to Unencumbered Value of current
Unencumbered and outside of additional performance  shares held at shareholding
shares holding period holding period conditions 31 March 2021 (% of salary)
Nick Jefferies 1,241,830 242788 290,234 201,521 881,400 2744%
Simon Gibbins 388,264 106,900 1551296 107,021 267489 1.536%
Tracey Graham 10,330 - - - 9,358
Malcclm Diamond 30,962 - - - 27316
Bruce Thompscon 45000 - - 25,000
Clive Watson 19,125 - - - 12,500
Rosalind Kainyah 656 - - -

Nick Jefferies holds 1222 477 shares outright. In ine with the Remuneration Policy, 20% of the FY 2018/19 ta Fy 2020/21 bonuses were deferred Nt
shares. The figure of 1241830 includes the shares bought with those deferreo bonusces, which were 9694, 5956 ana 3,703 shares respectively

+ Options subject to the agditional holding period are not capable of exercise. No further performance conaitions apply.

The interests of all Directors at 1June 2022 are unchanged from those at 31 March 2022, The values of current
shareholdings for Nick Jefferies and Simon Gibbins have been valued using the share price as at 31 March 2022
of 788p and include all options that have vested and are based on salaries as at 1 June 2022.

Executive Directors are required to build up/maintain a shareholding of at least 200% of satary, including LTIP
shares where perfarmance conditions ne longer apply, within five years. Both of the Executive Directors have
met the current shareholding requirements. in accordance with the remuneration policy, Executive Directors are
reguired to build up/maintain a shareholding of at least 250% of salary within scven years. Both of the Executive
Directors meet the shareholding requirements. The figures for shares/it cost options subject to performance
conditions exclude any additional awards to Executive Directors in respect of employer's National Insurance.

Dilution

The Company's share schemes are funded through a combination of shares purchased in the market and
newly issued shares, as appropriate. The Company monitors the number of shares issued under the schemes
and their impact on dilution limits.

As at 31 March 2022, approximately 4.20m shares (51% in the last ten years) have been, or may be, issued to settle
awards made in the last ten years in connection with all share schemes and executive share schemes, raspectively.
The Company is committed te rermaining within The Investrment Association's 10% in 10 years dilution limit.

Payments for loss of office (audited)
There were no payments for loss of office during the year.

Payments to past Executive Directors (audited)
There were no payments to past Executive Directors during the year.
This represents the end of the audited section of the Report.

Pay for performance

The graph below shows Total Shareholder Return (TSR) in terms of change in value (with dividends deemed

to be reinvested gross on the ex-dividend date) of an initial investment of £100 on 1 April 2012 between that
date and 3! March 2022 in a holding of the Company's sharcs, compared with the corresponding TSR ina
hypothetical holding of £10C invested in the FTSE 250 Index. This index has been updated from the FTSE
SmallCap index shown in previous reports to reflect the Company's entry into the FTSE 250. The index has een
chosen pecause it is considered to be a reasonable comparator in terms of the Company's size and its share
liguidity. The accompanying table details the Group Chief Exccutive's single figure of remuncration and actual
variable pay outcomes over the same period.
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Group Chief Executive single figure of total remuneration history
Note: The Company's share price was adjusted following the rights issue in June 2014

Nick Jefferics was Group Chief Executive throughout the period shown in the table below.

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Single figure of total
remuneration (£'000) 99 572 1,246 1321 665 1,803 1796 2093 1717 2,580

Salary (£'000} 320 320 330 425 479 438 453 467 443 490
3onus cutcome

(% of maximurmj} 20 55 59 G0 435 637 6272 62.0 601 100
LTIP outcome

(5 of maximum| 88 9 100 100 - 1006 100 00 759 100
Turnover (£m) 177 212 27 288 338 3879 4389 4664 4543 3792
Underlying

cperating profit

(Em)

3 7 13 6 20 245 306 37 352 41.41

Continuing oporations
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! Group Chief Executive remuneration

Annual Percentage Change in Remuneration of Directors and employees

As required by the 2019 regulations, the table below shows a comparison of the annuzl change of each

i individual Director’s pay to the annual change in average UK employee pay. discoverlE Group plc has no
ermrployces itself and therefore the Committee has selected this comparator group on the basis that the
Executive Directors are UK-based. Average employee pay is based on a Fuil Time Equivalent {FTE) calcu:ation.

% change from 2020 to 2021 % change from 2021 to 2022

. Salary or fees Benefits Bonus Salary or fees Benefits Bonus
: Employees 5% 0% 449 5% 0% 153%
Executive Directors

| Nick Jefferies 5% -3% -8% n% 2% 121%
Simaon Gibbins -5% -3% -8% %' 2% 129%
Non-Executive Directors

| Malcolm Diamond 5% - - 9% - -
Tracey Graham -5% - 1%’ - -
' Rosalind Kainyah n/a? - - nfa: - -
" Bruce Thombson -5% - - 1% - -

' Clive Watson -59% - - N% - -

Salanes ana fees for the year enced 31 March 2027 woere voluntanly reduced by all Directors by 20% for three months in ight of the
pandermic, as explained in last year's Report Without that reduction, the underlying increase in salary and fees was 5%.

. 7 Joined the Boarc in January 2022,

" CEO pay ratio

* The table below scts out the pay ratios for the Group Chief Executive in relation to the equivaient pay for the

" lower quartile, median and uppcr guartile employees (caiculated on a full-time basis). The principal reason

. for the changes between 2020, 20721 and 2022 are the changces in the overall remuneration of the Group Chief

Executive, with a voluntary reduction in salary and bonuses in 2021 and a fuli payout this year.

. Year Method 25th percentile pay ratio Median pay ratio 75th percentile pay ratio
;2022 Cption B 171 681 441
2021 Cption B 631 47 251
2020 Cpticn B 831 571 400

The Company determinca the remuneration figdres for the employee at each quartile with reference to a cate of 31/3/22.

i 7 The Group usea calcdlation method B as the Gender Pay Gap oata 15 already collatea for UK employees and was therefore readily avalable
s Fallowing a review, the Committec was satisfieo that the three indnaduals reported on are representative of the lower quartile, median and

upper guartile employees No adjustrments or estimates wore Jsed

Set out in the table below is the total pay and bencfits as weil as the salary component of remuneration for the
| employees iaentified as being at the relevant percentiles.

£ 25th percentile Median 75th percentile
Salary 20,063 30104 50,141
| Total pay and benefits 22,109 37977 58,426

| importance of the spend on pay
' The table below shows the importance of the spend an pay for all employees across the globe compared

with the returns distributed to shareholders, during the year under review and the prior financial year.
The mnformation s based on like-for-like constant currency and incluaes annualised prior year acquisitions

2022 2021 change

£ £m £m %
Remuneraticn paid to or receivable by all employees 841 70.0 +20%
Distributions to shareholders by way of dividends {net of share issues) 9.4 28 +236%

discoverlE Group plec  Innovative Electronics
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| Statement of implementation of the remuneration policy in the financial year ending 31 March 2023
The table below sets out a surmmary of how the remuneration policy will apply during 2022/23.

Remuneration element Remuneration for year ending 31 March 2023

Base salary w Salaries for FY 2022/23 are;

- £509,695 for the Group Chief Exccutive (4% increase).
- £333638 for the Group Finance Director (2 5% increase).

The UK workforce increase was ¢.4-5% and higher increases of up to 15% were made
in certain overseas territaries the Group operates in.

Pension » Cash eguivalent of 15% of salary for Group Chief Executive until 31 December 2022 and
reducing to 8% from 1January 2023 (in line with the majority of the UK workforce).
The Group Finance Director's pension wi'l increase from 6.5% 1o 8.0% of salary.

= Any new or promoted Executive Dircctors will have a pension contribution of 8.0%
of salary, which is in line with the majority of the UK workforce.

Annual bonus » The maximum bonus cpportunity will be 150% of salary for Group Chief Exccutive

and 125% of salary for Group Finance Director.

= Target bonus opportunity is 50% of maximum.

s« Performance metrics are based 60% on operating profit, 24% on simplified working
capital, 8% on strategic objectives, and 8% on environmncntal, social and governance
(“ESG") matters. Due to the close link between targets and the long-term strategy,
the bonus targets for the year ending 3! March 2023 have not been disclosed in this
report due to commercial sensitivity. However, further information on these bonus
targets will be disclosed in next year's Annual Regort and Accounts.

= Mandatary deferral of 20% of any bonus earned into discoveriE shares for a period
of three years.

LTip s [TIP awards for FY 2022/23 will be rmade in line with policy, with grant sizes of 175%
of salary for the Group Chicf Executive and 160% of salary for the Croup Finance
Director. The Remuneration Committee has considered whoether any agjustment
to the award level is required as a result of share price movement and concluded
that no adjustrment is required, refrecting the Group's high growth over a multi-
year period. :

» Porformance metrics and targets will be based 50% on underlying EPS growth and .
50% on Relative TSR, :

s The EPS range has been increased for the second consecutive year and will reguire -
growth of 5%p.a. for threshold vesting and 13%p.a. growth for full vesting. Vesting ;
of the EPS clement shatl also be subject to an underpin requiring the Committee
to be satisfied with the Group’s annual rate of return on capital employed (ROCE])
over the measurement period.

s The TSR peer group will be the FTSE 250 (excluding investment trusts). Threshold
vesting (25%) will apply for median performance and full vesting (100%) will reguire
upper quartile or higher.

Sh?relfolding = Ashareholding guideline of 200% of saiary applies for the Group Chief Executive
guidelines and Group Finance Director, to be achieved within five years and 250% after
SOVeN Years.

Aoditicnal awards may be granted to the Group Finance Directar i return for bim bearing some of the Company's lability to Employer's
National Insarance ansing on the oxercise of tne grant referrec to above. The aco teral award ensdres that heis in a neutral position on an
after tax basis, assdming nc change in the tax rate

Annual Report and Accounts for tre yoar orded 31 ¥arch 2077 “
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The fees for the Non-Executive Directors increased with effect from 1 April 2022, as follows:

Committee

Basic fee Chair fee SID fee Total
As at1April 2022 (£} (£) (£} £
Malcolm Diamondg 156,000 - 156,000
Tracey Graham 50,000 10,000 - 60,000
Rosalind Kainyah 50,000 10,000 - 60,000
Bruce Thompson 50,000 10,000 60,00C
Clive Watson 50,000 10,000 - 60,000

Role of the Remuneration Committee

The Committee is responsible for considering and making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of the Executive Directors. In doing so, it reports to the Board on how it has discharged its
responsibilities and operates within agreed terms of reference which can be found on the Group's website.

The Committee also considers the recommendations of the Group Chief Executive with regard to the
mempbers of the Group Executive Committee who are not Executive Directors, in determining their
remuneration packages, including bonuses, incentive payments, share options and other share-based awards.
The Group Company Secretary provides administrative support.

Advisers

During the year, the Committee received independent advice on executive remuneration from FIT
Remuneration Consultants LLP ("FIT"). FIT were appointed by the Committee in 2019 following a competitive
tender process. FIT is a signatory to the Remuneration Ceonsultants’ Code of Conduct. FIT dees not provide
any services other than advice to the Remuneration Committee and the Committee considers FIT to be
independent and ohjective. The fees paid to FIT for advising the Committee for the financial year ended

31 March 2022 wore 241667 based partly on a fixed fee basis and partly bascd en ume spenit

Sharehoider voting

As at1 April 2022 For' Against Withheld?
2021 binding vote on the Directors' 69,269,506 94 65% 3.914,398 5.35% Nn7514
Remuneration Potlicy

2021 Approval of the Remuneration Report 71,560,905 97.78% 1,623,000 222% 117,513
(exc!. Policy)

Includes votes at the Charrman's aiscretion
> Avote "withheld" 1s not 3 vote 1n law, and 15 not counted In the calculation of the proporucn of votes for ana against the resolution



STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS'
RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT
OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

© The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual
Report and the financial statements in accordance
" with applicable ltaw and regulation.

Company iaw requires the directors to prepare
financial statements for each financial ycar. Under
that law the directors have prepared the group
financial staterments in accordance with UK-adopted
international accounting standards and the company
financial statements in accerdance with United
Kingdom Ceneral'y Accepted Accounting Practice

" {United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising
FRS 101 "Reduced Disclosure Framework”, and
applicable law}.

Undecr company law, directors must not approve the
financial staterments unless they arc satisfied that
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the group and company and of the profit or loss of
the group for that period. In preparing the financial
statements, the directors are reguired to:

» scloct suitable accounting peolicies and then apply
them consistently;

s state whether applicable UK-adopted internationat
accounting standards have been followed for
the group financial statements and United
Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising
FRS 101 have been followed for the company
financia' statements, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial
statements;

» make judgements and accounting estimates that
are reasonabie and prudent; and

= orepare the financial statements on the going
concern basis unless it is inappropriate Lo presume
that the group and company will continue in
business.

The directors are responsibe for safeguarding the
assets of the group and company and hence for

! taking reasonable steps for the prevention and

" detection of frauc and other irregularities.

The directors are aisc responsible for keeping

i adeguate account’ng records that are sufficient

i to show and explain the group’s and company's

| transacticns and disclose with reasonalle accuracy

, at any time the financial position of the group

! and company and cnable thermn to ensure that the

" financia! statements and the Directors Remuneration
' Report comply with the Companies Act 2006.

The directors arc responsicle for the maintenance
Cand integrity of the company’s website. Legislation in
the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may c¢iffer from
| legistation in other ;urisdictions.

| Directors' confirmations

| The directors consider that the Annual Report

© and accounts, taken as a whoie, is fair, balanced

and understandable and provides the information

" necessary for shareholders to assess the group's and
company’s position and performance, business model -
and strategy.

Each of the directors, whose names and functions are
! listed in Corporate Governance report confirm that, to -
. the best of their knowlcdge:

' w the group financial statements, which have

been prepared in accordance with UK-adopted
international accounting standards, give a true and
fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position
and profit of the group;

w the company financial staterments, which have

been prepared in accordance with United
Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS
101, give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilitics
and financial position of the company, and

» the Strategic Repert includes a fair review of the

development and performance of the business and |
the position of the group and company, together
with a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties that it faces.



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO
THE MEMBERS OF discoverlE GROUP PLC

Report on the audit of the
financial statements

QOpinion
In cur opinion:

m discoverlE Group plc’s group financial staterrents
and Cormpany Financial Statements (the “Financial
Statements”) give a true and fair view of the state
of the Group's and of the Company's affairs as at
31 March 2022 and of the Group's profit and the
Group’s cash flows for the year then ended;

s the Group Financial Statements have been
properly prepared in accordance with UK-adopted
INternaticnal accounting standards.

s the Company Financial Statements have been
properly prepared in accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards,
comprising FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosurs
Framework", and applicable law); and

= the Financial Statements have been prepared
in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006

We have audited the Financial Statements, included
within the Annual Report, which comprise: the
consolidated Staternent of Financial Position and
the Company Statement of Financial Position as at 3t
March 2022; tne consolidated Statement of Profit or
Loss, the consolidated Staternent of Comprehensive
Income, the consolidated and the Company
Statement of Changes in Equity, and the consolidated
Staterment of Cash Flows for the year then ended;
and the notes to the Group and Company Financial
Statements, which include a description of the
significant accounting policies.

Qur opinion is consistent with cur reporting to the
Audit and Risk Committec.

. Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with

. International Standards on Auditing {UK) [“1SAs

: (UK} and applicable law. Qur responsibilities under

" 1SAs [(UK) are further described in the Auditers'

" responsibilities for the audit of the Financial

- Slaterments section of cur report. We belicve that the
. audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

. approgriate to provide a basis for our opinicn.

. Independence

. We remained independentof the Group in

' accordance with the ethical requirements that arc

| relevant to our audit of the Financial Staterments in
. the UK, which includes the FRC's Ethical Standard,

. as applicable to listed public interest entitics, and

. wo have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilit'es in
accordance with these reguirements.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we declare
| that non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's
! Ethical Standard were not provided.

Other than those disclosed in note 7 to the

! consolidated Financial Statements, we have provided
' no non-audit services to the company or its controlled
s undertakings in the period under audit.



Our audit approach
Overview
Audit scope

= We conducted full scope audits at 20 componeants
across the UK, Eurcpe and Rest of the World
and specific audit procedures on a further 11
components across the UK, Curope ond Rest of
the World.

« The components where we conducted audit
procedures, togother with work performed at the
Group level, accounted for approximately 80%
of the Croup’s revenue and 82% of the Group's
absolute underlying profit before tax from
continuing operations.

i The scope of our audit

! As part of designing our audit, we determined
materiality and assessed the risks of material

i misstatemcnt in the Financial Statements.

Key audit matters

5 Key audit matters are those matters that, in the
auditors’ professional jJudgement, were of most

. significance in the audit of the Financial Statements

- of the current period and include the most significant
* assessed risks of material misstaterment (whetner or

; not due te fraud) identificd by the auditors, including
i those which had the greatest effect on: the overall
audit strateqgy, the aliocation of resources in the sudit;
. and directing the efforts of the engagerment team.

i These matters, and any comments we make on the

= Certain Company account balances were included
in scope for the gudit of the consolidated Financial
Statements. However, we determined that the
Company did not require a full scope audit of its
complete financial information for the purposes of
the audit of the consolidated Financial Statements.

Key audit matters

= Carrying vaiue of goodwill (Group)

= Reporting of underlying adjustments (Group)

» Accounting for acguisitions and disposals (Group)
« Carrying value of investments (Company)

~results of our procedures thereon, were addressed in
. the context of our audit of the Financial Statements
' as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,

" and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.

This is not 2 complete list of all risks identified by
| our audit.

| Accounting for acquisitions and disposals is a now key
~ audit matter this year. COVID-12 and going concern

" considerations, which was a key audit matter last

- year, is no longer included because of the Group's

" recovery from the effects of COVID-1S in the year,

Materiality

= Overall Group materiality: £1,8770C0 (2021
£1,574,400) based on 5% of the CGroup’s underlying
profit before tax from continuing operations,

» Overall Company materiality: £3,015,000 (2021:
1,417,000} based on 1% of total assets.

= Performance materiality: £1,407,000 {2021 |
£1180,800} (Group) and £2,261,000 (20211 £1,062,700) !
(Companyl. 5

the diversified nature of the Group’s cperations and

~ available liguidity and forecast covenant headrocom

over the going concern period. Otherwise, the key
audit matters below are consistent with last year.



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO
THE MEMBERS OF discoverlE GROUP PLC

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Carrying value of goodwill (Group})
Refer to page 97 (Audit and Risk
Committee Report}, note 2 [Significant
accounting judgements and estimates)
and nore 1R for the related disclosuras on
goodwill.

The Group recorded £175.7 million of
goodwili at 31 March 2022 (2021: £1279
million).

As reguired by IAS 36, management has
performed its annual goodwill impairment
asscssment on the Group's cash
generating units (CGUs).

The carrying value of goodwill is
dependent on future cash flows of the
underlying CCUs which inherently involves
significant managernent astimation and
there is a risk that If management does not
achieve these cash flow estimates it could
give rise to impairmeant charges.

The impairment assessment performed

Dy rmanagement contains a numbper of
significant assumpticns principally relating
1o revenuce growth rates, discount rates
and future profitability. These assessments
also include the estimated costs asscciated
with the effects of climate change,
including the future costs of the Group's
target to reduce carbon emissions by 50%
from 2019 levels by 2025,

No impairment charge has been recorded
in the year ended 31 March 2022.

We focused our work on the CGUs where the headroom
between the value-in-use and the carrying value of the assets
was lowest or those CGUs that were sensitive to changes in
key assumptions.

We obtained management's value-in-use impairment models
and we tested the mathematical integrity. We compared the
Group's year-end market capitalisation to management's
value-in-use estimate for the Group as a whole and to the
Croup's net assets. We validated the carrying amounts of the
net assets sulbject to impairment testing to the underlying
accounting records, making sure that there was appropriate
consistency between the assets and liabilitics that were
included in managemcent's assessment and the related

cash flows.

We utiiised our in-house valuation experts to evaluate the
appropriateness of the methodology used in the impairment
models, including challenging the discount rates and long-
term growth rates. We compared the cash flows used in

the impairment models to the Board approved budget, we
challenged the assumptions underpinning the estimated
costs associated with climate change; and we evaluated the
gatermination of the Group's CGUs.

We stress tested management's revenue growth, profit
margin and head office cost allocation assumptions and we
have separately benchmarked implied multiples required
to cover the carrying value of net assets at each COU 1o
recent transaction muitiples for acguired businesses.

wWe considered external market data on growth in target
markets. Wa challenged management’s methodology and
performed further sensitivities resulting in some changes
to management's model, We also evaiuated the historical
accuracy of management's budgeting and forecasting and
we compared the revenue growth and profit margins to
historical actuals and meodelled their break even points to
assess whether further testing was reguired and whether
additional disclosures should be provided in the Financiat
Statements.




Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Carrying value of goodwill (group) - Where headroom was more sensitive to changoes in key

continued assumptions, we undertook further procedures. These
included additional sensitivity analysis and testing of revenue
growth rates to third party industry research. Where these
CGUs wee recently acguired, we have compared pre-
acquisition performance to forecast results post acquisition.

Based on thesc procedures, we concluded that there was only
one CGU where headroom was lower and where the CGU was
sensitive to reasonably possible changes in key assumptions
that could cause material impairment. Further procedures
focused on this one CCU within the Sensing & Connectivity
division; in particular the revenue growth rates, the discount
rate, the lcng-term growth rate and future cperating margins.
We obtained a bridge of actual loss in FY22 to the forecast
profit in FY23 and tested managemont’s assurmptions to a
numiber of external scurces including third party growth rates
and other audit evidence, and we tested the non-recurring
nature of a sample of one-off costs incurred in FY22.

We asscssed the appropriateness of management’s decision
to provide additional disclosures about sensitivities in note
18 of the Financial Statements in relation to the one CCU
within the Sensing & Connectivity division. More broadly, we
considered whether the disclosures in note 18 complied with
IAS 36.

Based on the procedures performed, we neted no material
issues arising from our work.
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
Reporting of underlying adjustments We considered the appropriateness of the adjustments
(Group) made to the statutory profit before tax to derive underlying

Referto Audit and Risk Committee Report  performance.
page 97; Accounting palicies (note 2), and : . .
note & (Underlying profit before tax] In order to do this, we considered:
£205 million (2021 £13.7 miflion) of net costs w The Grou‘ps .accountmg‘pohcy-on ‘ncm—u nderlying items.
are presented as adjustments to the Group's ™ The application of IFRS, in particuiar 1AS 1; and

underiying profit before tax. These include:  « FRC Thematic Review on Alternative Performance Measures

« £65 million of acquisition exaenses. and (APMSs} issued in October 2021,

» £14.0 millicn of amortisation of acquired  We challenged management on the appropriateness of the
classification of cach itemn, having considered the nature of
each iterm and that the basis for the classification is clearly

The Group presenits underlying disclosed and applied consistently from one year to the next.
performance measures on the face of the

consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss as
supplementary information.

intangible assets.

We alsc considered the risk that the Croup’s accounting policy
could be manipulated to help achieve profit targets.

We also considered the risk of one-off gains during the

Management believes that the prescntation
year not being properly identified and therefore presented

of underlying performance measures

provides investors with a means of inappropriately within underlying profit.

evaluating the performance of the Group Having censidered the nature and guantum of these items,
on a consistent basis, similar to the way in - oysrali, we were satisfied that the classificaticn of adjustments
which management evaluates performance. 1 the Group's underlying profit in the consolidated Financial
The determinaticn of which items are Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 was appropriate
ciassified as adjustments to underlying and consistently applied,

profit is subject to judgement and therefore
need to be classified appropriately and
presented consistently.




Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Accounting for acquisitions and disposals Woc tested each of the three acguisitions in the year. We
(Group) utilised our in-house valuation experts (o evaluate the

Refer to Audit and Risk Committce Report . appropriateness of the methodology used to value customer
page 97, Accounting policies (note 2}, note relationships and to test the appropriatencss of the discount

1 (business combinations) and note 12 rates. We compared the custoiner lerrmination rates and
(discontinued operations and assets hetd future cash flows to historical data and to the approved
for sale). acquisition business cases and we performed sensitivities on

In FY 2021/22, the Group acguired 3 these estimates.

businesses (FY 2020/21: 2 businesses) for We considered the disclosures in note 11 of the consolidated
total consideration of £89.2m (FY 2020/21. Financial Statements and we are satisfied that these

£22.3m). Goodwill of £52.9m (FY 2020/21: disclosures are appropriate. Based on the procedures

£2.9m) and customer relationships and performed, we noted no material issues arising from our work

other intangible assets totalling £37.7m {(FY  on acquisitions.

1. £2 8r . L ) .
2020/21: £2.8 ) were recorded Our work on disposals focused on Acal BFi given its size.

The valuation of the customer relationships  We determined whether the business met the definition

requires management estimation as of discontinued operations (for disposals) in accordance
s dependent on estimates of future with the applicable framework, IFRS 5, and we tested the
cash flows, customer attrition rates and gain recognised on disposal. We challenged management
discount rates, on the date of deconsolidation of the Acal business. We

tested the consideration paid and the fair value of deferred
consideration. We also tested on a sample basis the
transactions in the period prior to disposal.

In FY22, the Group exited its distribution
business by completing the disposal

of Acal BFi and Vertec Scientific SA
Proprietary Limited. We reviewed the disclosures in note 12 of the consolidated
Financial Statements to ensure these are in linc with relevant
accounting requirements. and we specifically assessed the
classification of profits between cperating activities prior to
disposal and the gain on disposal.

The Acal BFi disposal gencrated net
consideration of £42.6m, with Vertec
Scientific SA Proprictary Limited
generating net consideration of £2.2m. The
combined profit on disposal was [6.6m. Based on the procedures performed, we noted no material

. . - issues arising from our work on disposals.
Accounting for disposals (specifically E P

the Acal BFi business given its size) is
complex and needs to be accounted for
and disclosed in the consolidated Financial
Statements in accordance with the
requirements of IFRS 5.




INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO
THE MEMBERS OF discoveriE GROUP PLC

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Carrying value of investments (Company)
Refer to note 2 (Judgement and key
sources of estimation uncartainty)

and note 5 of the Company Financial
Statements for the related disciosures on
the carrying value of investments.

The Company holds investrnents in
its subsidiaries of £203.4 million (2021:
£201.3m).

We evaluated management’s assessment of whether any
indicators of impairment existed, which included comparing
the carrying values of investments in subsidiaries with their
net assets at 31 March 2022

For investments where an indicator of impairrment was noted,
including where the net assets were lower than the carrying
values, we assessed their recoverable value by reference ta the
value in use of the Investments compared to their carrying
values at 31 March 2022 . Where applicable, we verified that

the recoverable values of investments were consistent with

We focused on this area due to the size of
the investrment kalances with a focus on
the risk of impairment arising in company's
investments in two entities with a carrying
value of £18.5m and £257m respectively
including the Croup's service company
that derives revenue from intercompany
recharges.

Management has performed an
assessment of the recoverable amount of
the investments and compared this to the
carrying vatue using the same cash flow
methodology applied in the impairment
test for goodwill described above.

No impairment charge has been recorded
in the year ended 31 March 2022

the recoverable values of the related CGUs tested for goodwill
impairment purposes, leveraging the audit work undertaken
as part of the Group audit.

We performed sensitivity analysis an the key assumptions
within the cash flow forecasts. This included sensitising
the discount rate applicd to the future cash flows, and the
short and longer term growth rates and operating income
forecasts.

Woe assessed the appropriateness of managemcent’s decision
to provide additional disclosures about sensitivities in note

5 of the Company Financial Statements in relaticn to the
Company's investment with the carrying valuc of £18.5m.
More broadly, we considered whether the disclosures in note
5 complied with relevant accounting requircments.

Based on the procedures performed, we noted no material

issues arising from our work.

How we tailored the audit scope

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we
performed enough waork to be able tc give an opinion
on the Financial Staterments as a whole, taking into
account the structure of the Group and the Company,
the accounting processes and controls, and the
industry in which theoy operate.

We performed full scope audits and specific audit
procedures at 31 components across the UK, Eurcpe
and Rest of the World which were selected based
on their size or risk characteristics of which 4 entities
were brought into Croup zudit scope in FY22. Of
these, we identified 4 material components in

the UK, 6 in Europe and 1 in Rest of the World. No
components were identified as being financially
significant. The remainder of the fuil scope
corrponents and specified procedures components
were included in Group audit scope to achieve
sufficient coverage and to address specific risk
characteristics.

In establishing the overali approach to the Group
audit, we determined the type of work that needed
to be performed by us, as the Group cngagement
team, or by component auditors within PwC UK
and from other PwC network firms operating under
our instruction. Where the work was performed

by component auditors, we determined the level
of involvernent we needed to have in the audit
work at those components to be able to conciude
whether sufficient appropriate audit evidence had
been obtained as g basis for our opinion on the
consolidated Financial Statements as a whole.

In addition to instructing and reviewing the reporting
from our component audit teams, we conducted file
reviews for material components and participated in
key meetings with component audt teams and had
regular dialogue with component teams throughout
the year



The Group consolidation, Financial Statemoent
disclosures and corporate functions were audited

by the Group engagement team. This included our
work over taxation, goodwill, acquisition accounting
and retirement benefit ob’igations. Taken together,
the components and corporate functions where

we conducted audit procedures accounted for
approximately: 80% (2021: 75%) of the Group's revenuc
and 82% (2021: 81%) of the Group's absolute underlying
orofit before tax from continuing opeérations. This
provided the evidence we needed for our opinion

on the consolidated Financial Statements taken as a
whole. This was before considering the contribution to
our audit evidence from performing audit work at the
Group ievel, including disaggregated analytical reviow
procedures, which covered certain of the Group's
smaller and lower risk components that were not
directly included in our Group audit scope.

Our audit of the Cornpany Financial Statements
was undertzken in the UK and included substantive
procedures over all material balances and
transactions,

As part of the audit, we enquired of management
to understand anad evaluate the Group's risk

assessment process in relation to climate changa.
We roviowed management's papoer which sets out

Materiality

their assessment of ciimate change risk to the Group
and the impact on the Financial Statements. In
evaluating the completeness of the risks identified,
we engaged cur internal climate change experts to
assist us in reviewing management’s asscssment and
chalienged management on how they considered
tho potentiat financial inmpacls of the Group's carbon
recdluction target in their assessment. We considered
the key risk to relate to the assumptions made in

the forecast prepared by management and used n
their assessment of the carrying vaiue of goodwill.

In responding te the risks identified, we specifically
considered how climate change risk would impact
these assumptions including the future costs of the
Group’s target to reduce carbon emissions by 50%
frorm 2019 levels by 2025 as discussed in the carrying
value of goodwill key audit matter. We also read

the disclosures in relation to climate change made
in the Sustainability Repert and Risk Managemant
sections of the Annual Repert to ascertain whether
the disclosures are materially consistent with the
Financial Statements and our knowledge from our
audit. Our responsibility over other information

is further described in the "reporting on other
information” section of this report.

The scope of our audit was influcnced by our application of materiality. We set certain guantitative thresholds
for materiality. These, together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of cur audit
and the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures on the individual financial statement line iterns and
disclosures and in evaluating the effect of misstatements, both individually and in aggregate on the Financia!

Staterments as a wholc.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the Financial Statements as a whole

as follows:

Financial Statements - Croup

Financial Statements - Company

Overall materiality

£1,877,000 (2021: £1574,400).

£3,015,000 (2021: £1,417,000).

How we determined it

5% of underlying profit before tax

1% of total asscts

from continuing operations of

the Group

Rationale for benchmark appiied

We believe that underlying

profit before tax from continued
operations provides a consistent
yoar on year basis for determining
materiaiity and is the most
relevant perforrmance measure to

tne key stakeholders of the Group.

We belicve that total assets is the
most agpropriate measure Lo
assess a holding company, and

is a generally accepted auditing
benchmark.
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For cach component in the scope of our group audit,
we allocated a materiality that is less than our overall
Group materiality. The range of materiality allocated
across components was 126,000 to £7.497 000.
Certain components were audited to a local statutory
audt materiality that was also less than our overall
Group materiality

Woe use performance materiality to reduce to

an appropriately low ieve| the protability that

the aggregate of uncorrected and undetected
misstaterments exceeds overali materiality. Specifically,
we use performance materiality in determining the
scope of our audit and the nature and extent of our
testing of account balances, classes of transactions
and disclosures, for example in determining sample
sizes. Our performance materiality was 75% (2027
75%} of overall materiality, amounting to £1,407,000
(2021: £1180,800C) for the Group Financial Statements
and £2,261,000 (2021: £1,062 700} for the Company
Financial Statements.

In determining the performance materiality, we
considered a number of factors - the history of
misstatements, risk assessment and aggregation risk
and the effectiveness of controls - and concluded that
an amount at the upper end of our normal range was
appropriate.

We agreed with the Audit and Risk Committee that we
would report to them misstaternents identified during
our audit above £85000 (Group audit) (2021. £78,720)
and £150,750 (Company audit) (2021: £78,720) as well as
misstaterments bo:ow those amounts that, in our view,
warranted reporting for qualitative reasons.

Conclusions relating to going concern

Our evaluation of the directors’ assessment of the
Group's and the Company's ability to continue

to adopt the going concern basis of accounting
incwded:

s Evaluation of management's base case and
downside case scenarios, understanding and
evaluating the key assumptions.

» Validation that the cash flow forecasts used
to suponort management's impairment, going
concern ana viability assessments were consistent;

= Assessment of the historical accuracy and
reasonableness of management's forecasting.

= Consideration of the Croup's available financing
and debt maturity profile;

= Testing of the mathematical integrity of
management's liquidity headroom, sensitivity and
stress testing calculations.

= Undertaking independent sensitivities;

= Assessmont of the reasonableness of
management’s planned or potential mitigating
actions; and

» Roview of the related disclosures in the Financial
Statements.

Based on the work we have performed, we have

not identified any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that, individually or collectively,
may cast significant doubt on the Group's and the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern for
a period of at least twelve months from when the
Financial Statements are authorised for issue.

in auditing the Financial Statements, we have
cencluded that the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the
Financial Statements is appropriate.

However, because not all future events or conditions
can be predicted, this conciusion is not a guarantee as
10 the Group's and the Company's ability to continue
as a going concern.

In relation to the directors' reporting on how they have
applied the UK Corporate Covernance Code, we have
nothing material to add or draw attention t@ in relation
to the directors' statement inthe Financial Statermnents
about whether the directors considered it appropriate
to adopt the going concern basis of accounting.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the
directors with respect to going concern are described
in the relevant sections of this report.

Reporting on other information

The other infoermation comprises all of the information
in the Annual Report other than the Financial
Statements and our auditors' repart thereon. The
directors arc responsible for the other information,
which includes reporting based on the Task Force

on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD)
recommendations. Qur opinion on the Financial
Statements does not cover the other information and,
accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or,
oexcept to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this
report, any form of assurance thereon.



In connection with our audit of the Financial
Statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially ‘nconsistent with the
Financial Statements or our knowlcdge cbtained

in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. if we identify an apparent material
INconsistency or material misstatement, we are
required to perform procedures to conclude whether
there is a material misstaterment of the Financial
Staterments or g material misstatement of the other
information. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstaternent
of this other information, we are required to report
tnat fact. We have nothing to report based on these
responsibilitics,

With respect to the Strategic report and Directors’
report, we als¢ considered whether the disclosures
required by the UK Companies Act 2006 have
beer incluced.

Bascd on our work undertaken in the course of
the audit, the Companies Act 2006 reguires us
also 1o report certain opinions and matters as
described belaw.

Strategic repart and Directors' report

In our opinicn, based on the work undertaken in
the course of the audit, the information given in the
Strategic report and Directors' report for the year
ended 31 March 2022 is consistent with the Financial
Statements and has been prepared in accordance
with applicable legal requircments.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the
Croup and Cormpany and their environment obtaincd
in the course of the audit, we did not identify any
material misstatements in the Strategic report and
Directors' Report,

Directors' remuneration

Inour opinion, the part of the Cirectors’ rermuneration
report to be audited has been properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

Corporate governance statement

The Listing Rules require Us to review the directors’
staterments in relation to going concern, longer-term
viability and that part of the corporate governance
statement relating to the Company's compliance with
the orovisions of the UK Corporate Covernance Code
specified for our review. Qur additional responsibilitics
with respect to the corporate governance statement
as other ‘nformation are described in the Reporting
on other information section of this report.

Based on the work undertaken as part of our augit,
we have concluded that each of the foilowing
clerments of the corporate governance statement is
rmaterially consistent with the Financial Staterments
and our knowledge obtained during the audit, and
we have nothing material to add or draw attention to
in relation to:

= The directors' confirmation that they have carried
out a robust assessment of the emerging and
principal risks;

s The disclosures in the Annual Report that describe
those principal risks, what procedures are in place
to identify emerging risks and an explanation of
how these are being managed or mitigated;

s The directors' staternent in the Financial
Staternents about whether they considered it
appropriate to adopt the going concern basis
of accounting in preparing them, and their
identification of any material uncertainties to the
Group’s and Company's ability tc continue te do so
over a period of at least twelve months from the
date of approval of the Financial Staterments;

» The directors’ explanation as to their assessment of
the Group's and Company's prospects, the period
this assessment covers and why the period 15
appropriate, and

s The directors’ statement as to whether they have a
reasonable expectation that the Company will be
able to continue in operation and meet its liabilities
as they fall due over the period of its assessmeant,
including any related disclosures drawing attention
to any necessary gualifications or assumptions.

Our review of the directors’ staterment regarding the
longer-tarm viability of the Croup was substantially
less in scope than an audit and only consisted of
making inquiries and consiaering the directors’
process supporting their staterment; checking that
the statement is in alignment with the relevant
provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Codce; and
considering whetner the statement is consistent with
the Financial Statements and our knowledge and
understanding of the Group and Cormpany and their
envircnment obtained in the course of the audit.

In addition, based on the work undertaken as part
of our audit, we have concluded that each of the
following elements of the corporate governance
staterment is materially consistent with the Financial
Statements and our knowledge obtained during
the audit
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s The directors' statement that they consiaer the
Annual Report, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced
and understandable, and provides the information
necessary for tne members to assess the Group's
and Company's position, performance, business
model and strategy;

=« The seclion of Lhe Annual Report that describes
the review of effectivencss of risk management
and internal control systems; and

» The section of the Annual Report describing the
work of the Audit and Risk Committee.

We have nothing to report in respect of our
responsibility to report when the directors' staterment
relating to the Company's compliance with the

Code does not properly disclose a departure from a
relevant provision of the Code specified under the
Listing Rules for review by the auditors.

Responsibilities for the Financial Statements and
the audit

Responsibilities of the directors for the Financial
Statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of
Directors’ Responsibilities in Respect of the

F nancial Statements, the directors are responsible
for the preparation of the Financial Statements in
accordance with the applicable framework and for
being satisfied that they give a true and fair view.
The directors are also responsible for such internal
control as they determine is necessary to enabie the
preparation of Financial Statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Creup's and the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to
liguidate the Group or the Company or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the
Financial Statements

Gur objectives are te obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the Financial Statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due
te fraud or crror, and to issue an auditors’' report
that includes cur opinicn. Reasonabie assurance is
a hign tevel of assurance, but is not a2 guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs (UK}
will always detect a material misstaterment when it

exists. Misstaterments can arise from fraud or error
and arc considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reascnably be expected to
influcnce the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these Financial Statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances nf non-
compiiance with laws and regulations. We design
procedures in line with ocur responsibilities, outlined
above, to detect material misstatements in respect

of irreqularities, including fraud. The extent to which
our procedures are capable of detecting irregularitics,
including fraud, is detailed below.

Based on our understanding of the Group and
industry, we identified that the principal risks of
non-compliance with laws and regulations related to
the listing rules, the Waste Electrical and Electronic
Equipment Regulations 2006 directive and local laws
and regulations applicable in the territories that the
Croup operates in, and we considered the extent to
which non-compliance might have a material effect
on the Financial Statcments. We also considered
those laws and regulations that have a direct impact
on the Financial Statements such as Companics Act
2006 and taxation. We evaluated management’s
incentives and opportunities for fraudulent
manipulation of the financial statemeants (including
the risk of override of controls), and determined that
the principal risks were related to posting of unusual
journals to increase revenuce and management bias
in determining accounting estimates. The Group
engagement team shared this risk assessment with
the component auditors so that they couid include
appropriate audit procedures in response to such
risks in their work. Audit procedures performed by
the Group engagement team and/or component
auditors included:

s+ Ciscussions with management, Internal Audit
and the Audit and Risk Committee, including
consideration of known cr suspected instances
of ncn-compliance with laws and regulation
and fraug;

» Evaluation of the effectiveness of management's
controls designed to prevent and detect
irrcgularities;

= |dentification and testing of significant manual
iournal entries,

a Assessment of matters reported on the Group's
whistleblowing helpline and the results of
management’s investigation of such matters,



» Testing of assumptions and judgements made by
management in making significant accounting
estimates; and

= Reviewing Financial Statement disclosures and
testing the disclosures to supporting evidence.

There are inherent limitatons in the audit procedures
described above. We are less likely to become aware of
instances of non-compiiance with laws and regulations
that arc not closcly related to events and transactions
reflected in the Financial Statements. Also, the risk

of not detecting a material misstatement duc to

fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one
resulting fream error, as fraud may invoive deliberate
conceatment by, for examp'e, fargery or intentional
misreprescntations, or through collusion.

Qur audit testing might include testing complete
populations of certain transactions and balances,
possibly using data auditing technigues. However, it
typically involves selecting a limited number of iterrs
for testing, rather than testing complete populations
We will often scek to target particular items for
testing based cn their size or risk characteristics. In
other cases, we will use audit sampling to enable

us to draw a conclusion about the population from
which the sample I1s selected.

A further descrintion of our responsibiiities

for the audit of the Financial Statements is

located cn the FRC's website at www.fre.orguk/
auditersresponsibilities. This description forms part of
our auditors’ report.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared
for and only for the Company's members as a

body in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 and for no other purposce. We

do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume
responsibility for any other purpose or to any other
person to whom this report is shown or intc whose
hands it may come save wherc expressly agreed by
our pricr consent in writing.

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are reguired to
report to you if, in cur opinion:

= woe have not obtained ali the information anda
explanations we require for our audit; or

» adeguate accounting records have not been kept
by the Cormpany, or returns adegquate for our audit
have not been received from branches not visited
by us; or

s certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration
specified by law are not made; or

s the Company Financial Statements and the part of
the Directors’ remuneraticn report 1o be auditcd
are not in agreement with the accounting records
and returns.

We have no exceptions Lo report arising from this
responsibifity.

Appointment

Following the recommendation of the Audit and
Risk Committec, we were appointed by the directors
on 13 July 2017 to audit the Financial Staterments

for the year ended 31 March 2018 and subseguent
financial periods. The pericd of total uninterrupted
engagement is 5 years, covering the ycars ended 31
March 2018 to 31 March 2022

Other matter

As required by the Financial Conduct Authority
Disclosurce Guidance and Transparency Rule 4114R,
these Financial Statements form part of the ESEF-
preparcd annual financisl report filed on the National
Storage Mechanism of the Financial Conduct
Authority in accardance with the ESEF Regulatory
Technical Standard (ESEF RTS'). This auditors’ report
provides No assurance over whether the annual
financial report has been prepared using the single
electronic format spec.fied in the ESEF RTS.

Christopher Hibbs (Senior Statutory Auditor}

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

14 June 2022



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS

for the year ended 31 March 2022

2021
2022 restated”
Continuing operations notes £m £m
Revenue 4 379.2 302.8
Operating costs {358.3) (2857
Operating profit 7 209 171
Finance income 9 0.4 03
Finance costs = {4.2) {3.9)
Profit before tax 171 135
Tax expense 10 (7.4) (4.0}
Profit for the year from continuing operations 9.7 95
Discontinued operations
Profit for the year from discontinued opcrations 12 155 25
Profit for the year 25.2 12.0
Earnings per share 14
Basic, profit from continuing operations 10.4p 107p
Diluted, profit from continuing operations 10.1p 10.3p
Basic, profit for the year 271p 13.5p
Diluted, profit for the year 26.3p 13.0p
SUPPLEMENTARY STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS INFORMATION
2021
2022 restated™
Underlying Performance Measures (continuing operations) notes £m £m
Operating profit 7 209 171
Add back:  Acqguisition expenses o 6.5 1.2
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 19 14.0 1
IAS 19 pension charge 32 - 1.4
Underlying operating profit 4.4 308
Profit before tax 171 135
Add back:  Acquisition expenses 15} 65 12
Amortisation of acquired intangible asscts i9 14.0 M
IAS 19 pension charge 32 - 14
Underlying profit before tax 376 272
Underlying earnings per share 14 29.4p 22.4p

* 2021 restatea Refer to note 2 to the consciidated Financial Staterments



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

for the year ended 31 March 2022

2022 2021
notes £m £m
Profit for the vear 25.2 12.0
Other comprehensive income/{loss):
iterns that will not be subseguently reclassified to profit or foss:
Actuarial gain/lioss) on defined henefit pension scheme 32 22 (3.4)
Deferred tax (chargel/credit relating to defined benefit pension
scheme 0 (0.5) a.6
17 (2.8
ftems that may be subsequently reclassificd to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of foreign subsidiaries 9.6 (0.5)
Reclassification of exchange differences on disposal of businesses 12 (2.0}
7.6 (C.5)
Other comprehensive income/{loss) for the year, net of tax 93 (33)
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 345 87




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

as at 31 March 2022

2021
2022 restatea”
notes £m £m
Non-current assets
Property, plant and cquipment 15 235 235
Intangible assets - goodwill 17 175.7 1279
Intangible assets - othor 19 876 629
Right of use assets 16 219 224
Pension assot 32 2.7 -
Other recelvables 21 59 -
Deferred tax assets 10 9.2 79
326.5 2446
Current assets
Inventories 20 77.8 677
Trade and other receivables 2] 78.0 849
Current tax assets 16 18
Cash and cash cquivalents 22 39.4 292
196.8 1836
Total assets 5233 4282
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 29 (104.8) {94.8)
Other financial liabilities 23 (2.0) (0.8)
Lease ligbilitios 16 (4.7) {4.8)
Current tax liabtities 77 (5.6)
Provisions 26 (1.7} (1.8)
(120.9) (107.8)
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables 29 {2.7) (©.8)
Other financial liakilities 23 (67.6) (75.6)
Lease liabilities 1o (16.4) 6.7
Pension liability 32 - (1.0}
Provisions 26 {4.2) (5.4)
Deferred tax liabilities 10 (21.1} (12.5)
(M2.0} {112.0)
Total liabilities (232.9) (219.8}
Net assets 290.4 208.4
Equity
Share capital 30 47 4.4
Share premium 192.0 1388
Merger reserve 10.5 129
Currency translation rescrve 49 {27
Retained earnings 78.3 480
Total equity 290.4 208 4

* 2021 restated. Refer to nate 2 to tne consolidatea Financial Statements,

The Financial Statements on pages 146 to 212 were approved by the Board of Directors oen 14 June 2022 and

signed on its behalf by

Nick Jefferies Simoen Gibbins
Group Chief Executive Group Finance Director



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

for the year ended 31 March 2022

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Currency
Share Share Merger translation Retained Total
capital premium reserve reserve earnings equity
£m £m £m £m £m £m
At1 April 2020 4.4 138.8 227 (2.2) 36.8 200.5
Prior year restatement (note 2) - - {0.4) (0.4)
At 1 April 2020 (restated) 4.4 138.8 22.7 (2.2} 36.4 2001
Profit for the year - - 12.0 120
Other comprehensive loss - - [O5) (2.8) (3.3)
Total comprehensive income - - (05) 972 87
Share-based payments
includ.ng tax - - 2.4 2.4
Transfer to retained earnings - - (2.8) - 28 -
Dividends (note 13) - - - {2.8) (2.8)
At 31 March 2021 (restated) 4.4 138.8 19.9 (2.7) 48.0 208.4
Profit for the year - 252 252
Other comprehensive income - - 76 17 93
Total comprehensive income - - 76 269 345
Shares issued (note 30) 03 532 - - 535
Share-based payments
inctuding Tax - - 3.4 3.4
Transfer to ratained earnings - - {9.4) - 9.4 -
Dividends [note 13} - - (9.4) (@.4])
At 31 March 2022 4.7 192.0 10.5 4.9 78.3 290.4




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

for the year ended 31 March 2022

2022 2021

notes £m £rn
Net cash flow from operating activities 25 309 46,0
Investing activities
Acauisition of businesses, net of cash acguired (84.5) (20.8)
Business disposal procceds 12 173
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {5.4) (3.2
Purchase of intangible assets - softwarc (0.8} (C.7)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and egquipment 0.4 0.3
‘nterest received 0.4 0.3
Net cash used in investing activities (52.6) (247)
Financing activities
Net proceeds from the issue of shares 53.4 01
Proceeds from borrowings 24 94.1 93
Repayment of borrowings 24 (102.3) (27.8)
Payment of lease liabilities (6.4) (&1
Cash-settled share-based payments (o1} -
Dividends paid 13 (9.4} (2.8)
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities 29.3 (27.3)
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 7.6 (5.4)
Net cash and cash equivalents at 1 Aprii 28.2 34.8
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations 11 (1.2)
Net cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 26.9 2872
Reconciliation to cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated
statement of financial position
Net cash and cash equivalents shown above 36.9 282
Add back: bank overdrafts 23 25 10
Cash and cash equivalents presented in current assets in the
consotidated statement of financial position 22 39.4 292

1 Further infarmation on the consolicated staterment of cash flows 15 providea In notes 24 ana 25.



NOTES TO THE GROUP
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 March 2022

1. Reporting Entity and Authorisation of Financial Statements

The consolidated Financial Statements, which comprise the results of discoverlE Croup plc {'the Company')
and its subsidiaries [co'lectively referred to as 'the Group'}, for the year ended 31 March 2022 were authorised for
issue by the Beard of Directors on 14 June 2022 discover|E Group plc 1s a public limited company incorporated
and domiciled in England, UK and the registered office 1s disclosed on page 207. The Company's ordinary
shares are traded on the London Stock Exchange.

The significant acceunting pulicies adopted by the Group are set out in note 2 and have been applied
consistently to alt years presented in these consolidated Financial Statcments.

2. Accounting policies

Statement of Compliance

On 31 December 2020, 'FRS as edopted by the Eurcpean Union at that date was brought into UK law and
became UK-adopted Internationai Accounting Standards, with future changes being subject to endorsement
by the UK Endorsement Board. The Croup transitioned to UK-adopted International Accounting Standards

in its consolidated Financial Statements on 1 April 2021 This change constitutes a change in accounting
frameowork. However, there is no impact on recognition, measurement or disclosure in the period reported as a
result of the change in framework.

The Group's consolidated Financial Staterments have been prepared and approved by the Directors in
accordance with UK-adopted International Accounting Standards (UK adopted 1AS) and with requirements of
the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under those standards.

The separate Financial Staterments of the Company have been prepared and appraoved by the Directors in
accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 ‘Reduced Disclosure Frameweork' (FRS 101). On pubtishing
the Company's Financia! Statemeants here together with the Group's Financial Statements, the Company s
taking advantage of the exemption in section 408 of the Cormpanies Act 2006 not to present its individua|
Staterment of Profit or Loss and related notes that form a part of these zpproved Financial Staterments.

The following exemptions from the requirements of the UK-adopted IAS have been applied in the preparation
of the Company's Financial Statements, in accordance with FRS 10T:

s Cash Flow Statement and respective disclosures and information;

= Disclosure in relation to capital management;

« Disclosures in relation to financial instruments;

n Disclosures in respect of the compensation of key management personncl;

» Disclosures in respect of transactions between two or more members of the Group

For the following disclosures, as the Group's consolidated Financial Staterments include the eguivalent
disclosures, the Company has taken the exemptions available under FRS 101

= [FRS 2 Share-based payments in respect of group settled equity share-based payments;

» Cortain disclosures required by IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement.

Basis of preparation

The Group Financial Staterments and the Company Financial Statements are prepared under the historicat cost
convention, unless otherwise stated.

The Group and Cormpany Financial Statements are presented in pounds sterling and ail values are rounded to
the nearest hundred thousand except as otherwise indicated.

The Group has engaged in an ongoing review of expected climate change impacts on the business and its
assets and liabilities to establish any adjustments required and what reporting is necessary in its Financial
Statcments for 2022, The ongoing risk assessment is detailed within the climate related risks and opportunities
section on pagces 46 to 50 of the Risk Management secticn and on pages 67 to 69 of the Sustainzbility Report
in the Strategic Report section,



2. Accounting policies continued

The process has involved a review of all balance sheet line iterns and future cash flows, to identify if any of these
items is expected to be materially impacted in a negative or positive way by weather, legislative, societal or
revenue/cost changes.

The conclusion of the review was that, while there will undoubtedly be impacts on the Group, the highly
disaggregated nature of the operations of the Group and the target markets the Croup operates in
significantly reduces the risk profile of the Group to impacts trom weather-related changes. The changes
neccssary to achieve the 50% reduction in carbon emission from 2019 level is not expected to have a materially
adverse impact on the cash flows of the Group and indced, warmer climates may present enhanced
opportunities in our target markets as disclosed on page 46 to 50 of this report. Societal and legisiative impacts
are not considered to have a material impact on any one segment such that we need to break out reporting

in a different way to previous years. Judgements are nct considered to be significant, although clearly
understanding of climate change is doveloping with time. The area with the most judgement is goodwiil
impairment tosting and a description is given in note 18 of the incremental processes undertaken to assess the
climate change impact on the vaiuations. Management review has concluded that there is no material impact
and that no further disclosure is reqguired.

Going concern

In line with 1AS] 'Presentation of Financial Statements’ and revised guidance on 'risk management, internal
cantrol and related financial and business reporting’, management has taken into account all available
information about the future for a period of at least, but not imited to, 12 months from the date of approval of
the Financial Statements when assessing the CGroup's and Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

The Group's business activities, together with factors which may adversely impact its future development,
performance and position, are set out in the Strategic Report on pages 02 to 81 The financial position of the
Group, its cash flows, liquidity position and borrowing facilities arc described in the Finance Review section of
the Strategic Report on pages 36 1o 41.

The Group's forecasts and projections, taking account of the sensitivity anzalysis of changes in trading
performance, show that the Group is well placed to operate within its current committad facilitics of £240m for
the foreseeable future.

The Viability Base Case, as stated on pages 52 to 53 has been subjected to sensitivity analysis involving fiexing
a number of the underlying main assumptions, both individually and in conjunction. The sensitivities take into
account the principal risks and uncertainticos sct cut on pages 54 to 59, nctably instabi'ity in the economic
environment, underperformance of acquired businesses, climate related risks, loss of key customers and
suppliers, major business disruption, Hguidity restriction, liquidity and debt covenants and adverse foreign
currency movements.

The most severe but plausible downside scenaric assurmes a worsening of the economic environment caused
by a prolonged Ukraine conflict, significant reduction in consumer demana due tc inflationary pressures and a
resurgence of Covid-19. This downside scenario results in a significant decline in second half sales of FY 2022/23,
negative sales growth in FY 2023/24 and modest growth thereon in FY 2024/25. Agditionally, operating margin
was reduced, working capital materially increased, significant one-off expenditures included (product liability,
mMajor customer insowvency or hitigation, climate change), interest rates increased significantly and an increase
in the Group effective tax rate.

After factoring in the significant additional downsides, there remains good headroom both in terms of liguidity
and our banking covenants. This is supported by the fact that the Group sells a wide portfolio of different
products across a diverse set of industrics and geographies, has low customersupplier concentration, has a
global supply chain network, diverse manufacturing capacity, and has well-established relationships with its
customers. Thaese factors are considered important in mitigating many of the risks that could affect the long-
term viability of the Group. As a conseguence, the Dircctors believe that the Group is well placed to manage its
principal risks and uncertainties as disclosed on pages 54 to 59 of the Strategic Report,



2. Accounting policies conrinued

Reverse stress tosting has also been applied to the most plausible downside scenario to determine the level

of downside that would be reqguired before the Croup would be at risk of breaching its existing financial
covenants or current liguidity headroom during the assessmoent period. The reverse stress test was conducted
on the basis that certain mitigating actions would be undertaken to reduce overheads and capital expenditure
during the period as sales declined and, on that basis, a fall in underlying cperating margin to below 2% would
be required before such a breach occurred. The Beoard considiers the pessibility of such a scenario to be remote
and further mitigation, such as hiring freczes, pay and bonus reductions, headcount reductions, reduction in
planned capital expenditure, suspension of dividend payments and eguity raise, would te available if future
trading conditions indicated that such an cutcome were possible.

The Company acts as a holding company for investrments in the subsidiaries ana docs not engage in any
trading activities directly and thus is dependcnt on the trading activities of its subsidiarics. The Company holds
sufficient net current assats as at 31 Marcn 2077 to continue as a go'ng concoerm

The Directors arc confident that the Company and the Creup have sufficient resources te continue in
operatiocnal existence for at least 12 months from the date of approval of the Financial Statements. Accordingly,
they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the Annual Report and Financial Statements,

Basis of consolidation
The Group’s consclidated Financial Statements consolidate the results of discover|E Group plc and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries).

The consclidated Financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Group and its subsidiarics for
the year ended 31 March 2022. Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control is achieved when the
Croup is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involverment with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its control over it In assessing control, the Group takes intc account: i} the power
over the investee {ie. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct its relevant activities), (i) exposure,
or rights, te variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and (iii) the ability to use its power over the
investee to affect its returns.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls a subsidiary, if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to onc or more of the three clements of control. Conseligation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control and ceascs when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, profit and losses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year arc included in the consolidated Financial Statements
from the date control commences until the date control ceascs.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the Financial Statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group's accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in fuli on
consolidation.

Prior year restatement

Discontinued Operations

The Group has restated the prior year comparatives in the consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss to exclude
the results of discontinued operations with the obbjective of cnsuring that the amounts disclosed for the year
ended 31 March 2022 are comparable with the results for the year ended 31 March 2021 (the comparative
period). Detalls of the financial position and results for the discontinued operations can be found in note 12 to
the consolidated Financial Statements.

Following the disposal of the Group's Custom Supply Division, the Group has reviewed its reporting of
operating performance to the Board, which is now organised into twe now divisions: (i) Magnetics & Controls
(“M&C") and (i) Sensing & Connectivity (“S&C"). These have been assessed as the Reportable Operating
Segments of the Group as described in note 5 to these Financial Statements.



2. Accounting policies continued

As a result, and according to requirements of IFRS 8 'Cperating Segments’, the Group has changed the
disclosures in note 5 to refiect the new defined operating scgments and has restated the corresponding items
of segment information for last year.

Presentation of the Consclidated Statement of Profit or Loss

Following the discontinuance of the Custom Supply division, there is a broad range of gross margins within
the operating companics of the Croup which make operating protit margin 2 more consistent, reliable and
comparable indicator of cngoing performance of the continuing operations. Accordingly, the Company
has changed the presentation of the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ending 31
March 2022 and the comparative prior year by amalgamating cost of sales, selling and distribution costs,
and administrative expenses intc one line item namely operating costs. There is no change to the prior
year operating profit, profit before tax and profit for the year as a result of these presentational changes as
dermonstrated in the below table:

2021 2021

2022 Restated* original

£rm £m £m

Revenue 379.2 302.8 4543
Cost of Sales {233.0) 187.7} (292.0)
Gross profit 146.2 151 1553
Selling and distributicn costs (37.7) (32.3) I57.8)
Administrative expenses 876 (65.7) (76.8}
Operating profit 209 171 207

* Restated to exclade the results of discontinuen aperations as gescribed in note 12 to the consolidatea Fiancial Staternents

FY 2021/22 Financial Statements (with changes in presentation)

2021

Restated

£m

Revenue 3028
Operating costs (2857)
Operating profit 17

Configuration and Customisation costs in a Cloud Computing Arrangement

The Group has changed its accounting policy relating to the capitalisation of certain software costs; this
change follows the IFRIC Interpretation Committee's agenda decisicn published in April 2021 and relates to the
capitalisation of costs of configuring or customising application software under ‘Software as a Service' ((5aas’)
arrangements. The Group's accounting policy has historically been to capitalise costs directly attributable to
the configuration and customisation of Saas arrangements as intangible assets in the consolidated Statement
of Financial Position.

Following the adoption of the above IFRIC agenda guidance, the accounting policy was changed so that
the Group only capitalises costs relating to the configuration and customisation of Saa$ arrangements as
intangible assets where control of the asset exists. As a result of this change in accounting policy, all current
Saas arrangements were identified and assessed to determine if the Group has contro. of the asset.

For those arrangemaents where the Croup does not have control of the developed asset, the Group
derccognised the intangible asset previously capitalised. The change in accounting policy led to adjustments
amounting to a £0.4m reduction in intangible assets and a £0.4m reduction in retained earnings in the

31 March 2021 consolidated Statement of Financial Position. The 2021 consolidated Statemoent of Profit or Loss
and Statement of Other Comprenensive Income have not been restated, as the impact on them is immaterial.
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Accardingly, the prior pericd consolidated Statement of Financial Position at 31 March 2021 have been restated
in accordance with IAS 8 requirements. The overall impact of the adjustment is not considered to be materiat
and, tnerefore, a consolidated Staterment of Financial Position for 31 March 2020 has not been prescnted.

The tables below show the impact of the change in accounting policy on the previcusly reported financial position.

As previously Impact of
reported restatement Restated
2021 2021 2021
£m £rm £m
Intangible assct  other 633 (0.4} 629
Retained earnings 484 (0.4) 48.0

Underlying profits and earnings

These Financial Statements include alternative performance measures that are not prepared in accordance
with IFRS. These alternative performance measures have becn selected by management Lo assist them

in making operating decisions as they represent the underlying operating performance of the Group and
facilitate internal comparisons of performance over time. See note .

Alternative performance measures are presented in these Financial Statements as management believe they
provide investors with a means of evaluating performance of the Group on a consistent basis, similar to the
way in which management evaluates performance, that is not otherwise apparcnt on an IFRS basis, given that
certain strategic non-recurring and acquisition related items that management does not believe are indicative
of the underiying operating performance of the Group are included when preparing financial measurcs under
IFRS. The trading results of acquired businesses arc included in underlying performance.

The Directors cohsicter there to be the following alternative performance measures:

Underlying operating profit
“Underlying operating profit” is defined as operating profit from continuing operations excluding acguisition
related costs (namely amaortisation of acguired intangible assets and acqu'sition expenses).

Acguisition cxpenses comprise transaction costs, contingent consideration reiating te the retention of former
owners of acquired businesses, adjustments to previously estimated contingent censideration, and costs
rclated to integration of acquired businesses into the Croup.

Underlying EBITDA
“Underlying EB'TDA" is defined as underlying operating profit with depreciation, amortisation and equity
sellled share-based payment expense added back.

Underlying profit before tax
“Underlying profit before tax" is defined as profit before tax from continuing operations excluding acquisition
related costs (namely amaortisation of acquired intangible asscts and acquisition expenses).

Underlying effective tax rate
"Underlying effective tax rate” is defined as the effective tax rate on underlying profit before tax.

Underlying earnings per share

"Unaerlying earnings per share” is calculated as underlying profit before tax reduced by the underlying
effective tax rate, divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares (for diluted carnings per share
purpoescs) inissue during the year.

Operating cash flow
“Operating cash flow" is defined as underlying EBITDA adjusted for the investmaent in, or release of, working
capital and less tne cash cost of capital expenditure,

Free cash flow
"Frec cash flow" s definea as net cash flow from continuing operations before dividend payrnents, net
procceds from equity fund raising, the cost of acquisitions and proceeds from business disposals.



2. Accounting policies continued

Return On Capital Employed (“ROCE")

"ROCE" is defined as underlying cperating profit from continuing operations includ'ng the annualisation for
acquisitions as a percentage of net assets excluding net debt, deferred consideration related to discontinued
operations and legacy defined benefit pension asset/(liability).

Investments (Company only)

Investments in subsidiary and associale uniderlakings are stated initially at cost, being the fair value of the
consideration given and including directly attributable transaction costs. The carrying values are reviewed for
impairment if events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying values rmay not be recoverable.

Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations

The Group reports a business as a discontinued operation when it has been disposed of in a periad, or its future
sale ‘s considered to be highly probable at the balance sheet date, and results in the cessation of a major line
of business or geographical area of operation. An asset or liabitity is classified as held for sale if it is available

for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of

such assets and that it is highiy probable the asset will be sold within one year from the date of classification.
Non-current assets classified as held for sale and the assets of a disposal group classified as held for sale are
presented separately from the other assets in the balance sheect. The liabilities of a disposal group classified as
held for sale are presented separately from other liabilities in the balance sheet.

Discontinued operations are excluded from the results of continuing operaticns and are presented as asingle
amount as profit or loss after tax from discontinued operations in the Staternent of Profit or Loss. Additional
disclosures are provided in note 12. All other notes to the Financial Statements include amounts for continuing
operations, unless otherwise mentioned.

Business combinations and goodwiill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acguisition is measured
as the aggregate of the consideration transferred, measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of
any non-controling interest in the acquiree.

When the Group acguires a business, it assesses the financial assets acquired and liabilities assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, cconomic circumstances
and relevant conditions at tha acquisiticn date.

Any contingent consideration payable to the vendor will be recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration, which is deerred to be an asset or
liability, will be recognised in accordance with IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments: Classification and measurement’
either in the conscolidated Statement of Profit or Loss or in Other Compreahensive Income.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of the
consideration transferred and the amount recognised for the non-controlling interest over the net identifiable
amounts of the assets acquired and the liabilities assurmed in exchange for the business combination. Assets
acquired and liabilities assumed in transactions separate to the business combinations, such as the settlement
of pre-existing relationships or post-acquisition rermuneration arrangements, are accounted for separately
from the business cambination in accordance with their nature and applicable standard. Identifiable
intangible assets, meeting either the contractual-legal or separability criterion are recognised separately from
goodwill. Contingent liabilitics representing a present obligation are recognised if the acquisition-date fair
value can be measured reliably.

After initial recognition, goodwil! is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment tosses. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units (*CCUs") that are expected to benefit from the business
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or labilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

Eacnh unit or group of units to which goodwi ! is allocated shall represent the lowest level within the entity at
which the goodwill s monitored for internal management purposes and shall not be larger than a reportabie
opcrating segment.



2. Accounting policies continued

Where goodwill forms part of a CGU and part of the operation within that unit is disoosed of, the goodwill
associated with the disposed of aperation is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwitl disposed of in this circurmstance is
measured based on the relative values of the operation disposed of and the portion of the CGU retained.

Intangible assets - Other

Other intangible assets that are separatcly acquired by the Croup are stated at cost less accumulated
armortisation and impairment losses. Other intangible assets acquired through a business combination are
recognised at fair value at tne date of acguisition less accumulated amartisation and impairment losses from
the date of acquisition. Amortisation 15 charged to the Statement of Profit or Lass within operating costs on a
straight-line basis over the useful econornic lives of the intangible assets. The estimated useful economic lives
are as follows:

(a) Software {implementation costs of IT systems) 3to 10 years
(b) Acquired intangible assets
Custormer and supplier relationships 5to 10 years
Patents Patent term

(€} Intang ble assets — research and develepment

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period inwhich it is incurrec. An internally
generated intangible asset arising from the Group's development activities is capitalised only if all of the
following conditions arc mot: (a) an asset is created that can be identified; (b} it is probable that the asset
created will generate future economic benefits; and (¢) the developrnent cost of the asset can be measured
reliably. Internally generated intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over their useful lives
between 5 and 10 years and charged to the Statement of Profit or Loss.

The Group only capitalises costs relating to the configuration and custormisation of SaaS arrangements as
intangible asscts where control of the asset exists. Costs that are paid to SaaS suppliers in advance of the
service provided are recognised in prepayment and amortised cover the scrvice period.

All other developrnent expenditure is written off in the accounting period in which itis incurred.

Property, plant and equipment
iterns of owned property, plant and cguipment are stated at ¢ost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.

Cost consists of all those elements which are directly attriputable to bringing the asset into working condition
for its intended use. Where there has been an indication of impairment in value such that the recoverable
amount of an asset falls below its net book value, provision is made for such impairment. Wherever possible,
individual assets are tested for impairment. However, impairment can often be tested only for groups of assets
because the Cash Flows upon which the calculation is based do not arise from the use of a single asset. In
these cases, impairment is measured for the smallest group of assets {the cash generating unit) that produces
a largely independent income stream.

The cost of property, plant and equipment is charged to the Statermcent of Profit or Loss on g straight-line basis
over the assets estimated useful economic life, taking into account their estimated residual value The principal
annual rates of depreciation are:

Land and buildings Freehold property 2% to 4% per annum

Leasehold buildings Shorter of lease term and useful life

Land is not depreciated
Leasehold improvemeants 10% to 20% per annum cor over the life of the lease if shorter
Plant and eguipment 5% 10 33% perannum
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Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group's assets, other than inventories and deforred tax assets, are reviewed at
each balance shect date to determine whether thare is any indication of impairment. If such an indication
oxists, the asset's recoverable amount is cstimated. An impairmeant i0ss is recognised whenever the carrying
amount of the asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recogn’sed in the Srarement of Profit or Lose.

The recoverable amount of assets is the greater of their net seliing price and value-in-use. In assessing value-
in-use, the estimated future cashfiows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For an assct
that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverabte amount is determined for the COU to
which the asset belongs. A CGU is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or group of assets.

When estimating the future cash flows for the value-in-use calculation, the Group inciudes projections of cash
outflows including central costs that are necessarily Incurred to generate the cash inflows and that can be
directly attributed or allocated on a reasanable and consistent basis to each CCU.

Impairment losses recognised in respect of CGUs are allocated first against the carrying value of any goodwill
allocated to that unit, and then against the carrying valuces of other assets in the unit, on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In respect of other assets, an impairment loss is
reversed when there is an indication that the impairment loss may no longer exist and there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.

Financial Instruments
Financial asscts and financial abilities are initially recognised when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Unconditional receivables and payables are recognised as assets or liabilities when the entity becormes a

party to the contract and, as a conseguence, has a legal right to receive or a legal obligation to pay cash.
However, recognition of financia!l asscts to be acquired and financial liabilities to be incurred as a result of a
firm commitment to purchase or sell goods or services, such as trade receivables and trade payables, is usually
detayed until at lcast one of the parties has performed under the agreement and the crdered goods or services
have been shipped, delivered or rendered.

A forward contract that is within the scope of IFRS 3, such as a forward foreign exchange centract, is
recognised as an asset or a liability on the commitment date when the fair value of the right and obligation are
usually equal and the net fair value of the forward contract on initial recognition is zero. If the net fair value of
the right and cbligation is not zerg, the contract is recognised as an asset or liability.

Except for trade receivables without a significant financing component, a financial asset or a financial liability
that is not measured through profit or loss (FVTPL) is initially measured at fair valuc plus or minus transaction
costs that arc directly attributable to its acquisition. A trade receivable without a significant financing
compenent is initially measured at the transaction price.

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual nights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially

all of the risk and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain contro: of the
financial asset.
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The Group derecogniscs a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or canceiled, or
expire The Group also derecagnises a financial ability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the
modified liability are substantially different, in which case a new financial liakility based on the modificd terms
is recognised at fair value. On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount
extinguished and the consideration paid 1s recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are only offset and the net armount reported in the Statement of Financial
Position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset and there is an intenticn to scttle on a net basis or
realise the asset and the liability simuitanecusly.

Allowance for Expected Credit Losses

The Groun measures loss allowances for financial assets, including trade receivables, at an amount ecqual

to lifetime expected credit lasses (ECLs). This reguires consideration of both historical and forward-looking
information whecn considering potential impairment of trade receivables. A provision matrix is used to calculate
the expected credit loss, which is based upon historical observed default rates adjusted for forward looking
information to create an adjusted default rate, which is applied over the outstanding invoices at the balance
sheet date.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deductad from the gross carrying amount
of the assets.

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date the Croup assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit
impaired. A financial asset is cred it-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred, such as a significant change in the credit risk
profile of a customer, a debt has become significantly overdue or a contract default.

Write-down of financial assets
The gross carrying amount of a financial asset 1s written downh to its recoverable amount when the Group has
no reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses derivative financial instrurments to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange risks arising from
operational activities. It principally employs forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge the risks associated
with foreign currency fluctuations relating to certain firm commitments and highly probable forecast
transactions.

Inventories

Inventories comprise goods held for resale and work in progress and are stated at the lower of cost and net
rcalisable value after making allowance for any obsolete or slow-moving items. Cost comprises direct materials,
inward carriage and, where applicable, direct labour costs and those overheads that have been incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated Staterment of Financial Position comprise cash balances and
short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less. For the purpose of the consclidated
Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and cash equivalents as defined above, net
of outstanding bank overdrafts.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less directly attrioutable transaction costs. Subseguent to
initial recognition, borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any difference between cost and redemption
value being recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss over the period of the borrowings on an effective
nterest basis.
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Provisions

A provision is recognised in the Staterment of Financial Position when the Group has g present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be reguired to settle the obligation Where the effect 's material, provisions are discounted to present value.
The unwinding of the discount is recognised as a finance cost.

A provision for restructuring is recognised when the Group has approved a detailed and formal restructuring
plan, and the restructuring has either commenced or has been publicly announced. Future operaling costs are
not proviaed for.

A provision for an ocnercus contract is recognised when the expected benefits to be derived by the Group from
a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of mecting its obligations under the contract.

Leasing

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That ts, If the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
An asset can be identified either explicitly or implicitly. If implicitly, the asset is not mentioned in the contract,
but the supplier can fulfil the contract only by the use of a particuiar asset, in which case there may be an
identificd asset. There s no identified asset if the supplier has a substantive right 1o substitute the asset.

Separating components of a contract

Contracts usually combine different kinds of obligation of the supplier, which may be formed by lease
componcnts or lease and non-lease components, such as maintenance/services. The Group identifies the lease
and non-lease components and account for those separately, applying the relevant standard to each one.
Consideration is allocated to each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alonce price of the lease
component and the aggregate stand-zlone price of the non-lease component

Combination of contracts
Contracts arc accounted together if they are entered into at or near the same time with the samc counterparty
and in contemplaticn of another.

Lease term

The lease term is the non-canceltable period of the lease plus periods covaered by an option to extend or an
option to terminate If the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the extension option or not exercise the
terrminaticn option.

i) Right of use assets

The Group recognises right of use assets at the commencement date of the lease. Right of use assets

are measured at cost, less any accumultated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right of use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less
any lease incentives recerved.

Right of use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated
useful lives of the assets.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the
exercise of @ purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated uscful life of the asset.

ii) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognisces lease liabilities measured at the present value
of iease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) iess any leasc incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees,
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The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by
the Group and payrments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising
the option to terminate.

Variable lease cayments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless
they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the
payment oCcurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencament date when the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. The incremantal
borrowing rate is a combination of government bond yields, used as a proxy for a risk-free rate, calculated over
various periods linked to existing lease terms. This rate is adjusted for borrowing costs and risks specific to
each entty

After the commencement date, the amount of lecase liabifities is increased to reflect tne accretion of interest
and reduced for the lease payments made. \n addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured
if there 1s a modification, a changc in the lease term, a change in the lease payments or a change in the
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Any adjustrment of the lease liability is reflected as an adjustment to the right of use asset. If the carrying
amount of the right of use asset has atready been reduced to zero, the remaining remeasurement is
recognised in profit or loss,

The Group has adopted the practical expedicnt under IFRS 16 not to recegnise right of use assets and lease
liabilities for short-term leases, with a 'ease term of 12 months or less and leases of low value, Lease paymoents
relating to these leases are expensed to the Statement of Profit or Lass on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing casts are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred, in accordance with the
offective interest rate method.

Pensions
Payments to defined contribution pansion schemes are charged as an expensc as they fall due.

In respect of defined benefit penston schemes, the position recognised in the consolidated Statement of
Financial Position represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation, reduced by the fair valuc of
the schemce assets,

Obligations to provide future benefit to employees earned through pricr service are estimated and discounted
to present value. Plan assets are measured at fair value. The cost of providing benefits under the defined
benefit plans is actermined by actuarial valuation, using the projected unit credit method.

Actuaria! remeasurcment of the net def ined benefit liability or assct comprises () actuarial gains and losscs,
(o) the return on plan assets in excess of the amount included in net interest on the net defined benefit

asset or liability, and (¢} any change in the effect of the asset celfing (where applicable}, also excluding any
amount included in net interest on the net defined benefit ligbility or asset; and is recognised immaeadiately

in the Statement of Financial Position with a corresponding entry in retained earnings through Other
Comprehensive Income in the period in which it occurs. Remeasurement gains or losses are not reclassified to
profit or loss in subseguant periods.

Share based payments
Employees of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby employees
render services as a consideration for eguity instrurrents (cauity-settled transactions).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by reference to the fair value at the date
the grant is made, calculated using an option pricing model, and is recognised as an expensc over the vesting
period, which cnds on the date on which the relevant empoyees become fully entitled to the award. In valuing
cquity-settled transactions, no account is taken of non-market vesting conditions,
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At each reporting date before vesting, the cumulative expense is calculated, representing the extent to which
the vesting period has expired and management's best estimate of the achievement or otharwise of non-
market conditions and hence the number of equity instruments that will uitimately vest. The movement in
cumulative expense since the previous reporting date is recognised in the consolidated Statement of Profit or
Loss, with a corresponding entry in equity.

The issuance hy the Company to its subsidialies ol @ grant of options over the Company's shares represants
additional capital contributions by the Company in its subsidiaries. The additional capital contribution is based
on the fair value of the grant issued, allccated over the underlying grant’s vesting period.

Taxation

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authoritics, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting
date. Management pericdically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and considers whether it is probable that a taxation
authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The group measures its tax balances either based on the
most likely amount or the expected value, depending on which methad provides a better prediction of the
resolution of the uncertainty.

Deferred income tax is recognised on all temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statcments, with the following exceptions:

= where the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss;

= inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investmoents in subsidiaries and asscciates,
where the timing of the reversat of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is prebable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

» deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probabie that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, carried forward tax cregdits or tax losses can be utitised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are rmeasured on an undiscounted basis at the tax rates that are expected
to apply when the related asset is realised or liability is settled, based on tax rates and laws enacted or
substantively cnacted at the reporting date.

Incorme tax is charged or credited directly to equity if it relates to items that are credited or charged to eguity.
Otherwise income tax is recognised in the consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss.

Foreign currency translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency at the cxchange rate ruling
at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date and gains or losses on translation are included in the
consclidated Staterment of Profit or Loss.

Currency gains and losses arising from the retranslation of the opening net asscts of foreign cperations are
recorded as @ movement on resorves, net of tax. The differences that arise from translating the results of
overseas businesses at average rates of exchange, and their assets and liabilities at closing rates, are dealt with
n a separate currency translation reserve. All other currency gains and losses are dealt with in the consolidated
Statement of Profit or Loss.
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Revenue recognition

Revenue represents the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for goods, commission and other
services provided to third parties, after deducting discounts, VAT and similar taxes levied overseas. Revenue is
recognised in a way that depicts the transfer of promisea goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Transaction price is allocated to each performance obligarion on the basic of the relative stand-alone selling
prices of each distinct good or service promised in the contract. If a stand-alone selling price is not obscrvable,
the Group estimates it. The transaction price may include a discount or a variable amount of consideration that
relates entirely to a part of the contract. The Group will review the requirements and specify when the variable
amount shou'd be allocated to one or more, but not ali, performance obligations in the contract.

Step 1 Identify the contract with a customer

Step 2: ldentify the performance obligations in the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4 Allocate the transaction price to the performance cbligations in the contract
Step 5 Recognisc revenue when (or as) the Group satisfies 2 performance obligation

Control of a2 good or service is obtained when the customer has the ability to direct the use of and optain
substantially all the benefits from the good or service.

The Group reaiises revenue from its principal activities through the sale of highly differentiated clectronic
products on four target markets: renewable energy, transpertation, medical and industrial & connectivity.

The following are the Group's main revenue streams and criteria for contral transfer:

a. Revenue from the sale of products
The Group recognises revenuc from product sales at a point in time when the goods are delivered to, or
accepted by the customer, if later, and control over the goods is transferred.

To dotermine the point in time at which the control is transferred to the customer, the Croup considers
whether or not:

a. The Group has a present right to payment for the asset;

b. The customer has acguired legal t'tle to the asset;

¢ The Group has transferred physical possession of the asset;

d. The customer has significant risks and rewards related to the ownership of the asset; and

e. The customer has accepted the asset.

When another party is involved in providing goods or scrvices to the customer, the Group determines whether
the nature of its promise is a performance obligation to provide the specified goods or services itself (principal)

or to arrange for those goods or services to be provided by the cther party {agent} and recognises revenue
accordingly.

b. Revenue from rendering of services
Product support and maintenance services are recognised over the period of the scrvice detivery as the
customer receives the benefit of the service over time. Progress is measured by reference to service periods.

Discounts are allocated proportionately to all performance cbligations in the contract, unless the Group can
demonstrate that the discount relates to one or more specific performance cbiligations.

Contract balances

Receivables

Receivables billed under the terms of the contract for delivered goods and scrvices and are not conditional on
anything other than the passage of time. These assets are classified as Trade Receivables.
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Contract liabilities

The Group's unsatisfied ebligation(s) for the transfer of goods or services to the customer for which
consideration has becn received from the customer orfand payments received in advance from a customer in
consideration of future performance obligations.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a rmannet consislent witn internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker. The chief operat.ing decision maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
asscssing performance of the operating segments, has been identificd as the Board.

Dividend paid

Dividends are recognised when they mceet the criteria for recognition as a liability. In relation to final dividends,
this is when the dividend is approved by the shareholders in the general mecting, and in relation to interim
dividends, when paid.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recogniscd in the Staterment of Profit or Loss on the date the Group’s right to receive
payment is established.

Significant accounting judgements and estimates

The preparzation of Financial Statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, incorme and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other applicable factors, the resuits of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying
values of assets and fiabilities that are not readily apparent fream other sources. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Actual results may differ from these estimates and any
revisions to est:mates are recognised prospectively.

Information about judgements, assurmptions and estimation uncertainties as at 31 March 2022 that could
result in a material adjustment to the carrying amount of asscts and liabilities in the next financial year is
addressced regarding:

» Impairment of non-financial assets {Group only): Coodwill is tested annually for impairment, in
accordance with IAS 36. An entity is reguired to ensure that its assets are not impaircd and are carried at
no mare than their recoverable amount, measured based on the sum of future cash flows expected to be
realised from sale or value-in-use. Assets which do not generate independent cash flows are reguired to be
grouped together inte CGU's and tested for impairment. In determining the recoverable amount of an asset
or CGU, ostimates and assumptions must be made in determining the value of those future cash flows. For a
CGU this includes asscssment of future revenue, operating profit, discount rates and long term growth rates.
Uncertainty inherent in making judgernents and estimates means that there is a risk that the estimated
recoverable amount could result in a material adjustment in the future accounting period{s}. Note 18
provides more details;

= Measurement of defined benefit obligations {Group only): The present value of the defined benefit
obligations depends on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a number of
assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the nct expense and balance sheet position include
discount rates, inflation and mortality rates. Any changes in these assumpticns will impact the carrying
amount of defined ncnefit obligations. The actuarial assumptions used In determining the carrying amaount
at 31 March 2022 are set out in note 32,

» Fair value of assets acquired in a business combination (Group only): Estimates are made in asscssment
of fair value of the consideration and net assets acquired, including the identification and valuation of
intangible assets and their useful ives. Estimates used include customer attrition rates, discount ratc and
trading forecast. Note 11 provides details on business combinations;
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» Value of investments (Company only): Investments in subsidiaries are reviewed annually for impairment
when indicators for impairment are identified. Determining whether the Company's investments in
subsidiaries have been impaired requires estimations of the investments’ values in Use or consideration of
the net asset value of the entity. The value-in-use calculations reguire the Directors to estimate the future
cash flows, expected to arise from the investments, using estimates like future revenue, operating profit,
discount rates and long term growth rates to calaulate present values,

The following include information about judgements, assurptions and estimation uncertainties as at 31 March
2022 that are not considered significant and should not result in a material adjustment to the carrying amount
of assets and liabiiities in the next financial year:

= Recognition of deferred tax assets {Group only): Judgement around the availability of future taxable
profit against which tax deductible temporary differences and tax losses carried-forward can be utilised is
necessary for the recognition of deferred tax assets;

=« Estimating the incremental borrowing rate (Group only): Where entities in the Group are required to
recognise and measure a leasing liabitity, as lessee, lease payments should be discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease, but often this cannot be readily determined from the leasing contract. Instead, the
entity must determine its incrermental borrowing rate, being the rate that the lessee would have to pay to
borrow over a simiiar term, with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an assct of a similar value
to the right of usc asset, in a similar economic environment, considering factors such as the lessee's credit
profile, borrowing currency and term of the lease. The process reguires jJudgement in the determination of
an appropriate rate;

= Inventories (Group only): The carrying amounts of inventories are stated with due allowance for excess,
obsolete or slow-moving items. The Directors exercise jJudgement in assessing net realisable value.
Provisions for slow-maving and absolete inventary are based on management's assessment of the nature
and condition of the inventory, including assumptions around future demand and market conditions;

3. New accounting standards and financial reporting requirements

New standards applied

The Group has applied the foliowing standards and amendments for the first time for its annual reporting
period commencing 1 April 2021

s |FRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures  Amendment (replacement issues in the context of IBOR reform);
v |FRS 9 Financial Instruments - Ameandmcent (replacement issues in the context of 1BOR reformy;
s |[FRS 6 Leases - Armendment {replacement issue in the context of IBOR reformy;

= |AS 39 Financial Instrurmments Recognition and Measurement  Amendment {replacement issues In the
context of the IBOR reform.

a IFRS76 Leases Amendment {Covid-19-related rent concessions)

These and other amendments, changes and improvements to IFRS issucd by IASB have had no material
impact on the Group and Company's current financial results or financial position.

New standards nat yet applied

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for 31
March 2022 reparting period and have not been carly adopted by the Group. None of these are expected to
have a material impact on the Croup's financial results in the current or future reporting periods.



4. Revenue
Group revenue is analysed below:

2021

2022 restated™

£m £m

Salc of goods 3700 2935
Rendering of services 9.2 2.3
Total revenue from continuing operations 379.2 302.8

= 2021 restateo. Refer ta note 2 to the consolidated Financial Statements

5. Operating segment information

During the year, the Group completed the dispesal of its Custom Supply Division, as described in note 12. As a
result of the dispasal, the Group has reorganised its businesses into two distinct divisions, Magnetics & Controls
("M&C" and Sensing & Connectivity ("S&C). These have been assessed as the new Repertable Cperating
Segments in accordance with IFRS 8 'Operating Segments’. The senicr management structure has also been

aligned with these two segments.

Within cach of the above reportable operating segment are aggregated business units with similar
characteristics such as the nature of customers, products, risk profile and economic characteristics.

Managerment monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making
decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is reported and

evaluated based on operating profit or loss carned by each segment.

Segment revenue and results

Total

Magnetics & Sensing & Unallocated continuing

Controls  Connectivity Costs operations

2022 £m £m £m £m
Revenue 234.7 1445 - 379.2

Result

Underlying operating profit/{loss) 29.8 233 .7} 41.4
Acquisition expenses .4} {5.1) - (6.5)
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets (4.8} {9.2) - (14.0)
Operating profit/{loss) 23.6 9.0 .7 20.9
Total

Magnetics & Sensing & Unallocated continuing

Controls  Connectivity Costs operations

2021 (restated”) £m £m £m £m
Revenue 1904 Nn2.4 - 3028

Result

Underlying operating profit/(loss) 23.4 55 (8.2) 308
Acqguisition expenses 0.4 (1.6} - (1.2)
Amortisation of acguired intangible assots (35) (7.6 .
IAS 19 pensicn charge - 14) (1.4}
Operating profit/{loss) 203 6.3 {9.5) 177

* 2021 restateo Refer ta note 2 to the consohdated Financial Statements



5. Operating segment information continued
Segment assets and liabilities

Magnetics & Sensing &

2022 Controls  Connectivity Total
Assets and liabilities £m £m £m
Segment assets (excluding goodwill and other intangible assets) 126.3 69.4 195.7
Goodwill and other intangible assets 126.7 126.6 263.3

253.0 206.0 459.0
Central assets N4
Cash and cash equivalents 39.4
Pension asset 2.7
Current and deferred tax assets 10.8
Total assets 5233
Segment liabilities (77.5} (41.9) {119.4)
Central liabilities (15.1}
Other financial liabilities {69.6}
Current and deferred tax liabilities {28.8)}
Total labilities (232.9)
Net assets 290.4

Magnetics & Sensing & Discontinued
2021 Controls  Connectivity operations Total
Assets and liabilities £m £m £m £m
Segment assets (excluding goodwill and other
intangible assets) 813 63.2 517 196.2
Coodwill and other intangible assets 651 146 10.2 189.9
146.4 177.8 619 386.1

Central assets 32
Cash and cash equivalents 292
Current and deferred tax asscts 97
Total assets 4282
Segment liabilities {45.0) {337) {363) Ms.0)
Central iakilities (9:3)
Other financial liabilities (76.4)
Pension liability (1.0}
Current and deferred tax liabilities (187
Total liabilities (219.8)
Net assets 208.4

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and allocating resources between segments, the

Directors monitor the net assets attributable to each segment. Asscts and liabilities are aliccated to reportable
segments, with the exception of the pension liability, tax assets and liabilities, cash and all borrowings, central
assets (Head Office assets) and central lLabilities (Head Office liabilities).



S. Operating segment information continued
Other segment information

Depreciation and Additions to hon

amortisation' current assets'
2022 2027 2022 2021
£m £m £m £m
Magnetics & Controls 10.8 89 76.1 19
Sensing & Connectivity 13 i 34.4 240
Central 0.3 04 08 1.7
24.2 204 m3 276

incluaes nght of use assets, goodwill, acquired Intangsbles and related amortsation,

Magnetics & Controls additions comprised intangible assets £26.3m, goodwi!l £37.0m, right of use asscts £2.3m
and tangible assets £35m. Sensing & Connectivity additions comprised intangible assets £13.1m, goodwili
£167m, right of use assets £33m and tangible assets £1.3m. Central edditions comprised intangible assets
f0.2m and tangible assets £O.6m.

Geographical information
The Group's revenue from external customers based on custorrer fecations and information about its segmaent
assets (excluding pension assct) by geographical location are detalled betow:

Revenue from external Non current
customers assets
2021
2022 restated* 2022 2021
£m £m £m £m
UK 4.8 360 79.9 573
Europe 181.2 155.4 145.4 166.7
Rest of the World 156.2 1.4 98.9 210
379.2 3028 3242 2450
* 2021 restated Refer to note 2 to the consolidatea Financial Statements
6. Underlying profit before tax
2021
2022 restated*
£m £m
Profit before tax 171 135
Add back  Acqguisition expensces (a) 6.5 12
Amortisation of acquired intangible asscts (b} 14.0 1.1
Total IAS 19 pension charge {c) - 1.4
Underlying profit before tax 376 272

* 2021 restated. Refer to note 2 te the consclidated Financial Statements
The tax impact of the underlying profit adjustments above is a credit of £2.0m (2021: £2.5m).

a. Acguisition and merger related expenses of £6.5m comprise £2.6m of transaction costs in relation to the
acquisition of CPI, Antenova, Beacon and ongoing transactions; £3.5m charge refating to the movement in
fair value of contingent consideration and assets acquired on past acquisitions; and [0.4m charge in relation
to the integraticn of acguired businesses in Neorth Amrerica,



6. Underlying profit before tax continued
During the prior year there were £1.2m of acguisition and merger related expenses. £1.0m of transaction
costs were incurred in relation to the acguisition of Phoenix, Limitor and ongoing transactions. There was a
net contingent consideration credit of £0.2m in relation to current and past acquisitions and {0.4m charge
in relation to the integration of acquired businesses in North Amaerica.

b, Amortisation charge for intangible assets recognised on acquisition of £14.0m being amortisation of
acquired custormer relalionships and patents. The cquivalent charge rast year was {11.1m. The increase
refates to the five acguisitions during the last two years (Phoenix in October 2020, Limitor in February 2027,
CPi in May 2021, Antenova in August 2021 and Beacon in September 2021).

c. Pension costs in the prior periods related to a cne-off adjustment relating to historic commutation terms for
legacy scheme memboers.

7. Operating profit
Amounts charged/(credited) to the consolidated Statement of Grofit or Loss are as follows

2021
2022 restated”
£m £m
Employee costs (note 8) 86.0 710
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (note 15) 4.7 45
Depreciation of right of use assets (note 16) 5.1 40
Armortisation of other intangible assets (ncte 19) 14.9 n.7
Expected Credit Losses (note 21) 12 C2
Net foreign exchange differences (0.2) an
Inventories:
Cost of inventories 2272 168.3
write-down of inventaries to net realisable value 26 17
Auditors remuncration:
Augit of the Croup financial staterments (including parent company)} 0.6 0.4
Audit of local subsidiary financial staternents o8 06

= 2021 restated Refer to note 2 to the consohdated Financial Statements

Tre fee for nor-audit services was £4« {202 £8x). These rmainly relate to reporting requ red by regulators in
overseas countries.

8. Employee costs and Directors’ emoluments

2021

2022 restated™

£m £m

Wages and salarieg 70.6 585
Sociat security costs 103 85
Other pension Costs 3.2 30
Share-based payments {note 37) 19 11
86.0 711

" 2021 restated. Refor to note 2 to the consolioatea Financial Statements



8. Employee costs and Directors’ emoluments conunued
The average monthly number of employees (including Executive Directors) during the year was as follows:

2021
2022 restated*
Sales and marketing 264 262
Manufacturing and service 3,779 3192
Administration 479 432
4,522 3,886
= 2021 restatea Refer to note 2 to the consolidates Financial Statements

At 31 March 2022 the Group had 4,886 cmpioyees (2021 4,024 restated).
2022 2027
Directors' emoluments £ £
Aggregate emoluments in respect of gualfying services 1,980,849 1271,M
Aggregate contribution to defined contribution scheme 94,67 79,230

2,075,520 1,350,341

Highest paid director

Emolumaents in respect of qualifying services 1,236,618 787,360
Pension contributions to the defined contricution scheme 73,514 61,523
1,310,132 848,883

Retirernaent benefits are accruing to two Directors under a defined contribution pension scheme (2021 two)

Further details of Directors’ emoluments are provided in the remuneration report on pages 109 to 132

9. Finance income/(costs)

2021

2022 restated*

£m £m

Interest receivable and similar income 0.4 03
Finance income 0.4 03
Finance costs on bank loans and overdrafts (3.1} (3.0}
Finance costs on fease liabilities {0.6) (0.4)
Amortisation of berrowing costs (0.5) (0.5)
Finance costs (4.2) (3.9

= 2021 restated Refer to note 2 to the consolicated Financial Statements



10. Tax expense
The major components of the corporation tax cxpense are summarised below:

2021
2022 restated*
£m £rm
Current taxation:
UK corporation tax (0.3} -
UK adjustments in respect of prior years 0.2
o1
Overseas tax 8.6 6.7
Overseas adjustments in respect of prior years 0.1 -
8.7 67
Total current taxation expense 8.8 67
Deferred taxation
Crigination and reversal of temporary differcnces within the UK (1.3} 1
Origination and reversal of temporary differences overseas (1.0} (1.2)
increased recognition of historic losses 0.2 {0.4)
smpact of tax rate changes 0.7 -
Total deferred taxation credit (1.4} (27}
Tax expense reported in the consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss 74 4.0
2022 2021
Tax recognised in other comprehensive expense £m £m
(Decreasel/increase in deferred tax asset on pensicn {0.5) 06
Tax reported in other comprehensive expense {0.5) 06
2022 2021
Tax recog nised in equity £m £m
Increase in deferred tax asset on share based payments 1.5 13

Tax reported in equity 1.5 1.3




10. Tax expense continued

The effective rate of taxation for the year is higher (2021 higher) than the standard rate of taxation in the UK of
19% (2021:19%). A reconciliation of the tax cxpense applicable to the profit before tax, at the statutcry tax rate,
to the actual tax expense at the Group's effective tax rate for the years ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021
respect.vely is presented below:

2021
2022 rastated*
£m £m
Profit before tax 171 135
Profit before taxation multiplied by standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of
19% (2021 19%) 32 26
Effect of:
Different tax rates in overseas companies 15 1.0
Tax losses not recognised Q3
Non-deductible cxpenses 11 08
Decreased/(increased) recognition of historic losses 0.2 (0.4}
Impact of tax rate changes on deferred tax 0.7
Adjustments to current taxation expense in respect of prior years 0.4 -
Total tax reperted in the consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss 7.4 40
Deferred tax
2022 2021
Deferred tax liabilities £m Em
Accelerated capital allowances (0.8) (0.3)
Intangibles (18.3} (11.1)
Pensions (0.6}
Other temporary differences (1.4} (m
Gross deferred tax liabilities (21.3) (12.5)
Deferred tax assets
Decclerated capital allowances - Q2
Pensions 0.4 07
Tax losses 3.4 22
Share-based payment plans 38 35
Other temporary differences 1.6 13
Cross deferred tax assets 9.2 79

£2.6m of deferred tax assets and £3.6m of deferrea tax liabilitics are expected to be recovered or settled no
rmore than twelve maonths after the reporting period. £6.6m of deferred tax assets and (17.5m of deferred tax
liabilities are expected 1o be recovered or settled more than twelve months after the reporting period.



10. Tax expense continusd

Accelerated Share Cther
capital based temporary Total
allowances Intangibles Pensicns Tax losses payments  differences
Movements in deferred tax £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
At1 April 2020 - {11.5) - 2.2 22 (0.2} (7.3)
(Charged)fcredited
- to profit and loss™ (oA} 2.1 Q1 - 0.4 25
- to other comprehensive - 06 - - 06
income
- directly to equity - 1.3 13
Discontinued operations* - - {On on
Acquisition-related (1.6} - (1.6}
movements
At 31 March 2021 [0.7) Mm.o) 0.7 2.2 35 0.1 {4.6)
{Chargedj/credited
- to profit and loss (0.5) 12 (0.3} 21 1.2 0.2 15
- to cther comprehensive - (G.5) - - (0.5)
income
- directly to equity - - 15 - 15
Discontinucd operations (0.2) - Q1 (G.9) - (oA} (1.3}
Acquisition-related - (8.5) - - (8.5)
movements
At 31 March 2022 (0.8} (18.3} (0.2) 34 3.8 0.2 {n.g)

* 2021 restaten Refer to note 2 to the consoliaated Frnancial Staternents.

At 31 March 2022, the Group had not recegnised any deferred tax asset in respect of tax losses of approximately
£231m (20271 £19.8m). Deferred tax assets are not recognised where there is insufficient evidence tnat losses

wili be utilised.

At 31 March 2022, a £0.6m deferred tax liability (2021 [0.5m) has been recogniscd for withholding taxes payable
on the remittance of certain of the Group’s overseas subsidiaries’ unremitted earnings. The aggregate amount
of unremitted earnings on which deferred tax has not been recognised is £18.9m (2021 £12.9m). No deforred

tax has been recognised on this amount as the Group is able to controi the timing of these distributions and is

not expecting to distribute these profits in the foreseeable future.

Anincrease in the UK corporation tax rate to 25% had been substantively enacted at 31 March 2022, with cffcct
from 1 April 2023, A rate of 19% will be applicatle until the 25% rate becomes effective. Rates of 19% and 25%
have been applied In the measurernent of the Group's UK-based deferred tax asscts and liabilities at 31 March
2022, based on an estimate of when the UK deferred tax is expected to crysta'lise.



1. Business combinations

Acquisitions in the year ended 31 March 2022

Acquisition of CPI

On 13 May 2021, the Group completed the acquisition of Control Preducts Inc (“CPI1") via the purchase of 100% of
the share capital and voting eguity interests of Ca'culagraph Corporation, and which trades under the narme of
Control Products Inc ("CPI"). CPI, based in the USA, is a designer and manufacturer of custorm, rugged sensors
and switches.

CPlwas acguired for an initial cash consideration of £8.9m ($12.5m), vefore expenses, funded from the Group's
existing debt facilities. In addition, a contingent payment of up to £3.8m ($5.4m) will be payabla subject to

CPl achieving tertain ocperational and profit growth targets during the four-year period ending 31 March 2025,
£2.2m ($3.2m) fair value of contingent cansideration has been accounted for in the purchase price at the
acguisition date.

The provisional fair value of the identifiabic assets and liabiities of CPI at the date of acquisition were:

Provisicnal
fair value
recognised
at acquisition
£m
Intangible assets - other (customer relaticnships) 4.4
Right of use assets C6
Inventories 09
Trade and other receivables 0.4
Net cash 06
Trade and other payables (0.3)
Drovisions (Q.1)
Lease liabilities (06)
Total identifiable net assets 5.9
Provisional goodwill arising on acquisition 52
Total investment 1.1
Discharged by

Initia’ cash consideration 89
Contingent consideration 22
Hna

Net cash outflows in respect of the acquisition comprise:
Total
£m
Fair value of cash consideration 89
Transaction costs of the acquisition [included in operating cash flows) 05
Net cash acquired 10.8)
8.8

Acadisiticr costs of £FO4m and £01m were expensed asincdried in the perniod ended 31 March 2022 ano the year enced 31 March 2021
respectively These were includea within operating costs (note B)



11. Business combinations continued

'ncluded in cash flow from investing activities is the cash consideration of £8.9m and the net cash acguired

of £0.6m,

From the date of acquisition to 31 March 2022, CPI contributed £5.7m to revenue and £0.7m to profit after
tax of the Croup. If the business combination had taken place at the beginning of the year, the consclidated
revenue for the Group wou'd have been £379 7m and the consolidated profit after tax for the Group would

have been £9.8m.

Included in the £52m of goodwill recognised above are certain intangible assets that cannot be individually
separated and reliably measured from the acguiree, duc to their nature. These include the value of expected

operational benefits.

Al the acquired receivables are expected to be collected.

Acquisition of Antenova

On 25 August 2021, the Group completed the acquisition of 100% of the share capital and voting equity
interests of Antenova Ltd ("Antenova”). Antenova, based in the UK, is a designer and manufacturer of antennas

and racdio frequency (RF) modules for industrial cennectivity applications.

Antenova was acguired for a cash consideration of £209m, before expenses, funded from the Group's existing

debt facilities.

The provisiona: fair vaiue of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Antenova at the date of acquisition were:

Provisional

fair value

recognised

at acquisitioen

£m

Property, plant and equipment 0.2
Intangible assets  other (customer relationships) 872
Intangible assets - other (software) 01
Right of use assets 0.3
Inventories 1.0
Trade and other recevables 0S8
Net cash 3.0
Trade and other payables (1.2}
Current tax liabilities (@0
Deferred tax liabilities 1.9
Lease liabilities (0.3)
Total identifiable net assets 10.2
Provisional goodwill arising on acqguisition 10.7
Total investment 209

Discharged by

Cash 209

209




N. Business combinations continued
Net cash outfiows in respect of the acquisition comprise:

Total

£m

Fair value of casn consideration 209
Transaction costs of the acquisition (included in operating cash flows)’ (012)
Net cash acquired (3.0)
18.5

Acauaisiticn costs of £0 6m were expensed as incurred .n the year enced 31 March 2022 These were included within operating costs (note 6).

included in cash flow from investing activities is the cash consideration of £209m and the net cash acquired
of £3.0m.

From the date of acquisiticn to 31 March 2022, Antanova contributed £4.8m to revenue and £0.3m to
profit after tax of the Group. If the business combination had taken place at the beginning of the year, the
consolidated revenue for the Group would have been £382.9m and the consolidated profit after tax for the
Group would have been £10.2m.

Included in the £10.7m of goodwilt recognised above are certain intangible assets that cannot be individually
separated anc reliably measured from the acquiree, due to their nature. These include the value of expected
operational benefits,

All the acguired receivables are expected to be collected.

Acquisition of Beacon

On 2 September 2021, the Group compieted the acguisition of Beacon EmbeddedWorks ("Beacon”) via the
purchase of 100% af the share capital and voting equity interests of Logic PD Inc which trades under the
name of Beacon EmbeddedwWorks. Based in the USA, Beacon is a designer, manufacturer and supplier of
custom System on Module (SOM) embedded computing boards and related software, supplying the medical,
industrial and aerospace & defence markets in the USA,

Beacon was acquired for a cash consideration of £57.7m ($79.4m), before expenses, funded from the Group's
existing debt facilities.



1. Business combinations continued
The provisional fair value of the identifiable asscts and liabilities of Beacon at the date of acguisition were:

Provisional
fair value
recoghnised
at acquisition
£m
Property, plant and equipment 04
Intangible assets - other (customer relaticnships) 251
Right of use assets 22
Inventories 29
Trade and other receivables 19
Trade and other payables (3.6}
Provisions (0.2)
Deferred tax liabilitics (63)
Lease liakilitics (2.2)
Total identifiable net assets 20.2
Provisional goodwill arising on acquisition 370
Total investment 572
Discharged by

Initial cash consideration 577
Working capital purchase price adjustment {0.5]
57.2

Net cash outflows in respect of the acguisition comprise:
Total
£m
Fair value of cash consideration 577
Working capital purchase price adjustment (0.5)
Transaction costs of the acquisition {included in operating cash flows)' 06
57.8

Acguisition costs of FO.9m were expenses as incuarred i the penoa enaed 31 March 2022 These were incluaea within operating costs £03m
of costs remained urpaid a1 31 March 2022 (note &)

Included in cash flow from investing activities is the cash censideration of £57.7m.

From the date of acquisition to 31 March 2022, Beacon contributed £9.0m to revenuc and loss of £1.3m to
profit after tax of the Group. !f the business combination had taken place at the beginning of the year, the
consolidated revenue for the Group would have been £386.9m and the consolidated profit after tax for the
Group would have been £10.3m.

Included in the £37.0m of goodwili recognised above are certain intangible assets that cannot be individually
scparated and reliably measured from the acquiree, due to their nature. These include the value of expected
operational bencfits.

All the acquired receivables arc expected to be collected.



1. Business combinations continuea
Acquisitions in the year ended 31 March 2021
There have been no changes to the provisional fair values of the assets and iiabilities acquirec in the prior year.

Acquisition of Phoenix
On 13 October 2020, the Group completed the acquisition of the trade and assets of Phoenix America Inc
("Phoenix™). The trade and assets were transferred to a newly incorporated cormpany, Phocnix America LLC.

Phoenix was acquired tor an initial cash consideration of £8.5m ($10.9m) and funded from the Croup's

existing debt facilities. In addition, a contingent payment of up to £1.2m {$1.5m) will be payable te the
management shareholder subject to Phoenix achieving certain profit targets during the threc-year period
ended 31 December 2023 The fair value of the contingent consideraticn will be recognised in the consolidated
Staterment of Profit or Loss over the performance period.

Phoenix, based in the USA, is a designer and manufacturer of magnetically actuated sensors, encoders and
related products for industrial customers.

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liakilities of Phoenix at the date of acquisition were:

Fair value

recognised

at acquisition

£m

Property, plant and equipment 0.5

Intangibie assets other 33

Inventories 07

Trade and cther receivables 0.5

Trade and other payables (0.2

Total identifiable net assets 4.8

Provisional goodwill arising on acquisition 37

Total investment 8.5
Discharged by

Cash 85

85

Included in the £3.7m of goodwill recognised above are certain intangible asscts that cannot be individually
separated and reliably measured from the acquires, due to their nature. These include the value of expected
opcrational benefits.



1. Business combinations continued
Net cash outflows in respect of the acquisition comprisc:

Total

£m

Fair value of cash consideration 8.5
Transaction costs of the acquisition (included in operating cash flows) 0.4
8.9

Accisition costs of £01m and £0.3m were expensed as incurrea 1in the years ended 31 March 2021 ang 31 March 2020 respectively Those
were included within operating costs {note 6)

Includea in cash flow from investing activities is the cash considerat'on of £85m.

From the date of acquisition to 31 March 2021, Phoenix contributed £2.5m to revenue and £0.2m to profit after
tax of the Group. If the business comipination had taken place at the beginning of the year, the consolidated
revenue for the Group would have been £305.0m and the consolidated profit after tax for the Group would
have been £9.8m.

Acquisition of Limitor

On 11 February 2021, the Group completed the acquisiticn of the Limitor Group {"Limitor”) via the purchase
of 100% of the share capital ana voting equity interests of Limitor GmibH and its subsidiary company Limitor
Solutions CmbH and 100% of the share capital and voting cquity interests of Limitor Hungaria Kft.

Limitor was acquired for an initial cash consideration of £12.8m (€14 .6m), before expenses, funded from the
Croup's existing debt facilities In addition, a contingent payment of up to £3.1m (€3.5m) will be payable
subject to Limitor achieving certain operaticnal and profit growth targets during the threc-year pericd cnded
31 March 2024, £0.4m of contingent consideration nas been accounted for in the purchase price with the
remaining fair value of the contingent consideration to be recognised in the consolidated Statement of Profit
or Loss over the performance period.

Limitor, based in Germany and Hungary, designs and manufactures custormn thermal safety components for
industrial markets.



11. Business combinations continLed

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabkilitics of Limitor at the date of acguisition were:

Fair value
recognised
at acquisition
£m
Froperty, plant and cquipment 08
Intangible assets - other 65
Inventories o7
Trade and other receivables 0s
Cash and cash equivalents 1.0
Trade and other payables (0.8)
Current tax asset 01
Deferred tax liabilities (1.6)
Total identifiable net assets 76
Provisional goodwill arising on acquisition 6.2
Total investment 13.8
Discharged by
Initial cash consideration 2.8
Purchase price adjustment - settled in 2022 06
Contingent censideration 04
13.8

Included in the £6.2m of goodwill recogniscd above are certain intangible assets that cannot be individually
separated and reliably measured from the acguiree, due to their nature. These include the value of expacted

operationa! benefits.

Net cash outflows in respect of the acquisition comprise:

Total

£m

Fair value of cash consideration 28
Purchase price adjustment - settled in 2022 C6
Transaction costs of the acquisition {inciuded in operating cash flows)’ 05
Net cash acqguired .o
129

Acadisiticn costs of £0.5m were expensco as incdrred in the year ended 31 March 2021 ana were Inchtuded with'n ocperating costs [note 6}

Included in cash flow from investing activitics is the cash consideration of £12.8m and the net cash acquired

of £1.0m.

From the date of acquisition to 31 March 2027, Limitar contributed £1.3m to revenue and £0.2m to profit after
tax of the Group. If the business combination had taken place at the beginning of the year, the consolidated
profit after tax for the Group would have been £10.2m and the censolidated revenue for the Group would have

been £309.7m.

The purchase price adjustment has changed the amount of Goodwill recognised for this acquisition.



: 12. Discontinued operations and assets held for sale

! Disposals in the year ended 31 March 2022

" During the year, the Group exited its distribution business by completing the disposal of its Acal BFi business
and Vertee Scientific SA Proprietary Limited, which together has been referred to as tne disposal group.

The disposal of the Acal BF: business completed on 3 March 2022 for an initial cash consideration of £37.6m
- net of normatised working capital adjustment and debt-'ike adjustments, and before expenses. In addition,
. deferred consideration (loan note) of £5m will e payeble 3 years from completion of the disposal.

_ The disposal of Vertec Scientific SA Proprictary Limited completed on 5 January 2022 for an initial cash
: consideration of £1.3m, before expenses. In aadition, deferred consideration of £0.9m will be payable over a
3-year period frorm completion,

. The disposal group gencrated a profit on disposal of £6.6m, which is surmmarised below;

Total
£m
" Net consideration 448
" Net assets disposed of {330}
" Cumutative exchange loss reclassified from eguity to the consolidated Statement of Profit or
" Loss (2.0)
. Transaction costs (3.7)
~ Profit on disposal 66
- Consideration received:
Net upfront cash consideration received 389
! Deferred consideration 59
Net consideration receivable 44.8
Net assets disposed of:
i Property, piant and equipment 1.4
Right of use assets 66
| Intangible assets - Goodwill 9.4
Intangible assets  Cther 10
Inventorics 137
i Trade and other receivables 348
| Cash 6
Trace and other payables {26.4)
| Current tax liabilities 1.4)
. Lease liability (59)
| Provisions (2.0)
Deferred tax assets 0.3
. Net assets disposed of 331
o Net cash infiow from disposal:
© Cash consideration 389
Cash disposed (1.8)
Transaction costs of disposal (included in opcrating cash flows) 2.4)

Net ¢ash inflow on disposal 349




12. Discontinued operations and assets held for sale continuec

The results of the disposa! group are shown as discontinued operations for the year and the prior year and are

presented below:

2022 2021
£m £m
Revenue 162.7 1515
Operating costs (150.3) (147.9)
Operating profit 12.4 36
Finance costs (0.2} Q1)
Profit befare tax from operating activities 122 35
Tax expense 2.9) 1.0)
Profit for the year from operating act'vities 9.3 25
Cain on sale of discontinucd operations 6.6
Tax expense on gain on sale of discontinued cperations (0.4) -
Profit for the year from discontinucd operations 155 25
Earnings per share
2022 2021
£m £m
Basic profit per share on discontinued operations 16.7p 28p
Diluted profit per share on discontinued cperations 16.2p 270

The operating profit for 2022 excludes £1.0m of depreciation charge on nen-current assets as a result of them

being classified as held for sale as at 30 Septermber 2021,

Opcrating costs include £0.1m (2021 £02m) for auditors rermuneration in relation to discontinued operaticons.

Cash flows relating to trading activity of discontinued operations

2022 2021
£m £m
Net cash inflow from operating activities 5.9 ne
Net cash outflows from investing activities (0.3) toh)
Net cash outflows from financing activities (2.1) (2.3)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 35 95
13. Dividends
2022 2021
Dividends recognised in equity as distributions to equity holders in the year: £m £m
Eguity dividends on ordinary shares:
Final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2021 of 70p (2020: 0.0p) 6.2 -
Interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2022 of 3.35p (2021 315p) 3.2 2.8
Total amounts recoghised as equity distributions during the year 9.4 28




13. Dividends continueo

2022 2021
Proposed for approval at AGM: £m £m
Equity dividends cn ord'nary shares:
Final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2022 of 7.45p (2021: 7.0p) A (S
Summary
Diviaends per share declared in respect of the year 10.8p 1015k
Dividends per share paid in the year 10.35p 3150
Dividends paid in the year £9.4m 2.8m

14. Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent by the we'ghted average number of ordinary shares cutstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per sharc is the basic carnings per share after allowing for the dilutive offect of the conversion
into ordinary shares of the weighted average numbecer of options cutstanding during the year.

The following reflects the :ncome and share data used in the basic and diluted earnings per share
computations:

2022 2021
£m £m

Profit for the year attributable te equity holders of the parent:
Continuing operations 9.7 95
Discontinued operations 155 25
Profit after tax for the year 25.2 12.0
Number Number
Weighted average number of shares for basic earnings per share 93,015,684 88,753,576
Effect of dilution - share options 2,783,673 3,469,048
Adjusted weighted average number of shares for diluted earnings per share 95,799,357 92222624
Basic earnings per share from continuing operations 10.4p 10.7p
Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations 10.1p 103p
Basic carnings per share 27.0p 13.5p
Diluted earnings per share 26.3p 13.0p

Underlying earnings per share is calculated as follows:

2022 2021
£m £m
Profit after tax for the year from continuing operations .7 35
Acguisition expenses 6.5 1.2
Amortisation of acguired intangible asscts 14.0 m
IAS 19 pensicn charge - 1.4
Tax effect of the above (2.0} (2.5)

Underlying profit after tax 282 207




14. Earnings per share continued

Number Number
Weighted average number of shares for basic earnings per share 93,015,684 88,753,576
Effect of dilution  share options 2,783,673 3,469,048
Adjusted weighted average number of shares for diluted earnings per share 95,799,357 92,222,624
Underlying earnings per share 29.4p 224p

Al the year ond, there were 2,985,201 ardinary share options in issue that could potentiaily dilute underlying
earnings per share in the future, of which 2,783,673 are currently dilutive (2021: 3928273 in issue and 3,469,048

dilutive).

15. Property, plant and equipment

Land and Leasehold Plantand
buildings improvements egquipment Total
£m £m £m £m
Cost
ALT April 2020 1.4 40 328 482
Reclassification 03 (0.0} (0.2) -
Additions 03 29 32
Disposals [0.3) [Q7) [(0.5) [0.9)
Arising from business combinations (note 17 - 03 1.0 1.3
Exchange adjustrments (0.7} - (1.4) (20
At 31 March 2021 10.7 4.4 346 497
Additions - 09 45 54
Disposals - (0.6) (06)
Arising from business combinations {note 17 oa - 06 o7
Business disposed (note 12) (2.0 (1.6) (2.4) (6.0)
Exchange adjustments 02 03 05
At 31 March 2022 8.8 39 37.0 49.7
Accumulated depreciation
AL April 2020 3.4 2.2 174 230
Reclassification 0.3 (e (0.2} -
Charge for the year C4 0.4 41 4.9
Disposals on [(oR}} {04) {0.6)
Exchange adjustments 0.2 (0.2) (07) (1.1
At 31 March 202) 38 22 202 262
Charge for the year 04 04 39 47
Disposals [(oRN - (D.4) (05)
Business disposed (note 12) (1.5) {13) (1.8) (4.6}
Exchange adjustrments a1 C3 0.4
At 31 March 2022 26 1.4 222 26.2
Net book value at 31 March 2022 6.2 25 14.8 235
Nect book value at 3 March 2021 69 2.2 14 .4 235




15. Property, plant and equipment continued
Lend and buildings includes land with a cost of £0.4m (2021 £0.8m) that is not subject to depreciation.

At 3t March 2022 the Group had non-contractual caoital expenditure commitments for plant and eguipment
and leasehold improvements of £0.6m (2021: £1.7m) for which no provision has boen made. The commitments
are cxpected to be satisfied within one year of 31 March 2022,

16. Leases
16.1 Leasing arrangements

The Croup leases manufacturing and warehousing facilitics, offices and various items of plant, machinery,
cquipment and vehicles.

Manufacturing and warehouse facilities gencrally have lease terms between 3 ana 10 years. Lease contracts
generally include extension and termination options and variable lease payments.

16.2 Carrying value of right of use assets
Set out below are the carrying amounts of right of usc assets recognised and movements during the year:

Land and Plant and

Buildings machinery Total

£m £m £m

At April 2020 187 24 212
Additions/modifications 67 17 84
Depreciation charge (5.0 {(1.6) (6.6)
Exchange adjustments (0.5) (0.5)
At 31 March 2021 199 25 224
Additions/modifications 8.8 1.0 9.8
Depreciation charge {(4.8) 1.3} (el
Terminations {05) (0.2 {07
Businass acguired (note M) 19 1.2 31
Business disposed (note 12} {5.5) (m [6.6)

At 31 March 2022 19.8 21 219




16. Leases continued

16.3 Carrying value of lease liabilities

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lcasc liabitities and the movements during the year:

Total

£m

At April 2020 (20.0}
Additions/modifications (8.1
Interest for the year (0.6}
Lease payments 6.7
Exchange adjustments 05
At 31 March 2021 (21.5)
Addiions/modifications (9.3)
Interest for the year (0.8)
Lease payments 72
Terminations 0.7
Business acquired [note 11} (31
Business disposed (note 12) 59
Exchange adjustments {0.2)
At 31 March 2022 (21.7)
2022 2021

£m £m

Current hiabilities 4.7 4.8
Non-current liabilities 16.4 6.7
211 215

Payment of lease liabilities are shown under Financing Activities in the consolidated Statement of Cash Flows.

16.4 Amounts recagnised in the consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss*

2021

2022 restated*

£m £m

Depreciation of right of use assets 5.1 4.0
Interest expense (Included in finance costs) 0.6 0.4
5.7 44

*The amounts presented above excluge discontinuea operations

16.5 Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in a number of property and equipment leases across the
GCroup. These terms are used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing contracts.

Variable lease payments based upon an index or rate are accounted for once rental amounts are changed.



17. Intangible assets - goodwill

Cost £m
ALY April 2020 1541
Arising from business cormbinations 33
Exchange adjustments 1.3
At 31 March 2021 164.7
Arising from business combinations 537
Business disposed (note 17) {46.2)
Exchange adjustments 35
At 31 March 2022 175.7
Impairment £m
AT April 2020 and at 31 March 2027 {36.8)
Business disposed (note 12) 36.8
At 31 March 2022 -
Net book value at 31 March 2022 175.7
Net book value at 31 March 2021 1272

18. Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated to cash-generating units {("CGUs") and
tested annuzlly for impairment. Noewly acquired entities might be a single CCU until such time they can be
integrated.

Following disposal of the Group's Custem Supply Division, as described in note 5, the Group's operations
were recrganised into two distinet divisions, Magnetics & Controls (*"M&C"} and Sensing & Connectivity ("S&C).
Within each division arc aggregated business units which gencrate largely independent cash inflows and are
considered to be individual CGUs from an impairment testing perspective.

The carrying value of goodwill is analysed as follows:

2022 2021

£m £m

Discontinued operations - 3.6
Magnetics & Controls 89.3 49.5
Sensing & Connectivity 86.4 68.8
175.7 1279

The movement in goodwill compared to prior year relates to the movement in foreign exchange with the
exception of Acal BF, which was disposed of during the year {note 12} and CPI, Antenova and Beacon which
were acquired in the year (note 11).

in the prior year, Naratel and Hobart businesses were integrated and therefore have been considered as

one CGU for impairment testing. During the year the recently acquired businesses namely Positek, Phoenix,
Limitor and CPI were integrated with the Varichm CCGU. Prior to the integration, the individual businesses were
tested for impairment tc ensure that there was no impairment on a standalone basis.



18. Impairment testing of goodwill continued
The significant amounts of goodwill is analysed below:

2022 2021

£m £m

Noratel 34.7 336
Beoacon 38.8 -
Variohm 24.0 176
Sens-Tech 27.4 274
124.9 786

The Group defines significant as 10% of the total carrying value of goodwill.

The recoverable amount of each CGU is based on value-in-use calculations. The key assumptions used in these
calculations relate to future revenue, operating marging, discount rates and long term growth rates, Cash flow
forecasts for the five-year peried from the reporting date are based on FY 2022/23 board approved budget and
management projections therecon. Five-year Compound Annual Growth Rate (CAGR) for revenue between 3.6%
and 11.8% (2021 between 1% and 8%) and operating margins between 7% and 45% (2021: between 5% and 50%j}
have been used depending on the size and sector in which the CCU operates. Cash Fiow projections included
In the impairment review Models include management's view of the impact of climate change, inciuding
costs related to the effects of climate change, as well as the future costs of the Group's commitment to achieve
a 50% reduction in carbon emissions in 2019 by 2025. The potential increased costs, less any bencfits that

may cccur, to meet these commitments are not expected to be material and have therefore resulted in no
impairments during 2022.

Long-term growth rate beyond the five-year period of 2% has been applied consistently across all CGUs
(2027 2%]).

Discount rates reflect the current market assessment of the risks specific to each CGU. The discount rate was
estimated based on the average percentage of a weighted average cost of capital for the industry and then
further adjusted for size premium and country specific risk. The risk adjusted pre-tax aiscount rate apglied to
the cash flow projections of CGUs varies from 11% to 14% (2021: 13% to 15%).

The table below discloses the discount rates and short-term growth rates for each significant CCU:

Pre-tax discount rate S year Sales CAGR
2022 2021 2022 2021
% % % %
Noratel 13.4 4.0 55 5.2
Beacon n7z 1.8
Variohm 129 129 5.4 87
Sens-Tech 125 131 ns 14.3

The double-digit sales CACR for Beacon and Sens-Tech reflects the recovery from the Covid-19 pandemic and
ongeing supply chain disrugtions.

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

The Group's forecast 1s based on a range of assumptions to determine the value of expected future cash flows.
Deviations against those plans and assumptions in terms of revenue ang margin projections, operating and
capital costs and successful achievernent of strategic objectives are all inherently uncertain. Headroom in

the impairment test for each CGU has been tested for sensitivity to adverse changes in forecast cash flows,
discount rates and growth rate. Overall, adequate hecadroom is availatle against material impairment risk.



18. Intangible assets — goodwill continued

Management has identified one CCGU within the Sensing & Connectivity division, which represents 3% of

the total carrying amount of goodwill in the Croup as at 31 March 2022, where changoes in the value-in-

use assurnptions may lead to the recoverable amount of the CGU to be less than its carrying value. The
assumptions made in estimating the value of the future cash flow are an LTGR of 2%, a pre-tax discount rate of
N% and a 5 Year Sales CAGR of 5%. The headroom for this CGU is £14.3m at the date of the assessment.

The lable below shows the reduction in headroom created by a changce in assumptions:

Reduction in

headroom

£m

Long-term growth rate 1% decrease z0
Pre-tax discount rate - 1% increase 39
Sales CAGR - 2.4% decrease 88

None of the changes to individual assumptions above would lead to the carrying amount of the CCU
exceeding its recoveralle amount.

The assumptions that would result in the recoverable armount equalling the carrying amount are 5 yoars sales
CAGR of 3% (a reduction of 24 percentage points), reduction in ocperating margin of 36%, long term growth
ratc of 1.5% {a reduction of 0.5 percentage points), and a pre-tax discount rate of 11.4% {an increase of 0.50
percentage points).

For all other CGUs it can be demonstrated that under reasonable downside sensitivity, there remains sufficient
headroom in the recoverable amount of the COU goodwill balances.



19. Intangible assets - other

Acguired intangibles

Customer/
Software & Suppler Patents &
Development Relationships Brands Total
£m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 April 2020 135 86.1 56 1052
Prior year restatement (note 2) {0.4) (0.4)
A1 April 2020 (restated*) 131 86.1 56 1C04.8
Arising from business combinations 99 - 99
Additions 06 - 0.6
Exchange adjustment - 0z (cn (o}
At 31 March 2021 137 96.2 55 115.4
Arising from business combinations (ON; 377 378
Additions 0.8 - c8
Disposals (0.2} - - (0.2}
Business disposed (note 12) (9.2} (3.8) {(13.0}
Exchange adjustment 23 - 23
At 31 March 2022 5.2 132.4 55 143.1
Accumulated amortisation
At April 2020 102 285 16 403
Charge for the year 06 10.6 05 N7
Exchange adjustrment - 0.5 - G5
At 31 March 2021 08 396 21 525
Charge for the year 05 135 05 4.5
Business disposed (note 12} (8.2} (3.8) - (12.0}
Exchangc adjustment - 05 0.5
At 31 March 2022 KA 49.8 26 555
Net book value at 31 March 2022 21 82.6 29 87.6
Net book value at 31 March 2021 29 56.6 34 629

“2021 apening balance restated to reflect changes to Custermisation and Configuration costs capitalised in Cloud Computing Arrangements

{nate 2},

20. Inventories

2022 2021

£m £m

Finished goods and goods for resale 332 342
Raw materials and work in progress 44 6 335
Total inventories 77.8 677

As at 31 March 2022, tne provision for realisable value against total inventories was £6.3m (2021 £9.7m}. £5.0m
reduction in provision relates to the disposal of the Acal BFi pusiness offset by £2.2m increase in orovision for

inventeries in the continuing cperations.



21. Trade and other receivables

2022 2021
Current £m £m
Tradc receivables 63.8 755
Other receivables n.2 68
Prepayments 30 26
78.0 849

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing; are generally on 30 to 60 aays' terms and are shown net of expectea
credit losses.

All of the Group's trade and other receivables are regularly reviewed for indicators of impairment. The credit
risk exposure inherent in the Group's trade raceivables is measured and recognised as an impairment prov'sion
cn initial recognition, based on the Expected Credit Loss method, as required by IFRS 9. Specific provision for
impairment may also be required where a specific increase in credit risk is identified, or a credit event has
cccurred. Provisions for general credit risk exposure is measured with reference to the age of a reccivable as
debts which are overdue present a specific impairment risk indicator regarding recoverability.

In total, the Group has recognised impairment provisions of £1.6m (2021: £1.2m}, against trade receivables. This
includes a total of £1.3m of specific provisions for impairment due to increased default risk and unresoclved
disputes, as well as pravision for expected credit losses of £0.3m. Across the Group general expected credit loss
risk has been assessed to be low duce to the size, nature and diversification of customers across the divisions.

The movements in the impairment provisions for trade receivables during the year were as follows:

2022 2021
£m £m
At T April 1.2 11
Charge for the yoar 1.2 02
Amounts written off - (@)
Business disposals (0.8)
At 31 March 1.6 12
Details of the net trade receivabies ageing are set out below:
Overdue
Total Not due <30 days 30-60 days 60-90 days 90-120 days »120 days
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
2022 63.8 56.1 6.7 0.7 0.2 - 0.1
2021 755 548 7.8 11 0.4 04 10
Non-Current
2022 2021
£m £rmn
Other receivables 5.9

The other receivables amount of £5.9m (2021 nil} relates to deferred consideration recoivable in relation to the
disposal of the Acal BFi business and Vertec Scientific SA Properitary Cimited.



22. Cash and cash equivalents

2022 2021
£m £m
Cash at bank and in hand 39.4 292

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates, based on daily bank deposit rates. The Croup only deposits cash
surpluses with rmajor banks of high credit stanaing (F17 5m with HSBC; credit rating of AA-, C4. 3 with Danske
Bank; credit rating of A+, £2.4m with KBC Bank; credit rating of A+, £1.5m with Citibank; credit rating of A+ and
the remaining baiance of £18.7m with various financial institutions; credit rating of BBB- or higher} in line with
its treasury policy. The fair value of cash and cash eguivalents is £32.4m (2C21: £22.2m).

23, Other financial liabilities

Current Non-current
Effective 2022 2021 2022 2021
interest rate % Maturity £m £m £m £rm
Bank overdrafts Variable Ondemand 25 10 - -
Unsecured bank loans Variable - 03 2.3 23
Revaolving Credit Facility
{"RCF") Variable - - 65.5 74.0
Capitalised debt costs {0.5) {0.5) (0.2} (0.7}
Total other financial
liabilities 2.0 0.8 67.6 756
Lease liabilities 4.7 4.8 16.4 6.7
Trade and other payables 879 793 27 08
Total 94.6 849 86.7 931

Interest on overdrafts is based on floating rates linked to SONIA.

Included in unsecured bank lcans are USD-denominated loans of £2.2m (2021 £0.3m) carrying floating interest
rates linked to LIBOR and Euro-denominated loans of £01m (2021 £01m) carrying fixed interest rates of 8%.

AL 31 March 2022, the RCF drawdowns of £655m were denominated in Sterling, US Dollars and Euros which
bear interest based on SONIA, SOFR and EURIBOR, plus a facility margin.

Trade and other payables above include only contractual obligations.

The maturity of the gross contractual financial liabilities is as follows:

Within 2-5 >5
1year years years Total
At 31 March 2022 £m £m £m £m
Fixed and floating rate 5.4 €67.6 - 73.0
Lease liabilities 5.4 133 51 23.8
Trade and other payables 879 27 - 90.6

98.7 83.6 5.1 187.4




23. Other financial liabilities continued

Within 2-5 >5
1 year years years Total
At 31 March 2027 £m £m £m £m
Fixed and floating rate o8 756 - 76.4
Leasce liabilities 55 1 7.6 242
Trade and other payables 79.3 08 - 801
856 875 7.6 1807

The carry'ng amount of the Group's other financiai liabilities excluding lease liabilities is denominated in the

following currencios:

2022 2021
£m £m
Sterling 453 405
Euro 38.2 682
US dollar 48.6 253
Other currencies 281 225
160.2 1565
24. Movements in cash and net debt
1 Agril Non cash 31 March
2021 Cash flow changes 2022
Year to 31 March 2022 £rn £m £m £m
Cash and cash equivalents 292 2.0 12 39.4
Bank overdrafrs 1.0} (1.4) (0.1} (2.5)
Net cash 282 76 11 369
Bank loans under one year {C.3) 03 -
Bank loans aver one year (76.3) 79 06 {67.8)
Capitalised debt costs 1.2 {0.5) 0.7
Total loan capital (75.4) 82 03 (67.1}
Net debt (47.2) 158 1.2 (30.2}
Bank loans aver one year above include £65.5m (2021 £74.0m) drawn down against the Group's revolving
credit faciity,
1 April Non cash 31 March
2020 Cash flow changes 2021
Year to 31 March 2021 £m £m £m £m
Cash and cash eguvalents 36.8 (6.0) (1.6) 292
Bank overdrafts (2.0} 06 04 (1.0)
Net cash 348 (5.4) 1.2) 282
Bank locans under one year (2.8) 2.4 0 (03)
Bank loans over one year (95.0) 161 26 (76.3)
Capitalised debt costs 1.7 {0.5) N2
Total loan capital {96.7} 185 22 [75.4)
Net debt (€1.3) 13.1 10 (47.2)

Cash Flow moverments for lcase liabilities are shown in note 6.



24. Movements in cash and net debt continuea
Supplementary information to the statement of cash flows

2022 2021
Underlying Performance Measure £m £rm
Increase in net cash 15.8 131
Add: Business combinations 876 21.8
Dividends paid 9.4 28
Less Net proceeds from sharce issue (52.6) (07}
Discontinued coerations (38.4} {2.5)
Free cash flow 21.8 281
Net finance costy 3.2 31
Taxaticon 6.2 6.5
Legacy pension scheme funding 1.9 1.8
Operating cash flow 331 395
25. Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities
2022 2021
£m £m
Profit for the year 252 12.0
Tax expense 10.7 50
Net finance costs 4.1 37
Depreciaticn of property, ptant and eguipment 4.7 49
Cepreciation of right of use assets 6.1 66
Amortisation of intangible assets - other 14.5 n7
Gain on business disposal (6.6} -
Cain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (0.1} -
Change in provisions {0.3) 10
Pension scherme funding (1.9} (1.8)
IAS 19 pension charge 06 14
Impact of equity-settled share-based payment expense and associated taxes 13 11
Operating cash flows before changes in working capital 583 456
Increase in iNnventories (171 {oR)
{Increase)/decrcase in trade and other receivables (24.9) 55
Increasc in trade and other payables 26.8 62
(Decreasc)/increase in working capital 15.8) 116
Cash generated from operations 42,5 572
Interest paid (3.7) (3.4)
Interest paid on lease liab.lities* (0.8} {0.6)
Income taxes palg (7.1} (7.2)
Net cash flow from operating activities 30.9 46.0

“In the prior year Financial Statements, interest para on lease lakilites were presentec unacr Financing actvities



26. Provisions

Severance and

retirement
indemnity Other Totat
£m Emn £rm
At 1 April 2020 33 23 56
Arising during the year 10 1.4 2.4
Utilised (0.2) - {02)
Released {0.2) (02} (0.4)
Exchange difference {0.2) - (0.2
At 31 March 2027 37 35 72
Arising during the year 0.4 1.6 2.0
Arising from business combinations 0.3 03
Business disposed (note 17) (1.4} (0.8} 2.0)
Utilised (0.2} (09) (.9
Released (0.3) (Q.3) (0.6)
Exchange difference 0l - 01
At 31 March 2022 23 3.6 59
2022 2021
Analysis of total provisions: £m £m
Current 1.7 1.8
Non-Current 4.2 5.4
5.9 72

Severance and retirement indemnity
The severance provision relates to severance costs payable to ermployees.

Retirerment indemnity provision of £2.2m (2021: £3.2m), relates to retirement and leaving indemnity schermes in
Sri Lanka £0.9m, India £0.7m, Norway £0.3, France £0.2m and Cermany £0.1m. The schemes are unfunded. The
service cost, representing deferred salaries accruing te employees, is included as an operating expense and
determined by reference to local laws and actuarial assurmptions where applicable.

Other

Other provisions relates primarity to dilapidations provisions £2.1m {2021: £2.0m), warranty provisions £0.5m
(2021 LO.6m), restructuring provisions of £01m {2021 £03m) and other provisions of £0.9m (2021: £0.6m}. The
provisions greater than one year are expected to be utilised within cne to three years.

27. Financial risk controls

Management of financial risk

The main financial risks faced by the Group are credit risk, liguidity risk and market risk, which include interest
rate risk and currency risk. The Board regularly reviews tnese risks and nas approved written policies covering
the use of financial instruments to Manage thaesc risks.

The Group Finance Director retains the overall responsibility and management of financial risk for the Group.
Maost of the Group's financing and interest rate and foreign currency risk management is carried out centraily
at Group head office. The Board approves policies and procedures setting out permissible funding and
hedging instruments, exposure limits and a system cf authorities for the appreval of transactions.
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27. Financial risk controls continued

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2

As a result of the Interest Rate Benchmark Reform Phase 2, effective from periods beginning on or after 1
April 2021, the Group has assessed the impact of changes to the benchmark rates used reqguired as a direct
consequence of the IBOR Reform on its financial instruments.

The Group's has an overdraft facility that is based on floating rates linked to LIBOR. The facility agreement has
been amended W reltecl Lthe changes required as a direct conseguence of the IBOR reform. The agreement
sets out the terms and conditions upon which the bank has agreed to make available to the Group a
committed multi option facility. The interest on overdraft facilities is payable by the Group and is calculated by
the bank, using its normal practices for calculation, each day.

Included in the unsecured bank loans are Euro-denominated loans and USD-denominated loans with fixed
interest rates. These are not linked to a benchmark rate affected by the reform and, therefore, no changes were

necessary.

The Group's RCF for drawdowns denominated in Sterling and USD which bear interest based on GBP LIBOR
and USD LIBOR were amended to reflect the changes required by the IBOR reform. The interest charge is
now calculated based on the risk free reference rate SONIA (sterling overnight index average) and the secured
overnight financing rate (SOFR} administered by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, respectively.

For the year ended 31 Marcih 2022, the Group has applied the practical expedients provided under ‘phase
2" amendments to its long-term debt recognised on the balance sheet in relation te its overdraft and RCF
drawdowns, reflecting changes to base interest rates used for the calcuiation of interest recognised in
the consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss of the Group. No impact from restatement was required as a
conseguence of these changes.

The Group has assessed the impact of the IBOR reform on other financiat arrangements in place as at 31 March
2022 and concluded that there is no material impact on the Croups Financial Statements.

Management of interest rate risk

The Croup has exposure to interest rate risk arising principally from changes in Eure, Steriing and US Dollar
interest rates. The Croup does not have any hedges in place at the year end against oxposure to interest
rate risk.

Based cn the Group's debt position at the year end, excluding lease liabilities, a 1% increase in interast rates
waouid decrease the Group's profit before tax by approximately £0.3m (2021 £0.5my).

Management of foreign exchange risk
The Group's shareholders’ equity, earnings and cash flows are exposed to foreign exchange risks, due to the
mismatch between the currencies in which it purchases stock and the final currency of sale to its customers.

It is Group policy to hedge identified significant foreign exchange cxpesure on its committed operating cash
flows. This is carricd out centraily based on forecast orders and sales.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Group's profit before tax 1o & 10% change in the rates of
Sterling against all other currencies, US Dollar against all other currencies and Euro against all other currencics,
with all other variables remaining constant due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and tiabkilities.

£ us$ Euro
currency impact currency impact currency impact
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
£m £m £m £rm £m £m

Prafit before tax  gain/{loss)
10% appreciation 03 02 0.5 11 - {0.6)
0% depreciation {0.4) (0.3) {0.5) (11 0.1 0.8




27. Financial risk controls continued

Management of credit risk

Credit risk exists in relation to customars, banks and insurers. Exposure to credit risk is mitigated by
maintaining credit control procedureas across @ wide customer base.

The Group is exposcd to credit risk that is primarily attributable to its trade and other receivables. This is
minimised by dealing with recegnised creditworthy third parties who have been through a credit verification
process. The maximum exousure Lo credit risk 1s mited to the carrying value of trade and other recevables.

Aswell as credit risk exposures inherent within the Group's cutstanding receivables, the Group is cxposed to
counterparty credit risk arising from the placing of deposits and entering into derivative financial instrument
contracts with banks and financial institutions. The Croup manages exposure to this credit risk by entering inte
financial instrurment contracts only with highly credit-rated authorised counterparties which are reviewed and
approved annually by the Board.

Counterparties’ positions arc monitored on a regular basis to ensure that they are within the approved limits
and that there ara no significant concentrations of credit risks. The Croup's largest customer is approximately
8% of Group sales.

Management of liquidity risk

The Group manages its exposure to liguidity risk and maximises its flexibility in meeting changing business
needs through the cash generation of its operations, combined with bank borrowings and access to 'ong-term
debt. In its funding strategy, the Group's objective is to maintain a balance between the continuity of funding
and flexibility through the use of overdrafts, bank loans and facilities.

AL 31 March 2022, the Group had net cash of £36.9m (2021: £282m). The Group had total working capitai
facilities available of £2002m (2021: £190.4m) with a number of major UK and overseas banks, of which £180.0m
(2021: £180.0m) were committed facilities. The Group had drawn £70.3rm against total facilities at 31 March 2022,
Im addition, the Group has a £60m accordion facility which it can use 1o extend the total facility up to £240m.
The syndicated facifity is available both for acquisitions and for working capital purposes. The facilitics are
subject to certain financial covenants, which had significant headroom at 31 March 2022,

On 3 May 2022, ithe Group increased its syndicated banking facility from £18Cm to £240m and extended the
remaining term of the facility by two ycars out to four years ending in June 2026, with an option cxercisable by
the Group to extend the facility by a further year to June 2027 In addition, the Group has an £80m accordion
facility which it can use to extend the total facility up to £320m.

Management of capital

The Croug’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern

and to maintain robust capital ratios to support the development of the business with a view to providing
strong returns to shareholders. in order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group increase bank
borrowings, issue new shares or change the amount of dividends paid to shareholders. In respect to this
objective, the Group has a target gearing range of between 1.5 and 2.0 times. Gearing at 31 March 2022 was
below the range at 06 times.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes the berrowings disclosed in note 23, cash
and cash eguivalent and eguity attributable to sharenolders,



28. Financial assets and liabilities

Fair values

The Group's principal non-derivative financial instruments comprise bank loans and averdrafts, cash and short
term borrowings. The Group also holds other financial instruments such trade receivables and trade payables
that arisc directly from the Group's trading operations.

Derivative financial instruments are represented by short-term foreign currency forward contracts placed
by the Group with exte ral banks as part of the Group's cash management and foreign currency risk
management activitics. The fair value of derivative foreign exchange instruments is determined con initial
recognition at forward market exchange rates at inception of the contract and subseguently remeasured
based on forwara market exchange rates at the balance sheet date. As at 31 March 2022, the fair value of
derivatives was £nil (2021: £nil).

The carrying value of the Group's trade and other receivables and trade and cther payables are disclosed in
Notes 21 and 29. The carrying valug of these items approximates book value duce to the short maturity of these
instruments. The carrying value of the Group's other financial assets and financial lisbilities are set out below
by category. Carrying values for zll financial assets and liabilities are eguivalent to fair values,

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amount value amount value
2022 2022 2021 2021
£m £m £m £m
Financial assets
Cash at bank and in hand 39.4 39.4 292 292
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Bank overdrafts and short-term borrowings (2.5) {2.5) 1.3) {1.3)
Nen-current interest-bearing loans and borrowings:
Fixed and floating rate borrowings (67.1) (67.1) (75.6) (75.6)
Lease liabilities {21.1) {(21.1) (21.5) (21.5)
Contingent consideration (8.8) (8.8) (3.4) (3.4)

The methods and assumptions used to determine the fair value of financial assets and liabilities are set out
below. All material changes in fair value of financial instruments as at the balance sheet date have been taken
to the Statement of Profit or Loss. Impairment reviews did not identify any material impairment of financia!
assets from carrying values as reported at the balance sheet date and, as such, no material impairments arc
included in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Fair Value Methods and Assumptions

Forward foreign exchange contracts (forwards) - the fair value of forward foreign currency contracts is
determined with reference to observable yield curves and foreign exchange rates at the reporting date. The £X
contracts cutstanding with banks at the year-cnd had a maturity of two years or less.

Loans and borrowings - the fair value of loans and borrowings has been calculated by discounting future cash
flows, where material, at prevailing market interest rates.

Fair Value Hierarchy

For financial asscts and financial labilities measurad at fair value, as set out in the tables above, the fair value
measurement techniques are based upon applying unadjusted, quoted market rates or prices or inputs other
than quoted prices that are observable for the assets or liability cither directly or indirectly.

IFRS 13 'Financial nstruments: Disclosures’ requires financiai instruments mcasured at fair value to be analysed
into a fair value hierarchy based upon the valuation techniguce used to determine fair value. The highest level

in this hierarchy is Level 3 within which inputs that are not based on obscrvable market data for the assct or
liability arc applied,



28. Financial assets and liabilities conrnued

The valuation technigues used by the Croup for the measurement of derivative financial instruments and
loans are considered to be within Level 2, which includes inputs other than quoted prices included within |_evel
1that are observable either directly or indirectly.

29. Trade and other payables

2022 2021

Current £m £m
Trade payables 56.0 56.8
Other payables 338 258
Accrued expenses and contract liabilities 15.0 122
104.8 94.8

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are settled in accordance with credit terms. Cther payables are
non-interest bearing and are settled throughout the year. Accrued cxpenscs are non-interest bearing and

are settled throughout the year Included in current year other payables is contingent consideration of £4.0m
which relates to the acquisition of Cursor Controls and £2.2m which relates to the acquisiticn of CPRi. Prior year
includes contingent consideration of £2.6m which related to the acquisition of Cursor Controls.

Contract liabilities relate to contracts with customers, recognised and measured in accordance with the
requircrments of IFRS 15, and relate to either advance payments received for goods to be delivered in the future
or amounts invoiced in respect of performance obligations which are not yet satisfied in full and due to be
satisfied within a periog of 12 months from the reporting date.

Revenue recognised 1IN the reporting period that was included in the contract liability balance at the beginning
of the pericd amounted to £1.1m (2021: £0.2m).

Certain businesses in the Group participate in supply chain finance arrangements whereby suppliers may
elect to receive early payment of their inveices frem a bank by factoring their receivable from discoverlE
entitics. Included within trade payables is £0.9m (2021 £0.5m) subject to such an arrangement.

2022 2021
Non-Current £m £m
Other payables 27 08

Included in non-current trade and other payable is a £27m contingent payment relating to the acguisitions of
Limitor, Phoenix and CPI. For 2021, £0.8m related to the acquisitions of Sens-Tech, Limitor and Phoenix.

30. Share capital

2022 2022 2020 2021
Allotted, called up and fully paid Number £m Number £rn
Ordinary shares of 5o cach 95,456,109 4.7 89455915 4.4

During the year to March 2022, 650,000 shares were issued to the Group's Employee Benefit Trust {2021
750,000]). At 31 March 2022 the Trust held 168,425 shares (2021: 883,307). During the year to 31 March 2022,
employeces exercised 1,170,882 share aptions under the terms of the various share option schemes (2021
60,693).

On 2 September 2021, 5350194 shares were issued for a gross consideration of £55.0m before costs and £53.5m
after costs. The shares were issued at 1,028 pence per share, which is equal to the mid-market closing price on 2
Septermber 2021, E0.3m was share capita’ with the balance of £53.2m being allocated to share premium account.



31. Share-based payment plans

The Croup operates various share-based payment plans. The varicus schemes are explained below and have
been separated into twe separate disclosures. The charge to the consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss in
respect of each of thesc schemes is:

2022 2021

£m £m

a) discoverlE Group plc long-term incentive plan ("the LTIP") 21 11
b} Aporoved and Unapproved Executive Share Option Schemes -

21 11

a) The LTIP

Since 2008, the Group has operated the LTIP as a replacement for the approved and unapproved oxecutive
share option scheme detailed above. The LTIP involves a conditiona! award of shares on a grant of a nil-

cost option. The award of shares to Executive Directors and scnior management is recommended by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of such factors as their contribution to the Group's success. The LTIPs
are cquity settleg and there are no cash settied alternatives. The vesting of an award is dependent on the
individual's continued employment for a three-year period from the date of grant and the satisfaction by the
Company of certain performance conditions. The exercise of the awards is also subject to a two-year holding
periad from the date of vesting.

For awards made in 2022, the performance conditions are as follows:

» 50% of the award is based on the Company’s comparative total shareholder return ("TSR") against a
comparator group made up of the constituents of the FTSE Small Cap Index;

= 50% of the award is based on the Company’s absclute earnings per share ("EPS"} performance.

» For cortain aperational management, 25% of the award is bascd on the Company's absclute earnings per
share ("EPS") performance and 75% of the award is pased on local earnings targets.

= For two cperational management, 100% of the award granted is subject to local earnings targets.

Awards are valued using the Monte Carlo Simulation and Discounted Share Price models. No non-market
perforrmance conditions were included in the fair value calculations, The fair value per award granted and the
assumptions Used in the calculation arc as follows:

Awards granted in the year ended 31 March 2022

29 July 29 July 29 July 26 August

2021 2021 2021 2021

Crant date TSR EPS EPS/Local Local
Share price at grant date £10.4 £10.4 £104 £99
Exercise price nil il nil nil
Number of employees 16 10 13 2
Shares under aption 141,886 141,886 42,582 47316
Vesting period (ycars) 3 3 3 3
Expected volatility 36.9% 26.9% 36.9% n/a
Option life (years) 10 10 10 e}
Expected life (years) 5 5 5 3
Risk-free rate of return 0% 0.1% 01% nfa
Expected dividend yield 1.0% 10% 10% 1.0%

Fairvaluc £7.64 £925 928 f960




31. Share-based payment plans continued

Awards granted in the yvear ended 31 March 2021

15 July 30 June 30 June 30 June

2020 2020 2020 2020

Grant date EPS EPS TSR [o12]
Share price at grant date £590 rs12 £512 £512
Exercise price il nil nil nil
Number of cmployces 20 7 n n
Shares under cption 150,165 160,766 160,766 160,766
Vesting pericd [years) 3 3 3 3
Expected volatility n/a n/a 326% 32.6%
Option I'fe (years) 10 10 10 1C
Expected :ife (yoars) ) 5 5 5
Risk-free rate of return n/a n/a -01% -01%
Expected dividend yiald 1.9% 19% 19% 19%
Fairvaiue £504 £4.38 £2.70 £237

The expected valatility 15 based on historical volatility cver the period of time commensurate with the expected
terrn immediately prier to the date of grant. The expected life is the average oxpected period to exercise. The
risk-free rate of return used in the valuation is the rate of interest obtainable from government securities over a

period commensurate with the expected term of the eguity incentive.

The total charge for the year relating to the LTIP schemes was £21m [2021: £13m)

Qutstanding LTIP

A summary of the awards that have been granted under the LTIP and remain outstanding is given below:

At 31 March 2022

Cranted Forfeited Exercised Outstanding
Qutstanding at during the during the during the at Exercise
1 April 2021 year year year 3 March 2022 dates
581,344 - (581,344) - 20202025
590,79 - (516,729) 74,067 2021 2026
761,616 (28,269} 733,347 2022-2027
611,118 {131,283} {14,040) 465,795 2023 2028
718,219 - (5,404} (8,185} 704,630 2024 2029
626,873 (37703} (3,884} 585,286 2025-2030
373670 - - 373,670 2026 203i

3889966 373670 {(174,390) {1152,451) 2,936,795




31. Share-based payment plans continuea
At 31 March 2021

Cranted Forfeited Exercised Outstanding
QCutstanding at during the during the during the at Exercise
1 April 2020 year year year 31 March 2021 dates
615574 - - (34,230) 581,344 2020- 2025
590796 - - 590,796 20212026
761,616 - - 761,616 2022 2027
e11,118 - - ol1,118 2023-2028
727062 (8,843) - 718,219 2024-2029
- 632,463 (5,520} 626,873 2025 2030

3306166 632,463 (14,433} [34,230) 3,.889.966

The weighted averaga remaining contractual life for the share options outstanding at 31 Marcn 2022 is 6.8 years
(2027 6.6 years).

The rangc of exercise prices for options outstanding at the end of the year was nil (2021 nil}.

b) Approved and Unapproved Executive Share Option Schemes

The Group operates an approved and an unapproved executive share option scheme, the rules of which
are similar in ali material respects. The grant of options to Exccutive Directors and senior management is
recommended by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their contribution to the Group's success.
The octiors vest after three years.

The exercise price of the options is equal to the closing mid-market price of the shares on the trading day pricr
to the date of the grant. Excrcise of all options is subject to continued employrment. The fife of cach option
granted is ten years. There are no cash scettlement alternatives.

Options are valued using the binomial option-pricing model. N non-market performance conditions were
included in the fair value calculations.

The fair value per option granted during the year and the assumptions used in the calculation arc as follows:

Grant date June 2021
Share price at grant date 859
Excrcise price £8.03
Number of employces g
Shares under cpticn 13,665
viesting period [years) 3
Expected volatility 339%
Option life (years) 10
Expected life (years) 6.5
Risk-free rate of return C5%
Expected dividends cxpressed as a dividend yield 1.2%
Fair value £272

The expected volatility s based on historical volatility over the period of time commensurate with the expected
term immed.ately prior to the date of grant. The expected life is the average expected period to exercise. The
risk-free rate of return used in the valuation is the rate of interest obtainabic from government securities over a
pcriod commensurate with the expected term of the egquity Incentive.

The total charge for the year relating to the approved and unapproved share option schemes was £nil (2021: £nil}.



31. Share-based payment plans continuec
Qutstanding share options

Asurnmary of the options over ordinary shares that have been granted under various Group share option
schemes and remain outstanding is given below:

At 31 March 2022

Forfeited Exercised Cranted  Qutstanding
Cutstanding at during the during the during the at Exercise price Exercise
1 Aprit 2027 year year year 31 March 2022 (pence) dates
1,691 - - 1,691 21950 2020-2027
9,580 - - 9,580 402.00 2021 2028
"2.789 Me) - 12,673 42107 2022-2029
14,247 (1,516} 12,731 60360 2023-2030
(1,934} 13,665 n,731 803.00 2024 2031
38,307 (3,566} - 13,665 48,406
At 31 March 2021
Forfeited Exercised Granted Qutstanding
Outstanding at during the during the during the at  Exercise price Exercise
1 April 2020 year year year 31 March 2023 {pence) dates
26,853 (25)62) 1,691 212.50 2020-2027
9,580 - - 9,580 402.00 2021-2028
12,789 - 12,789 42117 2022-2029
- - 14,247 14,247 60360 2023 2030
49222 (2562) 14,247 38,307
Changes in share options
A reconciliation of option movements over the year to 31 March 2022 is shown below:
2022 2021
Weighted Weighted
average average
Number exercise price Number exercise price
Qutstanding at 1 April 38,307 £4.75 49222 £3.07
Cranted 13,665 £6.04 14,247 £604
Exercised - - (25.62) £2.20
Forfeited {3,566) £7.06
Qutstanding at 31 March 48,406 £5.51 38307 £4775
Exercisable at 3! March n,27 £3.75 M,271 £3.75

The weighted average remaning contractual life for the share options cutstanding at 31 March 2022 is 7.7 years
(2021: 82 years).

The range of exercise prices for options outstanding at the end of the year was 220 to £803 (2021 £2.20 to £6.04).



32. Pension

Defined contribution schemes

The Group makes payments to various defined contribution pension schemes, the assets of which are hetd

in separately administered funds. In the United Kingdom, the relevant schemc is the discover|E Group plc
Employce Pension Scheme (‘the discoverlE schemce’). Contributions by both employees and Group companies
are held in externally invested trustec-administered funds.

The Lroup contributes a specified percentage of earnings for members of the discoverlE scheme, and
thereafter has no further obligaticns in relation to the discoverlt scheme. At the year end, 19C employees were
active members of the discoverl E scheme (2021:120). The total cost charged to the consolidated Statement

of Profit or Loss in relation to the UK-based discoverlE scheme was £362,000 (2021 £627,000). Employer
contributions in respect of other UK-based schemes and overseas pension schermes were £447,000 (2021:
£440,000) and £2,364,000 (2021: £2,598,000) respectively. The reductions in charges and contributions for the
year related 1o the costs for the business dispoesed, which have been presented as discontinued operations in
the Statermnent of Profit or Loss. Total contributions payable in the next financial ycar are expected to be atrates
broadly similar to those in 2021/22 but based on actual salary levels in 2022/23.

Defined benefit schemes

The acquisition of the Sedgemoor Group in June 1992 brought with it certain defined benefit pension
schemes, together ‘the Sedgemoor Scheme' The Sedgemoor Scheme is funded by the Company,

provides retirement benefits based on final pensionable salary and its assets are held in a separate trustee-
administered fund.

Following the acquisition of the Sedgemaoor Group, the Sedgormoor Scherne was closed to new members.
Shortly thereafter, employees were given the opportunity to join the discoverlE scheme and future service
bencfits ceased to accrue to members under the Sedgemoor Scheme,

Contributions to the Sedgemoor Scheme are determined in accordance with the advice of independent,
professionatty qualified actuaries and are set based upon funding valuations carried out every three years.

Based upon the results of the triennial funding valuation at 31 March 2018, the Sedgemeor Scheme's Trusteas
agreed with Sedgemoor Limited on behalf of the participating employers to continue the same rate of
participating employers' contributions under the deficit recovery plan agreed at the previous valuation at

31 March 2015. This required contributions of £1.8m over the year to 31 March 2020, with future contributions
increasing by 3% cach April payable over the period to 30 Scptember 2022, These contributions are being
reviewed as part of the triennial funding valuation as at 3! March 2021 which is currently in progress.

The estimated amount of employer contributions expected to be paid to the Sedgemeor Scheme during FY
2022/23is £1.0m {FY 2021/22: £19m).

The results of the triennial funding valuation as at 31 March 2021 werc updated to the accounting date by an
independent guaiified actuary in accordance with 1AS13.

The main actuar.al assumptions used are set out as foltows:

2022 2021
Rate of increase of salaries nfa n/a
Ratc of increase of pensions In payrment 2.6% 2.5%
Discount rate 2.8% 1.9%
inflation assumption RP 3.8% 3.4%
Inflation assumption - CPI™ 2.7% 23%

*37% from 2031



32. Pension continued
The discount rate is based on the yields on AA grade Sterling corporate bonds at the reporting date.

Pensioner mortality assumptions are based on 110% of the 'S3NA’ table, projected from 2013 and with
long-term improvemcent rates in line with CMI 2021 core projections based con each member's actual date of
birth with a long-term annual rate of improvement of 1.3% for males and for femaies.

Thne weighted average duration of the defined hennfit abligation at 31 March 2022 was 12 yedrs (2021:13 years).

The investment strategy is sct by the Trustee of the Sedgemoor Scheme in consultat' on with the Company.
The current strategy is to invest 45% of the assets in equities, property, infrastructure and other return
seeking investments and 55% in liability driven investments, corporate bonds and cash. As at 31 March 2022
the investment strategy hedged 75% of interest rate risk and 75% of inflation risk relative to the Sedgemoor
Scneme’s dability value for cash funding purposes.

As the Sedgemocr Scheme mostly invests in pooled funds, the fair value of assets reflect the fund managers'
valuation rather than guoted prices in active markets, however, the fund values are all based on the prices of
the underlying investments within each fund. Re-measurementis are recognised immediately through other
comprehensive income,

The charges recagnised in the consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss in respect of defined benefit schemes
are as follows:

2022 2021
£m £m
Pensicn charge {recoghised in operating costs) 0.6 14

Past Service cost
The charges recognised in the consolidated Staternent of Comprehensive Income are as follows:

2022 2021
Re-measurement gains/{losses): £m £m
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest expense) 0.3 C6
Actuarial changes arising from changes in actuarial assumptions 20 (3.8)
Actuarial gain/{loss) recorded in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income 23 (3.2)

An additionai actuarial loss of £01m (2021 £O.2m) relating to the unfunded retirement and teaving indemnity
schemes {note 26) is rccarded in the consolidated Staterment of Comprehensive Income.



32. Pension continued
The fair value of assets and expected rates of return used to determine the amounts recognised in the
consolidated Statement of Financia! Position are as follows:

2022 2021
£m Em
Equities 3.0 35
Bonds 9.4 99
Property 4.9 4]
Diversified Growth Fund 58 6.6
Cash 0.4 4.4
Liabdity driven investments 5.0 56
Infrastructure 4.5 4.5
Asset Backed Securnity 6.0 -
Fair value of scheme assets 39.0 386
Present value of funded defined penefit obligations (36.3) (39.6)
Asset/(liability) recognised in the consolidated Statement of Financial Position 2.7 {1.0)
Changes in the present value of the defined bencefit obligation are as follows:
2022 2021
£m £m
Opening defined benefit obligations 39.6 358
Net interest cost 0.7 c9
Actuarial losses duc to:
Experience on benefit obligation 0.7 on
Changes in financial assumptions {3.0) 39
Changes in demographic assumptions 0.3
Pension costs - 10
Bencfits paid (2.0) 19}
Closing defined benefit obligations 36.3 39.6
Changes in the fair value of the scheme assets are as follows,
2022 2023
£m £m
Opening fair value of scheme asscts 38.6 3’6
Interest on scheme assets 0.8 Co
Actuai return on plan assets less interest on plan assets 0.3 06
Pension administration costs {0.6) (0.4)
Contributions 1.9 1.8
Benefits paid {2.0) Rs)!
Closing fair value of scheme assets 39.0 386

The prior year pension costs included £0.4m operating costs and a £1.0m charge relating to one-off adjustment
relating to historic commutation terms for legacy scneme members,



32. Pension continuac
Sensitivities

The sensitivity of the 2022 pension liabilities to changes in assurmptions arc as follows:

Increase in

scheme deficit

Assumption Change in assurmption £m
Discount rate Decrease by 0.5% 22
Inflation Increase by 0.5% o7
Life expectancy Increase by 1 year 19

33. Related party disclosures

As at 31 March 2022 the Group's subsidiaries are set out below. Unless otherwise stated, the Group holds
(directly or indirectly) 100% of the total voting rights of al: subsidiarics.

Except where noted, all materia!l subsidiaries have a 31 March year end and the shares carry the same voting

rights as their effective interest.

UK registered subsidiaries exempt from audit discoverlE Nordic Holdings Limited (company no. 02056483);
discover!E Electronics Limited (06556285}, Contour Holdings Limited {company no. 06846542); Variohm
Holdings Limited (company no. 05783452); Xi-Tech Limited (company no. 07068708), Curscr Controls Holdings
Limited {company no. 09472278), Positek Limited {company no. 027467C7), Ixthus Instrumentation Limited
(company no. 04876913) and Heason Technology Limited {company no. 063522037) qualify to take the statutory
audit exemption as set out within section 479A of the Companies Act 2006 for the year ended 31 March 2022
discoveriE Group plc will guarantee the debts and liabilities of those companies at the staternent of financial
position date in accordance with section 479C of the Companies Act 2006.

Name and nature of business

Registered address

Country of
incorporation
and registration

Management services - Head Office

discoverlE Management Services Limited 2 Chancellor Court, Occam Road,

Operating companies
Antenova Limited

Calculagraph Company
{trading as Control Products ing)

Coil-Mag LLC
(trading as IMAC Electronics}

Coil-Tran de Meoxico SA de CW?
Ceil-Tran LLC

(trading as Hobart Electronics)
Centour Electronics Asia Limited

Contour Electronics Limited

Cursor Controls Limited

Surrey Research Park, Cuildford QU2 7AH

2 Chancehor Court, Occam Road,
Surrey Rescarch Park, Cuildford CUZ2 7AH

280 Ridgedale Avenue,
East Haneover, New Jersey 07936

160 South lllinois Street,

Hobart, Indiana, 46342-4512

Calle Matamoros 124, Colonia Centro, Municipio
Agualeguas, Nuevo Leon, CP 65800

160 South llinois Street,

Hobart, Indiana, 46342-4512

Room 601, 6/F Shing Yip Industrial Buiiding,
19-21 Shing Yip Street, Kwun Teng, Kowloon

2 Chancellor Court, Occarm Road,
Surrey Research Park, Guildford GU2 7AH

2 Chancellor Court, Occam Road,
Surrey Rescarch Park, Guildford GU2 7AH

England

England
USA
USA
Mexico
USA

Hong Kong

England

England



33. Related party disclosures continued

Country of
Incorporation
Name and nature of business Registered address and registration
Danselbud Noratel Transformator Sp Zoo Ul Szczecinska 1K, Dobira Szezecinska PL-72-003 Poland
EMC Innovation Limited Woolim Lions Vailey C-409, 283 Bupyeong-dacro, South Korea
Bupyeong-gu, Cheongcheon-Dong, Inchean
Flux A/S Industrivangen 5, 4550 Asnaes Denmark
Flux International Limited £1/27, 23 Village No. 6, Phuncaroen Lane, Thailand

Bangna-Trad Km 16.5, Bang Chalong (Bangkok],
Bang Phli District, Samut Prakan Provingce, 10540

Foshan Noratel £lectric Co Limited’ NO 22-2 Xingye Road, Zone C Shishan Scicnce & China
Technology Industrial Park, Nanhai Distric, “oshan
City, Guangdong Province 528225

Foss Fiberoptisk Systemsalg AS Dansrudveien 45, N-303¢ Drammen Norway
Foss Fibre Optics s.r.o Odborarska 52, 831 02 Bratislava Slovakia
Heason Technology Limited 2 Chancellor Court, Occam Road, England
Surrey Research Park, Guildford GUZ2 7AH
Hectronic AB P.O. Box 3002, 750 03 Uppsala Sweden
Herga Technology Limited 2 Chancelior Court, Occam Road, England
Surrey Rescarch Park, Guildford GUZ 7AH
Limitor GribH Dicselstraf3e 22, 73660 Urbach Germany
Limitor Hungaria Kft Pécs, Makay Istvan Ut 13/b, 7634 Hungary
Limiter Solutions Gmibh Diesclstrafe 22, 73660 Urbach Germany
Logic PD Inc (trading as Beacon 6201 Bury Drive, Eden Prairie, MN 55346 LSA
Embedded Waorks)
MTC Micro Tech Components GmbH Hauscner Straf3e 9, 89407 Dillingen a.d., Donau Germany
Myrra Deutschland GmbH Lebacher Straie 4, 66113 Saarbrucken Germany
Myrra Hong Kong Limited 42/F Central Plaza, 18 Harbour Road, Wanchai Hong Kong
Myrra Power Sp Zoo Ul Warszawska 1, 05-310 Kaluszyn Poland
Myrra SAS 7 Boulevard de La Haye, 77600 Bussy-5aint-Georges  France
Noratel AS Elektroveien 7, 3300 Hokksund Norway
Noratel Canada Incorporated 8-601 Magnetic Drive, Toronte, Ontario, M3J 3]2 Canada
Noratel Denmark A/S Naveriand 15, 2600 Glostrup, Copenhagen Denmark
Noratel Finland QY Kiertokatu 5, PB 11, 24280, Salo Helsinki Finland
Noratel Germany AG Elsonthal 53, DE-94481 Grafcnau, Bremen Cermany
Noratel! India Power Componoents Pvt Nila Technopark, Trivandrum, Kerala, 695581 India
Limited
Noratel International (Private) Limited P.O Box 15, Phase 2 KEPZ, Katunayare Sri Lanxa
Noratel North America LLC 13663 Providence Read, Suite 345, USA
Woeddington, NC 28104
Noratel Power Engineering LILC 117 East Janis Strect, Carson, CA 90746 USA
Noratel SP Z.o.o ul. Szcrzecinska 1K, Dobra Szezecinska Pi-72-003 Poland
Noratel Sweden AB Lars Lindahlsvag 2, Bo Lars Lindahisvag 2, Swoeden
Box 108, Laxa 69522
Noratel UK Limited 2 Chancellor Court, Occam Road, England

Surrey Research Park, Guildford GUZ 7AH



33. Related party disclosures continued

Name and nature of business

Registered address

Country of
incorporation
and registration

NSI bvba
Phoenix America LLC
Positak Lim;ted

Santon Circuit Breaker Services BV,
Santon CrmbH

Santon Group BV.

Santon Hekenaorpstraat BV,
Santon Haollanag BV,

Santon Internaticnal BV,
Santon Switchgear Limited

Sens-Tech Limited

Stortech Electronics Limited
Variohm-Eurgsensar Limited

Vertec Scientific Limited

Zhongshan Myrra Electronic Co Limited

Holding companies
Aramys SAS
Contour Hold ngs Limited

Cursor Controls Holdings Limited

discoverlE BV

discoverlE Electronics Limited

discoverlE Europe Holding BV
discoverlE France Holdings SAS

discoverlE Holdings Limited
discover|E Nordic Holdings Limited

DiscoverlE US Holdings Inc.
EWAC Holding BV.
Sedgemoor Limited

Trafo Holding AS

Haakstraat 1A, 3740 Bilzen
850 New Burton Road, Suite 201, Daver, DE 19904

2 Chancellor Court, Occam Road,
Surrey Research Park, Guildford GUZ 7AH

Hekendorpstraat 69, 3072 DX Rotterdam

Onerstrasse 1, Altes Rathaus Hinsteck,
Postfach 5217, 41334 Nettetal

Hekendorpstraat 69, 3072 DX Rotterdam
Hekendorpstraat 69, 3072 DX Rotterdam
Hekendorpstraat 69, 3079 DX Rotterdam
Hekendorpstraat 69, 3079 DX Rotterdam

2 Chancellor Court, OQccam Road,
Surrey Research Park, Guildford GU2 7AH

2 Chancelior Court, Cccam Road,
Surrey Research Park, Guildford GU2 7AH

2 Chancelior Court, Occam Road,
Surrey Research Park, Guildfora GU2 7AH

2 Chancelior Court, Occam Road,
Surrey Research Park, Guildford GU2 7AH

2 Chancellor Court, Occam Road,
Surrey Rescarch Park, Guildford GU2 7AH

39-2 Industrial Road, Xiaclan Industrial Park, Xiaolan

Town, 528400, Zhongshan, Guandaong Province

2 Boulevard de La Hayce, 77600 Bussy-5Saint-Georges

2 Chancellor Court, Occam Road,
Surrey Research Park, Guildford GU2 7AH

2 Chancellor Court, Occam Road,
Surrey Research Park, Guildford GU2 7AH

Luchthavenweg 53, 5657 EA Eindhoven

2 Chancellor Court, Occam Road,
Surrey Rescarch Park, Guildford GU2 7AH

Luchthavenweg 53, 5657 EA Eindhoven

4 Allée du Cantal ZI Petite Montagne Sud
- 91090 Lisses, Evry

2 Chancellor Court, Occam Road,
Surrey Research Park, Guildford GU2 7AH

2 Chancelior Court, ©Cccam Road,
Surrey Research Park, Guildford GU2 7AH

850 New Burton Road, Suite 201, Dover, DE 19904
Hekendorpstraat 69, 3072 DX Rotterdam

2 Chancellor Court, Qccam Road,
Surrey Research Park, Guildford GU2 7AH

Elektroveien 7, Hokksund, 3300

Belgium
UsA
England

Nethenands
Germany

Netheriands
Netherlands
Nethertands
Netheriands
England

England
England
England
England

China

France
England

England

Netherlands
England

Netherlands

France
England
England

UJSA
Netheriands
England

Norway



33. Related party disclosures continued

Name and nature of business

Registered address

Country of
mncorporation
and registraticn

Variohm Holdings Limited
Xi-Tech Limited

Dormant companies
Acal BFi Iberia SL

Acal Eiectronics Limited

Acal Supply Chain Limited

Actech Holdings Limited

Advanced Crystal Technology Limited
Amega Electronics Limiteg

Amega Group Limited

BFi Optilas Denmark A/S
BFi Optilas Limited

Bosunmark Limited
Cabcon {UK) Limitea

DiscoverlE North America LLC
Eurosensor Limited

Gothic Crelion Limited

Ixthus Instrumentation Limited
Myrra Hispania Srl

Radiatron Components Limited
Radiatron Heldings Limited
Sedgemoor Group Pension Trustees
Limited

Sedgemoor Group Supplemaentary
Dension Trustees Limited

Sedgemoor Holdings Limited

Townsend-Coates Limited

2 Chanccllor Court, Occam Read,
Surrey Research Park, Guildfora GU2 7AH

2 Chancellor Coart, Qccam Road,
Surrey Research Park, Guildfora GU2 7AH

C/Anabel Segura, 7, Planta Acceso, 28108
Alcobendas, Madrid

2 Chaneellor Court, Cccam Read,
Surrey Research Park, Guildfora GU2 7AH

2 Chancellor Court, Occam Road,
Surrey Research Park, Guildford CU2 7AH

2 Chancellor Court, Occam Road,
Surrey Research Park, Guildford GU2 7AH

2 Chancellor Court, Occam Road,
Surrey Research Park, Guildford GU2 7AH

2 Chancellor Court, Occam Road,
Surrey Research Park, Guildford GU2 7AH

2 Chancellor Court, Occam Road,
Surrey Research Park, Guildford CU2 7AH

Jernabanegade 238, 4000 Roskilde Copenhagen

2 Chancellor Court, Occam Road,
Surrey Research Park, Guildford GU2 7AH

2 Chancellor Court, Occam Road,
Surrey Research Park, Guildford GU2 7AH

2 Chancellor Court, OQccam Road,
Surrey Research Park, Guildford GUZ 7AH

850 New Burton Road, Suite 201, Dover, DE 193904

2 Chancellor Court, Occarm Road,
Surrey Research Park, Guildford GU2 7AH

2 Chancellor Court, Occam Road,
Surrey Research Park, Guildford GU2 7AH

2 Chancellor Court, Occam Road,
Surrey Research Park, Guildford GU2 7AH

c/Mataro 43 Pol. Ind. les Grases,
08980 Saint Feliu De Llobregat, Barcefona

2 Chancellor Court, Occam Road,
Surrey Research Park, Cuildford GU2 7AH

2 Chancellor Court, Occam Road,
Surrey Research Park, Guildfora CU2 7AH

2 Chancellor Court, Occam Road,
Surrey Research Park, Guildford CU2 7AH

2 Chancellor Court, Occam Road,
Surrey Research Park, Guildford GU2 7AH

2 Chancellor Court, Occam Road,
Surrey Research Park, Guildford GU2 7AH

2 Chancellor Court, Occam Road,
Surrey Research Park, Guildford GU2 7AH

England

England

Spain

Engiand
Engiand
England
England
England
England

Denmark
England

England
England

USA
England

England
England
Spain

England
England
England
Engiand
England

England




33. Related party disclosures continued

Zhongsnan Myrra Eleciraric Co Limited and Fashan Noratel Electne Co Limited have 31 December year enas
+ 15% of Coit-Tran de Mexico 5A de CV 1s owned by local management

Related parties

Remuneration of key management personnel

The Group considers key management personnel as defined in 1AS 24 'Related Party Disclosures' to be the
members of the Group Executive Committee as set out on page 84. Remuneration 1S set out below in aggregate.
The charge for share-tbased payments of C16m (2021 £Q.7m) reiates to the Group's LTIP as detailed in note 31

2022 2027

£m £m

Short-term emplovee benefits 31 29
Pension benefits 0.2 02
Share-based payments 1.6 07
4.9 38

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties
All transactions with related parties were on an arm's length basis. Outstanding balances at year end are
unsecured and settlement occurs in cash.

Transactions with other related parties
Detalls of transactions with Directors are detailed in the Remuneration report on pages 109 to 132,



NOTES TO THE GROUP
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 March 2022

34. Exchange rates

The Statement of Profit or Loss of overseas subsidiaries are translated into sterling at average rates of exchange
for the year and consolidated statements of Financial Position are translated at yoar end rates. The main
currencies are the US Dollar, the Euro and the Norwegian Krone. Details of the exchange rates used are as follows:

Year to 31 March 2022 Year to 31 March 2021
Clesing Average Closing Average
rate rate Rate rate
Us Dallar 1.3123 13668 1.3760 13075
Euro 11821 11761 11736 11207
Norwegian Krone 1.479 11.856 n73 1970

35. Events after the reporting date

Tnere were no matters arising, between the Statement of Financial Position date and the date on which these
financial statements were approved by the Beard of Directors, requiring adjustment in accordance with A5 10,
Events after the reporting period. The following impoartant non-adjusting events should be noted:

Dividends

Afinal dividend of 745p per share {2021 7.0p}, amounting to a dividend of £71m (2021 £6.2m) and bringing
the total dividend for the year to 10.8p (2027 10.15p), was deciared by the Board on 14 June 2022, The discoverlE
group Financial Statements do not reflect this dividend.

Revoiving Credit Facility

On 3 May 2022, the Group increased its syndicated banking facility frem £180m to £240m and extended the
remaining term of the facility by two years out to four years ending in June 2026, with an cption exercisable by
the Group to extend the facility by a further year to June 2027. In addition, the Croup has an £80m accordion
facility which it can use 1o extend the total facility up to £320m.



COMPANY STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION

as at 31 March 2022

2022 2021
notes £m £m
Non-current assets
Investmaents > 203.4 2013
203.4 2013
Current assets
Debtors o 813 299
Cash at bank and in hand 16.8 31
98.1 330
Total assets 3015 2343
Current liabilities
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 7 {35.3) (15.0}
{35.3) (15.0)
Non-current liabilities
Other financial llabilities 8 - (9.3)
- (9.3)
Total liabilities {35.3) (24.3)
Net assets 266.2 2100
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 9 4.7 4.4
Share premium account 192.0 138.8
Merger reserve 10.5 129
Profit and loss account 59.0 469
Total shareholders' funds 266.2 2100

The profit of the Company for the financial year ended 31 March 2022 was £10.2m {2021 £7.4m profit).

These “irarcial statements on pages 213 to 217 were approved by the Board of Directors on 14 June 2022 and
signed on s boenaalf by

bj&@ L C—

Nick Jefferies Simon Gibbins
Crouo Chief Executive: Group Finance Director



COMPANY STATEMENT
OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

for the year ended 31 March 2027

Share Share Merger Profit and
capital premium reserve loss account Total
£m £m £m £m £m
At 1 April 2020 4.4 138.8 227 38.4 204.3
Profit for the year - - 7.4 7.4
Sharec-based payments A 11
Transfer to profit or loss account - (2.8) 28
Dividends - 2.8) (2.8}
At 31 March 202] 4.4 138.8 19.9 46.9 210.0
Profit for the year - 102 02
Share-based payments - - 19 19
Shares issued [note 9) 03 532 535
Transfer to profit or loss account - (S.4) 2.4
Dividends - - (9.4) (9.4)
At 31 March 2022 4.7 192.0 105 59.0 266.2

At 31 March 2022, an amount of £40.2m out of the total £592.0m in the profit and loss account and £7.6m out
of total £1C.5m in the merger reserve is available for distribution, sulject to filing these Financial Statements
with Companics House. When making & distribution to shareholders, the Directors determine profits available

for distribution by reference to guidance on realiscd and distributable profits under the Companies Act

2006 issuced by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Scotland in April 2C17. The profits of the Company have been received in the form of dividends
from subsidiary commpanics which have been paid to the Company in cash. The availability of distributable

rescrves in the Company is dependent on dividends received from subsidiary companies mecting the
definiticn of qualifying consideration within the guidance referred to above, and on the available cash

resources of the Croup and other accessible sources of funds. The level of distributable reserves is subject to

any future restrictions or limitations at the time such distribution is made.



NOTES TO THE COMPANY
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 March 2022

1. Basis of preparation

Tne separate Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared for all periods presented, in
accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 ‘Reduced Disclosure Framework' (FRS101) and in
accordance with the Companies Act 2006. These Financial Statcments are prepared on the going concern
basis and under the historical cost canvention modified for fair values, as described in note 2 to the Group
consclidated Financial Statements.

2. Surmmary of significant accounting policies
The summary of significant accounting policies for the Company is described in note 2 to the Group
consolidated Financial Statements.

3. Profit of the company
The prof't of the company for the financial year was £102m (2021 £7.4m profit). By virtue of section 408(3) of
the Companies Act 2006, the Company is exernpt from presenting a separate Statement of Profit or Loss.

4. Employees

The Directors also provide services to other group undertakings and received remuneration from a fellow
group undertaking, discoverlE Management Services Limited in respect of services to the Group. Directors
Emoluments are shows in note 8 to the consolidated Financial Statements.

5. Investments

Subsidiary

undertakings

£m

ALY April 2020 2002
Share-bascd payments 11
At 31 March 2021 2013
Share-based payments 2]
At 31 March 2022 203.4

Details of all direct and indirect holdings in subsidiaries are provided in note 33 of the consalidated Financial
Statements.

Equity investments in subsidiary undertakings arc reviewed annually for indicators of impairment of the
carrying value, measured at cost fess accumulated impairment losses. Where the net assets of a subsidiary fall
below the carrying amount of the investment an impairment test is performed. The impairment test compares
the carrying amount to the estimated recoverable amount, calculated based on value in use of the faorecast
business cash flows, discounted at the Company's pre-tax discount rate.

The results of this review have not identified any further impairment of carrying value at the current reporting
date of 31 March 2022 (2021 nil). In respect of one of the investments in subsidiaries undertakings with the
carrying value of £18.5m, changaes in the value-in-use assumptions may lead te tne recoverable amount to be
less than its carrying value. The assumptions made in estimating the value of the future cash flow are an LTCGR
of 2%, a pre-tax discount rate of 13.2% and a 5 Year Sales CAGR of 7%. A reduction in the long-term growth rate,
pre-tax discount rate and 5-year sales CACR of 1ppt would result in ‘'mpairment of £1.5m, £2.0m and L17m
respectively,



NOTES TO THE COMPANY
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 March 2022

6. Debtors
2022 2021
£m £m
Amounts falling due within one year:
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 78.5 28.0
Corpuration Lax 19 17
Other debtors 0.8 0.1
Prepayments 0.1 01
813 299

Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings bore interest at a sterling base ratc plus a margin of 175% and at
USC one month LIBOR plus a2 margin of 2% All amounts are repayable on demand. There are no material
expected credit losses recognised for these receivables.

At 31 March 2022, the Company had not recegnised any deferred tax assct in respect of tax losses of
approximately £3.1m (2021: £2.1m). Deferred tax assets are not recognised where there is insufficient cvidence
that losses will be utilised.

7. Creditors
2022 2021
£m £m
Amounts falling due within one year:
Bank loans and overdrafts 8.4 19
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 24.1 120
Other payables 1.3 01
Accruals 1.5 1.0
353 15.0

Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings bore interest at a nil rate and are repayable on demand.

8. Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities of £nit at 31 March 2022 (2021: £9.3m) comprise drawdowns on the Group's revolving
credit facility (sec note 23 to the consclidated Financial Statements). The 2021 amount was denominated in
Sterling and bore interest based on SONIA.



9. Called up share capital

2022 2022 2021 2021
Allotted, called up and fully paid Number £m Number £rm
Ordinary shares of 5p each 95,456,109 4.7 89455915 4.4

During the year to March 2022, 650,000 shares were issued to the Group's Employee Benefit Trust
(2021: 750,000).

On 2 September 2021, 5,350,194 shares were ‘'ssued for a gross consideration of £55m before costs and £53.5m
after costs. The shares were issued at 1028 pence per share, which is equal to the mid-market closing price
of 1,028 penice per share on 2 September 2021, £0.3m was share capital with the balance of £53.2m being
allocated to share premium account.

At 31 March 2022, there were outstanding opticns for employees of subsidiaries to purchasc up to 2,885,207
(2021: 3,928,273) ordinary shares of 5p each betwecn 2020 and 2031 at prices ranging from £nil per share to
£8.03 per sharc. These are subject to certain performance conditions as disclosed in note 3t of the consolidated
Financial Statements. During the year to 31 March 2022, employees exercised 1,170,882 share options under the
terms of the various schemes {2021: 60,693). The shares exercised during the year ended 31 March 2022 were
settled by the Trust.

10. Related parties
The Company is exempt under the terms of FRS 101 from disclesing related party transacticns with wholly-
owned entities that are part of the Group as these transactions are fully eliminated on consolidation.

1. Financial guarantees

The Company has issued corporate guarantees to banks for bank borrowings of its subsidiaries. These
guarantees are financial guarantees as they require the Company to reimburse the banks if the subsidiaries
fail to make principal or interest payments when due in accordance with the terms of their borrowings.
Borrowings by subsidiaries undertakings totalling £65.5m which are included in the Group's borrowings (note
23} have been guaranteed by the company.

12. Share-based payments
For detailed disclosures of share-based payments granted to the employees of subsidiaries refer to note 31 of
the consolidated Financial Statements.

13. Post balance sheet events

There were no matters arising, between the statement of financial position date and the date on which these
financial statemeants were approved by the Board of Directors, requiring adjustment in accordance with 1AS 10,
Events after the reporting period The following important non-adjusting events should be noted:

Dividends
Afinal dividend of 7.45p per share (2021, 7.0p), amounting to a dividend of £7.1m (2021 £6.2m} and bringing the
total dividend for the year to 10.8p (20211015}, was declared by the Board on 14 Junc 2022.

Revolving Credit Facility

On 3 May 2022, the Group increased its syndicated banking facility from £180m to £240m and extended the
remaining term of the facility by two years out to four years ending in June 2026, with an option exercisatle by
the Group to extend the facility by a further year to June 2027, In addition, the Group nas an £80m accordion
facility which it can usc to extend the total facility up to £320m.



Other Information

FIVE YEAR RECORD

2021 2020 2019 2018
2022 restated” restated™ restated* restated”
£m £m £rm £rm £m
Group Statement of Profit or Loss —
continuing operations
Revenue 379.2 3028 3033 2682 224 4
Underlying operating profit 41.4 308 308 225 17.0
Underlying profit before tax 376 272 265 90 14.4
Profit before tax 17.1 13.5 13.2 nz 73
Profit for the year from continuing
operations 9.7 a5 93 8.6 51
Earnings per share - continuing
operations
Underlying earnings per share 29.4p 2240 2440 190p 14.6p
Diluted carnings pcr sharc 101p 10.3p 10.6p N.3g 6.9p
Dividend per share 10.8p 10.15p 297p 955p 20p
Group statement of financial position
Net debt (30.2) {47.2) (61.3) (63.3) (52.4)
Non-current assets 3265 2446 236.4 1492 136.4
Net assats 290.4 2084 2005 1347 126.8

The figures for 2020 onwards included the impact of the adoption of IFRS 16

* The Croup has restated the prior year comparatives In the consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss to excluce the results of discontinued
operations with the objective of ensuring that the amaounts disclosed for the year enced 31 March 2022 are comparable with the resalts for
the year ended 31 March 2021 and eariier years {the comparative perioas). Details of the financial position and results far the discontindeo

operations can be found 1IN note 12 to the consohdated Financial Statements

discoverlF Group ple  innovative Flectronias



PRINCIPAL LOCATIONS

Group head office

Cther Information

Location Company City
United Kingdom discoverlE Group plc Cuildford
discoverlE Management Services Limited Cuildford
Operating companies
Location Company City
United Kingdom Antenova Limited Hatfield
Centour Electronics Limited Hook
Cursor Controls Ltd Newark
Herga Technology Limited Bury St. Edmunds
Noratel UK Limited Nantwich
Sens-Tech Limited Egham
Stortech Electronics Limited Harlow
Variohm-Eurosensor Limited Towcester, Cheltenham, Horsham
o __Vertec Scientific Limited } Reading
Belgium NSI BVBA L Bilzen
Canada Noratel Canada Inc L Ontario _
China Mainland Foshan Noratel Electric Co Limited Foshan City
____Zhongshan Myrra ElectronicCo limited ~ Zhongshan
Denmark Noratel Denmark A/S Clostrup
Flux AfS Asnacs
Finland Noratcl Finland QY Salo e
France Myrra SAS o _ Bussy-Saint-Georges B
Germany Limitor &CmbH Urbach
Limitor Solutions GmbH Urbach
MTC Micro Tech Components GmbH Dillingen
Noratel Germany AC Crafenau, Bremen
Santon GmbH Nettetal
Variohm-Eurcsensor Heidelberg
Hong Keng Contour Asia Limited Kowlaon
__Myrra Hong Kong Limited Wanchal
Hungary Limitor Hungaria Elektromechanikai Cyarto Kft. Pecs
India Noratel India Power Components Pvt Limited ~ Kerala, Bangalore
Mexico Hobart Electronics Agualeguas, Nogales
Netherlands  — Santon Holland BV _Rotterdam
Norway Foss AS Drammen
Noratel AS o Hokkﬁgnql_l—(amar
Poland Myrra Poland sp. z o.0. Kaluszyn
e Noratelsp. Z 6.0 . Szczecinska
S'ovakia Foss Fibre Optics s.ro. ________ DBratislava
South Korea EMC Innovation Limited Cheongcheon-Dong
Sri Lenka Noratel International Pvt Limited Katunayake
Sweden Hectronic AB Uppsala
Noratel Sweden A3 Laxa, Vaxjo
Taiwan ____Antenova Asia Taipet N
Thailgnd Flux International Limited _ Bangkok N -
USA Calculagraph Company East Hanover, NJ
Hobart Electronics Hobart, IN
IMAG Electronics Tempe, AZ

Logic PD, Inc.

Noratel North America LLC
Noratel Power Engineering LLC
Phocnix Arnerica LLC

Eden Prairig, MN
Charlotte, NC
Long Beach, CA
Fort Wayne, IN

Annual Report and Accounts for the year ended 31 Mare~ 2022



Other Information

FINANCIAL CALENDAR 2022/23

Annual General Meeting

28 July 2022

Results

Interim results for the six months to 30 September 2022

Preliminary announcement for the year to 31 March 2023

Annua! Report 2023

Late November 2022
Early June 2023
Late June 2023

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Registered office
discoverlE Group plc
2 Chancellor Court
Occam Road

Surrcy Rescarch Park
Guildford

Surrey GU2Z2 7AH

Telephone: 01483 544500

Incorporated in England and Wales
with registered number: 02008246

Auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Corporate solicitors
White & Case LLP

Principal bankers

Bank of Ireland

Clydesdale Bank plc
Citibank NA Inc

Danske Bank A/S

Fifth Third Commercial Bank
HSBC Bank UK plc

KBC Bank NV

discoverlE Group ple  Innovative Electronics

Registrar

Equiniti Limited
Aspect House

Spencer Road

Lancing

Woest Sussex BN99 6DA

Telephong 0371384 2001

Stockbroker
Peel Hunt LLP
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